
City of Lemon Grove
City Council Regular Meeting Agenda

M

Tuesday, June 20, 2017, 6: 00 p. m.
Lemon Grove Community Center

3146 School Lane, Lemon Grove, CA

The City Council also sits as the Lemon Grove Housing Authority, Lemon Grove Sanitation District
Board, Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District Board,

and Lemon Grove Successor Agency Board

Call to Order

Pledge of Allegiance

Changes to the Agenda

Presentation

July is Parks and Recreation Month Proclamation

San Diego County Fair at the Del Mar Fairgrounds

Public Comment

Note: In accordance with State Law, the general public may bring forward an item not scheduled on the
agenda; however, the City Council may not take any action at this meeting. If appropriate, the item will be
referred to staff or placed on a future agenda.)

1„ Consent Calendar

Note: The items listed on the Consent Calendar will be enacted in one motion unless removed from

the Consent Calendar by Council, staff, or the public. Items that are pulled will be considered at the
end of the agenda.)

A..       Approval of Meeting Minutes

April 8, 2017 Special Meeting
Members present: Vasquez, J. Mendoza, Arambula, and M. Mendoza

B.       City of Lemon Grove Payment Demands
Reference:  Auggie Matt, Finance Manager

Recommendation:  Ratify Demands

C,       Waive Full Text Reading of All Ordinances on the Agenda

Reference:  James P. Lough, City Attorney
Recommendation: Waive the full text reading of all ordinances included in this
agenda; Ordinances shall be introduced and adopted by title

D.       Community Development Block Grant Program Cooperation Agreement Renewal

The City Council will consider a resolution authorizing renewal of the Community
Development Block Grant Program Cooperation Agreement for the next three

qualification periods from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2021.

Reference: Malik Tamimi, Management Analyst

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution

E.       Renewal of Professional Services Agreement Stormwater Program Support Services

with D- MAX Engineering, Inc

The City Council will consider a resolution approving an agreement with D- MAX
Engineering, Inc. to conduct outfall monitoring, industrial, commercial, and municipal
inspections.

Reference: Malik Tamimi, Management Analyst
CJornmmori rl 4innDi- lnr4 I7 oculi i4inn



F. Renewal of Stormwater Professional Services Agreement for Plan Review and

Construction Inspections with D- MAX Engineering, Inc

The City Council will consider a resolution approving an agreement with D- MAX
Engineering to review and approve technical stormwater reports for development and
redevelopment projects.

Reference: Malik Tamimi, Management Analyst

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution

G.       Reimbursement of Expenses to the City of San Diego Based on Draft Cost Share
Agreements Phase 1 Activities Associated with Investigative Order No. R9- 2015- 0058

for the Investigation of Sediment Quality in the Mouth of Chollas Creek

The City Council will consider a resolution adopting a not to exceed reimbursement of
35, 000. 00 to the City of San Diego, in the draft cost share agreements related to the

Memorandum of Understanding for the Completion of Phase 1 Activities required by
Investigative Order No. R9- 2015- 0058.

Reference:  Malik Tamimi, Management Analyst

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution

Acceptance of the Connect Main Street Project ( Contract No. 2017- 16) Segment I Phase

The City Council will consider a resolution accepting the Connect Main Street Project
Segment/ Phase work as complete and authorize a notice of completion to be filed with

the County of San Diego.

Reference: Mike James, Assistant City Manager/ Public Works Director
Recommendation: Adopt Resolution

li. Approve the Engineer' s Report Detailing Zone L Assessments for Fiscal Year 2017- 2018

The Roadway Lighting District Board will consider a resolution approving the Engineer's
report and directs the filing with San Diego County Auditor and Controller on or before
August 10, 2017.

Reference: Stephanie Boyce, Management Analyst

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution

J Approve the Engineer' s Report Detailing Sewer Service Charges for Fiscal Year 2017-
2018

The Sanitation District Board will consider a resolution approving the Engineer' s report
and directs the filing with San Diego County Auditor and Controller on or before August
10, 2017,

Reference: Stephanie Boyce, Management Analyst

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution

K.       Contract Extension for Street Light Maintenance and Repair

The Roadway Lighting District Board will consider a resolution to authorize a one-year
extension with CTE, Inc. contract for street light maintenance and repairs in an amount
not to exceed $ 11, 600.

Reference:  Stephanie Boyce, Management Analyst
Recommendation: Adopt Resolution



L, Five Year Lease Agreement with the Lemon Grove Historical Society for the Use of the
H. Lee House Located at 3205 Olive Street

The City Council will consider a resolution approving a five year lease agreement with
the Lemon Grove Historical Society for the use of the H. Lee House located at 3205
Olive Street.

Reference:  Mike James, Assistant City Manager/ Public Works Director
Recommendation: Adopt Resolution

M.       Levy and Collection of Assessments within the Lemon Grove Wildflower Landscape
Maintenance Assessment District 97- 1 for Fiscal Year 2017- 2018

The City Council will consider a resolution approving the levy and collection of
assessments within the Lemon Grove Wildflower Landscape Maintenance Assessment

District 97- 1 for Fiscal Year 2017-18 and directs the filing with San Diego County Auditor
and Controller on or before August 10, 2017.

Reference:  Stephanie Boyce, Management Analyst

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution

N,       Reject All Bids for the North Avenue/ Olive Street 20A Muni- Trench & Conduit

The City Council will consider a resolution rejecting all bids for the North Avenue/ Olive
Street 20A Muni- Trench & Conduit Project. This is due to the bids exceeding the
Engineer's estimate and project budget.

Reference:  Mike James, Assistant City Manager/Public Works Director
Recommendation: Adopt Resolution

0,       Revise the Completion Date for Converting the Overhead Distribution Facilities within
Underground Utility District No. 7

The City Council will consider a resolution that revises and ratifies the date of completion
to underground the utilities within the boundaries of Underground Utility District No. 7.

Reference: Mike James, Assistant City Manager/ Public Works Director
Recommendation: Adopt Resolution

2, Appointment of Three Permanent and Two Alternate Community Advisory Commission ( CAC)
Members

The City Council will consider a resolution that appoints three permanent CAC members and
establishes the two alternate appointments to the CAC. The three permanent members: James

Davis, Angeles Nelson and Yajaira Preciado and two alternate members: Tom Clabby and Walter
Oliwa.

Reference Miranda Evans, Management Analyst

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution

3. Fiscal Year 2017- 18 Consolidated Operating and Capital Budget

The City Council will consider five resolutions related to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2017- 18
Consolidated Operating and Capital Budget.

Reference: Gilbert Rojas, Finance Department

Recommendation: Adopt Resolutions



4 Public Hearing to Consider Variance Request VA1- 700- 0001 to Modify Development Standards

Requiring Two Off-street Parking Spaces to be Garaged in the Residential Low Zoning District

The City Council will conduct a public hearing and consider to either adopt a resolution
approving a variance application granting a modification of off- street parking requirements; or

adopt a resolution denying the variance application.

Reference: Michael Viglione, Assistant Planner, and

David De Vries, Development Services Director

Recommendation: Conduct Public Hearing and Adopt Resolution

5„ Public Hearing to Consider Ordinance No. 446 —Zoning Amendment ZA1- 500- 0002 Amending
the Alcoholic Beverage Sales Regulations and the General Commercial Zoning District

Regulations to Allow for Light Manufacturing, Brewpubs, Wine Bars and Related Accessory
Uses

The City Council will consider a zoning amendment that would allow for alcoholic beverage
manufacturers breweries, wineries, distilleries, brewpubs, and wine bars to be permissible by-
right in industrial and commercial zones with related accessory uses.

Reference: David De Vries, Development Services Director

Recommendation: Conduct public hearing and introduce Ordinance No. 446 certifying
Mitigated Negative Declaration ND17- 02 and approving Zoning Amendment ZA1- 500-
0002

City Council Oral Comments and Reports on Meetings Attended at the Expense of the City.

GC 53232. 3 ( d) states that members of a legislative body shall provide brief reports on meetings
attended at the expense of the local agency at the next regular meeting of the legislative body.)

Department Director Reports ( Non- Action Items)

Closed Session

Conference with Legal Counsel —Anticipated Litigation Significant exposure to litigation

pursuant to paragraph ( 2) or ( 3) of subdivision ( d) of Section 54956. 9:

Three Cases

Adjournment

hi o:. onip ,, Y. Vce ealVlu the 11rrnic ls)iii JnaladitkAc ( D,,"a)     00' oll II VulION Glia' g" VIII provide sllaa. ci'A pada r

vh o is rpluuio w: Saslaaliarar gi accoss aRt,en 1 aInd" ul paaig¢.; olp ak, in oracckngs of Hie o raa. ancil 11 y ua re' , Laoa^ Vauch l . a  I ka an e Ialcas( l
a, oiO f llH  G"; Ir CIC111" . al , I, 19  , r . "' 81 O r I d'' IIn I al hill a, cnd a l. aaa; @aet as oav: rMlhalha fa, a rq g'.,  ato' a; a,, a.. l, l pan uurr a e,uV a',aa+ , al ia lr ha: u 11 u. laiaa, V sura,

oubli", mvlwVr d tl" t", g N; a'all



MINUTES OF A SPECIAL MEETING OF

THE LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

April 8, 2017

The City Council also sits as the Lemon Grove Housing Authority, Lemon Grove Sanitation District
Board, Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District Board, and Lemon Grove

Successor Agency

City Councilmembers present:

Mayor Racquel Vasquez, Mayor Pro Tem Jennifer Mendoza, Councilmember David Arambula,

Councilmember Jerry Jones, and Councilmember Matt Mendoza.

City Council Members absent:

None.

City Staff Present:

City Manager, Lydia Romero, Development Services Director, David DeVries, Eric Craig, Associate
Planner, Mike Viglione, Assistant Planner and Management Analyst Miranda Evans

Public Comment

There was no public comment.

1. Downtown Village Specific Plan Expansion

David De Vries, Development Services Director, and Miranda Evans, Management Analyst,

provided and overview and presentation related to three topics in with the Downtown Village

Specific Plan Expansion: 1) Vision and Goals, 2) Land Use, and 3) Mobility.

The discussion included existing conditions background, public outreach findings, and
consultant recommendations.

Eric Lund, CEO East County Chamber, expressed support for the Downtown Village Specific
Plan Expansion and believes that the Plan will attract businesses. He also stated his preference

for the Broadway Plaza concept. Mr. Lund also appreciated the discussion on retaining
industrial land uses and stated that the Chamber of Commerce can help with the formation of a
Downtown Lemon Grove Property and Business Improvement District.

Adjournment

There being no further business to come before the City Council, Housing Authority, Sanitation
District Board, Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District Board, and the Lemon Grove Successor
Agency, the meeting was adjourned at 12: 00 p. m.

Susan Garcia, City Clerk

I



City of Lemon Grove Demands Summary

Approved as Submitted:

Auggie Matt, Finance Manager ACH/ AP Checks 05/ 30/ 17- 06/ 08/ 17 314, 04938

For Council Meeting: 06/ 20/ 17

Payroll- 06/ 06/ 17 148, 113. 30

l Otdl Orr rands 402j.63. 08

Check I Vendar No Vendor NI Check Urate Vender NaTine C'Mql Airwrount

3 r G V<  K

ATV r,CIJIFIJ0910 PqVOK.- II: NO NIAPAF

A( J:     May2l 17 JS V I casury 011/ 30/ 2011 ledeiral Paxesv/ 23/ V 26, 289 39 26, 289 39

ACI r IVay239 11 1: ThIcloymcint Dvvvlojrrneiuk r7ejrairi[ jnent 0513112017 ', rai[e Taxes 5/ 23/ 1. 1 1, 1851. 66 1, 189 G('

AGI I IMaylo uMW,) 3 Call1jej, SuIricleynciqal income 4w Ellam 06/ 01/ 201.7 4,/ Plan b/ 10/ 1/ h/ 23/ 11 56. a& 0 5, 565 GO

AC III Mayl/       [' 01APPI Nly W/ I VO r6/ 01/) Oj8 (), 111, Cirvcflt Card V:rou, s5ming May' 17 G1 / 0 61 10

A( 111 IltflayPll. A IfXrairna Mvrchair, t Seivwes 06/ 02/ 2011 Meirr hani: Fees May" I 1 343, 8',       343 8"

AU 1408102 1.:: AF 06/ 02/ 2,01/ Ucoh 03502, Ccqn[vr System PW Yard May" 1 2,46 14 246 14

A0 Imayl 7 AwV1coYIzc, Nef OG10217017 Mivy' li 44 P., 44. O!11,

AC': IO Jun 2011 Pel S I eakh 06/ 02/ 2017'   U, 11 W, 71G. G7 52, 17G G/

ACI Mayl I Clhasc, fl9arflr 06/ 05/ 2017 Workers" Comp Clahins- May"I 13, 0G0, 49 13, 06 049

AGI f Api,26 May23 Calikwnua PuNic. Ernjrl' RefircmeM SysIreiir 06/ 06/ 201/ lers RehirernerR 4/% 6/ 1. 1-,/ 71/ 1.7 11 66' 6!,' P' 18

AC11 Refill 6/" d/ 1. 1 Rkney Bower, Cloball Hnandal Seirvkcs 06/ 06/ 20X:. 1 PoOage 1, Pure 6/ 5/ 1/       2509 0G0 250 00

ACI 4154920380 SI. X& L 06101120 r/ fdechr! c1rragc. StLJg1rt 4/ 30/ rJ5/ 31/ 13 1, 860 72 t, 860 22,

AC3569860625 50G9, r 06/ 0 112011 4/ 30/ 115/ 31/ 11 1, 212, 90 1, 212 w

A( A I Ahi* 17 0ruployment Developirwint f1s^ baaXrrrnrrrnt 06/ 08/ 2011 stwOre I axes 6/ OG/ JI/ 9" Mc, 6/     F{" xx' GI

YG95 U5191/       A& A AlcIthaircew, and AC Repar,  CaIl Wa, 4"iieir- Fire SWicirr Y' 00 5" GO

1696 96/ 101 A- I W 05/ 31/ 2011 FIrre FeIelphone?/ 11'/ 1.' 7'. 5/ 12/ 1' 7 1988 7888

1691 4// 6 Beau r lecArical Solurion", Inc,    05/ 31/ 2017 Friffic, SIg, all Marrtel jr, ,' jvr- Heqponre- Apr 201. 1 1,; 641'':' VCO 2, 4133 r, 0

47/ 7 1 iraffi, Sigindli lMlvllvrerrvance Svc- Rouirrw Apr 2011 1, 144. 00

7698 0K00000245 Cry cj I I Cajon 05/. 91/ 201.1 I KJA Assmsuirient,, Or R 4 fY1 G/ 1 7 Pass Phirough 3, 499, 49 3, 499 49

7699 041102, 99n Dexter WrIlknin If ngineering, Inc,  Or/ 3 1/ XU-1 Metro WIA Wastewater swF,s- Ajw' 17 1 1' 552. 50 13" 1" 7.! 50

00 5/ 22- 2" r/ 11 P5, gd Coqxwa¢ ioirr 05/ 31/ 2011 75% Building f ees 5/ 22/ 185/ 25/ 18 3, 781 1. 6 8' 781 1r,

1/ 01 051' 2017     (, jr,% Sjjnt,, I1,, Vc1hoIogIvar Assoda es, AIIC 05/ 31/ 2,S) I 1 5/ 12/ 11 W5 00 925 DO

1102,    9940 InfirrrsxWi v Einglixxi In Carporzo[ cir,    OS/ 31/ 2017 Pi of Svc: r GA Rrahgni irent 4/ 1/ 11- 4/ 266/ 18 33, 317 94 33, 32 94

7703 UA IS 5/ 25/ r/  Lemon Grove O I' Aa Society 011/ 11/ 20111 Rehrib: wprm Usage Valve ledv. 21231114/ 2"/ 1. 1 4114. 00 41400

1704 NVO217" 11 McCim r0.":;/: i 12001/ IllllurninakedSiµirr, fog MaIn rcJ Promenadr 7" r9) 06 7, 592 06 05

91200140 MiCha, I Bar,- j, onrrALPona1 05/ i1/ 7011 PrnIf Svn:Main Sr,Promenade Phase 0 frwu 2/26/ 11 2, 700 00 2, i(YD 00 1706

201', 21 Ninyo& 1 05/ 31/ 201 0 Wholc Condos 111i oIerr InsIcccrIon Svcs thi u 4/ 28/ 11 44100 3, 004 50 201W4

r mci[ rency Svc,,-8VM Iflock( alle IIMrtev Lhim 4/18/ 17 7,', 63' 10



7707 LGO5172011 i SD SlicciiB I and Famfly IHaeaOtlh, 4s"  o5/ 31./ 2017 MecicalFirnessEvak 5117/ 1. 7 03, 472 88 i3„ 472.,@883

7708 0300891 SCS Engineers 05/ 3 1/ 2017 1 Corisuldng Svc: LGA RealignmenIr 4/ 1/ 17- 4/ 30/ 17 3, 84100 3, 841. 00

7709 06011, 7 ClIRS DIT' Vict 12 0610112. 017 2017 Re.c. Leader Workshop- Daycamp; 4„ 44, Y13111 7000 MOO

771,0 Arnad„ Ir AmadcF, Antonia Bruno 06/ 07/ 2017 ReIfund/ Arnadar, Antorna B/ Dellmsit- LEMI i/ 20/ I7 40000 400 00

7711 060117 AlMerIcan Gerierap I- Ife insuvance Co,      06/ 07/ 20, 17 We linswairice L Rorreirc 232 18 232 1. 83

7712 560" S AnOhern Blue Cross EAP 06/ 07/ 2017 Employee Assls(ranceI Dun 17 7IE6. 00 165 00

S 7 1_3 9127435 At& 1 06/ 07/ 2017 1 e Backup Phoure Line 4/ 22/ 1 Y 512. 1/ I Y 37153 37. 53

7714 5656716087 AkftoZone, Inc.      06/ 07/ 2017 1432- Dle5el Exhaust Fluld 163..94 2694

7715 15338L-[ N Aztec Landscalpling Inc, 06/ 07/ 2017 InIigabran Retrcifrt/ Equip lnifl& Labor LG Skate Park 1, 606 06 11, 23506

30385- I N Landscalpe MgryiI: Svc Apir 17 9, 629. 00

7716 4589268 Bearcoirn 06/ 07/ 2017 1 Radios Moindilly Conlrac¢ 512. 2117 612111Y 150.( 10 JIP M 00

MJ caflaajall Caribaial, vilchelle 06/ 07/ 2017 CcnaIlyard 5/ 20/ 17 0300, 00 1300, 00

7711. a Call ranoc Car ra ridic- Galvan,. Wffi 06/ 07/ 2017 Refund/ Cariaincio GalvanjEdith/ Par(rial Deposit Courtyard 7/ 8/ 17 LOOM 100 00

7719 15921. 4 City ol l 1 06/ 07/ 2017 116 1. 7( jry 3- JPA Reccincihauon lan- Mar' 7:01.7 4, 892 00 5, 342. 00

1922. 6 Sjix. wts fteirns/ Ernevgency Piiep Events 45000

7720 5/ 19/ 2017 Cox Communications 06/ 07/ 2017 1: Ohorhe/ IPWYaiid/ 2873Slkyllliiiie 511911Y 6/ 18117 711. 1.!::4 215. 15

5/ 18/ 2017 CRyMarnager/ Copy Room I::. ax Hue 5/ 11. 11/ 1. 7- 4111. 71117 4. 00

7721 06021, 72305 Domestic Linen California Inc 06/ 07/ 2017 Slmp 11 owells& Safety Mists 612111 102 20 1102. 20

77' 1: 2 5/ 30/ 117 6/ 1( 11. 7 Esgil Corporation 06/ 07/ 2017 75% Buflding G ees 6/ 1/ 17 41, 411. 33 4, 41. 733

7723 25315 ExceH Securlty, Inc,   06/ 0:7/ 2017 Sernoy Center Securlty GUards- 5/ 20/ 1. 7 648. 70 64870

7Y24 GwV Gary, Khandi 06/ 07/ 2017 Refund/ Garry, Khandl/ DelsosIt- CommCkir 5/ 20/ 17 30000 300 00

7725 7OBC402111    (", lobalstai, USA, Inc 0610712017 SaItelfirte Seiivice 4/ 008/ 1: 7- 5/; 45/ 1. 7 10644 106. 44

77. 6 00043908 1 iudsonSafe 11 ihelReritals 06/ 07/ 2017 5 Gallon Wlhke 11 raffic Paim/ Fast Dry 22Q1. 83 1, 41. 9. 011.

00043952 Mount Sigirrs on, BairOcade 1., 11. 911-' is

7727 33874 Inirerwest Consulting Group 06/ 07/ 2017 Pim/ Svc: SSAIRIPGiiant Pvocurernent Svc Apr' lY 520 00 520. 00

7728 1. 88 Jainazz, LLC SID 06/ 07/ 2017 Computer Maintenance May 17 2, 628 1. 1.     2„ 628§'.1. 11

7729 1439497 1 Cayldy Whitmore 06/ 07/ 2017 Prof SvcLEOISC 00003 Pre- i, ftigacion thru 4/ 30/ 117 5040. 610 56000

7730 217052603 MHZ Communications Ent 06/ 07/ 2017 Portable Radio Dustcovers 2146 21, 46

77[ 31.   51945 Modern SeptIc Service Inc 06/ 07/ 2017 Sewer Pump 5W.[cn MalM- 6794 1/ 2 Cerui,zu Ave 5/ 24/ 17 42000 420. 00

7732.    WO 37403 1 Office Advantage, Inc, 06/( P/ 2017 Office Supplies- ClPy Hall 94- 59 94. 58

7733 145709 Pacific SsveelpIng 06/ 07/ 2017 Street S, veela ing/ alr king Lot Alai 17 6, 65s 1- 5 6, 655 115

7734 Jur12017 PLIC SBD Grind Wind 06/ 07/ 2017 DenUil insurancee Jun] J 4, 679 18 4, 679 18

7135 5/ 23/ 2017 SIDGM 6' 14!1/ 427/ 20: 4' 7 3225 Olive- 4/ 20/ 17-' 5/ 21./ 1' 7 111. 19 29467

5/ 23/ 2017 85( 1671/ 2 Mom 4/ 20/ 17 512111Y 18349

773G 87911 51cring Valley( Latin I Shop CGIO12. 01 7 TrInrunef Une 967 9, 67

72:37 lun 1. 7 Standaad tivisurance CorTilcarVY 06/ 07/ 201.7 Lanny I eii in Diriahlky I vi, sur aree Jun 17 2, 06946 2, 069. 46

7138 00( 51922 11he I County Ca hfov n on 0610'71201.7 Ordinance No. 445 Park liras/ No Smoking/ NoAlcohol ArriendryiLs 66. 50 2512. 00

00052113 Pubfic i-earling Nonce Alloolholic Bev Sales 185 50

7739 5201.70333 Underground ServIce Alert 0610112017 71 New I c1ser Ohaiigei- May' 13 1. 496x50 l06 50

7740 31. 21. 1. 054- CCA US HeallfllhWorks Medicall Giioup, PC 0610712017 Arinual UMV I Fxarn- WrIkeris 5/ 9/ 17 99 CM 99. 00

7741 Juvb( i 117 Vaintage PcriM I ra3 o` os4e1r Agents 457 06/ 0-1/ 20 17 ICMA I, e, lcrxeal CorTrise r?,, a Joir, Pas Penod Eridmg 616/ 17 580 77 580 77

1742 01356jrr  ,   e,   &   , Svc uuat[ crn 1: und Cost Avnalyim FeII 6, 40000 6, 400 00

7743 9785654266 VerVzrcn WlreIes06/07/ 2017 Ciity P11hone Charges 4/ 13/ 17 5/ 12/ P 7 54013. 11.     1, 233 77

9785654885 Mobile Broadha rid Access 4/ 113/ 17 5/ l2/ 17 M 02

9786118 1, 7 7 MDC FrTme falbleIts.- 4121./ 4- 7.. 5120711.- 7 190 QIA



9 d801.00601.       E OC Router/ 1rner Phone bries 4/ 29/ l 7 5/ 20/ 17 ill' 91

1 191,654M I PW Tablets- 4/ 13/ 17- 5/ 12/ 11 188 is

1144 VFWPcslt 6/ 1 VFW Poslt 2082 06/ 07/ 20117 Refuind/ VFW Post 2082/ 0 eintall Fee Cancellatin Gazebo 8/ 26/ 17 WO 00 MO 00

111!,    114( 13984 Vulcan Mzlterlals Company 061011d 0 Aqpha1tjSS1 H 4 1. Gaflon Buckv 176 58 449 111

1141015 Asphalt 272 611

1 M 6 zuniga huniga, veirmc, k 06/ 07/ 201.7 ReffLirid/ Zuriga, Veircriic 3/ Deposiit Courtyard 5/ 119/ 17 A00, 00 300 00

314, 041/ 8 1i 44, 049 78



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No.  1. D

Mtg. Date June 20, 2017

Dept.   Developm..Development Service Department

Item Title:    Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program Cooperation Agreement
Renewal

Staff Contact:    Malik Tamimi, Management Analyst

Recommendation:

Adopt a resolution ( Attachment A) authorizing the renewal of the Community Development
Block Grant Program Cooperation Agreement for the next three ( 3) qualification periods from

July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2021.

Item Summary:

The City received a letter from the County of San Diego Department of Housing and Community
Development regarding the continued participation in the Community Development Block Grant
CDBG) program. The City is currently participating in the aforementioned program for the period of

July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2018.  The current CDBG Program Cooperation Agreement, in which

the City is a participant, includes a renewal provision for three consecutive periods covering July 1,
2018 through June 30, 2021.  The City has successfully participated in this program by implementing
street rehabilitation projects.   The County of San Diego Department of Housing and Community
Development requests a resolution from the City Council authorizing the renewal of the Cooperation
Agreement.

Staff recommends the City Council adopt a resolution ( Attachment A) to authorize the renewal of
the CDBG Program Cooperation Agreement for the next three ( 3) periods from July 1, 2018 through
June 30, 2021.

Fiscal Impact:

No fiscal impact to the General Fund,

Environmental Review:

Not subject to review Negative Declaration

Categorical Exemption, Section 15304 Mitigated Negative Declaration

Public Information:

None Newsletter article Notice to property owners within 300 ft,

Notice published in local newspaper Neighborhood meeting

Attachments:

A.  Resolution



Attachment A

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA,

AUTHORIZING THE RENEWAL OF THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT

CDBG) PROGRAM COOPERATION AGREEMENT FOR THREE ( 3) PERIODS FROM JULY

1, 2018 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2021

WHEREAS,  the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development
administers the Community Development Block Grant ( CDBG) Program and, provides federal
funds to assist community development activities in urban areas; and

WHEREAS, the County of San Diego ( County) applies for and accepts CDBG funds with
respect to its unincorporated areas and local governments that participate in the County' s
CDBG program known as " Urban County"; and

WHEREAS, the City of Lemon Grove ( City) is a unit of general local government that
participates in the " Urban County"; and

WHEREAS, the City is a current participant in the CDBG Program for the period of July
1, 2015 to June 30, 2018; and

WHEREAS, the City seeks the renewal of the CDBG Program Cooperation Agreement
for three ( 3) periods from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2021; and

NOW, THEREFORE,  BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon
Grove, California hereby authorizes the renewal of the CDBG Program Cooperation Agreement
for three ( 3) periods from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2021.



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No.       1...,..E.,.,.
Mtg. Date June 20. 2017

Dept. Development Services

Item Title:    Renewal of Professional Services Agreement Stormwater Program Support

Services With D- MAX Engineering, Inc.

Staff Contact:    Malik Tamimi, Management Analyst

Recommendation:

Adopt a Resolution ( Attachment A) approving an agreement to renew professional services
with D- MAX Engineering,  Inc. to assist with the implementation of the City' s Stormwater
Program.

Item Summary:

The Regional Water Quality Control Board ( RWQCB) through its Stormwater Municipal Permit

requires the City to complete a number of tasks described in the Jurisdictional Runoff Management
Plan  ( JRMP)  during Fiscal Year 2017- 18.    These tasks include outfall monitoring,  industrial,

commercial and municipal field inspections,   and structural best management practices

maintenance verification and inspections.    In addition to the JRMP,  the City is required to
implement its section of the San Diego Bay Watershed Water Quality Improvement Plan.  The City
has contracted with D- MAX Engineering,  Inc.  ( D- MAX)  in previous years to assist the City in
meeting the requirements of the State' s Mandated Stormwater Permit. The City' s current contracts
for the above mentioned services expires on June 30, 2017.  City staff recommends continuing the
contract with D- MAX to assist City staff with meeting these permit requirements. The proposed
agreement is for a not to exceed amount of $55, 000 through June 30, 2018.  Funds were allocated

next fiscal year within Fund 26 Storm Water Program, which receives its funding from business
license fees, building permit fees, and the General Fund, to support the D- MAX agreement. City
staff recommends that the City Council adopt a Resolution approving this agreement for
professional services.

Fiscal Impact:

The total contract amount for this professional services agreement is not to exceed Fifty- Five
Thousand Dollars ($ 55, 000. 00) and is supported through Fund 26 Storm Water Program, which

receives its funding from business license fees, building permit fees, and the General Fund.

Environmental Review:

Not subject to review Negative Declaration

Categorical Exemption, Section Mitigated Negative Declaration

Public Information:

None Newsletter article Notice to property owners within 300 ft.

Notice published in local newspaper Neighborhood meeting

Attachments:

A.  Resolution- Exhibit 1 D- MAX Proposal



Attachment A

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA

APPROVING AN AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES WITH D- MAX
ENGINEERING, INC. FOR STORMWATER SUPPORT SERVICES

WHEREAS, the Regional Water Quality Control Board ( RWQCB) adopted Order No.
R9- 2013- 0001 ( Permit) replacing the previously issued stormwater permit Order No. R9- 2007-
0001; and

WHEREAS, the Permit went into effect on June 27, 2013; and

WHEREAS, the Permit required the City to develop a Jurisdictional Runoff Management
Program ( JRMP) no later than June 27, 2015, which the City completed; and

WHEREAS, the City is required to conduct outfall monitoring, industrial, commercial and
municipal inspections, and structural best management practices verification and inspections
within Fiscal Year 2017- 18; and

WHEREAS, the City is also required to implement the San Diego Bay Watershed Water
Quality Improvement Plan; and

WHEREAS, the City has contracted with D- MAX Engineering, Inc. ( D- MAX) to provide

the aforementioned support through June 30, 2017; and

WHEREAS, the City' s existing contracts with D- MAX for the above mentioned support
expires on June 30, 2017; and

WHEREAS, the City has requested a stormwater services agreement to continue
contracting with D- MAX to meet the Permit requirements through June 30, 2018; and

WHEREAS, funds have been allocated within Fund 26 Storm Water Program, which

receives its funding from business license fees, building permit fees, and General Fund, to
support the expense to provide said services by D- MAX with a not to exceed amount of

55, 000. 00.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Lemon
Grove, California, hereby:

1.  Approves an Agreement with D- MAX ( Exhibit 1) for professional services for

stormwater support services; and

2.  Authorizes the City Manager or designee to execute said agreement.

m. 3..



Attachment A — Exhibit 1

AGREEMENT FOR

PROFESSIONAL STORMWATER SUPPORT SERVICES

THIS AGREEMENT is approved and effective upon the date of the last signature,  by and
between the CITY OF LEMON GROVE,  a municipal corporation  ( the " CITY"),  and D- Max

Engineering, Inc., a water and environmental sciences firm ( the " CONSULTANT').

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the CITY desires to employ a CONSULTANT to provide professional stormwater
services support that includes outfall monitoring, industrial, commercial, municipal inspections,
structural best management practices maintenance verification and inspections,  and water

quality improvement plan support for the CITY.

WHEREAS, the CITY has determined that the CONSULTANT is qualified by experience and
has the ability to perform the services desired by the CITY, and the CONSULTANT is willing to
perform such services.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES HERETO DO MUTUALLY AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

1.   ENGAGEMENT OF CONSULTANT.      The CITY hereby agrees to engage the

CONSULTANT and the CONSULTANT hereby agrees to perform the services hereinafter set
forth in accordance with all terms and conditions contained herein.

The CONSULTANT represents that all services required hereunder will be performed directly by
the CONSULTANT or under direct supervision of the CONSULTANT.

2.  SCOPE OF SERVICES. The CONSULTANT will perform services set forth in Exhibit A.

The CONSULTANT can expect to perform outfall monitoring, industrial, commercial, municipal
inspections, structural best management practices maintenance verification and inspections,

and water quality improvement plan support. This will involve the technical review of various
stormwater documents and involve site visits and field inspections.

The CONSULTANT shall be responsible for all research and reviews related to the work and

shall not rely on CITY personnel for such services, except as authorized in advance by the
CITY.  The CONSULTANT shall participate in meetings if required by a task order to keep staff
advised of the progress on the project.

The CITY may unilaterally, or upon request from the CONSULTANT, from time to time reduce
or increase the Scope of Services to be performed by the CONSULTANT under this Agreement
per project.  Upon doing so, the CITY and the CONSULTANT agree to meet in good faith and
confer for the purpose of negotiating a corresponding reduction or increase in the compensation
associated with said change in services.

3.   PROJECT COORDINATION AND SUPERVISION.  Malik Tamimi, Management Analyst, is

hereby designated as the Project Manager for the CITY and will monitor the progress and
execution of this Agreement.   The CONSULTANT shall assign a single Project Manager to

provide supervision and have overall responsibility for the progress and execution of this
Agreement for the CONSULTANT.  Arsalan Dadkhah, Ph. D., PE is hereby designated as the
Project Manager for the CONSULTANT.

4.   COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT.   The compensation for the CONSULTANT shall be

based on monthly billings covering actual work performed.    Billings shall include labor

classifications, respective rates, hours worked and reimbursable expenses, if any.   The total

cost for all work described within Exhibit A shall not exceed FIFTY- FIVE THOUSAND

DOLLARS ($ 55, 000. 00) without prior written authorization from the CITY for twelve months of

service.       Monthly invoices will be processed for payment and remitted within

W4_



Attachment A - Exhibit 1

thirty ( 30) days from receipt of invoice,  provided that work is accomplished consistent with
Exhibit A as determined by the CITY.

On an annual basis, the CONSULTANT may request an increase in the schedule of fees of no
more than the increase in the Consumer Price Index for the previous one year period.

The CONSULTANT shall maintain all books,  documents,  papers,  employee time sheets,

accounting records,  and other evidence pertaining to costs incurred and shall make such
materials available at its office at all reasonable times during the term of this Agreement and for
three ( 3) years from the date of final payment under this Agreement, for inspection by the CITY
and for furnishing of copies to the CITY, if requested.

5.   LENGTH OF AGREEMENT,:   This Agreement will last through June 30,  2018 from the

executed date of the Agreement or until all work has been completed by the CONSULTANT and
accepted by the CITY, whichever occurs first.

6.   DISPOSITION AND OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS.   The Memoranda,  Reports,  Maps,

Drawings, Plans, Specifications and other documents prepared by the CONSULTANT for this
Project, whether paper or electronic, shall become the property of the CITY for use with respect
to this Project, and shall be turned over to the CITY upon completion of the Project, or any
phase thereof, as contemplated by this Agreement.

Contemporaneously with the transfer of documents, the CONSULTANT hereby assigns to the
CITY and CONSULTANT thereby expressly waives and disclaims, any copyright in, and the
right to reproduce, all written material, drawings, plans, specifications or other work prepared

under this Agreement, except upon the CITY' s prior authorization regarding reproduction, which
authorization shall not be unreasonably withheld.  The CONSULTANT shall, upon request of the

CITY,  execute any further document( s)  necessary to further effectuate this waiver and
disclaimer.

The CONSULTANT agrees that the CITY may use,  reuse, alter, reproduce,  modify, assign,
transfer, or in any other way, medium or method utilize the CONSULTANT' s work product for
the CITY' s purposes,  and the CONSULTANT expressly waives and disclaims any residual
rights granted to it by Civil Code Sections 980 through 989 relating to intellectual property and
artistic works.

Any modification or reuse by the CITY of documents, drawings or specifications prepared by the
CONSULTANT shall relieve the CONSULTANT from liability under Section 14 but only with
respect to the effect of the modification or reuse by the CITY, or for any liability to the CITY
should the documents be used by the CITY for some project other than what was expressly
agreed upon within the Scope of this project, unless otherwise mutually agreed.

7.   INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT.  Both parties hereto in the performance of this Agreement

will be acting in an independent capacity and not as agents,  employees,  partners or joint

venture with one another.  Neither the CONSULTANT nor the CONSULTANT' S employees are

employees of the CITY and are not entitled to any of the rights, benefits, or privileges of the
CITY' s employees, including but not limited to retirement, medical, unemployment, or workers'
compensation insurance.

This Agreement contemplates the personal services of the CONSULTANT and the

CONSULTANT' s employees, and it is recognized by the parties that a substantial inducement to
the CITY for entering into this Agreement was,  and is,  the professional reputation and

competence of the CONSULTANT and its employees.  Neither this Agreement nor any interest
herein may be assigned by the CONSULTANT without the prior written consent of the CITY.
Nothing herein contained is intended to prevent the CONSULTANT from employing or hiring as

5w



Attachment A — Exhibit 1

many employees, or subcontractors, as the CONSULTANT may deem necessary for the proper
and efficient performance of this Agreement.    All agreements by CONSULTANT with its
subcontractor( s)  shall require the subcontractor to adhere to the applicable terms of this

Agreement.

8.   CONTROL.  Neither the CITY nor its officers, agents or employees shall have any control
over the conduct of the CONSULTANT or any of the CONSULTANT' s employees except as
herein set forth,  and the CONSULTANT expressly agrees not to represent that the
CONSULTANT or the CONSULTANT' s officers,  agents,  or employees are in any manner
officers, agents, or employees of the CITY.  It is understood that the CONSULTANT, its officers,

agents,  and employees are as to the CITY wholly independent consultants and that the
CONSULTANT' s obligations to the CITY are solely such as are prescribed by this Agreement.

9.   COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAW.  The CONSULTANT, in the performance of the

services to be provided herein, shall comply with all applicable State and Federal statutes and
regulations,  and all applicable ordinances,  rules and regulations of the CITY OF LEMON

GROVE, whether now in force or subsequently enacted.  The CONSULTANT, and each of its

subcontractors, shall obtain and maintain a current CITY OF LEMON GROVE business license

prior to and during performance of any work pursuant to this Agreement.

10. LICENSES, PERMITS, ETC.  The CONSULTANT represents and covenants that it has all

licenses, permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to
practice its profession.  The CONSULTANT represents and covenants that the CONSULTANT

shall, at its sole cost and expense, keep in effect at all times during the term of this Agreement,
any license, permit, or approval which is legally required for the CONSULTANT to practice its
profession.

11. STANDARD OF CARE.    The CONSULTANT,  in performing any services under this
Agreement, shall perform in a manner consistent with that level of care and skill ordinarily

exercised by members of the CONSULTANT' s trade or profession currently practicing under
similar conditions and in similar locations.  The CONSULTANT shall take all special precautions

necessary to protect the CONSULTANT' s employees and members of the public from risk of
harm arising out of the nature of the work and/ or the conditions of the work site.

Unless disclosed in writing prior to the date of this Agreement, the CONSULTANT warrants to
the CITY that it is not now, nor has it within the preceding five ( 5) years, been debarred by a
governmental agency or involved in debarment, arbitration or litigation proceedings concerning
the CONSULTANT' s professional performance or the furnishing of materials or services relating
thereto.

The CONSULTANT is responsible for identifying any unique products, treatments, processes or
materials whose availability is critical to the success of the project the CONSULTANT has been
retained to perform, within the time requirements of the CITY, or, when no time is specified, then

within a commercially reasonable time.  Accordingly, unless the CONSULTANT has notified the
CITY otherwise,  the CONSULTANT warrants that all products,  materials,  processes or

treatments identified in the project documents prepared for the CITY are reasonably
commercially available.  Any failure by the CONSULTANT to use due diligence under this sub-
paragraph will render the CONSULTANT liable to the CITY for any increased costs that result
from the CITY' s later inability to obtain the specified items or any reasonable substitute within a
price range that allows for project completion in the time frame specified or, when not specified,

then within a commercially reasonable time.

12. NON- DISCRIMINATION PROVISIONS.  The CONSULTANT shall not discriminate against

any employee or applicant for employment because of age, race, color, ancestry, religion, sex,

g_.



Attachment A - Exhibit 1

sexual orientation, marital status, national origin, physical handicap, or medical condition.  The

CONSULTANT will take positive action to insure that applicants are employed without regard to

their age, race, color, ancestry, religion, sex, sexual orientation, marital status, national origin,
physical handicap, or medical condition.   Such action shall include but not be limited to the

following:  employment,  promotion, demotion, transfer,  recruitment or recruitment advertising,
layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for training,
including apprenticeship.  The CONSULTANT agrees to post in conspicuous places available to
employees and applicants for employment any notices provided by the CITY setting forth the
provisions of this non- discrimination clause.

13. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION.   The CITY may from time to time communicate to the
CONSULTANT certain confidential information to enable the CONSULTANT to effectively
perform the services to be provided herein.  The CONSULTANT shall treat all such information

as confidential and shall not disclose any part thereof without the prior written consent of the
CITY.  The CONSULTANT shall limit the use and circulation of such information, even within its

own organization, to the extent necessary to perform the services to be provided herein.  The

foregoing obligation of this Section 13, however, shall not apply to any part of the information
that ( i) has been disclosed in publicly available sources of information; ( ii) is, through no fault of

the CONSULTANT,  hereafter disclosed in publicly available sources of information;  ( iii)  is

already in the possession of the CONSULTANT without any obligation of confidentiality; ( iv) has

been or is hereafter rightfully disclosed to the CONSULTANT by a third party, but only to the
extent that the use or disclosure thereof has been or is rightfully authorized by that third party; or
v) is disclosed according to law or court order.

The CONSULTANT shall not disclose any reports,  recommendations,  conclusions or other
results of the services or the existence of the subject matter of this Agreement without the prior

written consent of the CITY.   In its performance hereunder, the CONSULTANT shall comply
with all legal obligations it may now or hereafter have respecting the information or other
property of any other person, firm or corporation.

CONSULTANT shall be liable to CITY for any damages caused by breach of this condition,
pursuant to the provisions of Section 14.

14. INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS.. The CONSULTANT shall indemnify, defend,
and hold harmless the CITY, and its elected officials, officers, agents and employees from any

and all claims, demands, costs or liability that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence,
recklessness,   or willful misconduct of CONSULTANT,   its employees,   agents,   and

subcontractors in the performance of services under this Agreement.  CONSULTANT' s duty to
indemnify under this section shall not include liability for damages for death or bodily injury to
persons, injury to property, or other loss, damage or expense arising from the sole negligence
or willful misconduct by the CITY or its elected officials,  officers,  agents,  and employees.

CONSULTANT's indemnification obligations shall not be limited by the insurance provisions of
this Agreement. The CITY AND CONSULTANT expressly agree that any payment, attorney's
fees, costs or expense CITY incurs or makes to or on behalf of an injured employee under the

CITY' s self-administered workers' compensation is included as a loss, expense, or cost for the

purposes of this section, and that this section will survive the expiration or early termination of
this Agreement.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.  The CONSULTANT shall comply with all of the provisions
of the Workers'  Compensation Insurance and Safety Acts of the State of California,  the

applicable provisions of Division 4 and 5 of the California Government Code and all

amendments thereto;  and all similar state or Federal acts or laws applicable;  and shall

indemnify, and hold harmless the CITY and its elected officials, officers, agents, and employees

7_



Attachment A — Exhibit 1

from and against all claims, demands, payments, suits, actions, proceedings and judgments of

every nature and description, including reasonable attorneys' fees and defense costs presented,
brought or recovered against the CITY or its elected officials, officers, agents, and employees

for or on account of any liability under any of said acts which may be incurred by reason of any
work to be performed by the CONSULTANT under this Agreement.

16. INSURANCE.   The CONSULTANT,  at its sole cost and expense,  shall purchase and

maintain,  and shall require its subcontractors,  when applicable,  to purchase and maintain

throughout the term of this Agreement, the following insurance policies:

A.  If checked, Professional Liability Insurance ( errors and omissions) with minimum limits of
1, 000, 000 per occurrence.

B.  Automobile insurance covering all bodily injury and property damage incurred during the
performance of this Agreement, with a minimum coverage of $ 1, 000, 000 combined single limit

per accident.  Such automobile insurance shall include non- owned vehicles.

C.  Comprehensive general liability insurance,  with minimum limits of $ 1, 000, 000 combined

single limit per occurrence, covering all bodily injury and property damage arising out of its
operation under this Agreement.

D.  Workers' compensation insurance covering all of CONSULTANT' s employees.

E.  The aforesaid policies shall constitute primary insurance. as to the CITY, its elected officials,
officers, agents, and employees so that any other policies held by the CITY shall not contribute
to any loss under said insurance.   Said policies shall provide for thirty ( 30) days prior written
notice to the CITY of cancellation or material change.

F.  Said policies, except for the professional liability and workers' compensation policies, shall
name the CITY and its elected officials, officers, agents, and employees as additional insureds.

G.  If required insurance coverage is provided on a " claims made" rather than " occurrence"

form, the CONSULTANT shall maintain such insurance coverage for three years after expiration

of the term ( and any extensions) of this Agreement.

H.  Any aggregate insurance limits must apply solely to this Agreement.

I.   Insurance shall be written with only California admitted companies which hold a current
policy holder' s alphabetic and financial size category rating of not less than A VIII according to
the current Best' s Key Rating Guide, or a company equal financial stability that is approved by
the CITY.

J.   This Agreement shall not take effect until certificate( s) or other sufficient proof that these

insurance provisions have been complied with, are filed with and approved by the CITY.  If the

CONSULTANT does not keep all of such insurance policies in full force and effect at all times
during the terms of this Agreement, the CITY may elect to treat the failure to maintain the
requisite insurance as a breach of this Agreement and terminate the Agreement as provided

herein.

17. LEGAL FEES.  If any party brings a suit or action against the other party arising from any
breach of any of the covenants or agreements or any inaccuracies in any of the representations
and warranties on the part of the other party arising out of this Agreement, then in that event,
the prevailing party in such action or dispute,  whether by final judgment or out- of- court
settlement, shall be entitled to have and recover of and from the other party all reasonable costs
and expenses of suit, including reasonable attorneys' fees.

For purposes of determining who is to be considered the prevailing party, it is stipulated that
attorneys'  fees incurred in the prosecution or defense of the action or suit shall not be

8-



Attachment A — Exhibit 1

considered in determining the amount of the judgment or award.    Attorneys' fees to the

prevailing party if other than the CITY shall, in addition, be limited to the amount of attorneys'
fees incurred by the CITY in its prosecution or defense of the action, irrespective of the actual
amount of attorney' s fees incurred by the prevailing party.

18. MEDIATION/ ARBITRATION.   If a dispute arises out of or relates to this Agreement, or the

breach thereof, the parties agree first to try,  in good faith,  to settle the dispute by mutual
negotiation between the principals, and failing that through nonbinding mediation in San Diego,
California,  in accordance with the Commercial Mediation Rules of the American Arbitration

Association ( the " AAA").  The costs of mediation shall be borne equally by the parties.

19. TERMINATION.   This Agreement may be terminated with or without cause by the CITY.
Termination without cause shall be effective only upon thirty ( 30) days written notice to the
CONSULTANT.   During said 30- day period the CONSULTANT shall perform all services in
accordance with this Agreement. The CONSULTANT may terminate this agreement upon thirty
30) days prior notice in the event of a continuing and material breach by the CITY of its

obligations under this Agreement including but not limited to payment of invoices.  Termination

with or without cause shall be effected by delivery of written Notice of Termination to the
CONSULTANT as provided for herein.

This Agreement may also be terminated immediately by the CITY for cause in the event of a
material breach of this Agreement that is not cured to the CITY' s satisfaction within a ten ( 10)

day prior cure period, or material misrepresentation by the CONSULTANT in connection with
the formation of this Agreement or the performance of services,  or the failure to perform

services as directed by the CITY.

The CITY further reserves the right to immediately terminate this Agreement upon: ( 1) the filing
of a petition in bankruptcy affecting the CONSULTANT;   ( 2)  a reorganization of the

CONSULTANT for the benefit of creditors; or ( 3) a business reorganization, change in business

name or change in business status of the CONSULTANT.

In the event of termination, all finished or unfinished Memoranda, Reports, Maps, Drawings,

Plans, Specifications and other documents prepared by the CONSULTANT, whether paper or
electronic, shall immediately become the property of and be delivered to the CITY, and the
CONSULTANT shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any work
satisfactorily completed on such documents and other materials up to the effective date of the
Notice of Termination,  not to exceed the amounts payable hereunder,  less any damages
caused the CITY by the CONSULTANT' s breach, if any.  Thereafter, ownership of said written
materials shall vest in the CITY all rights set forth in Section 6.

20. NOTICES.  All notices or other communications required or permitted hereunder shall be in

writing, and shall be personally delivered; or sent by overnight mail ( Federal Express or the
like); or sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested; or sent by
ordinary mail, postage prepaid; or sent by facsimile or fax; and shall be deemed received upon
the earlier of ( i) if personally delivered, the date of delivery to the address of the person to
receive such notice, ( ii) if sent by overnight mail, the business day following its deposit in such
overnight mail facility, ( iii) if mailed by registered, certified or ordinary mail, five ( 5) days within
California or ten ( 10) days if the address is outside the State of California after the date of

deposit in a post office or mailbox regularly maintained by the United States Postal Service, ( iv)

if given by facsimile or fax,  when sent.   Any notice,  request,  demand,  direction or other

communication delivered or sent as specified above shall be directed to the following persons:

9-



Attachment A — Exhibit 1

To the CITY:       To the CONSULTANT:

Malik Tamimi, Management Analyst Arsalan Dadkhah, Ph. D., PE

CITY OF LEMON GROVE D- Max Engineering, Inc.
3232 Main Street 7220 Trade Street Suite 119

Lemon Grove, CA 91945 San Diego, CA 92121

Notice of change of address shall be given by written notice in the manner specified in this
Section.   Rejection or other refusal to accept or the inability to deliver because of changed
address of which no notice was given shall be deemed to constitute receipt of the notice,

demand, request or communication sent.

21. CONFLICT OF INTEREST AND POLITICAL REFORM ACT OBLIGATIONS.   During the
term of this Agreement, the CONSULTANT shall not perform services of any kind for any
person or entity whose interests conflict in any way with those of the CITY OF LEMON GROVE.
The CONSULTANT also agrees not to specify any product, treatment, process or material for
the project in which the CONSULTANT has a material financial interest, either direct or indirect,

without first notifying the CITY of that fact.  The CONSULTANT shall at all times comply with the
terms of the Political Reform Act and the Lemon Grove Conflict of Interest Code.    The

CONSULTANT shall immediately disqualify itself and shall not use its official position to
influence in any way any matter coming before the CITY in which the CONSULTANT has a
financial interest as defined in Government Code Section 87103.    The CONSULTANT

represents that it has no knowledge of any financial interests that would require it to disqualify
itself from any matter on which it might perform services for the CITY.

If checked, the CONSULTANT shall comply with all of the reporting requirements of the
Political Reform Act and the CITY OF LEMON GROVE Conflict of Interest Code.  Specifically,
the CONSULTANT shall:

1.  Go to www. fppc. ca. aov

2.   Download the Form 700:  Statement of Economic Interests

3.   Completely fill out the form

4.   Submit the form to the Public Works Department with the signed Agreement.

The CONSULTANT shall be strictly liable to the CITY for all damages, costs or expenses the
CITY may suffer by virtue of any violation of this Paragraph 21 by the CONSULTANT.

22. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

A.  Computation of Time Periods.  If any date or time period provided for in this Agreement is or
ends on a Saturday, Sunday or federal, state or legal holiday, then such date shall automatically
be extended until 5: 00 p. m. Pacific Time of the next day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or
federal, state or legal holiday.

B.  Counterparts.   This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which
shall be deemed an original, but all of which, together, shall constitute but one and the same

instrument.

C.  Captions.  Any captions to, or headings of, the sections or subsections of this Agreement
are solely for the convenience of the parties hereto, are not a part of this Agreement, and shall
not be used for the interpretation or determination of the validity of this Agreement or any
provision hereof.

10-



Attachment A - Exhibit 1

D.  No Obligations to Third Parties.    Except as otherwise expressly provided herein,  the

execution and delivery of this Agreement shall not be deemed to confer any rights upon, or
obligate any of the parties hereto, to any person or entity other than the parties hereto.

E.  Exhibits and Schedules.    The Exhibits and Schedules attached hereto are hereby
incorporated herein by this reference for all purposes.

F.  Amendment to this Agreement.   The terms of this Agreement may not be modified or

amended except by an instrument in writing executed by each of the parties hereto.

G.  Waiver. The waiver or failure to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not operate as
a waiver of any future breach of any such provision or any other provision hereof.

H.  Applicable Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with
the laws of the State of California.

I.   Entire Agreement.   This Agreement supersedes any prior agreements,  negotiations and
communications, oral or written, and contains the entire agreement between the parties as to

the subject matter hereof.   No subsequent agreement,  representation, or promise made by
either party hereto, or by or to an employee, officer, agent or representative of any party hereto
shall be of any effect unless it is in writing and executed by the party to be bound thereby.

J.   Successors and Assigns.   This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the
benefit of the successors and assigns of the parties hereto.

K.  Construction.  The parties acknowledge and agree that ( i) each party is of equal bargaining
strength, ( ii) each party has actively participated in the drafting, preparation and negotiation of
this Agreement, ( iii) each such party has consulted with or has had the opportunity to consult
with its own,  independent counsel and such other professional advisors as such party has
deemed appropriate, relative to any and all matters contemplated under this Agreement, ( iv)

each party and such party' s counsel and advisors have reviewed this Agreement, ( v) each party

has agreed to enter into this Agreement following such review and the rendering of such advice,
and ( vi) any rule or construction to the effect that ambiguities are to be resolved against the
drafting party shall not apply in the interpretation of this Agreement, or any portions hereof, or
any amendments hereto.

11-



Attachment A - Exhibit 1

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date and

year first above written.

CITY OF LEMON GROVE D- MAX ENGINEERING, INC.

I

Lydia Romero, City Manager Arsalan Dadkhah, President

Date Date

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

James Lough, City Attorney

Date

12..



q0§ H8N1§ E= 10M

D- MAX E I

rvmmx", rs i" vr^. p, & zxw, vumram| s,/ m,, w

June 4. 2O17

K4rMalik Tamimi

City ofLemon Grove
3232Main Street

Lemon Grove, CAS1945

Re:    Proposal for 2017- 2810Storm Water Program Support

City of Lemon Grove, California

Dear Mr. Tamimi.

D- M^ x Engineering, Inc. is pleased to submit this proposal to assist the City of Lemon Grove
City) storm water program with tasks required by San Diego Regional Water Quality Control

Board Order No. R9- 2013- 0001 as amended byOrder No. R9- 2015- 0001 and Order No. R9-

2015- 01O0( Municipal Permit) for the 2017- 2O18fiscal year.

Scope of Services
The scopes of services for the major groups of tasks to be completed are described below

A. MS4Outfall Monitoring
Dry Weather Major MS4Outfall Monitoring and Reporting Program

The Municipal Permit requires the City to perform Dry Weather Major h1S4 Outfall Discharge
Monitoring each monitoring year( October 1through September 3D). The City| srequired tnvisit

otleast 8O percent ofits majo/ MB4 outfalls twice per monitoring year.  The work will include
field screening at the City' s four major outfalls twice, for a total of eight field screening site visits.
Field work will bacompleted bySeptember 3D. 2O17,

This will complete the required monitoring for the period between October 1. 2010 and
September 3O. 2D17,

The field work will include flow measurement, observations, and trash assessment ateach site,

Data will berecorded such that relevant parameters can bereported inthe regional standard

format.

The summary report associated with this monitoring will include list ofmonitoring sites, results
in tabular form, and results of follow-up investigations,  A spreadsheet of relevant data in the
regional standard format will beprovided along with the report.

i Non- Storm Water Persistent Flow Sampling

In accordance with Section D, 2, b. of the Municipal Permit, the City is required to perform non-
storm water persistent flow MS4 outfall discharge monitoring. onstormwe1erpwnsis\entf|owK4S4outfa|| diachmrgemonitorinQ. If, during dry weather k3G4outfall
mmnitmring, sites are found to have persistent flow, the City will determine which persistent non-
storm water discharges onstormwaterdisuhorgescontain pollutant concentrations in excess ofthe respective non- storm

water action levels ( NAL) ata minimum offive o7these sites per watershed within its jurisdiction,

Or, if a jurisdiction has less than five persistent mu# aUs, all of the persistent outfalls will be

sampled.

zzo zmo, S/, e*. E svi,, 119 ESin Diego, CA ozo/ 0 ( 858) 586 6600 0 Fax ( 858) 586 6644

13-



Attachment A — Exhibit 1

Mr. MalixTamim| 
qnmswwh      AM=

June 4. 2017 MN INNIMAMM

Page AM  A M'

dmMm

Based on the results of the City' s 2016- 2017 Dry Weather MS4 Outfall Monitoring Program, one
of the City' s major ouffmUsisconsidered tobepersistently flowing: Site 69.

As paguinyd by the Municipal Permit, we will visit the persistently flowing outfall to collect
samples twice between July 1. 2017 and September 30, 2017.  We anticipate completing the

two rounds ofsampling inone day.

Field tests will be completed for pH, temperatVre, conductivity, turbiddy, and dissolved oxygen
using calibrated field meters.   Grab samples will be collected and submitted to o certified

laboratory for the constituents identified in Appendix 2D of the Storm Drain OuffaU Monitoring
Plan of the San Diego Bay WMA VV0P.   All sampling and analyses will be conducted in
accordance with 4OCode ofFederal Regulations ( CFR) Part 13G.

As directed by the San Diego Bay VVh4A Storm Drain Outfall Monitoring P| an, a field duplicate
and a field blank will be submitted to the laboratory with each batch of samples collected. Since
there will be only one batch of samples submitted tothe |mboradory, one duplicate and one field
blank will also besubmitted.

In addition, as required by the Gan Diego Bay WMA WQ| P. we will also onUeol one sample for
hdo| hardness from the receiving water upstream of the point where any flow from the outfall
converges with the receiving water where possible.

The monitoring summary report to completed under Task 1 will summarize the results of the
analyses, and will include a comparison ofresults tothe applicable NALs as provided in the

Municipal Permit.    We will also discuss potential sources of NAL axceedanoam and

recommendations for further investigation or potential steps towards eliminating persistent

flows.  We will also make recommendations about the relative priority of further investigations at
other sites based on the om|| eo1ed data and known or suspected sources of flow as well as

recommendations about yWS4cleaning ormaintenance based ontrash assessments and MS4
outfall structural condition assessments.

8 Fo// mVv- dp and Upstream Investigations

Follow- up visits and upstream source investigations may be required in some cases.
Investigations will be in accordance with the County of San Diego Follow Up Investigation
Procedures and will focus mainly on identifying sources of flow, particularly in cases * here

observations  ( co| or,  c|arity,  odor'  doatab| ea,  etc.)  indicate a high possibility of on illegal
discharge occurring.  After investigations have been completed, results will besummarized and
included inthe program' s monitoring report. Any illegal discharges identified will beimmediately
reported \ othe City atthe time they are discovered.

B. Industrial, C0[ DMleic` a}, and Municipal Inspections

L Industrial, Commercial, and Municipal Field Inspections

The City has 334 inventoried industrial and commercial businesses and 13 inventoried
municipal faoi| ities, form total of 347 facilities, We will inspect all 74 high priority facilities plus

approximately 20 more industrial facilities that are potentially subject to the Industrial General
Permit, which will also meet the minimum Permit requirement of inspecting 20% of inventoried

industrial, commercial, and Municipal facilities per year,  Our approach tmthese inspections is

described below.

14-



Attachment A — Exhibit 1

Mr. Malik Tarnimi
1011011hk AMW

EM NONE= MW

June 4, 2017 monammen
W=  ME=

Page 3 mm W A mr
dENEW- db rXIM

Inspection Notification and Initial Coordination

We will work with the City to prepare and send out a notification letter to businesses that have
been selected for inspections, using the letter prepared last year as a template. We will prepare
mailing labels for the City to use to send out these letters.

Optional task: we can also directly send out the letters on behalf of the City if the City
provides us with City logo envelopes for the mailing.

Sending out notification letters alerts businesses to the upcoming inspections, notifies them that
a City contractor will be completing the inspections, and helps identify businesses that may
have gone out of businesses.

For municipal facilities, we will contact the facility manager to set up an appointment where

necessary.

Initial Inspection Coordination

In the past we have had extensive communication with City staff about how to interpret and
answer the questions on the City' s inspection form. We have documented that direction from
the City and are familiar with the City' s preferences, so we do not need to have additional
meetings or discussions with City staff to understand inspection procedures.  If the City has any
educational materials to be passed out during inspections, we will pick those up from City Hall
before beginning inspections.

Facility Inspections
We will contact the businesses and municipal facilities identified as needing scheduled
appointments to set up times to inspect them. We will organize the rest of the sites on the
inspection list by address so that our inspectors can visit nearby facilities at the same time,
which makes the process more efficient.

The site inspection procedure involves a thorough examination of the facility and all outdoor
activities that have the potential to generate urban runoff pollution. We will record information

on the City's inspection form. The site inspection includes the following steps.

1.     Meet With Responsible Party:  Our inspectors will visit sites during normal business

hours and wear company- issued photo identification.   Upon meeting the responsible
party,  our inspector will introduce the storm water program,  the purpose of the
inspection,  and distribute relevant educational materials.    The introduction to the

program will include a brief overview of the federal and state water quality laws, local
requirements,  impacts of urban runoff, the concept of Best Management Practices

BMPs), and a description of the local water bodies and pollutants of concern At this

time the inspector will also verify and update facility contact information and evaluate
whether the assigned SIC code reflects the principal activity of the facility.

Recommended inventory updates will be documented if the site visit finds that the listed
business has moved out or is not conducting activities that would require it to be on the
City' s inventory.

We understand that maintaining good relations with local businesses is important for
the City of Lemon Grove and that, while interacting with businesses, we will be
perceived by the public as City agents,  Our inspectors are trained to interact with

businesses with utmost professionalism, respect, and courtesy.

ii.     BMP and Potential Pollutant Assessment:   Our inspector will conduct a thorough

walk- through of the facility accompanied by the facility manager/responsible party, to
inspect all areas exposed to storm water.   The inspector will evaluate existing BMP

15-



Attachment A — Exhibit 1

Mr, Malik Tamlmi 10151HIft.      AND

I= 161MUMM AN=

June 4, 2017 on

Page 4 W= A W

mari' m

effectiveness and evaluate the site to assess whether illegal discharges or illicit

connections are present.

Since the City is subject to bacteria and metals TMDLs for Chollas Creek,  our
inspections will pay extra attention to potential sources of these pollutants and
corresponding BMPs.   We will work with responsible parties to identify simple and
cost- effective BPs to address sources of these pollutants whenever possible.  Our

inspectors are experienced in identifying sources of metals and bacteria at industrial
and commercial businesses and municipal facilities.

We understand the City has committed to reducing the percentage of uncovered
grease bins in its portion of the Chollas Creek watershed in the San Diego Bay
INQ1P.   We will track this information during inspection and include it in the final
inspection summary spreadsheet so that the City can track progress toward the
WQIP numeric goal.

If specific BMPs are not implemented or are found to be ineffective, corrections will be

recommended and recorded in the appropriate section of the inspection form.

Photographs will be taken to document BMP deficiencies.  If an illegal discharge or illicit

connection is observed or significant corrective action is needed right away, the City will
be notified promptly.

We will work with businesses to make corrections during the inspection whenever
possible.   This approach is responsive to the Regional Board' s stated desire to

resolve problems quickly,  and it also reduces the amount of follow- up and
enforcement work that City staff will need to do.

Ill.     Industrial Permit Subjectivity Assessment:  Based on the SIC code assigned based

on part ' T' above, we will identify whether the business may be subject to the State
Industrial General Permit.  We will check records at the business and/ or on the State' s

SMARTS website to determine whether businesses have already obtained coverage
under the Permit.   Businesses that may be subject but cannot demonstrate that they
have filed for coverage will be identified as potential non- filers.  This will allow the City to
report them to the Regional Board, as required by the Municipal Permit.

IV.     Inspection Summary and Conclusion:   At the completion of the walk- through, the

inspector will summarize and clearly communicate all required corrective actions to the
responsible party and discuss potential options for resolving the deficiencies noted.  The
inspector will also assign a storm water knowledge score and an overall BMP
implementation score.

We take a collaborative approach with businesses to achieve compliance rather than

simply tabulate BMP deficiencies.   Our inspectors make every effort to identify
practical and cost effective solutions and to leave a positive impression on business

personnel.

Documentation

1.     Using our experience with the City' s conventions and preferences, the inspection form
will be completed for each site visit and reviewed for quality control in our office.  We will
provide hard copies and scanned copies ( pdf format) of inspection forms and electronic

copies of inspection photos to the City.

H,     We will provide copies of completed inspection forms to businesses that have corrective

actions that require follow- up.

16-



Attachment A — Exhibit 1

Mr. Malik Tarnimi 9NINERNIGEM

EM

June 4. 2017 NN INOMM
EM amu®

Page 5 ME mm WN= Amy

M" VOWAb W A02SIM

I!.     We will prepare a summary spreadsheet of inspection results to the City.    The

spreadsheet will be based on the initial inspection list.  It will also include the following:

a.  Updated address information, where applicable

b.  Updated SIC codes and priorities where appropriate based on inspection results

L This includes identifying when a business was no longer at the stated
address or when the business was found to conduct activities that do not

require it to be on the industrial/ commercial inventory ( e. g., nail salons or

dry cleaners).   In these cases the priorities will be changed to " not

inventoried" and they will be considered to have been removed from the
inventory,

c.   Updated " potential pollutant sources" information for the pollutants listed on the

City' s inspection form,

i.   Together with the information in pails ` a" and " b" above, this will provide

an updated inventory as of the end of the inspection program.  This will

help the City in preparing its inventory for the next fiscal year and with
annual reporting.

d.  Inspection date

e.  Whether the business needs a follow- up inspection.   If yes, notes about the

reason a follow- up is required will also be included.

f.   Whether the business was identified as a potential Industrial General Permit non-

filer.

i.   This will give the City data it needs to report potential non- filers to the
Regional Board.

g.  Grease bin storage status: covered, uncovered, or N/ A( no grease bin).

i.   This will give the City data to report on grease bin coverage for the San
Diego Bay MIR

If.       Inspection Follow- Up and Enforcement Support

Based on our experience, some businesses will have deficiencies that need to be corrected.

Where possible, we will work with businesses to resolve these issues at the time of the

inspection as part of Task I. Where resolution during an inspection is not possible, we will
follow- up with businesses.  Generally this will involve emails or phone calls to businesses to
remind them that they need to send in proof of correction, typically emailed photos along with
brief text descriptions. We will also complete follow- up site inspections where necessary to
document corrections or support City enforcement efforts, and we will prepare case histories
and other documentation as requested by the City to support enforcement actions.

11L Industrial and Commercial Inventory Update

Based on the results of the inspections completed under Task I and business license

information provided by the City, we will update the City' s industrial and commercial business
inventory. The end product of this process will be the 2018- 2019 industrial and commercial
inventory.

IV.  Prepare Inspection Numbers for Annual Reporting



Attachment A — Exhibit 1

Mr. Malik Tamiml

June 4, 2017

Page 6 mm sum A W
MMW, db — MM&Xdw

Based on the inspections completed under Task 1, we will prepare information to be input to the

City' s JRMP Annual Report form. This includes identifying numbers of inventoried facilities,
inspection, discharges, violations, enforcement actions, and similar data for each class of

inspected facilities: industrial, commercial, and Municipal.  We will prepare this information in

the same format as shown on the J Annual Report form so that City staff can easily insert
the numbers when preparing the 2017- 2018 report.

G. Structural BMP Maintenance Verification and Inspections

1. Structural BMP Inventory Update

will work with the City to obtain contact information for sites being added to the
inventory.  We will also re- prioritize the inventoried projects using the flow chart in the City' s
recently updated J and add in approximate size/ area for each project, as required by the
Permit.  We expect the approximate project size will be estimated based on viewing the project
areas in Google as or by project reports provided by the City.  We also expect that the City
will provide us with paper or electronic copies of plan sheets and/ or Water Quality Technical
Reports for all inventoried projects that D- MAx did not review and therefore does not already
have copies of the documents.

11,       Structural BMP Maintenance Verification

We will update the 20162017 maintenance verification letters and create new letters for any
other projects added to the inventory ( Task 1), using contact information provided by the City as
part of the inventory update in Task 1. We will mail out the letters and respond to questions from
recipients of the letters as needed.  Where letters are returned as undeliverable or the person to

which the letter is mailed indicates they are no longer the party responsible, we will work with
the City to identify the new contact person.  City assistance may be needed to determine current
parcel owners if other avenues to identify contacts are not successful.  We will process returned
forms and enter them into the City' s inventory spreadsheet to document that maintenance was
verified.  If projects do not return forms, we will send them one follow- up mailing to remind them
to return the form.

Ill.      Structural BMP Inspections

We will inspect all high priority sites before October 1, 2017.  We expect this will be about five

sites.  We will also inspect sites that do not return maintenance verification forms ( Task 11).  We

expect that will be approximately four more inspections, for a total of nine inspections.  At each

inspection, we will document results on an inspection form and record the overall inspection

result ( compliant or not) in the City' s inventory spreadsheet.  Where deficiencies are noted, we

will follow up with the responsible person to obtain proof of correction.   In cases where a

responsible party cannot be contacted, we will request assistance from the City in identifying the
appropriate person to contact regarding the required corrections.  Where responsible parties are
not responsive, we will request enforcement assistance from the City.   If deficiencies that

require corrections beyond standard maintenance actions, such as correcting grading or outlet
structures within a BMP, are noted, we will work with the City to prepare case files based on
past plan sheets and other submittals on an as- needed basis as part of the as- needed

component of service group D below.

18-



Mr. MalikTarnimiEM AM=

June 4. 2o17 ME NEEMMAMM
MW ON

Page W = AW

D. Water Quality Improvement Plan / WQIP\ and Trash Amendments Support
The City of Lemon Grmvm, as one of the agencies that is m party to the San Diego Bay VVO| P,
has developed a variety of water quality improvement strategies that the City will implement.
We will assist the City with working out implementation details for these strnteAies, including
how their implementation will be tracked.  Strategy implementation tracking in important since
following the end ofthe fiscal year the City will need ioreport back tothe Regional Board mnthe
implementation of its strategies.  We will also help the City revise strategies as needed based
on implementation nxpwriwncm, to make them more effective or to address upcoming new
requirenoents, such as the State Trash Amendments.

We will also support the City in other as- needed VVC)| P implementation tasks. such as the
following, tothe extent budget allows and madirected bythe City' s project manager:

Providing additional analysis and technical support to the City for the State Trash
Ammndmento, such as assisting the City with preparing a response to the Regional
Board' s Trash Amendments investigative order, revising cost estimates for Track 1 and
Track 2cwnnp| ianuu sownarios, and assisting the City with identifying specific locations
and dimensions of structural BK4Ps to be installed in the first few years of program

implementation.

Researching feasibility of a | o* Uovv sewer diversion to eliminate persistent Mow at the

City' s one flowing outfall.  Eliminating persistent flow would help the City comply with the
strict requirements of the Bacteria TK40L

Providing technical assistance related tocontaminated sediment investigation and clean
upetthe mouth ofChN| aaCreek inSan Diego Bay.

m Responding to additional comments from the Regional Board and/ or environmental
groups related Vmthe VVQ| P; we will help the City prepare responses as needed.

Other services, such asadditional follow- up visits toverify trash cleanup at monitoring
o| tes, conducting inspections at facilities or areas identified as potential sources of
exceedenceo, additional monitoring, data ana| ysia, repmrfing. responding to regulatory
requests or orders, and literature review.

19-



Attachment A - Exhibit 1

Mr, Malik Tamimi
qmmomm imm
NEW 10100,1010S ANN

June 4, 2017 MOM SOONER
IRS ARE

Page 8 ME 1000 W= A W

Cost Estimate
Our proposed costs to complete the scope of services described in our proposal are as follows

e iceCost

A. MS4 Outfall Monitoring
11.......................  

I. D Weather M34 Outfall Monitorina and ReDortina 5, 000y_Weather-       I I' ll"" I' ll'll"" I' ll" I  11111111111111   _  _ I-------------- I......................................      ...  ..........................................      -- 1 11 1 1 1 11 1 1" I' ll I

11. Non- Storm Water Persistent Flow Sampling 5, 000

Ill. Follow-Up and Upstream Investigations 2, 500
I— I. .. ........................... ................................................................................................................................................. .....    

B. Industrial, Commercial, and Municipal Inspections

I. Industrial, Commercial, and Municipal Field Inspections 16, 580
1 1111-------------------

II. Inspection Follow- Up and Enforcement Support 3, 600

Ill. Industrial and Commercial Inventory Update....     .      1. 500

IV. Prepare Inspection Numbers for Annual Reporting 800
1... ", I I

I       -

C. Structural BMP Mal-n-be-n-ance Verification and Inspections      --------------------------------------------------4-  -----

I. Structural BMP Inventory Update 11    $ 2. 000
1        " I I   ..........   ...............................................----   - ------   ----------------- ...........

11. Structural BMP Maintenance Verification 3, 000

Ill. Structural BMP Inspections i   $ 3, 500

D. WQIP Support 11, 520

Overall Total
1.............................. L

All services will be provided on a time and materials services in accordance with our attached

fee schedule, not to exceed the overall cost total

Please feel free to contact us if you have any questions or would like to discuss this proposal in
more detail. We look forward to working with you on this project.

Sincerely,
D- MAx Engineering, Inc.

Arsalan Dadkhah, Ph. D., P. E.

Principal

20-



Attachment A — Exhibit 1

11museft.

SCHEDULE OF FEES

January 1, 2017

LABOR OTHER CHARGES

Classification Hour[ y_aate Subcontracted services,  such as sub

consultants, outside testing, drilling, and

Word ProcessorlAdmin 60
surveyors, will be charged at cost plus

15%.  Other project- specific costs, such
Drafter 70 as rentals,   expendable or special

Technician 70 supplies,   special project insurance,

Senior Technician 80 permits and licenses,     shipping,

Staff Scientist/Engineer 1 90 subsistence, tolls and parking,  outside
copying/ printing, etc., will be charged at

Staff Scientist/ Engineer 11 100 cost plus 15%.  Mileage will be charged

Assistant Project Scientist/ Engineer 115 at the current IRS rate.  Meals, lodging,
Project Scientist/ Engineer 130 and travel expenses,    when pre-

Senior Scientist/ Engineer 150 approved by the City, will be charged at
cost or at standard per them rates, as

Principal Scientist/ Engineer 170
applicable.

Client will be responsible for any
Field and hourly services will be applicable taxes in addition to the fees

charged portal to portal frorn our office,  due for Services.

with a two- hour minimum.

Appearance as expert witnesses at

court trials,    mediation,    arbitration

hearings and depositions will be

charged at  $ 2001hour.     Time spent

preparing for such appearances will be
charged at the above standard hourly
rates.

21-



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No.       1. F

Mtg. Date June 20, 2017
Dept. Development Services

Item Title:    Renewal of Stormwater Professional Services Agreement for Plan Review and

Construction Inspections with D- MAX Engineering, Inc.

Staff Contact:    Malik Tamimi, Management Analyst

Recommendation:

Adopt a Resolution ( Attachment A) approving an agreement to renew professional services
with D- MAX Engineering,  Inc.  for Stormwater Plan Review and Construction Inspection

Services.

Item Summary:

The Regional Water Quality Control Board ( RWQCB) requires the City to review and approve
technical stormwater reports related to development and redevelopment projects and conduct

stormwater compliance inspections of construction sites as described in the Jurisdictional Runoff

Management Plan ( JRMP). The City has been in contract with D- MAX Engineering, Inc. ( D- MAX)

in previous years to meet the requirements of the State' s Mandated Stormwater Permit. The City' s
current contract for the above mentioned services with D- MAX will expire on June 30, 2017.  City
staff recommends continuing the contract with D- MAX to assist the City in meeting these Permit
requirements. The proposed agreement is for a not to exceed amount of $ 50, 000 to review

technical reports and conduct construction inspections through June 30, 2018. The cost to review

technical stormwater documents and conduct stormwater compliance inspections will be

recovered through each project' s developer deposit account with no direct costs to the City. Staff
recommends that the City Council adopt a Resolution approving this agreement for professional
services.

Fiscal Impact:

The total contract amount for as- needed services is not to exceed Fifty Thousand Dollars
50, 000) and is recovered through each project' s developer deposit account with no direct cost

to the City.

Environmental Review:

Not subject to review Negative Declaration

Categorical Exemption, Section Mitigated Negative Declaration

Public Information:

None Newsletter article        Notice to property owners within 300 ft.

Notice published in local newspaper Neighborhood meeting

Attachments:

A.  Resolution- Exhibit 1 D- MAX Proposal



Attachment A

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA

APPROVING AN AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES WITH D- MAX

ENGINEERING, INC. FOR STORMWATER PLAN REVIEW AND CONSTRUCTION

INSPECTION SERVICES

WHEREAS, the Regional Water Quality Control Board ( RWQCB) adopted Order No.
R9- 2013- 0001 ( Permit) replacing the previously issued stormwater permit Order No. R9- 2007-
0001; and

WHEREAS, the Permit went into effect on June 27, 2013; and

WHEREAS, the Permit required the City to develop a Jurisdictional Runoff Management
Program ( JRMP) no later than June 27, 2015, which the City completed; and

WHEREAS, the Permit also required the City to adopt a Lemon Grove Best
Management Practices ( BMP) Design Manual for development and redevelopment projects by
February 2016, which the City adopted on February 2, 2016; and

WHEREAS, the City is required to review and approve technical stormwater reports for
development and redevelopment projects consistent with the specifications in the Lemon Grove

BMP Design Manual and to conduct stormwater compliance inspections; and

WHEREAS, the City has contracted with D- MAX Engineering, Inc. ( D- MAX) to review

technical stormwater reports and conduct stormwater compliance inspections through June 30,

2017; and

WHEREAS, the City' s existing contract for plan review and stormwater construction
compliance inspections with D- MAX will expire on June 30, 2017; and

WHEREAS, the City has requested a stormwater services agreement to continue
contracting with D- MAX to meet the Permit requirements through June 30, 2018; and

WHEREAS, the cost to review technical stormwater documents and conduct stormwater

construction compliance inspections will be recovered through each project' s developer deposit

account; and

WHEREAS, the cost to provide said services by D- MAX will be on an as- needed bases
not to exceed $ 50, 000; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Lemon
Grove, California, hereby:

1.  Approves an Agreement with D- MAX ( Exhibit 1) for as- needed stormwater services

for the review of technical stormwater reports related to development and

redevelopment projects and stormwater compliance inspections; and

2.  Authorizes the City Manager or designee to execute said agreement.

3, mm



Attachment A - Exhibit 1

AGREEMENT FOR

AS- NEEDED STORMWATER QUALITY SERVICES

THIS AGREEMENT is approved and effective upon the date of the last signature, by and between
the CITY OF LEMON GROVE, a municipal corporation ( the " CITY"), and D- Max Engineering, Inc.,
a water and environmental sciences firm ( the " CONSULTANT').

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the CITY desires to employ a CONSULTANT to provide stormwater construction
inspection support and technical review of stormwater documents related to development and

redevelopment projects on an as- needed basis for the CITY.

WHEREAS, the CITY has determined that the CONSULTANT is qualified by experience and has
the ability to perform the services desired by the CITY, and the CONSULTANT is willing to perform
such services.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES HERETO DO MUTUALLY AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

1.   ENGAGEMENT OF CONSULTANT. The CITY hereby agrees to engage the CONSULTANT
and the CONSULTANT hereby agrees to perform the services hereinafter set forth in accordance
with all terms and conditions contained herein.

The CONSULTANT represents that all services required hereunder will be performed directly by
the CONSULTANT or under direct supervision of the CONSULTANT.

2.  SCOPE OF SERVICES. The CONSULTANT will perform services set forth in Exhibit A.

The CONSULTANT can expect to perform stormwater construction inspection support and

technical review of stormwater documents related to development and redevelopment projects

on an as- needed basis. This will involve the technical review of various stormwater documents

and involve site visits and field inspections.

Each task will be provided to the CONSULTANT. Depending on the magnitude of an individual
item, a detailed scope of work and cost proposal may be prepared, or it may simply be agreed
that the work will be performed on a time and material basis. Prior to the beginning of any work,

a task order may be requested that discusses the scope and fee ( in the case of time and material
work the fee will be a " not- to- exceed" amount.) A task order will not be valid until signed by both

the CONSULTANT and the City.

The CONSULTANT shall be responsible for all research and reviews related to the work and shall

not rely on CITY personnel for such services, except as authorized in advance by the CITY.  The
CONSULTANT shall participate in meetings if required by a task order to keep staff advised of
the progress on the project.

The CITY may unilaterally, or upon request from the CONSULTANT, from time to time reduce or
increase the Scope of Services to be performed by the CONSULTANT under this Agreement per
project.  Upon doing so, the CITY and the CONSULTANT agree to meet in good faith and confer
for the purpose of negotiating a corresponding reduction or increase in the compensation
associated with said change in services.

3.   PROJECT COORDINATION AND SUPERVISION.  Malik Tamimi, Management Analyst, is

hereby fordesignated as the Project Manager the CITY and will monitor the progress and

execution of this Agreement.   The CONSULTANT shall assign a single Project Manager to

provide supervision and have overall responsibility for the progress and execution of this
Agreement for the CONSULTANT.  Arsalan Dadkhah, Ph. D., PE is hereby designated as the
Project Manager for the CONSULTANT.

4.,



Attachment A — Exhibit 1

4.   COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT.   The compensation for the CONSULTANT shall be

based on monthly billings covering actual work performed.    Billings shall include labor

classifications, respective rates, hours worked and reimbursable expenses, if any.  The total cost
for all work described within Exhibit A shall not exceed FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($ 50, 000)

without prior written authorization from the CITY for twelve months of service.  Monthly invoices
will be processed for payment and remitted within thirty (30) days from receipt of invoice, provided
that work is accomplished consistent with Exhibit A as determined by the CITY.

On an annual basis, the CONSULTANT may request an increase in the schedule of fees of no
more than the increase in the Consumer Price Index for the previous one year period.

The CONSULTANT shall maintain all books,  documents,  papers,  employee time sheets,

accounting records,  and other evidence pertaining to costs incurred and shall make such
materials available at its office at all reasonable times during the term of this Agreement and for
three ( 3) years from the date of final payment under this Agreement, for inspection by the CITY
and for furnishing of copies to the CITY, if requested.

5.   LENGTH OF AGREEMENT.   This Agreement will last through June 30, 2018 from the

executed date of the Agreement or until all work has been completed by the CONSULTANT and
accepted by the CITY, whichever occurs first.

6.   DISPOSITION AND OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS.   The Memoranda,  Reports,  Maps,

Drawings, Plans, Specifications and other documents prepared by the CONSULTANT for this
Project, whether paper or electronic, shall become the property of the CITY for use with respect
to this Project, and shall be turned over to the CITY upon completion of the Project, or any phase
thereof, as contemplated by this Agreement.

Contemporaneously with the transfer of documents, the CONSULTANT hereby assigns to the
CITY and CONSULTANT thereby expressly waives and disclaims, any copyright in, and the right
to reproduce, all written material, drawings, plans, specifications or other work prepared under

this Agreement,  except upon the CITY' s prior authorization regarding reproduction,  which

authorization shall not be unreasonably withheld.  The CONSULTANT shall, upon request of the
CITY, execute any further document( s) necessary to further effectuate this waiver and disclaimer.

The CONSULTANT agrees that the CITY may use,  reuse, alter,  reproduce,  modify, assign,
transfer, or in any other way, medium or method utilize the CONSULTANT' s work product for the
CITY' s purposes, and the CONSULTANT expressly waives and disclaims any residual rights
granted to it by Civil Code Sections 980 through 989 relating to intellectual property and artistic
works.

Any modification or reuse by the CITY of documents, drawings or specifications prepared by the
CONSULTANT shall relieve the CONSULTANT from liability under Section 14 but only with
respect to the effect of the modification or reuse by the CITY, or for any liability to the CITY should
the documents be used by the CITY for some project other than what was expressly agreed upon
within the Scope of this project, unless otherwise mutually agreed.

7.   INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT.  Both parties hereto in the performance of this Agreement

will be acting in an independent capacity and not as agents, employees, partners or joint venture
with one another.    Neither the CONSULTANT nor the CONSULTANT' S employees are

employees of the CITY and are not entitled to any of the rights, benefits, or privileges of the CITY' s
employees,  including but not limited to retirement,  medical,  unemployment,  or workers'

compensation insurance.

This Agreement contemplates the personal services of the CONSULTANT and the

CONSULTANT' s employees, and it is recognized by the parties that a substantial inducement to

5



Attachment A — Exhibit 1

the CITY for entering into this Agreement was, and is, the professional reputation and competence
of the CONSULTANT and its employees.  Neither this Agreement nor any interest herein may be
assigned by the CONSULTANT without the prior written consent of the CITY.  Nothing herein
contained is intended to prevent the CONSULTANT from employing or hiring as many employees,
or subcontractors,  as the CONSULTANT may deem necessary for the proper and efficient
performance of this Agreement. All agreements by CONSULTANT with its subcontractor( s) shall
require the subcontractor to adhere to the applicable terms of this Agreement.

8.   CONTROL.  Neither the CITY nor its officers, agents or employees shall have any control
over the conduct of the CONSULTANT or any of the CONSULTANT' s employees except as
herein set forth, and the CONSULTANT expressly agrees not to represent that the CONSULTANT
or the CONSULTANT' s officers, agents, or employees are in any manner officers, agents, or
employees of the CITY.   It is understood that the CONSULTANT,  its officers,  agents,  and

employees are as to the CITY wholly independent consultants and that the CONSULTANT's
obligations to the CITY are solely such as are prescribed by this Agreement.

9.   COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAW.  The CONSULTANT, in the performance of the

services to be provided herein, shall comply with all applicable State and Federal statutes and
regulations, and all applicable ordinances, rules and regulations of the CITY OF LEMON GROVE,

whether now in force or subsequently enacted.    The CONSULTANT,  and each of its

subcontractors, shall obtain and maintain a current CITY OF LEMON GROVE business license

prior to and during performance of any work pursuant to this Agreement.

10. LICENSES, PERMITS, ETC.  The CONSULTANT represents and covenants that it has all

licenses, permits, qualifications, and approvals of whatever nature that are legally required to
practice its profession.  The CONSULTANT represents and covenants that the CONSULTANT

shall, at its sole cost and expense, keep in effect at all times during the term of this Agreement,
any license, permit, or approval which is legally required for the CONSULTANT to practice its
profession.

11. STANDARD OF CARE.    The CONSULTANT,  in performing any services under this
Agreement,  shall perform in a manner consistent with that level of care and skill ordinarily

exercised by members of the CONSULTANT' s trade or profession currently practicing under
similar conditions and in similar locations.  The CONSULTANT shall take all special precautions

necessary to protect the CONSULTANT' s employees and members of the public from risk of harm
arising out of the nature of the work and/ or the conditions of the work site.

Unless disclosed in writing prior to the date of this Agreement, the CONSULTANT warrants to the
CITY that it is not now,  nor has it within the preceding five ( 5) years, been debarred by a
governmental agency or involved in debarment, arbitration or litigation proceedings concerning
the CONSULTANT' s professional performance or the furnishing of materials or services relating
thereto.

The CONSULTANT is responsible for identifying any unique products, treatments, processes or
materials whose availability is critical to the success of the project the CONSULTANT has been
retained to perform, within the time requirements of the CITY, or, when no time is specified, then

within a commercially reasonable time.  Accordingly, unless the CONSULTANT has notified the
CITY otherwise, the CONSULTANT warrants that all products, materials, processes or treatments

identified in the project documents prepared for the CITY are reasonably commercially available.

Any failure by the CONSULTANT to use due diligence under this sub- paragraph will render the
CONSULTANT liable to the CITY for any increased costs that result from the CITY' s later inability
to obtain the specified items or any reasonable substitute within a price range that allows for
project completion in the time frame specified or, when not specified, then within a commercially
reasonable time.

6µ



Attachment A — Exhibit 1

12. NON- DISCRIMINATION PROVISIONS.  The CONSULTANT shall not discriminate against

any employee or applicant for employment because of age, race, color, ancestry, religion, sex,
sexual orientation, marital status, national origin, physical handicap, or medical condition.  The

CONSULTANT will take positive action to insure that applicants are employed without regard to

their age, race, color, ancestry, religion, sex, sexual orientation, marital status, national origin,
physical handicap, or medical condition.   Such action shall include but not be limited to the

following: employment, promotion, demotion, transfer,  recruitment or recruitment advertising,
layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for training,
including apprenticeship.  The CONSULTANT agrees to post in conspicuous places available to

employees and applicants for employment any notices provided by the CITY setting forth the
provisions of this non- discrimination clause.

13. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION.   The CITY may from time to time communicate to the
CONSULTANT certain confidential information to enable the CONSULTANT to effectively
perform the services to be provided herein.  The CONSULTANT shall treat all such information

as confidential and shall not disclose any part thereof without the prior written consent of the CITY.
The CONSULTANT shall limit the use and circulation of such information, even within its own

organization, to the extent necessary to perform the services to be provided herein. The foregoing
obligation of this Section 13, however, shall not apply to any part of the information that ( i) has
been disclosed in publicly available sources of information;  ( ii)  is,  through no fault of the

CONSULTANT, hereafter disclosed in publicly available sources of information; ( iii) is already in
the possession of the CONSULTANT without any obligation of confidentiality; ( iv) has been or is

hereafter rightfully disclosed to the CONSULTANT by a third party, but only to the extent that the
use or disclosure thereof has been or is rightfully authorized by that third party; or ( v) is disclosed
according to law or court order.

The CONSULTANT shall not disclose any reports, recommendations, conclusions or other results
of the services or the existence of the subject matter of this Agreement without the prior written

consent of the CITY.  In its performance hereunder, the CONSULTANT shall comply with all legal
obligations it may now or hereafter have respecting the information or other property of any other
person, firm or corporation.

CONSULTANT shall be liable to CITY for any damages caused by breach of this condition,
pursuant to the provisions of Section 14.

14. INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS. The CONSULTANT shall indemnify, defend,
and hold harmless the CITY, and its elected officials, officers, agents and employees from any
and all claims, demands, costs or liability that arise out of, pertain to, or relate to the negligence,
recklessness, or willful misconduct of CONSULTANT, its employees, agents, and subcontractors

in the performance of services under this Agreement.  CONSULTANT' s duty to indemnify under

this section shall not include liability for damages for death or bodily injury to persons, injury to
property, or other loss, damage or expense arising from the sole negligence or willful misconduct
by the CITY or its elected officials,  officers,  agents,  and employees.  CONSULTANT' s

indemnification obligations shall not be limited by the insurance provisions of this Agreement. The
CITY AND CONSULTANT expressly agree that any payment, attorney' s fees, costs or expense
CITY incurs or makes to or on behalf of an injured employee under the CITY' s self- administered

workers' compensation is included as a loss, expense, or cost for the purposes of this section,

and that this section will survive the expiration or early termination of this Agreement.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.  The CONSULTANT shall comply with all of the provisions
of the Workers' Compensation Insurance and Safety Acts of the State of California, the applicable
provisions of Division 4 and 5 of the California Government Code and all amendments thereto;

and all similar state or Federal acts or laws applicable; and shall indemnify, and hold harmless

7-



Attachment A — Exhibit 1

the CITY and its elected officials, officers, agents, and employees from and against all claims,

demands, payments, suits, actions, proceedings and judgments of every nature and description,
including reasonable attorneys' fees and defense costs presented, brought or recovered against
the CITY or its elected officials, officers, agents, and employees for or on account of any liability
under any of said acts which may be incurred by reason of any work to be performed by the
CONSULTANT under this Agreement.

16. INSURANCE. The CONSULTANT, at its sole cost and expense, shall purchase and maintain,

andp
shall require its subcontractors, when applicable, to purchase and maintain throughout the

term of this Agreement, the following insurance policies:

A.  If checked, Professional Liability Insurance ( errors and omissions) with minimum limits of
1, 000, 000 per occurrence.

B.  Automobile insurance covering all bodily injury and property damage incurred during the
performance of this Agreement, with a minimum coverage of $ 1, 000, 000 combined single limit

per accident.  Such automobile insurance shall include non- owned vehicles.

C.  Comprehensive general liability insurance, with minimum limits of $ 1, 000, 000 combined

single limit per occurrence, covering all bodily injury and property damage arising out of its
operation under this Agreement.

D.  Workers' compensation insurance covering all of CONSULTANT' s employees.

E.  The aforesaid policies shall constitute primary insurance as to the CITY, its elected officials,
officers, agents, and employees so that any other policies held by the CITY shall not contribute
to any loss under said insurance. Said policies shall provide for thirty ( 30) days prior written notice
to the CITY of cancellation or material change.

F.  Said policies, except for the professional liability and workers' compensation policies, shall
name the CITY and its elected officials, officers, agents, and employees as additional insureds.

G.  If required insurance coverage is provided on a " claims made" rather than " occurrence" form,
the CONSULTANT shall maintain such insurance coverage for three years after expiration of the

term ( and any extensions) of this Agreement.

H.  Any aggregate insurance limits must apply solely to this Agreement.

I.    Insurance shall be written with only California admitted companies which hold a current policy
holder' s alphabetic and financial size category rating of not less than A VIII according to the
current Best' s Key Rating Guide, or a company equal financial stability that is approved by the
CITY.

J.   This Agreement shall not take effect until certificate( s) or other sufficient proof that these

insurance provisions have been complied with, are filed with and approved by the CITY.  If the

CONSULTANT does not keep all of such insurance policies in full force and effect at all times
during the terms of this Agreement, the CITY may elect to treat the failure to maintain the requisite
insurance as a breach of this Agreement and terminate the Agreement as provided herein.

17. LEGAL FEES.  If any party brings a suit or action against the other party arising from any
breach of any of the covenants or agreements or any inaccuracies in any of the representations
and warranties on the part of the other party arising out of this Agreement, then in that event, the
prevailing party in such action or dispute, whether by final judgment or out- of- court settlement,
shall be entitled to have and recover of and from the other party all reasonable costs and

expenses of suit, including reasonable attorneys' fees.

For purposes of determining who is to be considered the prevailing party, it is stipulated that
attorneys' fees incurred in the prosecution or defense of the action or suit shall not be considered



Attachment A — Exhibit 1

in determining the amount of the judgment or award.  Attorneys' fees to the prevailing party if
other than the CITY shall, in addition, be limited to the amount of attorneys' fees incurred by the
CITY in its prosecution or defense of the action, irrespective of the actual amount of attorney' s

fees incurred by the prevailing party.

18. MEDIATION/ ARBITRATION.   If a dispute arises out of or relates to this Agreement, or the

breach thereof,  the parties agree first to try,  in good faith, to settle the dispute by mutual
negotiation between the principals, and failing that through nonbinding mediation in San Diego,
California,  in accordance with the Commercial Mediation Rules of the American Arbitration
Association ( the " AAA").  The costs of mediation shall be borne equally by the parties.

19. TERMINATION.   This Agreement may be terminated with or without cause by the CITY.
Termination without cause shall be effective only upon thirty ( 30) days written notice to the
CONSULTANT.   During said 30- day period the CONSULTANT shall perform all services in
accordance with this Agreement. The CONSULTANT may terminate this agreement upon thirty
30) days prior notice in the event of a continuing and material breach by the CITY of its obligations

under this Agreement including but not limited to payment of invoices. Termination with or without
cause shall be effected by delivery of written Notice of Termination to the CONSULTANT as
provided for herein.

This Agreement may also be terminated immediately by the CITY for cause in the event of a
material breach of this Agreement that is not cured to the CITY' s satisfaction within a ten ( 10) day
prior cure period, or material misrepresentation by the CONSULTANT in connection with the
formation of this Agreement or the performance of services, or the failure to perform services as

directed by the CITY.

The CITY further reserves the right to immediately terminate this Agreement upon: ( 1) the filing
of a petition in bankruptcy affecting the CONSULTANT; ( 2) a reorganization of the CONSULTANT
for the benefit of creditors; or ( 3) a business reorganization, change in business name or change
in business status of the CONSULTANT.

In the event of termination, all finished or unfinished Memoranda, Reports, Maps,  Drawings,

Plans, Specifications and other documents prepared by the CONSULTANT, whether paper or
electronic, shall immediately become the property of and be delivered to the CITY, and the
CONSULTANT shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any work
satisfactorily completed on such documents and other materials up to the effective date of the
Notice of Termination, not to exceed the amounts payable hereunder, less any damages caused

the CITY by the CONSULTANT' s breach, if any.  Thereafter, ownership of said written materials
shall vest in the CITY all rights set forth in Section 6.

20. NOTICES.  All notices or other communications required or permitted hereunder shall be in

writing, and shall be personally delivered; or sent by overnight mail ( Federal Express or the like);
or sent by registered or certified mail,  postage prepaid, return receipt requested; or sent by
ordinary mail, postage prepaid; or sent by facsimile or fax; and shall be deemed received upon
the earlier of( i) if personally delivered, the date of delivery to the address of the person to receive
such notice, ( ii) if sent by overnight mail, the business day following its deposit in such overnight
mail facility, ( iii) if mailed by registered, certified or ordinary mail, five ( 5) days within California or
ten ( 10) days if the address is outside the State of California after the date of deposit in a post

office or mailbox regularly maintained by the United States Postal Service, ( iv) if given by facsimile
or fax, when sent.  Any notice, request, demand, direction or other communication delivered or
sent as specified above shall be directed to the following persons:

g_



Attachment A — Exhibit 1

To the CITY:      To the CONSULTANT:

Malik Tamimi, Management Analyst Arsalan Dadkhah, Ph. D., PE

CITY OF LEMON GROVE D- Max Engineering, Inc.
3232 Main Street 7220 Trade Street Suite 119

Lemon Grove, CA 91945 San Diego, CA 92121

Notice of change of address shall be given by written notice in the manner specified in this
Section. Rejection or other refusal to accept or the inability to deliver because of changed address
of which no notice was given shall be deemed to constitute receipt of the notice, demand, request

or communication sent.

21. CONFLICT OF INTEREST AND POLITICAL REFORM ACT OBLIGATIONS.   During the
term of this Agreement, the CONSULTANT shall not perform services of any kind for any person
or entity whose interests conflict in any way with those of the CITY OF LEMON GROVE.  The

CONSULTANT also agrees not to specify any product, treatment, process or material for the
project in which the CONSULTANT has a material financial interest, either direct or indirect,

without first notifying the CITY of that fact.  The CONSULTANT shall at all times comply with the
terms of the Political Reform Act and the Lemon Grove Conflict of Interest Code.    The

CONSULTANT shall immediately disqualify itself and shall not use its official position to influence
in any way any matter coming before the CITY in which the CONSULTANT has a financial interest
as defined in Government Code Section 87103.  The CONSULTANT represents that it has no

knowledge of any financial interests that would require it to disqualify itself from any matter on
which it might perform services for the CITY.

If checked, the CONSULTANT shall comply with all of the reporting requirements of the
Political Reform Act and the CITY OF LEMON GROVE Conflict of Interest Code.  Specifically, the
CONSULTANT shall:

1.   Go to www.fppc. ca.aov

2.   Download the Form 700:  Statement of Economic Interests

3.   Completely fill out the form

4.   Submit the form to the Public Works Department with the signed Agreement.

The CONSULTANT shall be strictly liable to the CITY for all damages, costs or expenses the
CITY may suffer by virtue of any violation of this Paragraph 21 by the CONSULTANT.

22. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

A.  Computation of Time Periods.  If any date or time period provided for in this Agreement is or
ends on a Saturday, Sunday or federal, state or legal holiday, then such date shall automatically
be extended until 5: 00 p. m. Pacific Time of the next day which is not a Saturday, Sunday or
federal, state or legal holiday.

B.  Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, but all of which, together, shall constitute but one and the same instrument.

C.  Captions.  Any captions to, or headings of, the sections or subsections of this Agreement are
solely for the convenience of the parties hereto, are not a part of this Agreement, and shall not be
used for the interpretation or determination of the validity of this Agreement or any provision
hereof.

10-



Attachment A — Exhibit 1

D.  No Obligations to Third Parties.  Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, the execution
and delivery of this Agreement shall not be deemed to confer any rights upon, or obligate any of
the parties hereto, to any person or entity other than the parties hereto.

E.  Exhibits and Schedules.     The Exhibits and Schedules attached hereto are hereby

incorporated herein by this reference for all purposes.

F.  Amendment to this Agreement. The terms of this Agreement may not be modified or amended
except by an instrument in writing executed by each of the parties hereto.

G.  Waiver. The waiver or failure to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall not operate as
a waiver of any future breach of any such provision or any other provision hereof.

H.  Applicable Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of California.

I.   Entire Agreement.   This Agreement supersedes any prior agreements, negotiations and
communications, oral or written, and contains the entire agreement between the parties as to the
subject matter hereof.   No subsequent agreement, representation, or promise made by either
party hereto, or by or to an employee, officer, agent or representative of any party hereto shall be
of any effect unless it is in writing and executed by the party to be bound thereby.

J.   Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit
of the successors and assigns of the parties hereto.

K.  Construction.  The parties acknowledge and agree that ( i) each party is of equal bargaining
strength, ( ii) each party has actively participated in the drafting, preparation and negotiation of
this Agreement, ( iii) each such party has consulted with or has had the opportunity to consult with
its own, independent counsel and such other professional advisors as such party has deemed

appropriate, relative to any and all matters contemplated under this Agreement, ( iv) each party

and such party' s counsel and advisors have reviewed this Agreement, ( v) each party has agreed
to enter into this Agreement following such review and the rendering of such advice, and ( vi) any
rule or construction to the effect that ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting party shall
not apply in the interpretation of this Agreement, or any portions hereof, or any amendments
hereto.

11-



Attachment A - Exhibit 1

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date and year

first above written.

CITY OF LEMON GROVE D- MAX ENGINEERING, INC.

Lydia Romero, City Manager Arsalan Dadkhah, President

Date Date

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

James Lough, City Attorney

Date

12-



Attachment A — Exhibit 1

anumbb.
ow is=

No VNEWMM AM
MW ME MW

AWE MW A %FD- MAX Engineering, Inc.

Consultants in 111ater & Environineut- 0 Sciences

June 4, 2017

Mr. Malik Tamimi

City of Lemon Grove
3232 Main Street

Lemon Grove, CA 91945

Subject:  for Water Services for Construction and Development

Dear Mr. TamimL

Per your request, D- MAx Engineering, Inc. ( D- MAX) is pleased to submit this proposal to provide

storm water services for construction and development for the City of Lemon Grove ( City).  All

work will be completed in accordance with the City' s Jurisdictional Runoff Management Program
JRMP): San Diego Regional Water Quality Control Board ( Regional Board) Order No R9- 2013-

0001, as amended by Order Nos. R9- 2015- 0001 and R9- 2015- 0100; and the City' s grading,
storm water, and post- construction BMP ordinances.

Scope of Services

Task 1. Technical Review of Storm Water Plans and Reports

We will review the following submittals and provide written comments to the City based on our
review:

Erosion control plan sheets

Post- construction best management practice ( BMP) plans, usually referred to as Storm
Water Quality Management Plans ( SWAMP)

o Review of the SWQMP will also include review of grading plan sheets, where
applicable, to verify that BMPs proposed in the SWQMP are also shown on the
plans

When necessary,  we are also available to discuss comments with project proponents in
meetings, on the phone, or over email.  In some cases, this direct communication helps resolve

deficiencies more quickly, allowing projects to comply with requirements and gain approval for
storm water submittals sooner.

Deliverables for each reviewed project will include the following:

A completed erosion control plan review checklist, using the standard form from the
JR P, for each erosion control plan reviewed

A review letter summarizing comments for each submitted SWQMP.

A final electronic copy of the SWQMP and associated plan sheets ( to be provided by the
project applicant).    The project' s submitted storm water requirements applicability
checklist will be required to be included with the SWQMP as an appendix.

1220 Trade Street 11111 Suite 119 1111 San ffieLyo, CA 92 121 E ( 858) ;+ 86.. 6600 11111 Fax ( 858) 586- 6644

13-



Attachment A — Exhibit 1

Malik Tarnimi
IMENEMb. 140M AMM
om 190RAMM M

City of Lemon Grove on NEWIMARM
BME EM

June 4, 2017 NN MWWW AMY

Page 2
MENOW411111 4111111111111110MM

A draft storm water facilities maintenance agreement ( to be provided by the project
applicant and recorded at the completion of the project)

We will also maintain an overall list of reviews completed by D- MAX and can provide that list to

the City when necessary for reporting or other purposes.

Task 2. Construction Phase Inspections

During the construction phase, we will provide the following services:

Attend pre- construction meeting to describe storm water requirements,

o We will review the requirements as presented on the erosion control plan and in

the SWQMP, focusing on key actions necessary to maintain compliance.  The

importance of erosion control BMPs, which have been the subject of multiple

recent enforcement actions by the Regional Board, will also be stressed.  The

goal of the storm water discussion during the pre- construction meeting is to
establish clear expectations for the contractor as a proactive step to minimize
future risk of noncompliance.

Conduct regular, routine inspections based on the site prioritization assigned via the

process included in the JP.

o During the wet season, high priority sites are inspected twice per month, medium
priority sites are inspected monthly,  and low priority sites are inspected as
needed.

During site inspections, we will walk the site with the responsible person and
discuss the condition of the sites and potential corrective actions during the
inspection where possible.  We expect that the first inspection at each project

inspection will generally be longer than subsequent inspections.   During all
inspections after the first inspection, our inspector will document the extent to

which deficiencies noted during the preceding inspections have been resolved.

We will document inspection results and required corrective actions on a City of
Lemon Grove construction inspection form.    The form will clearly identify
instances of non- compliance and our recommendations for resolving the non-
compliance.  We will include photos, marked up schematics, or other figures as
necessary to illustrate places where correction needs to be made-   Inspection

documentation will be delivered through email and, if necessary, by fax.

Conduct as- needed follow-up or pre- and post- rain event inspections.

o Additional follow-up inspections may be necessary to verify corrections required
during routine inspections have been made.   Often follow- up inspections are
completed prior to rain to verify corrections have been made before a storm
and/ or after a storm to verify that BPs performed adequately.  In some cases,

emailed photos demonstrating that required corrections have been made may be
accepted in lieu of an onsite follow- up inspection.



Exhibit m    m  

MalmTammi EM INERMEM AM=

City mLemon Grove
Om loom=

June 4, 2017 ME AM UW M AMY

Page

Collected runoff samples asneeded

o Runoff samples will be collected as needed to assess BMP effectiveness.

Samples are collected from storm runoff and are typically analyzed for turbidity
and pH. Additional analyses can also bmcompleted when necessary.

Enforcement documentation assistance

o If enforcement action beyond providing written correction notices based on
inspections becomes neoessary,  we will provide the City with a written
description of violation( s) noted and necessary supporting documentation to
support preparation ofother enforcement actions, such as notices of violation,

administrative oitations, and stop work orders,

o We understand that City staff will notify the Regional Board in the event that
escalated enforcement action istaken.

Post- construction BMP installation verification

o Following completion of all the post- construction BMPs at a site, we will perform
an inspection to verify that these post- construction ByWPs have been constructed
or installed as proposed in the SVV[ lMP.   These inspections will check for

common problems like Nm/ etentiun area drains not being located high enough to
provide the design amount mfsurface ponding.

Final SVV{ JK4P and storm water- related plan aheets, including documentation of field
changes tuproposed post- construction BMPs. if applicable

o   | fany field changes to poet- construction BK4Ps are proposed' we will work with
City staff to require submittal of an amendment to the BVVC) MP and revised plan
sheets to document the change.  All proposed changes are subject to the same

review process described in Task 1 and should not be approved to be
constructed until approved through that process.  Where approved, the project

proponent will also berequired tmsubmit revised electronic copies ofthe updated

plan sheets and GVV( JK4P for the City' s files.

o   | fnofield changes ncuur, the electronic files submitted in Task 1 will be saved to
document the post- construction ByWPs implemented.

Verify storm water facilities maintenance agreement has been recorded prior to project
finalization.

n We will work with the City to ensure the project' s maintenance agreement is
recorded with the County.   We will verify that the maintenance agreement

accurately described the post- construction QK4Pm as bui| t,  and then our

understanding is that City staff will work with the project proponent in record the
agreement with the County Recorder.

Deliverables for each inspected project will include the following:

Attendance mtpre- construction meetings

Acompleted inspection form and associated photos for each inspection

Amemo summarizing results ofstorm water runoff sampling for each sampling event

15-



Attachment A - Exhibit 1

Malik Tarnimi
ORPOW. am AM=
Ow V" WOM am=

City of Lemon Grove
M"  Wawa" AWN
X"      % am Om

June 4. 2017 MW AWN VW M * Vr

Page 4
ammolab ammm

Final, updated SWQMP and associated plan sheets in electronic copy, if amended or
revised based on construction changes ( electronic copies to be provided by project
applicant)

A spreadsheet listing all the post- construction BlVlPs for which installation was verified
during the fiscal year.  This will be provided at the end of the fiscal year as part of the
annual reporting process.

We will also maintain an overall list of dates inspections have been completed for reference by

City staff.  Sites will be added to the inspection list based on notification of pre- construction

meetings provided to D- MAx by City staff.

Cost Estimate

We will complete the tasks described above on a time and materials basis in accordance with
the attached fee schedule, not to exceed $ 50, 000.  We expect that the per inspection cost,

including reporting and recordkeeping, will range from about $ 250 to $ 600 per inspection, with
the amount depending on the extent of deficiencies noted at the sites,  whether we are
inspecting one site or multiple sites during a single trip to the City, and the amount of follow- up
correspondence necessary following each inspection.  Plan review cost will vary depending on
the size and complexity of the project.

All invoices for work under this project will clearly break out costs separately for each project
reviewed or inspected.

Should you have any questions regarding the above comments, please call me at ( 858) 586-
6600, extension 22.

Sincerely,

D- MAx Engineering, Inc,

aNOL'   / IW4 Z

Arsalan Dadkhah, Ph. D., P. E.

Principal

16-



Attachment A — Exhibit 1

qmmmmhl      AMB

sm % MEMO= am

MW em

SCHEDULE OF FEES

City of Lemon Grove Construction and Development Storm Water Services

January 1, 2016

LABOR OTHER CHARGES

Classification Hourly Rate Subcontracted services,  such as sub

Word Processor 65
consultants, outside testing, drilling, and
Surveyors, will be charged at cost plus

Drafter 75 15%.  Other project- specific costs, such

Technician 75 as rentals,   expendable or special

Senior Technician 85 supplies,   special project insurance,

Staff Scientist/ Engineer 1 95
permits and licenses,     shipping,

Staff Scientist/ Engineer 11 110
subsistence, tolls and parking, outside

copying/ printing, etc., will be charged at
Assistant Project Scientist/Engineer 120 cost plus 15%.  Mileage will be charged

Project Scientist/ Engineer 135 at the current IRS rate.  Meals, lodging,

Senior Scientist/ Engineer 155
and travel expenses,    when pre-

Principal Scientist/ Engineer 175
approved by the City, will be charged at
cost or at standard per them rates, as

applicable.

Field and hourly services will be Client will be responsible for any
charged portal to portal from our office, applicable taxes in addition to the fees
with a two- hour minimum.     due for Services.

Appearance as expert witnesses at

court trials,    mediation,    arbitration

hearings and depositions will be

charged at  $ 200/ hour.     Time spent

preparing for such appearances will be
charged at the above standard hourly
rates.

17



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No.      1. G

Mtg. Date June 20, 2017

Dept. Development Services

Item Title:   Reimbursement of Expenses to the City of San Diego Based on Draft Cost Share
Agreements Phase 1 Activities Associated with Investigative Order No. R9- 2015-

0058 for the Investigation of Sediment Quality in the Mouth of Chollas Creek

Staff Contact:    Malik Tamimi, Management Analyst

Recommendation:

Adopt a Resolution ( Attachment A) approving a not to exceed

reimbursementm  ........
of $ 35, 000.0. 00

to the City of San Diego as presented in the draft cost share agreements related to the
Memorandum of Understanding for the Completion of Phase 1 Activities required by
Investigative Order No. R9- 2015- 0058 for Investigation of Sediment quality in the Mouth of
Chollas Creek

Item Summary:

On October 26, 2015, the San Diego Regional Water Quality Control Board ( RWQCB) issued a
final order entitled, " Investigative Order No. R9- 2015- 0058, An Order Directing The California
Department of Transportation, The City of La Mesa, The City of Lemon Grove, The City of San
Diego, The National Steel and Shipbuilding Company, The San Diego Unified Port District, and the
U. S. Navy to Submit Technical Reports Pertaining to an Investigation of Sediment Quality in the
Mouth of Chollas Creek, San Diego Bay, San Diego County, California."  Investigative Order No.

R9- 2015- 0058 requires the aforementioned parties to prepare a Phase 1 Work Plan to evaluate the

current nature and extent of impairment related to contaminated sediments in the Mouth of Chollas

Creek and the Chollas Creek Tidally Influence Area. The City of San Diego has agreed to provide
project management and contract administration services to the named parties for the Phase 1

Activities.  The Memorandum of Understanding  ( Attachment A Exhibit 1)  outlines the

responsibilities of the named parties during the implementation of Phase I Activities of the
investigative order. The City of San Diego has requested reimbursement of cost based on an
agreed formula between and among the named parties.  The cost share allocation for the City of
Lemon Grove for FY 2015- 16 and FY 2016- 17 combined is estimated in the draft cost share

agreements at $ 34, 631. 14 ( Attachment A Exhibit 2 & 3).  Funds in this fiscal year were allocated

for this expense.  City staff recommends that City Council adopt a Resolution ( Attachment A)
approving the reimbursement of expenses to the City of San Diego as presented in the draft cost
share agreements with a not to exceed amount of$ 35, 000. 00.:

Fiscal Impact:

Funds were budgeted in this fiscal year under Fund 26 Stormwater, which receives funding from
business license fees, building permit fees, and the General Fund.

EnvironmentalReview:

Not subject to review Negative Declaration

Categorical Exemption, Section Mitigated Negative Declaration

A.. F



Public Information:

None Newsletter article        Notice to property owners within 300 ft.

Notice published in local newspaper Neighborhood meeting

Attachments:

A.  Resolution- Exhibit 1 MOU

Exhibit 2 Cost Share FY2015

Exhibit 3 Cost Share FY2016



Attachment A

RESOLUTION NO. 2017

RESOLUTION OF THE LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL APPROVING A REIMBURSEMENT

OF EXPENSES TO THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO FOR THE IMPLEMENTATION OF PHASE 1

ACTIVITIES ASSOCIATED WITH INVESTIGATIVE ORDER R9- 2015- 0058 PERTAINING TO

AN INVESTIGATION OF SEDIMENT QUALITY IN THE MOUTH OF CHOLLAS CREEK, SAN
DIEGO BAY, SAN DIEGO COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

WHEREAS, Clean Water Act ( CWA) section 303( d) requires states to develop a list of
waterbodies that do not or are not expected to meet water quality standards after implementing
technology- based controls; and

WHEREAS, Chollas Creek and the San Diego Bay Shoreline near Chollas Creek have
been listed by the State Water Resources Control Board as water quality- limited segments
pursuant to CWA section 303( d); and

WHEREAS, the San Diego Regional Water Quality Control Board ( RWQCB) adopted
Investigative Order No.  R9- 2015- 0058, which directs the named parties to investigate the

sediment quality in the Mouth of Chollas Creek and the Chollas Creek Tidally- Influenced Area;
and

WHEREAS, the RWQCB has determined that the named parties under the Order include

Caltrans, the City of La Mesa, the City of Lemon Grove, the City of San Diego, the National Steel
and Shipbuilding Company( NASSCO), and the U. S. Navy, and the San Diego Unified Port District
as secondarily named party; and

WHEREAS, the named parties have agreed to work together to submit the Phase 1 Work
Plan and the Phase 1 Report; and

WHEREAS, the City of San Diego has agreed to lead the technical effort by providing
project management and contract administration services for the named parties and has hired a

mutually agreed upon consultant to perform the identified Phase 1 Activities; and

WHEREAS, the named parties entered into a memorandum of understanding outlining

responsibilities and funding for the implementation of Phase I Activities to meet the investigative
order deadlines; and

WHEREAS, it is cost prohibitive and inefficient for the City of Lemon Grove to perform
these compliance tasks independently; and

WHEREAS, the City of San Diego is requesting reimbursement for the implementation of
Phase 1 Activities to meet the requirements of the RWQCB Investigative Order and is using a
cost share formula used for the Total Daily Maximum Load ( TMDL) Program that the City of
Lemon Grove is currently a party to; and

WHEREAS, the draft cost share for FY 2015 and 2016 combined total is $ 34, 631. 14 and

exceeds the $ 30, 000 threshold that requires City Council approval; and

a, 3..



Attachment A

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove,
California hereby:

1.  Approves reimbursement of the City of San Diego with a not to exceed amount of
35, 000 ( Exhibit 2 & 3) pertaining to Investigative Order No. R9- 2015- 0058; and

2.  Authorizes the City Manager to sign for the reimbursement.

µ4,.



Attachment A

Exhibit 1

Memorandum of Understanding ( MOU)



Attachment A

Exhibit 1

Memorandum of Understanding ( MOU)



Domr-

nenLWuORNG0NA  _
San Diego, California

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

Completion of Phase I Activities Associated with Investigative Order

No. R9- 2015- 0058 ( An Order Directing the California Department of
Transportation, the City of La Mesa, the City of Lemon Grove, the City
of San Diego, the National Steel and Shipbuilding Company, the San

Diego Unified Port District, and the U. S. Navy to Submit Technical
Reports Pertaining to an Investigation of Sediment Quality in the

Mouth of Chollas Creek, San Diego Bay, San Diego County, California)

This Memorandum ofUnderstanding ( 4GREBNENT) entered into bythe California Department of
Transportation ( hereinafter called Caltrans), the incorporated city of La Mesa( hereinafter called La
Mesa), the incorporated city of Lemon Grove( hereinafter called Lemon Grove), the incorporated city of
San Diego( hereinafter called City of San Diego), the National Steel and Shipbuilding Company
hereinafter called NASSCO), San Diego Unified Port District( hereinafter called Port of San Diego), and

the United States Navy Commander, Navy Region Southwest( hereinafter called U. S. Navy)( hereinafter
collectively called PARTIES and individually called PARTY) establishes the responsibilities of each
PARTY with respect to the submission of the Phase I Work Plan and the Phase | Report( collectively
called Phase I Activities), in conformance with the requirements of Investigative Order No. R9- 2015- 0058

An Order Directing the California Department of Transportation, the City of La Mesa, the City of Lemon
Grove, the City of San Diego, the National Steel and Shipbuilding Company, the San Diego Unified Port
District, and the U. S. Navy to Submit Technical Reports Pertaining to an Investigation of Sediment Quality
in the Mouth of Chollas Creek, San Diego Bay, San Diego County, California)( hereinafter called the
Order), issued by the California Regional Water Quality Control Board, San Diego Region( hereinafter
cu|| edSDRYYOCB).

T

WHEREAS, Clean Water Act( CVVA) mecKion 303( d) requires akmtem to develop a list ofwaterbodien that

donot orare not expected to meet water quality standards after implementing technology based controls;
and,

WHEREAS, Chollas Creek arid the San Diego Bay Shoreline near Chollas Creek have been listed by the
State Water Resources Control 113nard aswater quaRy-|| m| ted segments pursuant\ mCVVAsection 303( d),-
and,

03( d)

amd.

WHEREAS, the SDRVV( JCBadopted the Order, attached maExhibit 1 iothis Agreement and incorporated

herein by reference, which directs the PARTIES to investigate the sediment quality inthe Mouth of
Cho|| asCreek and the Cho|| aaCreek Tidally- Influenced Area; and.

WHEREAS, the SDRVVQCB has determined that the responsible entities under the Order include

Co| trana, Lo Meaa, Lemon Grnvm, City ofSan Dia0m. NA8000, and the U. S. Navy, as indicated in Exhibit
1; and,

WHEREAS, the SORVVQCB hes determined that the Port mfSan Diego is e secondarily responsible party
under the Order, uoindicated inExhibit 1; and,

InesbgaiiveOrder No. Rg- ZO15- OQ58Phase 1 Memorandum of Understanding



WHEREAS, the PARTIES have agreed to work together t* submit the Phase 1 Work Plan and the Phase

1 Report. as those terms are used in Exhibit t and,

WHEREAS, the PARTIES recognize that expenditures will beneeded tocomplete the Phase 1Activities;
and,

WHEREAS, the City of San Diego has agreed to lead the technical effort by providing pn4eoi
management and contract administration services for the PARTIES and has hired a mutually agreed
upon consultant iwperform the identified Phase 1 Activities.

NOW, THEREFORE, the PARTIES incorporate the Recitals set forth above and mutually agree aa

fm|| omm:

i PURPOSE: This AGREEMENT is entered into for the purpose of outlining the responsibilities of
the PARTIES and funding the implementation of Phase 1 Activities pumumntk/ the Order.

U,       TERM: The term of this AGREEMENT commences on the date mfthe last signature of the duly
authorized representatives ofthe PARTIES and shall run until the date onwhich the Regional

Board accepts the Phase 1 Report.

Ui PARTY RESPONSIBILITIES AND PARTICIPATION;

A.       RESPONSIBILITIES OF CONTRACT MONITORING AND TECHNICAL LEAD: The

City ofSan Diego is hereby designated the Contract Monitoring and Technical Lead. As
such, subject to Sections UiB. | V. and V infra, the City mfSan Diego will accept the
responsibility of consultant contracting, overall project management, administration of
consultant contracts, responsibility of coordinating overall work products such as the
present AGREEMENT, and submittal of the Phase 1 Work Plan and Phase 1 Report as

required by the Order, and other administrative duties oaagreed upon bYthe PARTIES

B.       RESPONSIBILITIES OF ALL PARTIES: Each PARTY agrees tufully participate and

cooperate in the implementation ofPhase 1 Activities required bythe Order and will
assign at least one( 1) person to serve as the PARTY representative to participate in

meadnQm' collaborate on developing strategies, make decisions, and review work
products and submittals.  Each PARTY agrees that itwill provide the City ofSan Diego

and its consultant reasonable access to records and information related to each PARTY' s

current and historical operations which is reasonably necessary to complete the Phase 1
Activities, subject to legal privileges and restrictions that each PARTY may reasonably
claim. Each PARTY agrees that investigation and oversight costs associated with Phase

1 Activities, and approved in advance by the PARTIES, should be considered necessary
costs subject ioreallocation ( and thus potential reimbursement) tothe City cf San Diego
pursuant to a future agreement( which all PARTIES agree to negotiate in good faith),
settlement, orjudgment

V.      FUND| NG

4`       INVESTIGATION COSTS: The cost ofproducing iha Phase 1 Work Plan is not
anticipated to exceed $ 84. 062 and such costs will be borne only in Fiscal Year 2018,
The cost ofimplementing the Phase 1 Work Plan and producing the Phase 1 Report will
heborne imFiscal Year 2816and Fiscal Year 2O17 Such cost will bedetermined upon

the completion ofthe Phase 1 Work Plan ThePARTIES agree tomoetingood faith tu

negotiate additional necessary incremental funding associated with implementing the
Phase 1 Work Plan arid producing the Phase 1 Report Federal contributions will he
Subject hoavailable appropriations | nany given yaar

B.       OVII[MERSVGHr COSTS: SDRVVQCB ovemighicnets associated with the Phase 1 AcUviUos

will beborne inFiscal Year 2O1band Fiscal Year 2O17 SDRVVOCDnvermi8hicosts for

Investigative Order No. & 9- 2015- 0058 Phase l Memorandum ofUnderstanding Page



Fiscal Year 2O1Sare not anticipated toexceed $ 25. 5OO. SDRVVQCBoversight onsts
related kothe implementation ofthe Phase 1 Work Plan and production n[ the Phase 1
Report will be estimated upon completion of the Phase 1 VVmt Plan. The PARTIES
agree to meet in good faith to negotiate additional necessary incremental funding
associated with 8DRVVQCB oversight costs related to the implementation of the Phase |
Report. Federal contributions will be subject to available appropriations in any given year,

C.       This AGREEMENT does not reflect the final apportionment ofcosts associated with
Phase 1 Activities among the PARTIES.

V RESERVATION OF RIGHTS: Pursuant tothe schedule incorporated in Exhibit 2, each PARTY
that bears the costs indicated in Section IV supra msmmeu its right to recover such costs from the
other PARTIES and any other person or entity that may be found responsible for contributing to
sediment quality degradation and/ or receiving water impairment in the Mouth of Chollas Creek
and the Chollas Greek Tidally- Influenced Area, regardless of whether such other person or entity
is ultimately named by the SDRVV000 as a responsible party. AdditionaUy, the costs noted in
Sections | V. Amnd / V. B supra are only those costs which can presently be determined Pursuant
to the schedule incorporated in Exhibit 2, each PARTY that bears the costs indicated in Section
Vsupra reserves its right tnrecover any future necessary costs which might arise inconnection

with completion ofPhase 1 Activities from the other PARTIES. Each PARTY reserves its right tn
recover future necessary costs in connection with completion of Phase 1 Activities from any other
person or entity that may be found responsible for contributing to sediment quality degradation
and/ or receiving water impairment in the Mouth of Chollas Creek and the Chollas Creek Tidally-
Influenced Area, regardless of whether such other person or entity is ultimately named by the
SDRVVQC8 an onaspons| b| e party. By entering into this AGREEMENT, no PARTY admits its
liability with respect to the Order. This AGREEMENT shall have no precedential effect on the
allocation of any other costs related to the Mouth of Chollas Creek and the Chollas Creek Tically-
Influenced Area, or otherwise. This AGREEMENT shall not beused for any purpose, other than

enforcing its terms. The PARTIES affirm that nothing inthis AGREEMENT constitutes orimplies
any agreement among them as to their joint liabilities, their respective liabilities, or their
proportionate shares of any liability with respect to the Mouth of Chollas Creek and the Chollas
Creek Tidal y-| nDuenced Area, and that neither they, nor any third parties, may cite this
AGREEMENT oaconstituting orimplying such understanding oragreement. Nnpart o/ this
AGREEMENT shall constitute or be interpreted or construed by any third party, or the PARTIES
themselves, as an admission of any liability under any federal, state, or local law, or that any
PARTY is in violation of, or has ever violated, any law, rules, or regulations. Each PARTY
otherwise reserves all n[ its rights under law

VL NON- COMPLIANCE WITH AGREEMENT REQUIREMENTS: Any PARTY( othis AGREEMENT
found to be in non- compliance with the conditions of this AGREEMENT shall be solely liable for
any lawfully assessed penalties resulting from such non- compliance Failure hzcomply with
AGREEMENT conditions within specified or agreed upon timelines shall constitute non-

compliance with the AGREEMENT. Any allegation mfnon- compliance shall hepresented in
writing Wthe allegedly non- compliant PARTY. The allegedly non- compliant PARTY shall have 3O
days to respond to the allegation or to come into compliance with the AGREEMENT.

VU.     AMENDMENTS TOTHE AGREEMENT: This AGREEMENT may beamended only hyconsent
of all the PARTIES. Noamendment shall be effective un| oaa it in in writing and signed bythe duly
authorized representatives of the PARTIES, except for accurate revisions to Exhibit 2, which may
be completed bythe Contract Monitoring and Technical Lead alone

VUL GOVERNING LAW: This AGREEMENT shall be construed in accordance with the | ew* of the

State of California, If any provision or provisions shall be held to be inva||d, i|| oga|, or
unenforceeb| e, the validity, legality, and enforceability« fthe remaining provisions shall not in any
way be affected or impaired thereby In addition, each PARTY a0naoo ( ocomply with all federal,

1nvesLigahveOnjcr No. R9- 2015- 0058 Phase l Memorandum ofUnderstanding Pam, 3



state and local laws and ordinances applicable to the work to be performed under the terms of
this AGREEMENT.

Di CONSENT AND BREACH NOT WAIVER: Nnterm orprovision hereof shall bedeemed waived
and no breach mxouoed, unless such waiver mrconsent shall be in writing and signed by the
PARTIES buhave waived nrconsented, Any consent byany PARTY to, mrwaiver of, abreach by
the other, whether expressed or imp| ied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver of, orexcuse for
any other different nrsubsequent breach.

X.       DISPUTES: The PARTIES agree to mediate any dispute prior to filing suit or prosecuting suit
against the other PARTIES. > nthe event suit iobrought under this AGREEMENT ioenforce its

terms, each PARTY shall be responsible for its own attorneys' fees and costs,

X|.      LEGAL RESPONSIBILITY: Nothing inthis AGREEMENT shall alter( 1) any PARTY` alegal
responsibility to comply with the Order, or( 2) subject to Section VI, any PARTY' s liability for any
fines, penalties, and costs which may arise out of such PARTY' s non- compliance with the Order.

XU.     APPLICATION OF PRIOR AGREEMENTS: This AGREEMENT constitutes the entire
Agreement between the PARTIES with respect tothe subject matter; all prior agreements,
representations, statements, negmUahona, and undertakings are superseded hereby.

XIII.     TERQN| MAJ|() N: Termination of participation from this AGREEMENT byany PARTY shall require

thirty( 30) days written notice to all PARTIES prior to the effective date of termination.
Termination of this agreement does not release any PARTY from its obligations under the 0rder,
nor does it release the PARTY from its financial responsibilities as outlined in Sections III and IV
supra ofthis AGREEMENT.

XIV.,    ENCUMBRANCE: By reason of constraints in California law( Streets and Highways Code Sections
114 & 130) and the California Constitution ( Article XVI, section 7), Caltrans encumbers an amount
not toexceed$ 41, 437oeits portion ofthe shared cost for Phase 1Activities. Caltrans' contribution
of encumbered funds pursuant to this section does not limit Caltrans' liability with respect to a future
agreement ( which all PARTIES agree to negotiate in good faith), sett| mmeni, or judgment, if such
agreement, settlement, or judgment concludes that Caltrans' total liability exceeds the amount that
itinitially encumbered inthis AGREEMENT-

XV,     FEDERAL LAW:  This AGREEMENT ievoid hthe extent that i1isinconsistent with applicable

law. Portions that are void are severable.  In particular this AGREEMENT is void tothe extent
that i( commits funds inviolation of the federal anti- deficiency act qrits state law equivalent.

Every effort will be made to avoid construing the terms of this AGREEMENT as violations of
those |aws, including adjustment of payment terms and schedules by mutual agreement nfthe
PARTIES

InvcsUgahveOvder No. R9' 2015- 0058 Phase 1 Memorandum ofUnderstanding Page



EXHIBIT 1SDIR"WOC13, frIftS' 119aliVe Order No R9- 20 5 0058( An Order Directing the California
Deparliment of Trawq'WrIatton, tht-'.City( if I- a Mesa, the CRY cA LeTuorl Grcsvc' the City( if
San Diefp, the Naknai Steel an(J Shipt) uii(Jijsg company, vie San Diego LInified Port

istrict, antl the ( VS, Navy to, Submit Technic*0 Reporis permtOng to an Inve'shtlationof
Set

I

jJ111jeI- It Quality VI the MOLIII of an Diego Bay, Swan Dica)( I CO( IrKy,
California)

Investigative Order No. R9- 2015- 0058 Phase 1 Memorandum of Understanding Page 5



EXHIBIT 2:     Schedule of Actual Expenditures of Responsible Parties for Investigation Costs and
Oversight Costs relating to Phase 1 Activities"

r ii w'r f v  rV, W%" ids!  v 1 /     I l 1/ /    ' a   ,.' J' N NP; W I! d/ 1Wta y PI h" 1'+ I f

City of San Diego
Caltrans

If a Responsible Party expends funds for Investigation Costs or Oversight Costs relating to Phase 1
Activities after the execution of this AGREEMENT, Exhibit 2 shall be revised to accurately reflect the
Responsible Party' s actual expenditures for such costs.

Investigative Order No. R9- 2015- 0058 Phase 1 Memorandum of Understanding Page 6



IN WITNESS WHEmmRF.01r, the PARI IES tjave this AGREEMENT to tae signed and expc,uted the

day and 1f'arr first above wfitl(,1+ a  ' E" 1° ris l d. f i E' Imd t" t urlay tae sagm-' d in ea,01Of wliw1i shall

be an orig4ial, with Il)    eas it ttie sign rtwo s Iherelo and hereto were trE( xl ( hew 541rurs
instrument,  ' CI"ee Ar ERl EMEN l , h rfll is a" un. rwv eflnawtive on the date of the last signature of the duly
authorized representatives of the PARTIES.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, this AGREEMENT is executed as follows:

For the State of California Dept. of Transportation
a

Date. _
t

1
Printed Na";aille

m

Title

Approved to as Form

Attorney

Signature

11

Pri11
nted Name

Title

Investigative Order No. R9- 2015- 0058 Phase 1 Memorandum of Understanding
Page 7



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the PARTIES have caused this AGREEMENT to be signed and executed the
day and year first above written. This AGREEMENT may besigned incounterparts, each ofwhich shall
beonoriginal, with the same effect asifthe signatures thereto and hereto were upon the same
instrument. This AGREEMENT shall become effective on the date of the last signature of the duly
authorized representatives ofthe PARTIES,

NWITNESS THEREOF, this AGREEMENT imexecuted amfollows

For the City ofLaMesa

Date:  3- ha
Mark Arapostathis

Mayor

City ofLaMesa

Approved LoaaForm

City Attorney

Dmba

Glenn Sabine

City Attorney

City m[ LmMesa

Investigative Order No., R9- 2015- 0058 Phase 1 Memorandum of Understanding Page



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the PARTIES have caused this AGREEMENT to be signed and executed the
day and year first above written. This AGREEMENT may besigned incounterparts, each ofwhich shall
baanoriginal, with the same effect aaif the signatures thereto and hereto were upon the same
instrument. This AGREEMENT shall become effective on the date of the last signature of the duly
authorized representatives ofthe PARTIES

NWITNESS THEREOF, this AGREEMENT isexecuted asho|| owm

For the City ufLemon Grove

Date

Printed f, ame

Title

Approved toamForm

City Attorney

Date:     

Signature

u1 

Name

Title

lnvesiqaUwc0nderNoR9' 30115' OO5B Phase 1 flemorandum ofUndersiandiwg Page g



NWITNESS WHEREOF, the PARTIES have caused this AGREEMENT kzbesigned and executed the
day and year first above written. - This AGREEMENT may bosigned incounterparts, each ofwhich shall
beonoriginal, with the same effect aaUthe signatures thereto and hereto were upon the same
instrument, This AGREEMENT shall become effective on the date of the last signature of the duly
authorized representatives m[ the PARTIES,

WWITNESS THEREOF, this AGREEMENT iu executed oy& dlowm

For the City ofSari Diego

Date:

Printed Name

Title

Approved toosForm

City Attorney

Date,    

Signature

Printed Nome

Tide

InvesUgahvcOrdell, No, R9- 2015- OO5B Phase 1 Memonandum of Understanding Poge to



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the PARTIES have caused this AGREEMENT to

day and year first above written. This AGREEMENT may be signed in cour
be an original, with the same effect as if the signatures thereto and hereto v ORIGINAL
instrument. This AGREEMENT shall become effective on the date of the la

authorized representatives of the PARTIES.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, this AGREEMENT is executed as followso

For the National Steel and Shipbuilding Company
C.-

Date:  2JZ(,/ 2,% L,
Signature

Printed N,, roM#
Mlrws. LiNTON

Vice President and General COUNel

Title

Approved to as Form

Counsel for the National Steel and Shipbuilding Company

Date:  r

Signature

Printed Naafe

Title

Investigative Order No. R9- 2015- 0058 Phase 1 Memorandum of Understanding Page 11



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the PARTIES have caused this AGREEMENT to be signed and executed the
day and year first above written. This AGREEMENT may besigned incounterparts, eaohofwhichmhaU
heanoriginal, with the same offeo     msthmsignat us theretohereto
instrument. This AGREEMENT ahmU become effective on the date ufthe| aai signature ofthe duly
authorized representatives ofthe PARTIES.

NWITNESS THEREOF, this AGREEMENT ioexecuted aefollows:

For the San Diego Unified Port District

Date

inted Name

VZ
Tit|e

Signature

Approved as to form and legality:      
Printed Name

COUNSEL

Title

Investigative Order No, R9' 2015' 8058 Phase 1 Memoendmnn of Understanding Page 1. 2



I INJ WITNESS WHEI:: EOF, tl--)e ::' r< lil IES have caused this AGREEIVII.:zN1 to be signed and executed the

day and yeaf first above written I his AG[ RZEIMENJ may be signed in counterpafts, each of which shall
be ari original, with the sarne effect as if the signatures thereto and hereto were upon the same

instrumei it, This AGRIL71EMEN' T shall become effective on the date of the last signature of the duty
authorized representatives of the 1-- lARTIES

IN WITNESS THEREOF, this AGREEMENT is executed as follows

For Commander, Navy Region Southwest

tafgnature

NICK, MALLARI.........................  .............................
Printed Name

COMPTROLLER NPSVq

Title

Datc.

igr

IVI, K RlCH

Printed Name

REAR ADMIRAL, LJNAVY

COMMANDER NAVY_ REGION SOUTHWEST"

Title

Al,.)r,) roved to as Form

Attorney

Dsflrz

l..' rinted Name

Title

1"'') H 1 A)" 8 I NJ Jfid('%i Aalidjj n



i

0.     aAro

nl
m

Water Boards

California Regional Water Quality Control Board, San Diego Region

October 26, 2015 In reply refer to:
T10000006999: smcclain

Mr. Carl Savage Ms. Ruth Kolb

California Department of Transportation City of San Diego
4050 Taylor Street 9370 Chesapeake Drive, Suite 100

San Diego, CA 92110 San Diego, CA 92123

Mr. Joe Kuhn Mr. Mike Chee

City of La Mesa National Steel and Shipbuilding Company
8130 Allison Ave P. O. Box 85278

La Mesa, CA 91942 San Diego, CA 92186- 5278

Mr. Malik Tamimi Mr. Paul Brown

City of Lemon Grove San Diego Unified Port District

3232 Main Street 3165 Pacific Highway
Lemon Grove San Diego, CA 92101

Mr. Len Sinfield

U. S. Navy
937 N Harbor Drive, Bldg 1, Box 81
San Diego CA 92132- 0058

Subject:      Investigative Order No. R9- 2015- 0058

Enclosed is a copy of Investigative Order No. R9- 2015-0058, An Order Directing The California
Department of Transportation, The City of La Mesa, The City of Lemon Grove, The City of San
Diego, The National Steel and Shipbuilding Company, The San Diego Unified Port District, and
The U. S. Navy to Submit Technical Reports Pertaining to an Investigation of Sediment Quality
in the Mouth of Cholas Creek in San Diego Bay, San Diego, California.

In developing the Investigative Order, the San Diego Water Board took into account comments
from the named parties and the public.  Those comments and the San Diego Water Board' s
responses are summarized in Attachment 1. All parties to the Order should be aware that

additional information may be submitted throughout the work plan process that could result in
modification of the Order, or future enforcement orders, beyond the scope of the Investigative
Order as issued.

H' o Ir Ai v w,, I I' ll I , HA1H U ,,     IH,     lj:

2175 P' k) i M, m:N DI' reru; Siiii, inio ,;, Hlr l" 6Ir; xj,  c A`, P: iii1' H iH 5 16 1, 9 aU I bi: u;^ i I, r I,, gws„ udvqui



Messrs. Savage, Kuhn Tamimi, Sinfield,   - 2 -   October 26, 2015

Chee, Brown, and Ms. Kolb

In the subject line of any response, please include the reference code:
T10000002687: smcclain. For questions or comments, please contact Sean McClain by phone
at (619) 521- 3374 or by email to smcclainta"7.waterboards. ca.gov.

Sincerely,

James G. Smith

Assistant Executive Officer

JGS: cic: jm: ftm: sm

cc via e- mail: Mr. David Silverstein, david. silversteinCcDnavy, mil

Mr. Kelly Richardson, kelly. richardson(MLW. com

Mr. Tim Allison, tim. allison@sdmts. org

Ms. Karen Holman, kholman@portofsandiego. org

Ms. Marisa Blackshire, Marisa. Blackshire@_BNSF. com

Mr. Matt O' Malley, matKt- sdcoastkeeper. org

TecGeoTracker,

SiteffDlnfo& 
UsT10000006999



CALIFORNIA REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROL BOARD

SAN DIEGO REGION

INVESTIGATIVE ORDER NO. R9- 2015- 0058

AN ORDER DIRECTING THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION,
THE CITY OF LA MESA, THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, THE CITY OF SAN DIEGO,

THE NATIONAL STEEL AND SHIPBUILDING COMPANY, THE SAN DIEGO
UNIFIED PORT DISTRICT, AND THE U. S. NAVY TO SUBMIT TECHNICAL

REPORTS PERTAINING TO AN INVESTIGATION OF SEDIMENT
QUALITY IN THE MOUTH OF CHOLLAS CREEK, SAN DIEGO

BAY, SAN DIEGO COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

The California Regional Water Quality Control Board, San Diego Region ( San Diego
Water Board) finds that:

1.       Legal and Regulatory Authority.  This Order conforms to and implements
policies and requirements of the Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act
division 7, commencing with Water Code section 13000) including ( 1) sections
13267 and 13304; ( 2) applicable State and federal regulations; ( 3) all applicable

provisions of statewide Water Quality Control Plans adopted by the State Water
Resources Control Board ( State Water Board) and the Water Quality Control
Plan for the San Diego Basin ( Basin Plan) adopted by the San Diego Water
Board including beneficial uses, water quality objectives, and implementation
plans; ( 4) State Water Board policies and regulations including Resolution No.
68- 16, Statement of Policy with Respect to Maintaining High Quality of Waters in
California, Resolution No. 88- 63, Sources of Drinking Water, Resolution No. 92-
49, Policies and Procedures for Investigation, and Cleanup and Abatement of
Discharges under Water Code Section 13304; the Water Quality Control Plan for
Enclosed Bays and Estuaries - Part 1 Sediment Quality; California Code of
Regulations ( CCR) title 23, chapter 16, article 11; CCR title 23, section 3890 et.

seq.; and ( 5) relevant standards, criteria, and advisories adopted by other State
and federal agencies.

2.       Geographical Extent of the Mouth of Chollas Creek Investigation.  The

Mouth of Chollas Creek is bounded on the east by the weir located downstream
of the Belt Street Bridge, on the north by the National Steel and Shipbuilding
Company ( NASSCO), and to the south by Naval Base San Diego Pier 1,
extending to the end of the piers ( Figure 1). The area is approximately 25 acres
0. 1 km2).



Investigative Order No. R9- 2015- 0058 October 26, 2015

m

I,

m
m,

Mryryry
r

r
7

a Ir
I

Tidally- Influenced Area I 
i I

J

n

f

c

f

I

W

OIO IIII
I

1
P I

0' 4 „

Figure 1. Investigation Area for the Mouth of Chollas Creek and Chollas Creek uTidally- Influenced
Area.

3,       Chollas Creek Tidally- Influenced Area.  A small portion of the watershed
includes " tidelands" located immediately adjacent to San Diego Bay under the
jurisdiction of the San Diego Unified Port District ( Port District) and the U. S. Navy
Naval Base San Diego). The Chollas Creek Tidally- Influenced Area extends

from the weir located at the Mouth of Chollas Creek up to the confluence area
near the north and south Chollas Creek channels ( Figure 1). The Chollas Creek

Tidally- Influenced Area receives storm water from the upland watershed via
creek drainage, storm water discharge from the neighboring facilities, and tidal
influence from San Diego Bay.

4.       Chollas Creek and Chollas Creek Watershed.  Chollas Creek is an urban
creek with the highest flow rates associated with storm events, and highly
variable flows for the rest of the year.  Extended periods with no surface flows
occur during dry weather, although pools of standing water may be present. The
Mouth of Chollas Creek has been channelized and concrete lined, but some
sections of earthen creek bed remain. The lowest 1. 2 miles of the Creek are on
the 303(d) List of Water Quality Limited Segments for water quality impairments
for indicator bacteria, copper, lead, and zinc.

Page 2 of 18



Investigative Order No. R9- 2015- 0058 October 26, 2015

The Chollas Creek watershed encompasses approximately 69 km2 ( 17, 200
acres) of the Pueblo San Diego Hydrologic Unit located within the cities of San
Diego, Lemon Grove, and La Mesa ( Figure 2).  Land use within the Chollas

Creek watershed is predominantly residential with some commercial and military
uses.  Roadways dominate a significant portion of the remaining watershed area.

do          A  //

r Y91i"!/     "'
rb

N.

k r 1     : 3 tl R''d@Nr Yl7

G A Ilk

ro
Pale[ a

r mtl r  

C.r@ l

i,/. i// o

r}' l r   ,

J w

Figure 2. Location of San Diego Bay, Paleta Creek, Chollas Creek, and Switzer Creek
watersheds.

5,       Mouth of Chollas Creek Impairment.  The Mouth of Chollas Creek is on the

Clean Water Act section 303( d) list for benthic community degradation and
toxicity in the sediment.  The Mouth of Chollas Creek is designated as a
candidate toxic hot spot in the Regional Toxic Hot Spot Cleanup Plan under the
Bay Protection and Toxic Cleanup Program ( BPTCP).'

6„       Identification of Pollutant Sources.  Prior to, or concurrent with, any cleanup of
contaminated sediment in the Mouth of Chollas Creek, sources of pollution to this

area must be identified and controlled.  Multiple point and nonpoint sources

discharge pollutant loads into the Mouth of Chollas Creek.  Point sources

typically discharge at a specific location from pipes, outfalls, and conveyance

State Water Resources Control Board, September 1996.. Chemistry, Toxicity and Benthic Community
Conditions in Sediments of the San Diego Bay Region.

Page 3 of 18



Investigative Order No. R9- 2015- 0058 October 26, 2015

channels. These discharges are regulated by the San Diego Water Board or
State Water Board through Waste Discharge Requirements ( WDRs) that

implement federal National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System ( NPDES)

requirements.  Nonpoint sources are diffuse in nature, such as sheet flow or

atmospheric deposition ( precipitation and dust fall) that have multiple routes of

entry into surface waters.

Storm water runoff from urbanized areas flows off land with a number of different

uses, including residential uses, commercial and industrial uses, and roads,
highways, and bridges.  Sources of pollutants can include storm drain
discharges, discharges or spills from permitted industrial facilities, illicit

discharges, sewage spills, or other nonpoint sources.  Essentially, all sources
point and nonpoint) in the watershed enter the Mouth of Chollas Creek through

the storm water conveyance systems that are regulated through the NPDES
permits listed in Table 1.

Table 1 Re ulated Storm Water Discharges in Chollas Creek Watershed.

Wb Permit Order No.
e,,,  

San Diego Municipal Storm Water NPDES Permit R9 2013- 0001

NPDES Storm Water from Small MS4s 2013- 0001- DWQ

NPDES Industrial Storm- Water 2014- 0057- DWQ
1-

NPDES Constr. ..       
m.......   ...

uction StormWater 2009- 0009- DWQ
NPDES Storm Water from Caltrans 2012- 001 1- DWQ

Other likely point and nonpoint source pollutant loads include storm water runoff
from adjacent industrial discharges from NASSCO2 and Naval Base San Dieg03,

sediment resuspension and flux, leaching from creosote pier pilings, and direct
atmospheric deposition of pollutants to the surface of the water body.  Another
cause is sediment resuspension and migration from boat and ship traffic near the
Mouth of Chollas Creek.

While wasteloads of polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons ( PAHs) are associated

with ongoing activities, such as automobile and truck emissions in the watershed,
the wasteloads of chlordane and polychlorinated biphenyls ( PCBs) reflect
residues accumulated from historical uses, applications, or spills that

contaminated soils within the watershed and act as ongoing sources.

7„       Presence of Wastes in the Mouth of Chollas Creek. The Mouth of Chollas

Creek receives discharges from the municipal separate storm sewer systems

MS4s) of the City of Lemon Grove, the City of La Mesa, the City of San Diego,
and the Port District.  The Mouth of Chollas Creek also receives storm water

runoff discharges from the California Department of Transportation ( Caltrans),

NASSCO, U. S. Navy and various industrial facilities along Chollas Creek.  During

z RW® CB, 2009, Waste Discharge Requirements No.  9- 2009- 0099.

3 RWQCB 2013, Waste Discharge Requirements No. R9- 2013- 0064.

Page 4 of 1



Investigative Order No. R9- 2015- 0058 October 26, 2015

wet weather events, storm water discharges from lands with various uses provide

a significant mechanism for transport of organic pollutants to surface water

bodies.  Pollutants from various land uses and associated management practices

wash off the surface during rainfall events.  The amount of runoff and associated
pollutant concentrations are, therefore, highly dependent on the nearby land uses
and management practices.

The following sources of pollutants are discharged to the MS4s conveyance
system:

a.       PAHs from roadways, parking surfaces, and creosote telephone/ utility;
poles throughout the cities may enter the storm water conveyance system;

b.       Pesticide impacted soils may enter the storm water conveyance system;
and

C.       PCB impacted soils may enter the storm water conveyance system.

Additionally, sediments that accumulate within storm drains and creeks during
dry periods are a source of pollutants to the Mouth of Chollas Creek during wet
weather events.

Furthermore, the Mouth of Chollas Creek is tidally- influenced; therefore, various
pollutants from San Diego Bay may also be transported during tidal actions into
the Mouth of Chollas Creek.  Finally, another pollutant source to the Mouth of
Chollas Creek may be from air deposition.

8.       Beneficial Uses and Target Receptors. Water quality objectives must support
the most sensitive beneficial uses of a water body.  Beneficial uses of Chollas
Creek are described in the Basin Plan.  Benificial uses of San Diego Bay are
described in the Basin Plan and Bays and Estuaries Plan.° Chollas Creek is

located within the Lindbergh Hydrologic Subarea ( 908. 21) in the San Diego Mesa

Hydrologic Area ( 908. 20) of the Pueblo San Diego Hydrologic Unit ( 908. 00).

Table 2 lists the beneficial uses along with its target receptors for Chollas Creek
and San Diego Bay.

Table 2. Beneficial Uses and Tar f Rcm rr
www_   _

Beneficial Use
Chollas San Diego

Creek Bay

Non- contact water recreation

Commercial and sport fishing

Preservatio    ...       Preservation offbiological habitats of
special significance

Estuarine habitat

4 Water Quality Control Plan for Enclosed Bays and Estuaries— Part 1 Sediment Quality, State Water
Resources Control Plan, August 2009.

Page 5 of 18



Investigative Order No. R9- 2015-0058 October 26, 2015

Beneficial Use
Chollas San Diego

Creek Bay
mmmm_

Warm freshwater habitat

Wildlife habitat

Rare, threatened, or sendangeredg species

Marine habitat
w .. ..., W ., - ......  

Migration of aquatic organisms

9
W- ........._-..._.. y,.

Spawning, reproduction, and/ or early
development

Existing Beneficial Use

Pollutants discharged from point and non- point sources to bay sediments could
impact these beneficial uses.

9.      Caltrans. Polluted storm water runoff from Caltrans' owned and/ or operated

roadways and facilities has been, and continues to be, discharged directly and
indirectly into Chollas Creek.  These discharges cause, and threaten to cause, a
condition of pollution by unreasonably affecting the waters for beneficial uses.
Roadway and pavement runoff from Caltrans highways and facilities contains
organic and inorganic pollutants that can impair receiving water quality and
disrupt aquatic and benthic ecosystems.  Storm water discharges from roadways

may contain pollutants, including suspended solids, heavy metals, hydrocarbons,
indicator bacteria and pathogens, nutrients, herbicides, and deicing salts ( Grant
et al. 20035).  In recent years, Caltrans has reported measureable amounts of

pesticides in storm water discharges, primarily the herbicides diuron and
glyphosate; the active ingredient in Roundup@ ( Caltrans

2003a6, 2003b7).  

The

principal sources of pollutants from roadways are atmospheric deposition,

automobiles, and the road surfaces themselves ( Grant et al. 2003).

10,     Municipal Storm Water Copermittees. The Cities of La Mesa, Lemon Grove,

and San Diego, and the Port District own and/ or operate MS4s that discharge

storm water runoff directly into Chollas Creek. These pollutant discharges are
regulated by the San Diego Water Board through Order No. R9- 2013- 0001,
WDRs that implement federal NPDES requirements.  These discharges cause,

and threaten to cause, a condition of pollution by unreasonably affecting the
waters for beneficial uses.

Grant, S. B., N. V. Rekhi, N
s

R. Pise, R. L. Reeves, M. Matsumoto, A. Wistrom, L. Moussa, S. Bay, and M.
Kayhanian. 2003. A Review of the Contaminants and Toxicity Associated with Particles in Stormwater
Runoff. CTSW- RT- 03- 059. 73. 15. Prepared for California Department of Transportation, Sacramento,

CA. August 2003.

6 Caltrans. 2003a. 2002— 2003 Annual Data Summary Report. CTSW- RT- 03- 069. 51. 42. California
Department of Transportation, Storm Water Monitoring & Data Management. August 2003.

Caltrans. 2003b. Discharge Characterization Study Report. CTSW- RT-03- 065. 51. 42. California
Department of Transportation, Storm Water Monitoring & Data Management. November 2003.

Page 6 of 18



Investigative Order No. R9- 2015-0058 October 26, 2015

11,     The San Diego Unified Port District. The Port District has responsibility,

authority, and/ or control for operation of the storm water system within the
tideland area under the MS4 permit.  However, in this particular matter, the Port

District has not exercised requisite control or authority over its lessees' properties
or MS4 facilities/ outfalls to be named primarily responsible for this Investigative
Order.  Therefore, it is being named as a secondarily responsible party, however
it is still a Discharger under this Investigative Order.  To the extent that the

primarily responsible parties provide additional information or evidence that
indicates that the Port District did exert authority over facilities/ outfalls or lessees'
properties, or should have and failed to, this Order and future enforcement
actions can be amended.

12.     National Steel and Shipbuilding Company.  Polluted storm water discharges
or formerly discharged from NASSCO directly and indirectly into Chollas Creek.
These discharges cause, and threaten to cause, a condition of pollution by
unreasonably affecting the waters for beneficial uses.  Historically, some
pollutants were discharged directly into Chollas Creek and San Diego Bay.
NASSCO owns and operates a full service ship construction, modification, repair,
and maintenance facility on the waterfront of San Diego Bay and west of the
Mouth of Chollas Creek.  The facility is located on land leased from the U. S.
Navy and the Port District at 281" Street and Harbor Drive within the City of San
Diego.  The U. S. Navy and NASSCO' s primary business has historically been
ship repair, construction, and maintenance for the U. S. Navy and commercial
customers.  The facility includes offices, shops, warehouses, concrete platens for
steel fabrication, a floating dry dock, a graving dock, two shipbuilding ways, and
five piers, which provide 12 berthing spaces ( RWQCB, 20018).

There are three major types of building/ repair facilities at NASSCO, which,
together with cranes, enable ships to be assembled, launched, or repaired.

These facilities include a floating dry-dock, a graving dock, and berths/piers.
With the exception of berths and piers, the basic purpose of each facility is to

separate a vessel from the bay to provide access to parts of the ship normally
underwater.  The berths and piers are over-water structures where vessels are

secured during repair or construction activities.  Because dry- dock space is
limited and expensive, many operations are conducted at pier side.  For

example, after painting the parts of a ship normally underwater, the ship is
moved from the dry-dock to a berth where the remainder of the painting is
completed.

NASSCO initiated the capture of first-flush storm water from high- risk areas ( dry-
dock, graving dock, paint and blasting areas) in the early 1990s.  Capture of first-
flush storm water extends to additional areas of the facility in 1997.  Prior to the
early 1990s, all surface water runoff from NASSCO discharged directly into San

e RWQCB..

W..,.....,......... W.WW........

2001. Fina Regional Board Report: Shipyard Sediment Cleanup Levels, NASSCO&
Southwest Marine Shipyards, San Diego Bay. California Regional Water Quality Control Board, San
Diego Region, San Diego, CA. February 16, 2001.

Page 7 of 18



Investigative Order No. R9- 2015- 0058 October 26, 2015

Diego Bay ( Exponent, 
20039).  

Currently, NASSCO discharges storm water from
employee parking lots into Chollas Creek, which contain oil, grease, and PAHs
that deposit on parking lot surfaces by motor vehicles.

Categories of wastes commonly generated by NASSCO' s industrial processes
include the following ( RWQCB, 201210):

Abrasive Blast Waste: Abrasive blast waste, consisting of spent grit, spent paint,
marine organisms, and rust is generated in significant quantities during all dry or
wet abrasive blasting procedures.  The constituent of greatest concern, with
regard to toxicity, is the spent paint; particularly the copper and tributyltin
antifouling components, which are designed to be toxic and to continuously leach
into the water.  Other pollutants in paints include zinc, chromium, and lead.

Abrasive blast waste can be conveyed by water flows, become airborne
especially during dry blasting), or fall directly onto receiving waters.

Blast Wastewater:  Hydroblasting generates large quantities of wastewater which
includes suspended and settleable solids ( spent abrasive, paint, rust, marine

organisms, and water).  Blast wastewater also contains rust inhibitors, such as

diammonium phosphate and sodium nitrite.

Bilge Waste/Other Oily Wastewater:  This waste is generated during tank
emptying, leaks, and cleaning operations ( bilge, ballast, and fuel tanks).  In

addition to petroleum products ( fuel, oil), washwater is generated in large

quantities and contains detergents or cleaners.

Oils ( engine, cutting, and hydraulic):  In addition to spent products, spills and

leaks of fresh oils, lubricants, and fuels may occur from ships or dry- docks
equipment, machinery, and tanks ( especially during cleaning and refueling).

Fresh Paint:  Paint can be discharged due to spills, drips, and overspray.

Waste Paints/ Sludges/ Solvents/ Thinners: These wastes are generated from

cleaning and maintenance of paint equipment.

Construction/ Repair_Solid Wastes: These wastes include scrap metal, weldingµwww

rods, slag ( from arc welding), wood, rags, plastics, cans, paper, bottles, and

packaging materials.

Miscellaneous Wastes: These wastes include lubricants, grease, fuels, sewage

s Exponent.. 2003..................NASSCO and Southwest Marine Detailed Sediment Investigation Volumes I - III.
Prepared for NASSCO and Southwest Marine, San Diego, CA. Exponent, Bellevue, WA. October 2003.

10 RWQCB. 2012. Technical Report for Tentative Cleanup and Abatement Order No. R9- 2012- 0024 for
the Shipyard Sediment Site, San Diego Bay, San Diego, CA— Volumes I, II, and III, California Regional

Water Quality Control Board, San Diego Region. San Diego, CA, March 14, 2012. Available at:
fllis7:' i4VYVW. VVBfG' rbOcU' US. Ca. iaOViSdIld3C'( 1( ltW+ylly' 4 Nr'• ila   Ska L ln Ai r7 ; IfIV @ M µlE4  , d' 4 U1P6t," Vf' IIIR 4°+ :. fEICfB

Page 8 of 18



Investigative Order No. R9- 2015- 0058 October 26, 2015

black and gray water from vessels or docks), boiler blowdown, condensate

discard, acid wastes, caustic wastes, and aqueous wastes ( with and without

metals).

13,.     U. S. Navy.  Polluted storm water discharges from U. S. Navy property directly
and indirectly into Chollas Creek."  These discharges cause, and threaten to

cause, a condition of pollution by unreasonably affecting the waters for beneficial
uses.  Historically, some pollutants discharged directly into Chollas Creek and
San Diego Bay.  Since 1921, the U. S. Navy has owned and operated Naval Base
San Diego, located at 32nd Street and Harbor Drive on the eastern edge of San

Diego Bay.  The facility is bordered by the City of San Diego to the north and
east, National City to the south and east, and San Diego Bay to the west.  The
U. S. Navy leases a small portion of land to NASSCO located on the northern
boundary of the Mouth of Chollas Creek.

Historically, Naval Base San Diego served as a docking and fleet repair base.  In

the 1920s and 1930s, it was primarily used for the repair and maintenance of
U. S. Navy Destroyer vessels.  The base expanded during the late 1930s to the
late 1940s.  From 1943 to 1945, more than 5, 000 ships were sent to the base for

conversion, overhaul, battle damage repair, and maintenance; approximately

2, 190 of these ships were dry-docked. The base was expanded in 1944 to
include approximately 823 acres, over 200 buildings, a 1, 700 ton marine railway,
a cruiser graving dry- dock, 5 large repair piers, a quay wall totaling 28, 000 feet of
berthing space, and extensive industrial repair facilities.  Naval Base San Diego
remains in operation and is currently homeport for approximately 60 naval
vessels and home base to 50 separate commands.

In 1998, the U. S. Navy dredged a small portion of the Mouth of Chollas Creek.
Despite the dredging action, impacts at the Mouth remained, as evidenced by
elevated chemistry and toxicity results from the summer of 2001. 12 The U. S.
Navy has proposed to perform another maintence dredging event in a small
portion of the Mouth of Chollas Creek in 2016.

14.     Persons Responsible for the Discharge of Waste. The City of Lemon Grove,
the City of La Mesa, the City of San Diego, Caltrans, the Port District, the U. S.
Navy, and NASSCO ( collectively Dischargers) are responsible entities for
discharges of wastes to sediment in the Mouth of Chollas Creek. As described in
Findings 3 through 13, various waste constituents originated at facilities owned

and/ or operated by these entities are discharged to the Mouth of Chollas Creek

U. S.U. S. Navy, 2013/2014 Storm Water Annual Report for Industrial High Risk, Industrial Low Risk, and
Small MS4 Areas, Order No. R9- 2013- 0064, NPDES Permit No. CA0109169, Naval Base San Diego,
California, August 2014.

12 Southern California Coastal Water Research Project ( SCCWRP) and Space and Naval Warfare
Systems Center( SPAWAR). 2005. Sediment Assessment Study for the Mouths of Chollas and Paleta
Creek, San Diego, Phase I Report. Prepared by SCCWRP, Westminster, CA and SPAWAR, San Diego,
CA for the San Water Board and Commander Navy Region Southwest, San Diego, CA.

Page 9 of 18



Investigative Order No. R9- 2015- 0058 October 26, 2015

where they cause, or threaten to cause, a condition of pollution or nuisance.
Through the course of the investigation, additional information may become
available that identifies additional potential dischargers or warrants naming
additional persons as dischargers.  The San Diego Water Board reserves and

retains the right to name additional persons. The above descriptions of activities,

actual, threatened or potential discharges, and/ or actions giving rise to potential

liability under Water Code Section 13304 are not intended to be weighted for
allocation purposes. The water boards do not generally allocate liability between
parties, and there is not a de minimis defense or exception under Water Code
section 13304.

15.     Public Comments. This Investigative Order is being issued after several
stakeholder meetings and review of public comments submitted.  It is

accompanied by a " Response to Comments" document prepared by San Diego
Water Board staff ( Attachment 1).

16.     Condition of Pollution. The concentrations of contaminants in the sediments of

the Mouth of Chollas Creek are at levels that may have an impact on human
health, wildlife, and the benthic community.  The elevated concentrations may
not be protective for human health, wildlife, and the benthic community thus,

creating a condition of pollution and nuisance in waters of the State.

17.     Basis for Requiring Reports. Water Code section 13267 provides that the San
Diego Water Board may require dischargers, past dischargers, or suspected
dischargers to furnish those technical or monitoring reports as the San Diego
Water Board may specify provided that the burden, including costs, of these
reports bears a reasonable relationship to the need for the reports and the
benefits to be obtained from the reports.  Coordination among the responsible
persons of the sediment investigation( s) is expected to provide a more

comprehensive evaluation and be more cost- effective.

18.     Need for and Benefit of Technical Reports. Technical reports will provide

information to the San Diego Water Board regarding the nature and extent of the
discharges.  The San Diego Water Board intends to use this information to

determine if additional assessment and/ or cleanup and abatement activities are
warranted at the Mouth of Chollas Creek.  Specifically, the reports will enable the
San Diego Water Board to ascertain the extent and chemical concentrations of

waste constituents in sediment that may pose a threat to the benthic community,
human health, and/ or wildlife. The Dischargers currently discharge pollutants
into the Mouth of Chollas Creek, and/ or have historically done so.  Dischargers'

cooperative reporting efforts may result in a cost reduction.  Based on the nature

and possible consequences of the discharges ( as described in the Findings

above) the burden of providing the required reports, including the costs, bears a
reasonable relationship to the need for the reports, and the benefits to be
obtained from the reports.

Page 10 of 18



Investigative Order No. R9- 2015- 0058 October 26, 2015

19.     Study Questions.  An investigation of the sediment quality for the Mouth of
Chollas Creek and Chollas Creek Tidally- Influenced Area is needed to answer
the following study questions:

a.  Nature and Extent.  What is the current nature and extent of impairment
related to contaminated sediment conditions in the Mouth of Chollas Creek

and the Chollas Creek Tidally- Influenced Area?

1.  If existing data are not sufficient to understand current nature and
extent of impairment ( i. e., a data gap exists), what sampling strategy is
needed to fill that gap?

2.  What activities are needed to identify the data to characterize the
nature and extent of impairment in the areas discussed above?

b.  Potential Sources. What are the potential sources of the impairment in the

Mouth of Chollas Creek and the Chollas Creek Tidally- Influenced Area?

1.  If existing data are not sufficient to understand potential sources of the
impairment, what sampling strategy is needed to fill that gap?

2.  What activities are needed to identify the data to characterize the
potential sources of impairment in areas discussed above?

c.  Pathways and Contaminant Transport.  If impairment and ongoing
sources are identified, what are the pathways for contaminant transport to

and within the Mouth of Chollas Creek and the Chollas Creek Tidally-
Influenced Area?

1.  If existing data are not sufficient to understand the transport of
potential source contaminants, develop a sampling strategy to fill that
gap.

2.  What activities are needed to identify the data to characterize the
transport of potential source contaminants in the areas discussed

above?

19.     California Environmental Quality Act Compliance. This action is exempt from
the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA) in accordance
with section 15061( b)( 3) of chapter 3, title 14 of the California Code of

Regulations because it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that
the activity in question will have a significant effect on the environment.  CEQA
will be complied with, as necessary; when and if remedial actions are proposed.

20.     Qualified Professionals. The Dischargers' reliance on qualified professionals

promotes proper planning, implementation, and long- term cost- effectiveness of

Page 11 of 18



Investigative Order No. R9- 2015- 0058 October 26, 2015

investigations.  Professionals should be qualified, licensed where applicable, and

competent and proficient in the fields pertinent to the required activities.

Business and Professions Code sections 6735, 7835, and 7835. 1 require that

engineering and geologic evaluations and judgments be performed by or under
the direction of licensed professionals.

21.     Cost Recovery.  Pursuant to Water Code section 13304( c), and consistent with

other statutory and regulatory requirements, including but not limited to Water
Code section 13365, the San Diego Water Board is entitled to, and will seek

reimbursement for all reasonable costs actually incurred by the Board to
investigate unauthorized discharges of waste and to oversee cleanup of such
waste, abatement of the effects thereof, or other remedial action, required by this
Order.

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, pursuant to Water Code sections 13267 and 13304 that the

California Department of Transportation, the City of La Mesa, the City of Lemon Grove,
the City of San Diego, the National Steel and Shipbuilding Company, the San Diego
Unified Port District, and the U. S. Navy ( collectively Dischargers) must comply with the
following directives:

I Phase 1 Work Plan.  Submit a Phase 1 Work Plan to evaluate the current nature

and extent of impairment related to contaminated sediments in the Mouth of

Chollas Creek and the Chollas Creek Tidally- Influenced Area. The Phase 1
Work Plan must be received by the San Diego Water Board no later than 5: 00
p.m. on February 29, 2016. The Phase 1 Work Plan must:

a.       Current Nature and Extent of Impairment.  Provide an interpretation of
the current nature and extent of impairment for the Mouth of Chollas

Creek and the Chollas Creek Tidally- Influenced Area.  Identify the
additional data needed to fully characterize the nature and extent of
impairment in the Mouth of Chollas Creek and the Chollas Creek Tidally-
Influenced Area.

b.,       Data Gaps.  Include a strategy to investigate data gaps and provide
additional data needs.  Proposed sampling locations must be sufficient to
fully characterize the nature and vertical and lateral extent of impairment
including near storm drains, outfalls, under railways and roadways, and
near pier pilings.  The strategy must provide justification for all proposed
sampling locations.

C,       Map.  Include a detailed map to scale showing existing and proposed
sampling locations.

d.       Laboratory Analyses.  Include the full range of potential waste

constituents discharged to the environment including, at a minimum, total

Page 12 of 18



Investigative Order No. R9- 2015-0058 October 26, 2015

PCB congeners, metals, pesticides, PAHs, total organic carbon, and

physical parameters.  Sampling shall not proceed without concurrence of
the San Diego Water Board.  Total PCB concentrations shall be

expressed as the sum of the following 41 congeners:

Congeners 18, 28, 37, 44, 49, 52, 66, 70, 74, 77, 81, 87, 99, 101, 105,
110, 114, 118, 119, 123, 126, 128, 138, 149, 151, 153, 156, 157, 158,
167, 168, 169, 170, 177, 180, 183, 187, 189, 194, 201, and 206.

e.       Sampling Protocols and Quality Assurance Project Plan.  Include the

sampling protocols and a Quality Assurance Project Plan ( QAPP).

f,       Mouth of Chollas Creek Proposed Maintenance Dredging.  Provide the

details of the proposed maintenance dredging expected to be performed
by the U. S. Navy in the Mouth of Chollas Creek.  This must include the
proposed dredging footprint, vertical extent, and proposed pre- and post-
dredging sampling and analyses.  Describe environmental controls to be

implemented to limit re-suspension and re- deposition of sediment.

9       Detailed Schedule.  Include a detailed schedule for completion of all

Phase 1 activities including a schedule for the proposed maintenance
dredging by the U. S. Navy and submission of the Phase 1 Report as
described in Directive 2 below.

2,       Implementation of the Phase 1 Work Plan. The Dischargers shall commence

with the implementation of the Phase 1 Work Plan in accordance with the

detailed schedule or after 60 calendar days following submission of the Phase 1
Work Plan, unless otherwise directed in writing by the San Diego Water Board.

3.       Phase 1 Report. The Dischargers shall submit a Phase 1 Report describing the

results from implementing the Phase 1 Work Plan. The Phase 1 Report must
include a refined Conceptual Site Model ( CSM) that incorporates all of the data,

identifies data gaps, and additional data needs, if any.  The CSM must identify
potential sources causing the impairment in the Mouth of Chollas Creek and the
Chollas Creek Tidally- Influenced Area.

The Phase 1 Report must include a map showing the location of all current and
historic storm water conveyance features including inlets, catch basins, and
discharge points to the Mouth of Chollas Creek and Chollas Creek Tidally-
Influenced Area.  The Report must be received by the San Diego Water Board
no later than 5: 00 p. m. on February 28, 2017.

4,       Phase 2 Work Plan.  The Dischargers must submit a Phase 2 Work Plan to
investigate potential sources of impairment identified in the Phase 1 Report.  The

Phase 2 Work Plan must be received by the San Diego Water Board no later
than 5: 00 p. m. on August 31, 2017.  The Phase 2 Work Plan must:

Page 13 of 18



Investigative Order No. R9- 2015- 0058 October 26, 2015

a.       Potential Sources.  Provide a strategy to investigate all potential sources
identified in the Phase 1 Report discharging to the Mouth of Chollas Creek
and the Chollas Creek Tidally- Influenced Area. 13

b.       Potential Pathways.  Provide an analysis of potential pathways for

contaminant transport to and within the Mouth of Chollas Creek and

Chollas Creek Tidally- Influenced Area.

C.       Map.  Include a detailed map to scale showing the location and elements
of all potential pollutant sources discharging to the Mouth of Chollas Creek
and Chollas Creek Tidally- Influenced Area.

d.      Sampling Locations.  Include sampling locations to be collected within all
catch basins and similar junctions where accessible, and at intervals

adequate to detect potential sources.  In addition, samples must be

collected at locations designed to assess contributions from potential

pollutant sources such as businesses with industrial activities or other

pollutant generating activities within the current MS4.  The proposed
sampling strategy must identify the sample number, location, and provide
justification for the sampling intervals within the MS4.

e.      Sampling Protocols and Quality Assurance Project Plan.  Include

sampling protocols and a QAPP.

f,       Detailed Schedule.  Include a detailed schedule for completion of all

Phase 2 activities.

5.       Implementation of the Phase 2 Work Plan.  The Dischargers shall commence

with the implementation of the Phase 2 Work Plan in accordance with the

detailed schedule or after 60 calendar days following submission of the Phase 2
Work Plan, unless otherwise directed in writing by the San Diego Water Board.

6.       Phase 2 Report.  The Dischargers must submit a Phase 2 Report describing the
results from implementing the Phase 2 Work Plan. The Report must include a
discussion on the sources and the pathways for contaminant transport to the

Mouth of Chollas Creek and the Chollas Creek Tidally- Influenced Area. The
Phase 2 Report must also include a refined CSM that incorporates all of the data
and conclusions based on the results of the Phase 1 and Phase 2 investigations

and provide recommendations for additional work, if needed. The Phase 2

Report must be received by the San Diego Water Board no later than 5: 00 p. m.
on March 15, 2018.

13 This may include investigating the Chollas Creek Watershed as a potential source.

Page 14 of 18



Investigative Order No. R9- 2015- 0058 October 26, 2015

7,       Compliance Dates. The compliance dates for the Work Plans and Reports

required by this Order are summarized in Table 3.

at
Table 3  orEi Iwar a. e Dates for Work Plans, and oto w's

Directive Reuidrement Due Date

1      %  Phase 1 Work Plan February 29 2016

Phase 1 R      ..  ....  Report February 28 2017
w.,

Phase 2 Work Plan August 31, 2017
4 Pha

3 a.......

se 2 Report March 15, 2018

An extension of due date( s) may be granted by the Assistant Executive Officer
for good cause.

8.       Penalty of Perjury Statement.  All reports must be signed by the Dischargers'
corporate officer or its duly authorized representative, and must include the
following statement by the official, under penalty of perjury, that the report is true
and correct to the best of the official' s knowledge.

I certify under penalty of law that this document and all
attachments were prepared under my direction or supervision in
accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified

personnel properly gather and evaluate the information submitted.
Based on my inquiry of the person or persons who manage the
system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the
information, the information submitted is, to the best of my
knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete.  I am aware

that there are significant penalties for submitting false information,
including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing
violations.

9.       Electronic Data Submittals. The Electronic Reporting Regulations require
electronic submission of any report or data required by a regulatory agency from
a cleanup site after July 1, 2005. 14 All information submitted to the San Diego
Water Board in compliance with this Order is required to be submitted

electronically via the Internet into the GeoTracker database
http:// geotracker. waterboards. ca.gov (GeoTracker Site ID. T10000006999).  The

electronic data must be uploaded on or prior to the regulatory due dates set forth
in the Order or addenda thereto. To comply with these requirements, the
Dischargers must upload to the GeoTracker database the following minimum
information:

a.       Electronic Report.  A complete copy of all work plans, assessment,

cleanup, and monitoring reports, including the signed transmittal letters,

4...............      Chapter 30, division 3 of title 23 and division 3 of title 27, California Code of Regulations

Page 15 of 1



Investigative Order No. R9- 2015- 0058 October 26, 2015

professional certifications, and all data presented in the reports.

Laboratory Analytical Data.  Analytical data ( including geochemical
data) for all bay sediment and water samples in Electronic Data File ( EDF)
format.

10.     Violation Reports.  If the Dischargers violate any requirement of this Order, then
the Dischargers must notify the San Diego Water Board office by telephone as
soon as practicable once the Dischargers have knowledge of the violation.  The

San Diego Water Board may, depending on violation severity, require the
Dischargers to submit a separate technical report on the violation within five

working days of telephone notification.

11.     Other Reports. The Dischargers must notify the San Diego Water Board in
writing prior to any Discharger' s facilities' activities that have the potential to
cause further migration of pollutants.

12.     Provisions.

a.       Waste Management. The Dischargers shall properly manage, store,
treat, and dispose of contaminated sediments in accordance with

applicable federal, State, and local laws and regulations.  The storage,

handling, treatment, or disposal of sediment associated with this
assessment must not create conditions of nuisance as defined in Water

Code section 13050( m).

Contractor/Consultant Qualifications. All reports, plans, and

documents required under this Order must be prepared under the

direction of appropriately qualified professionals.  A statement of
qualifications and license numbers, if applicable, of the responsible lead

professional and all professionals making significant and/ or substantive

contributions must be included in the report submitted by the Dischargers,
The lead professional performing engineering and geologic evaluations
and judgments must sign and affix their professional geologist or civil

engineering registration stamp to all technical reports, plans, or
documents submitted to the San Diego Water Board.

C.       Laboratory Qualifications.  All samples must be analyzed by California
State-certified laboratories using methods approved by the United States
Environmental Protection Agency ( USEPA) for the type of analysis to be
performed.  All laboratories must maintain Quality Assurance/ Quality
Control ( QA/ QC) records for the San Diego Water Board to review.

d Laboratory Analytical Reports.  Any report presenting new analytical
data is required to include the complete Laboratory Analytical Report( s).
The Laboratory Analytical Report( s) must be signed by the laboratory

Page 16 of 18



Investigative Order No. R9- 2015- 0058 October 26, 2015

director and contain:

1,       Complete sample analytical reports;

2.       Complete laboratory QA/ QC reports;

3.       A discussion of the sample and QA/ QC data; and

4.       A transmittal letter that indicates whether or not all the analytical

work was supervised by the director of the laboratory, and contains
the following statement " All analyses were conducted at a
laboratory certified for such analyses by the California Department
of Public Health in accordance with current USEPA procedures."

13.     Notifications.

a.       Cost Recovery.  Upon receipt of invoices, and in accordance with
instruction therein, the Dischargers must reimburse the San Diego Water

Board for all reasonable costs incurred by the Board to investigate
discharges of waste and to oversee cleanup of such waste, abatement of
the effects thereof, or other remedial action, required by this Order and
consistent with the estimation of work.

b.      All Applicable Permits. This Order does not relieve the Dischargers of

the responsibility to obtain permits or other entitlements to perform
necessary assessment activities. This includes, but is not limited to,
actions that are subject to local, State, and/ or federal discretionary review

and permitting.

C.       Enforcement Discretion. The San Diego Water Board reserves its right

to take any enforcement action authorized by law for violations of the
terms and conditions of this Order.

d„       Enforcement Notification.  Failure to comply with requirements of this
Order may subject the Dischargers to enforcement action, including but
not limited to administrative enforcement orders requiring the Dischargers
to cease and desist from violations, imposition of administrative civil

liability, pursuant to Water Code section 13268 in an amount not to
exceed $ 1, 000 for each day in which the violation occurs, referral to the
State Attorney General for injunctive relief, and referral to the District
Attorney for criminal prosecution.  The Dischargers are jointly and
severally liable for the entire amount of the administrative civil liability.
The San Diego Water Board reserves the right to seek administrative civil

liability from any or all of the Dischargers.

e.       Requesting Administrative Review by the State Water Board.  Any
person affected by this action of the San Diego Water Board may petition
the State Water Board to review the action in accordance with section

Page 17 of 18



Investigative Order No. R9- 2015- 0058 October 26, 2015

13320 of the Water Code and California Code of Regulation Title 23

section 2050.  The petition must be received by the State Water Board
Office of Chief Counsel, P. O. Box 100, Sacramento, California 95812)

within 30 calendar days of the date of this Order.  Copies of the law and

regulations applicable to filing petitions will be provided upon request. 15

k

I JA ES MOrdered ITH          Date
Assistant Executive Officer

S

Nothing in this Order prevents the Dischargers from later petitioning the State Water Resources Control
Board to review other future San Diego Water Board orders regarding the Mouth of Chollas Creek,
including but not limited to subsequent investigative orders and/ or cleanup or abatement orders, if any.
Upon such petition, the San Diego Water Board will not assert that the Dischargers have previously
waived or forfeited their right to petition the San Diego Water Board' s action or failure to act under Water
Code section 13320. Further, upon such petition, the San Diego Water Board will not assert that the
Dischargers are precluded from petitioning for review of future orders by any failure to petition for review
of this Order

Page 18 of 18



Attachment A

Exhibit 2

Draft Cost Share FY 2015- 16



COST- SHARE AGREEMENT

Completion of Phase I Activities Associated with Investigative Order

No. R9- 2015- 0058 ( An Order Requiring the California Department of
Transportation, the City of La Mesa, the City of Lemon Grove, the City
of San Diego, the National Steel and Shipbuilding Company, the San

Diego Unified Port District, and the U. S. Navy to Submit Technical

Reports Pertaining to an Investigation of Sediment Quality in the
Mouth of Chollas Creek, San Diego Bay, San Diego County, California)

FISCAL YEAR 2016

This Cost- Share Agreement ( AGRf.:::I::: MENT) entered into by the California Department of..F ransportation
hereinafter called Caltrans), the incorporated city of La Mesa ( hereinafter called I_ a Mesa), the

incorporated city of Lemon Grove ( hereinafter called I... emon Grove), the incorporated city of San Diego
hereinafter called City of San Diego), the National Steel and Shipbuilding Company ( hereinafter called

NASSCO), the San Diego Unified Port I[:) istrict( hereinafter called Port of San Diego), and the United

States Navy Commander, Davy region . Southwest ( hereinafter called U S Davy) ( hereinafter collectively
called PAR f IES and individually called PAR D Y) establishes the responsibilities of each PARTY with
respect to their respective shares of the Piscall Year 2016 costs and expenses of the activities described

in the Phase I Work Plan and the Phase I Report( collectively called Phase I Activities), prepared in
conformance with the requirements of Investigative Order No R9- 2015 0058 ( An Order Directing the

California Department of' Transportation, the City of I Mesa, the City of li.. emon Grove, the City of San
Diego, the National Steel and Shipbuilding Company, the San Diego Unified Port District, and the U S
Navy to Submit Technical Reports Pertaining to an Investigation of Sediment Quality in the Mouth of
Chollas Creek, Sari (Diego Bay, San Diego County, California) ( hereinafter called the Order), issued by

the California Regional Water Quality Control Board, San ( Diego Region ( hereinafter called SDR' U QCB).

RI..-Cl FALS

WHEREAS, Clean \ plater Act ( CWA) section 303( d) requires states to develop a list of waterbodies that

do not or are not expected to meet water quality standards after implementing technology- based controls,
arid,

WHERII:::AS, Chollas Creek and the San Diego Bay Shoreline near Chollas Creek have been listed by the
State Water Resources Control Hoard as water quality limited segments pursuant to CVVA section 303( d);
and,

WH[..._REA S, the SDRWOCB adopted the Order, attached as Exhibit 1 to this Agreement and incorporated

herein by reference, which directs the PAR i GES to investigate the sediment. quality In the Mouth Of
Chollas Creek and the Chollas Creek Tidally- Influenced Area ( hereinafter called the Chollas Creek Mouth
Area); and,

WHEREAS, the SDRWOCIE3 has determined that the responsible entities under the Order include

Caltrans, La EVlesa, Lemon Grove, City of Sari Diego, IVA SSCO, and the U S Davy, as indicated in Exhibit
1, arid,

WHEREAS, the SC) RVVOCB has determined that the Port of San Diego is a secondarily responsible party
under the Order, as indicated in Exhibit 1; arid,

i" 1i [ Hh Iwo ' Oiu;  inw i dc( Phv„ e Y Coldi S hflW J i l, I   nY uiib u; Pd' 4 tl



WHEREAS, the PARTIES ugnaod to work together to submitihe Phase 1 Work P| un and the Phase 1
Report, attached as Exhibit and incorporated herein by nsfenence, in accordance with the July 2016
Memorandum of Understanding ( hereinafter called July 2016 MUU) reached between the P8RT| ES,
attached at Exhibit 3iothis AGREEMENT and incorporated herein by reference, and.

WHEREAS, the City o/ San Diego has agreed to lead the technical aMoA by providing project
management and contract administration services for the PARTIES and has hired a mutuaUy agreed
upon consultant to perform the identified Phase 1 8ohv/ hes, in accordance with the July 2016 MOU, and

WHEREAS, the PARTIES recognize iha{ expenditu/ es were made and will be needed \ ocomplete the
Phase Activities', arid,

NOW, THEREFORE, the PARTIES incorporate the Recitals set foilh above and mutuaUyognee as
fn| lows

k PURPOSE: This AGREEMENT is entered into for the purpose of formalizing the cost shahng

arrangements agreed Lobetween and among the PARTIES pertaining to [ lie Fiscal Year 2D16
costs and expenses associated with the Phase 1 Activities

U TERM: The Aenn of this AGREEMENT commences on the date of the last signature of the duly
authorized representatives of the PARTIES ( hereinafter called the Effective Dote) and shall run
until all the Fiscal Year 2Q10 costs and expenses associated with the Phase 1 Activities are paid
off infull

Ui FUNDING:

A.       The cost ofimplementing the Phase 1 Activities for Fiscal Year 2016 totaled $ 84. 252. 85
The costs are shared as shown in Table 1 below and are based on a formula of 451% land
area, 45% population (       and10Y6aqua| divi ionhee ( xhibit 4) for

each PARTY contributing hothe phase 1 Activities

Table 1 — Phase I Activities Fiscal Ytmr 2016 Cost- Shatre



G  Each PARTY shall pay its aho/ a ofexpenses within SO days after the Effective Coba Funds
collected and not expended etthe conclusion of the Phase 1 Activities shall be refunded N
each PARTY

C.  Pursuant Uz the July 2O18 K8OU. the City ofSan Diego expended the total $ 84. 252 55 in
Fiscal Year 2O16Phase | Activities costs, subject toreimbursement from the other PARTIES
The remaining PARTIES therefore ahuU reimburse the City of San Diego' s costs according to
their respective shares as described in Table 1. less the City of San Diego' s share of the
costs ($ 83. 33J87)

V NON- COMPLIANCE WITH AGREEMENT REQUIREMENTS: Any participant\ othis
AGREEMENT found to be in non- compliance with the conditions of this AGREEMENT shall be
solely liable for any lawfully assessed penalties resulting from such non- compliance Failure to
comply with AGREEMENT conditions within specified or agreed upon timelines shall constitute
non- compliance with the AGREEMENT

V AMENDMENTS TO THE AGREEMENT: This AGREEMENT may beamended only byconsent
of all the PARTIES No amendment shall be effective unless itis in writing and signed by the duly
authorized representatives ofthe PART| ES-

VL GOVERNING LAW: This AGREEMENT shall be governed and construed inaccordance with the
laws of the State of California. If any provision or provisions shall be held to be inva| id, iUego|, or
unenforceab| e. the vo| idiry, lego| ity, and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not in any
vvuy be affected or impaired thereby. In addition, each PARTY agrees to comply with all federal,
state and | uoa| laws and ordinances applicable to the work to be performed under the terms of
this AGREEMENT

VU.      CONSENT AND BREACH NOT WA| VERi Noterm o/ provision hereof shall badeemed waived
and no beach excused, unless such waiver orconsent shall be in writing and signed by the
PARTIES to have waived or consented. Any consent by any PARTY to, orwaiverof. o breach by
the other, whether expressed or implied, shall not constitute o consent to, waiver of, orexcuse for

any other different orsubsequent breach,

VUi DISPUTES: The PARTIES agnea to mediate any dispute prior to filing suitor prosecuting suit
against the other parties In the event suit is brought upon this AGREEMENT to enforce its
terms, each PARTY shall be responsible for their own attorneys' fees and 000\ a

X.       LEGAL RESPONSIBILITY:  Each PARTY hzthis AGREEMENT ( 1) shall retain its legal
responsibility to comply with the Order. and ( 2) shall pay all Unaa, pena| dea, and costs which may
arise out ofsuch PARTY' s non- compliance with the Order

X.       APPLICATION OFPRIOR AGREEMENTS: This AGREEMENT constitutes the entire
Agreement between the parties with respect 0othe cost- sharing for the Phase 1 Activities, all prior
agneemen1s, repreaenta1ions, sksiemenks, neOohabons, and undertakings are superseded hereby,
21qeptfor the documents contained at Exhibits 1 2. 5. and 4, which are fully incorporated herein

XL TERMINATION: Termination of participation from this AGREEMENT hyany PARTY shall require

thirty ( 30) days written notice to all PAR  | ES prior to the effective date of termination
TmnninaUnn of this agreement does not release any PARTY for obhga1onso[ the Order, nor does
itrelease the PARTY from their financial responsibilities as outlined in Section U| of this
AGREEMENT Upon termination, the terminating PARTY shall pay their cost share in full

The remainder cdthis page intentionally left blank]



xU.      ENCUMBRANCE: By reason of constraints in California law( Streets and Highways Code Sections
114 & 130) and the California Constitution ( Article XVI, section 7), Caltrans encumbers an amount

not to exceed $___ _____ as its portion of the shared cost for the Fiscal Year 2016 Phase |

Activities Caltrans' oon ribudon of encumbered funds pursuant to this section does not limit

Caltrans' liability with respect toafuture agreement ( which all PARTIES negotiate in good faith),
settlement, or judgment, if such agreement, settlement, or judgment concludes that Caltrans' total

liability exceeds the amount that iiinitially encumbered in this AGREEMENT.

X| V,     FEDERAL LAW:  This agreement is void to the extent that it is inconsistent with applicable law
Portions that are void are severable.  In particular this agreement is void to the extent that it

commits funds inviolation of the federal anti- deficiency act orits state law equivalent Every
effort will be made to avoid construing the terms of this agreement as violations of those laws,
including adjustment of payment terms and schedules by mutual agreement of the parties

LIST OF EXHIBITS

EXHIBIT 3DRVVOC13. Investigation Order No, R9- 2O15- UU58 ( SemMOU)

EXHIBIT Phase 1 Work Plan and the Phase 1 Report( Available Upon Request)

EXHIBIT July 2O10Memorandum o< Understanding ( See YNOUExhibit 1)

EXHIBIT Cost- Share Formula

Blank Signature Pages Excluded



FISCAL YEAR 2016 COSTS

t EqualPopulation( a)     Land Area( b)
DiTOTAL

Div sion I

Discharger
0450.10. 45

37, 913.69 S37, 91169 8. 425.27 84, 252. 65

Task 1: TMDL Compliance EqualLand Area
Population Population Fee f Total Land Area Fee Share of Total ofof Total Total

Monitoringm
Acres) FeeDivision

Cay of Sar. Die2o 23 5 3 C 87 63; 4 S33, 222. 86 13. 131 75. 7162% 28, 706 79 1 S= 464. 2 563.333. 87

C veF oLemog 17 37 9 534%   1-2.023 63 1 973 11 3767%  4, 313. 34       $ 1404.21 57. 741. 18 9 19I

tf" a Mesa 8 456 561%   2, 149 04 1, 51-37 9, 0357%  v o ' 3. 425. 75       $ 1 404, 21 56. 979. 00 828%

U. S Na," 4450 37%     
S51.

8 16 U 1, 0495%    39789 1 L O4 2
1 j 2. 320. 26 275%

NAS SCUP0.1 of San u e vu00 740 00427%     1616       $ 1. 404. 21 I 1. 420. 39 169%

Ca=t.  sa- SO- 00 482 2. 7793%  1 05374 1      $ 1. 404. 21 I 2. 457. 95 292%

TOTALS J 325, 604 10000% 37, 913. 69 j 17, 342 1:; 0. 00 16 84. 252. 65 10000%

FISCAL YEAR 2017 COSTS

Population( a)     Land Area( b) I
Equal

TOTAL
Division

Discharger
0. 45 0. 45 0

131, 697.90 131. 697. 90 29, 266. 20 292. 662. 00

Task 1: TMDL Compliance Population Land Area 1 Equal 1
i Population 1  % of Total LLand Area Fee Share of Total of Totalof Total

Monitoring Fee Acres) Division Fee

City of San DieQo 285319 3 87. 63%       $ 115, 403. 72 13, 131 1 75. 71E2% (      $ 99, 716.60 1      $ 4, 87770 219, 998. 02 i 75. 17

Citv of Lemon Grove I 17. 379 i 5. 34%  7, 029. 33 1, 973 11. 3767% 14982 93 I  $ 4877. 70 S26, 809. 96 9. 19

City of La Mesa t 18. 456 5. 67%  7. 46495 1, 567 9. 1 487770 t 24. 242. 42 8. 28%

U- S, Navy 4, 450 1- 37%  1799. 90 182 1. 0495%  1       $ 1, 382. 11 4, 87730 8. 059. 71 2, 75%

NASSCOIP,xi of San D.ego 0, 00%    1 0..00 S56201      $

4, 87T70 4, 933. 90 1. 69%—

alvars Q 0. 00%      o.    482 2. 7793% 1660.30 54, 877 70 58. 538. 00 1 2. 92%

TCTALS 325604 10-0. 00° e 17, 342 1 LO 31, 697. 90 529, 266. 20 292. 662. 00 1 100. 00%

Pha



Attachment A

Exhibit 3

Draft Cast Share FY 2016- 17



COST- SHARE AGREEMENT

Completion of Phase I Activities Associated with Investigative Order

No. R9- 2015-0058 ( An Order Requiring the California Department of
Transportation, the City of La Mesa, the City of Lemon Grove, the City
of San Diego, the National Steel and Shipbuilding Company, the San

Diego Unified Port District, and the U. S. Navy to Submit Technical
Reports Pertaining to an Investigation of Sediment Quality in the

Mouth of Chollas Creek, San Diego Bay, San Diego County, California)

FISCAL YEAR 2017

This Cost- Share Agreement ( AGREEMENT) entered into by the California Department of Transportation
hereinafter called Caltrans), the incorporated city of La Mesa ( hereinafter called La Mesa), the

incorporated city of Lemon Grove ( hereinafter called Lemon Grove), the incorporated city of San Diego
hereinafter called City of San Diego), the National Steel and Shipbuilding Company ( hereinafter called

NASSCO), the San Diego Unified Port District( hereinafter called Port of San Diego), and the United

States Navy Commander, Navy Region Southwest ( hereinafter called U S.  Navy) ( hereinafter collectively

called PARTIES and individually called PARTY) establishes the responsibilities of each PARTY with
respect to their respective shares of the Fiscal Year 2017 costs and expenses of the activities described

in the Phase I Work Plan and the Phase I Report ( collectively called Phase I Activities), prepared in
conformance with the requirements of Investigative Order No R9- 2015- 0055 ( An Order Directing the

California Department of Transportation, the City of La Mesa, the City of Lemon Grove, the City of San
Diego, the National Steel and Shipbuilding Company, the San Diego Unified Port District, and the U. S.
Navy to Submit Technical Reports Pertaining to an Investigation of Sediment Quality in the Mouth of
Chollas Creek, San Diego Bay, San Diego County, California) ( hereinafter called the Order), issued by
the California Regional Water Quality Control Board, San Diego Region ( hereinafter called SDRWQCB)

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Clean Water Act ( CWA) section 303( d) requires states to develop a list of waterbodies that
do not or are not expected to meet water quality standards after implementing technology- based controls,
and,

WHEREAS, Chollas Creek and the San Diego Bay Shoreline near Chollas Creek have been listed by the
State Water Resources Control Board as water quality- limited segments pursuant to CWA section 303( d),
and,

WHEREAS, the SDRWQCB adopted the Order, attached as Exhibit 1 to this Agreement and incorporated

herein by reference, which directs the PARTIES to investigate the sediment quality in the Mouth of
Chollas Creek and the Chollas Creek Tidally- Influenced Area ( hereinafter called the Chollas Creek Mouth
Area), and,

WHER[      the SDRWQCB has determined that the responsible entities under the Order inch..ade

Caltrans, ILa Mesa L.. ernoini Grove, City of ...;an Diego, NASSCO, and the U S Navy, as indocated in l_ x ribit.
1; and,

0dl lllrttlEAS, the S[) RWQCB has deternniriect that the Port. of `pan Diego is a secondarily responsible party
i.. jinder the Order as indicated in Exhibit ' 1; and,

FY B7 CrutrOUPa, s Creek, Mourn Unve, s6, iai vc* 0o Jrrr Phrasr I Aciivitw r. r; 7t shw Agrcernr" rip  _       __ page' of 11



WHEREAS, the PARTIES agreed to work together to submit the Phase 1 VVodh Plan and the Phase 1

Report, attached as Exhibit 2and incorporated herein by reference, in accordance with the July 2O1O
Memorandum of Understanding ( hereinafter called July 2016 MOU) reached between the PARTIES,
attached a\ Exhibit 3 \ othis AGREEMENT and incorporated herein by reference-, and.

WHEREAS, the City of San Diego has agreed to lead the technical effort by providing project
management and contract administration services for the PARTIES and has hired a mutually agreed
upon consultant to perform the identified Phase 1 Activities, in accordance with the July 201G K4OU and

WHEREAS, the PARTIES recognize that expenditures were made and will be needed to complete the
Phase Activities-, arid,

NOW, THEREFORE, the PARTIES incorporate the Recitals set forth above and mutually agree my

follows:

i PURPOSE: This AGREEMENT is entered into for the purpose of formalizing the cost- sharing
arrangements agreed to between and among the PARTIES pertaining to the Fiscal Year 2017
costs and expenses associated with the Phase 1 Activities

U.       TERM: The term of this AGREEMEN- 1 commences on the date of the last signature of the duly
authorized representatives of the PARTIES ( hereinafter called the Effective Date) and shall run

until all the Fiscal Year 2017 costs and expenses associated with the Phase 1 Activities are paid
off infull.

UL FUNDING:

A.       The cost ofimplementing the Phase 1 Activities for Fiscal Year 2017 will not exceed
301. 002. 00 The combs are shared as shown in Table 1 below and are based on a

homnu| m of 45% land arem. 45% population ( and 10% equal division

fee ( Exhibit 4) for each PARTY contributing to the Phase 1 Activities.

Cost-ShareTable1 — Phase 1 Activities Fiscal Year 2017



B.  Each PART Y shall pay its share of expenses within 60 days after the Effective Date Funds
collected and riot expended at the conclusion of the Phase 1 Activities shall be refunded to

each PARTY

C  Pursuant to the July 2016 MOU, the City of San Diego expended the total $ 292, 662. 01 in
Fiscal Year 2017 Phase I Activities costs, subject to reimbursement from the other PARTIES

The remaining PARTIES therefore shall reimburse the City of Sari Diego' s costs according to
their respective shares as described in Table 1. less the City of San Diego' s share of the
costs ($ 219, 998, 02)

V.      NON- COMPLIANCE WITH AGREEMENT REQUIREMENTS: Any participant 1othis
AGREEMENT found to be in non- compliance with the conditions of this AGREEMENT shall be

solely liable for any lawfully assessed penalties reSUIting from Such non- compliance- Failure to
comply with AGREEMENT conditions within specified or agreed upon timelines shall constitute
non- compliance with the AGREEMENT

V,       AMENDMENTS TO THE AGREEMENT.- This AGREEMENT may beamended only byconsent
of all the PARTIES No amendment shall be effective unless it is in writing and signed by the duly
authorized representatives ofthe PARTIES

Vi GOVERNING LAW: This AGREEMENT shall begoverned and construed inaccordance with the

laws of the State of California If any provision o/ provisions shall be held to be inva| id, i|| ege|, or
unenforceable, the validity, | ega| iry, and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not in any
way beaffected orimpaired thereby,  | naddition, each PARTY agrees bzcomply with all federal,
uLehe and local laws and ordinances applicable tothe work hr be performed Under the terms of

this AGREEMENT.

VU,      CONSENT AND BREACH NOT WA1VEIR Noterm orprovision hereof shall bedeemed waived

and no breach excuaed, unless such waiver orconsent shall be in writing and signed by the
PARTIES to have waived or consented, Any consent by any PARTY to, orwaiver of, a breach by
the other, whether expressed or imp| ied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver of, orexcuse for
any other different orsubsequent breach,

VUL DISPUTES. The PARTIES agree to mediate any dispute prior to filing suit or prosecuting suit
against the other parties  | nthe event suit isbrought upon this AGREEMENT bzenforce its

terms, each PARTY shall be responsible for their own attorneys' fees and costs,

X.      LEGAL RESPONSIBILITY: Each PARTY iothis AGREEMENT ( 1) shall retain its legal

responsibility to comply with the Order, and ( 2) shall pay all finem, pena| Uea, and costs which may
arise out ofsuch P8RTY' s non- com p| iarice with the Order

X.       APPLICATION OFPRIOR AGREEMENTS: This AGREEMENT constitutes the entire

Agreement between the parties with respect to are cost- sharing for the Phase 1 Activities- all prior
ageementu, neprosentaUons, steiements, negohubons, and undertakings are superseded hereby,
Ixcq_pt for the documents contained at Exhibits 1 2. 3. and 4, which are fully incorporated herein

XL TERMINATION:  termination of participation from \ hisAGREE; NENT by any PARTY shall require

thirty ( 30) days written notice to all PARTIES prior to the effective date of termination,
Termination of this agreement does nN release any PARTY for obligations of the Duic/, nor does
it release the PARTY from their financial responsibilities as outlined in Section U| of this

AGREEMENT Upon hsnninabnn the terminating PARTY shall pay their cost share in full

The remainder of this page inLeniionally left blank]



XU.      ENCUMBRANCE: Byreason nfconstraints inCalifornia law( Streets and Highways Code Sections

114 & 130) and the California Constitution ( Article XVI, section 7), Caltrans encumbers an amount
not to exceed $_________ as its portion o/ the shared cost for the Fiscal Year 2016 Phase |

Activities. Caltrans contribution of encumbered funds pursuant to this section does not limit

Caltrans' liability with respect k` ofuture agreement ( which all PARTIES negotiate ingood taiih).
settlement, or judgment, if such agreement, settlement, or judgment concludes that Caltrans' total

liability exceeds the amount that it initially encumbered in this AGREEMENT,

XIV.     FEDERAL LAW:  This agreement iavoid 0mthe extent that itiminconsistent with applicable law

Portions that are void are severable. In particular this agreement is void to the extent that it

commits funds in violation ofthe federal anti- deficiency actor its state law equivalent,  Emery
effort will be made to avoid construing the terms of this agreement as violations of those laws,
including adjustment of payment terms and schedules by mutual agreement of the parties.

LIST OF EXHIBITS

EXHIBIT 1:      SDRVVQC8. Investigation Order No R9- 2O15- 0058 ( See 8VOL)

EXHIBIT 2.-      Phase 1 Work Plan and the Phase 1 Report( Available Upon Request)

EXHIBIT 3:      July 2016 Memorandum of Understanding ( See Exhibit 0Y<J&)

EXH| BIT 4:      Cost- Share Formula

Blank Signature Pages Excluded



FISCAL YEAR 2016 COSTS

r
EqualPopulation( a)     Land Area( b) TOTAL

Discharger t
Division

OA5 0. 45 0. 1

37, 913.69 37, 913. 69 5 S84, 252-658. 42 27

Task 1: TIVIDL Compliance Land Are EqualPopulation of Total Population Fee of Total Land Area Fee t Share of Total TotalMonitoring Acres of
E Division Fee

City of San Dieao 285 31 9 87- 63% S3322286 13, 131 75. 7162% 28. 706. 79 404, 21 63. 333. 87 75. 171/ o
Citv of Lemon Gro 17, 379 1 797 3 1 T3767%  4, 31134 1      $ 1. 404.21 S7. 741. 18 j 9. 19%

ve 5. 3A%   202363

Citv of La Mesa 18, 456 5 67 904 1 567 9. 0357%  3, 42575 1 404211 79. 00 i 8. 28%2 14) 4 1,  6. 9
U S. Navv 4, 450 1 137%    518 16 182 1. 0495%    397, 89       $ 1. 404. 21 2. 320. 26S 2. 75%
NASSCO,' Port of San Dieoo 0 0. 00%       so. 00 7. 40 1 0. 0427%     16. 18 1, 404. 21 1, 420. 39 1. 69%
Caltrans 0 0, 00%       so-co 482 2. 7793%  1 05374 1 SIA04. 21 1 2. 457. 95 2. 92%

T OT ALS 325, 604 10 0 0()- J.   $ 37 91369 17, 342 100 00% 37 913-69 i 8425.27 84. 252.65 100, 00%

FISCAL YEAR 2017 COSTS

Population( a)     Land Area( b) 
Equal

TOTAL
Division

Discharger
0. 45 0.45 0. 1

131, 697. 90 131, 697.90 29, 266. 20 292.662.00

Compliance Population Land Area EqualTask 1: TMDL
of Total of Total Land Area Fee Share of Total of TotalMonitoring

Population I
Fee Acres) Division Fee

CitY Of San Diego 1 285319 1 8763%       $ 115. 403- 72 1 219.99
1

13 131 7 8. 02 1,     75. 17%
7, 379 i5. 34%  S7. 02933 1, 73 11. 3767% K982.93 S4. 877.70 S26,889. 96 1 9. 19

Citv of La MesE 1 8A 5.     1 5. 67%  7, 4649 1. 567 9. 0357% 11, 899.77T      $ 4. 87T70 S24, 242. 42- 1 828%
U S Navy 4, 450 1, 37%     1821, 799 90 1 0495%  1, 382. 11 S4 877-70 S8, 059. 71 275%
NASSCO/ Port of San Dielao 0 0. 00%      So, nn 7. 40 56. 20       $ 4, 877. 70 S4. 933.90 1 1 69%

Caltrans 0 0. 00%      0 DO 482 2. 7793% 3, 66030 8, 538.00 1 2 92%

0. A. S 325604 100 00%       $ 131, 697 90 17, 342 100. 00% 131, 697. 90 S2926620 292, 662. 00 100. 00%

C, tn', m.- nvestiga-,. ve
9 0 1



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No.       1. H

Mtg. Date June 20,2017ww_
Dept.   Public Works

Item Title:   Acceptance of the Connect Main Street Project ( Contract No. 2017- 16) Segment

I Phase I

Staff Contact:    Mike James, Assistant City Manager/ Public Works Director

Recommendation:

Adopt a Resolution ( Attachment A) accepting the Connect Main Street Project ( Contract No..
2017- 16) Segment I Phase I as complete.

Item Summary:

On March 21, 2017, the City Council awarded a construction contract ( Contract No. 2017- 16) to
New Century Construction for the construction of Connect Main Street Segment I Phase I with a
bid cost of $ 291, 641. 50 and a project budget not to exceed $ 392, 854. 50.  Since the project was

awarded,  there was one change order issued.  The change order included unanticipated

construction activities that are typically encountered for this type of project. The change order was
issued for various unforeseen construction items including additional demolition of a driveway, deep
saw cutting due to unknown concrete pavement depths, additional efforts needed to excavate and
remove extra thick concrete and asphalt, repour of curb, gutter and pop outs, change in stain
concrete manufacturer/ color for better application in existing sidewalk conditions,  removal of

additional damaged concrete, additional cobble placement, and the extension of the irrigation main.

The change order reflects the unforeseen construction items, project deductions and increase of

construction quantities, time and materials by $ 17, 167. 61.  The final project cost was under budget

at a total cost of$ 383, 476. 29 including all consultant related expenditures. On June 14, 2017, staff
completed the final inspection of the improvements and determined the work was completed per

the contract specifications.    Staff recommends that the City Council adopts a Resolution
Attachment A) accepting the work as complete, authorizes the City Manager or designee to file a

notice of completion with the County of San Diego, and authorizes staff to release the retention no
sooner than thirty ( 30) days after the notice of completion has been filed.

Fiscal Impact:

There are two funding sources for this project:  1) $ 279, 500 was allocated as part of the HRPP

grant.  2) $ 103, 976.29 was allocated from the General Reserve Fund.

Environmental Review:

Not subject to review Negative Declaration

Categorical Exemption, Section Mitigated Negative Declaration

Public Information:

None Newsletter article        Notice to property owners within 300 ft.

Notice published in local newspaper Neighborhood meeting

Attachments:

A.  Resolution



Attachment A

RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION OF OF THE LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL ACCEPTING THE CONNECT MAIN

STREET SEGMENT I PHASE I PROJECT ( CONTRACT NO. 2017- 16) AS COMPLETE

WHEREAS, on March 21,  2017, the City Council awarded the construction contract
Contract No. 2017- 16) for the construction of the Connect Main Street Segment I Phase I to New

Century Construction; and

WHEREAS, the contract bid amount was established at $ 291, 641. 50 and a total project

budget not to exceed $ 392, 854. 50; and

WHEREAS, one change order in the total amount of $ 17, 167. 61 increased the original

contract price from $ 291, 641. 50 to $ 308, 809. 11; and

WHEREAS, the final project cost of $ 383, 476. 29 was allocated for this project from the

HRPP grant and General Reserve Fund; and

WHEREAS, on June 14, 2017, New Century Construction completed the scope of work
as defined by the original contract and change orders; and

WHEREAS, City staff inspected all of the improvements and determined that New Century
Construction fulfilled its contractual obligations.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council' of the City of Lemon Grove,
California hereby:

1.  Accepts the work for the construction contract  ( Contract No.  2017- 16)  for the

construction of the Connect Main Street Segment I Phase I as complete; and

2.  Authorizes the City Manager or designee to file a notice of completion with the County
of San Diego; and

3.  Authorizes city staff to release the retention no sooner than thirty ( 30) days after the
notice of completion is filed.



LEMON GROVE ROADWAY LIGHTING DISTRICT

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No.       1. 1

Mtg. Date June 20, 2017

Dept.   Public Works

Item Title:   Approve the Engineer' s Report Detailing Zone L Assessments for Fiscal Year
2017- 2018

Staff Contact:    Stephanie Boyce, Management Analyst

Recommendation:

Adopt a Resolution  ( Attachment A)  approving the engineer' s report detailing Zone L
ssessments for Fiscal Year 2017- 18.

Item Summary:

Zone L is composed of various mid- block areas throughout the City.   The voters in each area

identified as Zone L held an election in June 1997 to impose a $ 12. 00 annual assessment for

single family homes and an annual assessment of $ 12. 00 per each $ 100, 000 valuation for non-

residential zoned parcels in the area. The purpose of the assessment is to pay for operations,
maintenance,  and energy costs of mid- block street lights in each zone.    Since the current

assessment was created in 1997, no assessment increases have been imposed.

On June 13,  2017,  the engineer' s report was completed by Psomas.   Psomas provided the

Lighting District with a detailed list of each zone within the Lighting District and the applicable
service charge ( tax roll). The engineer' s report consists of the assessment roll for the District after
a $ 12. 00 per benefit unit assessment has been applied to each parcel in Zone L. Staff confirmed

through an internal quality assurance check that the report is accurate.  Copies of the engineer' s

report and tax roll are available for review at the District Engineer' s office.   The report must be

certified and the tax roll filed with the County of San Diego by August 10, 2017 to be included in the
FY 2017- 18 property tax statements.

Staff recommends that the Board of Directors adopt a Resolution ( Attachment A) approving the
engineer' s report and directs the District Clerk to file the required certification document with the

San Diego County Auditor and Controller on or before August 10, 2017.

Fiscal Impact:

The itemized roll lists 5, 245 parcels, 7, 318. 28 benefit units, and a total assessment of$ 87, 819. 36.

Environmental Review:

Not subject to review Negative Declaration

Categorical Exemption, Section Mitigated Negative Declaration

Public Information:

None Newsletter article Notice to property owners within 300 ft.

Notice published in local newspaper El Neighborhood meeting

Attachments:

A.  Resolution

1 u.



Attachment A

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-

RESOLUTION OF THE LEMON GROVE ROADWAY LIGHTING DISTRICT APPROVING THE
ENGINEER' S REPORT REGARDING THE ZONE L CHARGES FOR FISCAL

YEAR 2017- 2018

WHEREAS, on June 17,  1997 the Board of Directors of the Lemon Grove Roadway
Lighting District adopted Resolution No. 102 reciting the facts of an election held in the District
on June 3, 1997, declaring the results of said election and levying the annual assessment; and

WHEREAS, the engineer' s report for the Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District on file
with the Clerk of the Board gives a full and detailed description of the improvements, the
boundaries of the Assessment District and the two zones therein,  and the proposed

assessments upon assessable lots and parcels of land within the District.

NOW,  THEREFORE,  BE IT RESOLVED that the Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting
District Board of Directors of the City of Lemon Grove, California hereby:

1.  Approves, affirms and adopts the engineer' s report, which contains every fee and
charge set forth; and

2.   Directs the Clerk of the Board to file an approved, affirmed, and adopted copy of the
engineer' s report and a statement endorsing the engineer' s report with the County of
San Diego Auditor and Controller on or before August 10, 2017.



LEMON GROVE SANITATION DISTRICT

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No.      ... 1. J___
Mtg. Date W

June 20, 2017............

Dept.       _... Public Works

Item Title:   Approve the Engineer' s Report Detailing Sewer Service Charges for Fiscal Year
2017- 2018:

Staff Contact:    Stephanie Boyce, Management Analyst

Recommendation:

Adopt a Resolution ( Attachment A) approving the engineer' s report detailing sewer service
charges for Fiscal Year 2017- 18.

Item Summary:

On May 2, 2017 the Sanitation District Board adopted Ordinance No. 28, which established the
annual sewer service charges for Fiscal Year 2017- 2018  ( FY 2017- 18).  The service charge

established for FY 2017- 18 is $ 584. 98 per Equivalent Dwelling Unit ( EDU.)

On June 13, 2017, Psomas prepared an engineer's report and provided a detailed list of each
parcel within the Sanitation District with the applicable service charge ( tax roll).  Staff confirmed,

through an internal quality assurance check, that the report and tax roll are accurate.  Copies of the
engineer' s report and tax roll are available for viewing at the District Engineer' s office.  A letter

certifying that all assessments are in compliance with Article XIII C and D of the Constitution of the
State of California and that the 6, 820 parcels equaling $ 6, 356, 412. 86 are subject to the Fixed

Special Assessment, must be filed with the San Diego County Auditor and Controller by August 10,
2017 in order to be included in the FY 2017- 18 property tax statements.

Staff recommends that the Board of Directors adopt a Resolution ( Attachment A) approving the
engineer' s report and direct the District Clerk to file the required certification document with the

San Diego County Auditor and Controller on or before August 10, 2017.

Fiscal Impact:

The itemized roll list 6, 820 parcels, 10, 866. 04 EDUs, and a total assessment of $6, 356,412. 86.

Environmental Review:

Not subject to review Negative Declaration

Categorical Exemption, Section Mitigated Negative Declaration

Public Information:

None Newsletter article Notice to property owners within 300 ft.

Notice published in local newspaper Neighborhood meeting

Attachments:

A.  Resolution

1



Attachment A

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SANITATION DISTRICT

APPROVING THE ENGINEER' S REPORT REGARDING THE SEWER SERVICE CHARGES
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017- 2018

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 5473 of the Health and Safety code, the Board has
determined that the sewer service charges for Fiscal Year 2017- 18 shall be collected on the tax

roll in the same manner, and by the same persons, and at the same time as, together with and
not separately from the general taxes and has caused to be prepared and filed with the District
Clerk a written engineer's report containing a description of each parcel of property receiving
service from the Sanitation District and the amount of charges for each parcel for the Fiscal

Year 2017- 18 computed in conformity with the charges prescribed by the applicable Resolution
of the District; and

WHEREAS, on May 2, 2017 the Sanitation District Board adopted Ordinance No. 28,
which established the annual sewer service charges for Fiscal Year 2017- 2018; and

WHEREAS,  the service charge established for Fiscal Year 2017- 18 is $ 584. 98 per

Equivalent Dwelling Unit; and:

WHEREAS, such report was prepared by Psomas and filed with the District Engineer.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Lemon Grove Sanitation District Board

of Directors of the City of Lemon Grove, California hereby:

1.  Approves, affirms and adopts the engineer' s report, which contains every fee and
charge set forth; and

2.   Directs the Clerk of the Board to file an approved, affirmed, and adopted copy of the

engineer' s report and a statement endorsing the engineer' s report with the County of
San Diego Auditor and Controller on or before August 10, 2017.



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL AND ROADWAY LIGHTING DISTRICT

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No.       1. K

Mtg. Date _ June 20,_201„7mmmmm.p
Dept.   Public Works

Item Title:    Contract Extension for Street Light Maintenance and Repairs

Staff Contact:    Stephanie Boyce, Management Analyst

Recommendation:

Adopt a Resolution ( Attachment A) authorizing a one-year extension of the existing contract
between the Lemon Grove Lighting District and CTE, Inc. for street light maintenance and
repairs.

Item Summary:

The City and Roadway Lighting District contracts with CTE, Inc. for street light maintenance and
repairs as part of a four- city consortium ( EI Cajon, La Mesa, Lemon Grove, and Santee).   The

contract became effective for Fiscal Year 2013- 14 when it was approved on July 2,  2013 by
Resolution No. 158.  The contract included the option to extend on an annual basis through June

30, 2018 with adjustments in the contract unit prices based on the consumer price index ( CPI) not

to exceed CPI or 5 percent whichever amount is less. As reported in March 2017 by the United
States Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor and Statistics, the CPI for All Urban Consumers in

the San Diego area increased by 2. 4 percent during the prior 12 months.

CTE, Inc. has completed the first four years of the contract and requested a one- year contract

extension and a 2 percent increase pursuant to the CPI for San Diego. Representatives from the

other three city consortium members, in agreement with City staff, agreed with the requested term
of the contract extension.

Staff recommends that the City Council and Roadway Lighting District Board authorize the one-
year extension of the CTE, Inc. contract for street light maintenance and repairs for Fiscal Year

2017- 18 in an amount not to exceed $ 11, 600.

Fiscal Impact:

Sufficient funds for said contract were allocated in the General and Local Benefit Lighting Fund
Budget for FY 2017- 18.

Environmental Review:

Not subject to review Negative Declaration

Categorical Exemption, Section Mitigated Negative Declaration

Public Information:

None Newsletter article Notice to property owners within 300 ft.

Notice published in local newspaper Neighborhood meeting

Attachments:

A.  Resolution

m



Attachment A

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE AND THE BOARD

OF DIRECTORS OF THE LEMON GROVE LIGHTING DISTRICT AUTHORIZING A ONE-

YEAR EXTENSION OF THE EXISTING CONTRACT BETWEEN THE CITY AND CTE, INC.

FOR STREET LIGHT MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017- 2018

WHEREAS, the cities of EI Cajon, La Mesa, Lemon Grove and Santee jointly contracted
with CTE, Inc. for street light maintenance and repair; and

WHEREAS, the contract with CTE, Inc. began on August 1, 2013; and

WHEREAS,  CTE,  Inc.  requested a one- year extension to the contract with a rate

increase of 2 percent pursuant to the CPI adjustment for the Pacific Cities and San Diego; and

WHEREAS,  the cities of EI Cajon,  La Mesa,  Lemon Grove and Santee jointly
recommended that the contract be extended for one year; and

WHEREAS, the Lemon Grove City Council and Roadway Lighting District Board finds it
in the public interest that a contract for said services be extended and the rate increase be

accepted.

NOW,  THEREFORE,  BE IT RESOLVED that the Lemon Grove City Council and
Lighting District Board hereby:

1.  Authorizes a one-year extension ( Exhibit 1) commencing July 1, 2017 of the existing
contract ( Exhibit 2) between the City of Lemon Grove and CTE, Inc. for street light
maintenance and repair; and

2.  Accepts the 2 percent rate increase for the Fiscal Year 2017- 2018.



CITY OF LEMON

wa> faxrr r
f'      

V° IppJV14` t` I" IV Q.' t"/ llt..' La t ' JakV" 1," 1CIr,:' V' II;;

June 21, 2017

William Clark

Clark Telecom& Electric

9991 Possum Creek Lane

EI Cajon, CA 92021

SUBJECT: Street Light Maintenance and Emergency Repair Contract Renewal for Fiscal Year 2017- 2018

On June 20, 2017, the Lemon Grove City Council adopted Resolutions No. 2017-      that approved a

one year Street Light Maintenance Contract extension with a 2 percent increase.

Please acknowledge receipt of this notification by signing below and returning this document within 7
calendar days of your receipt.

If you have any questions or need additional information, please call me at 619- 825- 3811.

Sincerely,

Stephanie Boyce

Management Analyst

CLARK TELECOM AND ELECTRIC CITY OF LEMON GROVE

William Clark, President Lydia Romero, City Manager/ Executive Director

I 1111- 1-- 1......................................................... ..........

Date Date

12121hmrin trcet: 1IIemonC11roce' ICraViI` onvasa91945- 1705

6V4J i12,`.J. ILII" Fix. M9 1M25 3818" www we lcnaaru7grovcca k c, vi

w5_,



Attachment A - Exhibit 2

CITY OF LEMON GROVE Hii- A rUniaee On rvM

Public Works Engineering Department

August 1, 2013

Reggie Clark

Contracts Manager

Clark Telecom and Electric, Inc.

9747 Vine Street

Lakeside, CA 92040

Subject:      Notice to Proceed

Mreet Lighting Maintenance and Repair Contract- Contract No. 201309

Dear Mr. Clark°

In accordance with the terms of the above referenced contract you are hereby authorized to

commence work beginning on August 1, 2013. Please submit a copy of your liability insurance.

The initial term of this contract will expire on July 31, 2014 with the option to renew each year
for four years.  We look forward to a mutually beneficial working relationship throughout the
duration of this contract.

I will be involved with the day- to- day implementation of the contract and I can be reached at
619- 825- 3811 or itojce@ I em ony rove. ca. Kov.

Sincerely,

Stephanie Boyce

Engineering Tech III

34 AiWiii Sw°    I vi nni ii V, roye Aliftmlw 911945- 1011)

09 825. M0 I AX 6 11") 82 5 38118 co" U' s

T



Attachment A - Exhibit 2

COOT RACT( Page I of 7)

STREETLIGHTING MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS( CONTRACT NO. 2013- 09)

THIS CONTRACT, made and entered into on the date of the last Signature, by and between the
Lei-non Grove Roadway Lighting District, Lemon Grove, California, herein after designated as
the " Lighting District", and Clark Telecom and Electric, Inc. hereinafter designated as the
Contractor".

WITNESSETHthat the parties hereto do mutually agree as follows:

I For and in consideration of the payments and agreements hereinafter mentioned to be

made and performed by the City, the Contractor agrees with the City to furnish all
materials and labor for the Street Lighting Maintenance and Repairs Contract ( Contract
no. 2013- 09), and to perform and complete in a good and workmanlike manner all the
work pertaining thereto shown on the plans and specifications therefore, to furnish at his

own proper cost and expense all tools, equipment, labor and materials necessary
therefore; arid to do everything required by this agreement and the said plans and
specifications.

For furnishing all said materials and labor, tools and equipment, and doing all the work
contemplated and embraced in this Contract, also for all loss and damage arising out of
the nature of the work aforesaid, or from the action of the elements, or From any
unforeseen difficulties which may arise or be encountered in the prosecution of the work
until its acceptance by the City and for all risks of every description connected with the
work; also, for all expenses incurred by or in consequence of the suspension or
discontinuance of work, except such as in said specifications are expressly stipulated to
be borne by the City and for well and faithfully completing the work and the whole
thereof, in the manner shown and described in the said plans and specifications, the City
will pay and the Contractor shall receive in full compensation therefore the ten thousand

two hundred seventy- five dollars and eight cents ($ 10, 275. 80).

I.      The City hereby promises and agrees to employ, and does hereby employ said Contractor
to provide the materials and to do the work according to the terms and conditions herein
contained and referred to for die price aforesaid and hereby conditions set forth in the
specification; and the said parties for themselves, then• heirs, executors, administrators,

successors and assigns, do hereby agree to the full performance of the covenants herein
contained,

4 The Notice Inviting Bids, Instructions To Bidders, Bid Forms, Agreement and Bond
Forms, Construction Administration Forms, Completion of the Project Forms, General
Requirements and General Conditions, Drawings, Plans and Specifications, Addenda,
Allowances,  City/ District Resolutions,  and all amendments thereof,  are hereby
incorporated in and made part of this Contract.



Attachment A - Exhibit 2

CONTRACT( Page 2 of 7)

STREET LIGHTING MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS( CONTRACT NO. 2013- 09)

5.      - f'he City, the City' s representative, City Consultants and authorized volunteers shall not
be answerable or accountable in any manner for any loss or damage that may happen to
the work or any part thereof, or for any of the materials or other things used or employed
in perfori-ning the work, of for injury or damage to any person or persons, either workers,
employees of Contractor or its subcontractors or the public, or for damage to adjoining or

other property, from any cause whatsoever arising out of or in connection with the
performance of the work. The Conti- actor shall be responsible for any damage or injury to
any person or property resulting from defects Or obstructions or from any cause
whatsoever arising out of or in connection with the performance of the work, provided,
however, that the Contractor shall not be liable for the sole established negligence, willful
misconduct or active negligence of the City, its representatives, employees, agents and
authorized volunteers who are directly responsible to the City.

a.      Contractor shall indemnify the City, City Council, City officials, City employees,
City representatives, and authorized volunteers against and will hold and save
them and each of them harmless from any and all actions, claims, damages to
persons or property, penalties, obligations or liabilities that may be asserted or
claimed by any person, firm, entity, corporation, political subdivision or other
organization arising out of or in connection with the work, operation or activities
of Contractor, its agents, employees, subcontractors or invitees, provided for
herein, whether or not there is concurrent passive or active negligence on the part
of the City, City Council, City officials, City employees, City representatives, and
authorized volunteers, but excluding such actions, claims, damages to persons or
property penalties, obligations or liabilities arising from the sole established
negligence, willful misconduct or active negligence of the City, City Council,
City officials, City employees, City representatives, authorized volunteers, or
those who are directly responsible to them; and in connection therewith:

1)      Contractor will tlefemi i;iny uciion or actions filed in connection with any
of said claims,      obligations or liabilities and will pay

all costs and ii0odilip, attorney' s fees incurred in connection
therewith.

11)     Contractor will promptly pay any judgment rendered against Contractor,
the City,   City Council,   City officials,  City employees,  City
representatives, and authorized Volunteers covering such claims, damages,
penalties, obligations and liabilities arising Out of or in connection with
such work,  operations,  or activities of Contractor hereunder and

Contractor agrees to save and hold the City, City Council, City officials,
City employees, City representatives, and authorized volunteers harmless
there from.



CONTRACT( Page 3 of 7)

STLiEE T LIGHT NG MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS( CONTRACT NO, 2013- 09)

l'lil lint dre event clic City, t"" it,ya t ouareil t ily o iicasils, City a• r iplar aws., r' ity
o: presentafive5, , and . aaalhiari ed vcltattCed6 We noldc, ar fl,,[Ny gra r. rary Orttr.arr
Of luraiccaaeclrrapt filed Or 1prcasccala^dfiS, rslaa t p" wrnprKaa tt'ar Naas " rr ralt al~aruriaf,,, err

ot'hcr rl4aiiai t as irinpry arse of or ill connevoiort with dic: work, or oiiersalimj ago°
tc uvitres i:rfl Cont.rraoor l°rcr°c:pltralrrr°ro 1 osrtr°raeltar agovts taw flays to If c t.,"IN,
City t.; ouncal fiil y c.wfllcai, als, Cj,ty aetriplcay("T's, Ch,s rw• l ac sc: tat, rtiv r; p , and
audlorizrWd voluroeerw any aasr{ l sail c osis and a, cprois„c:s aocurred by tltaa City?

fly Council, t..' it,y cul°lic6 la,, t° ity werarialoyrcw,•,, Cky rtj)n rcrit, arivc, r, , a. n1;.l
atrldwrized voluntecrs ira Such ricticaar of prracr°ascclara, yi tusf; ctlres°  a itl'i
a° e' at* iwaaa9lalee° itCrwrraew e s Nes,cas.

IV)    The City may retain, to the extent it deems necessary, the money due to
the Contractor under and by virtue of the Contract [ Documents until
disposition has been made of such actions or claims for damages as
specified herein above.

G,      Clainis, disputes and other matters in question between the parties to this Contract,
arising out of or relating to this Contract or the breach thereof, may be decided brr
arbitration ifboth parties to this Contract consent in accordance with the rules of the
Aincric•atn ryrlaitrautrcn Assocktdoati tl àk"ra'a obminillg onle, 6 Ilse portiesrtt.rawally spree

tlaa: a" wascu. h9ru tttlaitu' a. itirwra rati. arrag catrt cr1" csr rtd acing Ica this t•"ontract, Sl lill by

cc ra calia.lokicrar,  oinela or in vrry wile°r anranne^r, , any eadditk:m al persora irM ,',1 I'lMl•y taa thin
Contract oxcept by written werarsent contairling it, specifics to ttai, s Conrroo arld

szipncd by G t tfq l' NrAC 1` 00, tw° l' q y, and any other Iia Mita SoUght tca he joined  ( Any
tlwotssc^m to arhrtratiort inn lving Garr rtddiBionasl person Or pCtsa`wrts, shall not cm nstilo1v
consent ofany dispute not described therein or with any person not named or described
therein.) This agreement to arbitrate and any agreement to arbitrate with an additional
person or persons duly consented to by the parties to this Contract shall be specifically
enforceable under the prevailing arbitration law.

Notice of the demand for arbitration is to be filed in writing with the other party to this
Contract and with the American Arbitration Association. The demand is to be made
vVirhirt to rc, rsinwit"ric tom, aaftet the cMh"dal,, d'i putc ol" eatlwr rt taar r trs has aaru. aettr. ht

lana e°vero is tltce dieanrrnd for rarbkriation to be in" I( e a flat thi: crate " vfien aarslitrifimt csl, legal
or equit, tblc• prrwocrhnl, c, baa, d rssti . awh cclaann„ dkiplite°• or 101h ra' rtrrtt° r in gtte•, Aion would

bo lamed by the ripprl. ie, rbfc Sumac of hrnk atlons. ` I fie: award rcnde^red by rhe arlsitrtalors
0 all lie° 11trcal aasid judytri va lu ay be entccrs^•d asp on it rit ace„ i"arr. lruurcac wvitli , apl slra chile lttww ir' u
asti3° cowl, hwaviral jurischc tion the°rezcif

7.      The Contractor agrees to comply with all Local, State and Federal regulations and with
all applicable standards, orders, or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act of

1970( 42 U. S. C. 1857 et seq.) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act( 33 U. S. C.
1251 et seq.) as amended.



Attachment A - Exhibit 2

CONTRACT( Page 4 of 7)

STREET LIGHTING MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS( CONTRACT NO. 2013- 09)

8.      If any party brings a suit or action against the other party arising from any breach of any
of the covenants or agreements or any inaccuracies in any of' the representations and
warranties on the part of the other party arising out of this Agreement, then in that event,
the prevailing party in such action or dispute, whether by final judgment or out- of-court
settlement, shall be entitled to have and recover of and from the other party all costs and

expenses of suit, including attorneys fees.

9 Each and every provision of law and clause required to be inserted in this Contract shall
be deemed to be inserted herein and this Contract shall be read and enforced as though it
were included herein, and if through mistake or otherwise any such provision is not
inserted or is not inserted correctly, then upon application of either party the Contract
shall forthwith be physically amended to make such insertion or correction.

10.    In accordance with Government Code, Section 8546. 7, records of both the City and the
Contractor shall be subject to examination and audit for a period of three ( 3) years after
final payment.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Contract to be executed in

three counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original the day and year first above
written.

CONTRACTOR,
r

Ey ... ..... 

Title:  Vt

Date:  n

By: .................     

Title

Date

Federal ID Number:

CITY:

By:

Title: Executive Director, Lemon Grove Roadway LiThflnp District.

LDate-      - 7 - (- 13ate: ....._................. ............     



CONTRACT( Page 5 of 7)

STREET LIGHTING MAINTENANCE ANIS REPAIRS( CONTRACTNO. 2013- 09)

uttN     3a  ° t N

w.   

m

Na

ft, City roN` Nu   :. Lemon u awr

Notaries sek.noMedga: aa entt of execution by all PRINCIPALS OF CONTRACTOR'lC' CuR shaaU 1w,

aanttaac ied)

12-



CONTRACT( Mage 6 of 7)

STREET LIGHTING MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS( CONTRACT NO. 2013®09)

CORPORATE CERTIFICATE

1,    &],%', hy,  C jcertify that 1 am tCt C '' W.. of the

Corporation named as Contractor in the foregoing Contract; that L'   F  .     _  who signed

said contract on behalf of the Contractor, was then r , t M vey  o" said Corporation; that said
contract was duly signed for and in behalf of said Corporation by authority of its governing body
and is within the scope of its corporate powers.

Signed,      

Title,..   .!_  .......

Corporate Seal:

13-



CONTRACT( Page 7 of 7)

STRE,ET LIGHTING MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS( CONTRACT N  . 2013- 0))

PARTNERSHIP CERTIFICATE

STATE Of a

ss

COUNTY OF
e........".

i

On thisday of 1-  u   , 201'3__,before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public

in and for said County and State, persVnally appeared

m,,,..(
Notary Sea])

Known to me to be      Dve             
jai...  me than

suof
the parfl rs   " the partnersiaip

that executed the within inste+.tNtren(, and [ ckjjt tcdt„,   partnership executed the

same.

u   

Signature     ..:..:.

Name( Type or Print):

Notary Public in and for said County and State)

My Commission expires:-___

14-



Exhibit

CALIFORNIA ALL- PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENTCIVIL CODE§ 11a®

g,° mrvns .+ i.' m' ei, wrk? ugVM' r ay" eau: g'?! nµt.. r+". warn. 7,rt" d.:+u' C•'; SSa,,`, r«. a: m'   ,'X.^, ro" A.xiw, r.R. ra.. k';C,,""ar. iw rF. r s' Cr, u;5, rt, iv, ru; a,u   +x State

of Californiat

On

before r ....  

before

me 11      ®1 _ e4 7
DaEe Her Insert Narner amt THIIe of Nee 0 personally

appeared A11± 0_   --:r, z pu,
rr¢ vt ri ,I cgrgt who

proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence
to be the person,(.,whose name bare subscribed

to the within instrument and acknowledged 114 to
me that she/ they executed the same in er/

their authorized capacity and that by jIlDher/
their signature on the instrument the personal', 

or the entity upon behalf of which the person
acted, executed the instrument.      P fg7-  

QVj,,  ZION CO PHER I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the cofittf  
f '(0 2)    laws of the State of California that the foregoing h+

ftURY Ft m- CAtafaw paragraph is true and correct. tw
9II6atY wrr ttt

aaaua. i r.    24Ifit WITNESS
m trend and official fficialseal. pSignature:      

u dC

Mam V dumBaso> ab°ua' wl', 78: u &      OPTIONAL

Though

the Information below is not required by lair, it may lxoveQ v bR ax Mo trr gvr r .r relyl' ng on the document and
could prevent fraudulent removal and reattachment of this form to another document Description

of Attached Document Olooeumont

Date o+„ 

f ember

at gv, r

Si

nets Other Than Named NamedA Ca

acct ( lesI Claimed by Signer( s)Signer'
sName: r      Signer'

s Name:f

fLeCorporate
Otficeq- •T01c( t>).      17 Corporate Officer—Titles) i

I individual Individual Partner—

Limited ' General a ruia rarro•r1-1 Partner—n Limited General r,,,r 9 iwu7rr n Attorney

in Fact Attorney in Fact rL

I Trustee Trustee Guardian

or Conservatorf- 1 Guardian or Conservator 44    

Other: C.- 1 Other: m

Signer

tSi sentm    "'"""  `"   Luatilrcvu Il;ib! t¢ i2- r „¢ruTtnrutf -------- 9Is Repre I
ee..

024YOr,

7 Im6' t'^7CM. ubmXaQaftoti Qq 1 E- aOaCP. NS7dQlaVARYpfl- aaF-tl-L07r,- R; G77P Iru ti 90 15-



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No.       11

Mtg. Date June 20 2017
Dept.   Public Works,

Item Title:    Five Year Lease Agreement with the Lemon Grove Historical Society for the
Use of the H. Lee House Located at 3205 Olive Street

Staff Contact:    Mike James, Assistant City Manager/ Public Works Director

Recommendation:

Adopt a Resolution ( Attachment B) approving a five year lease agreement ( Attachment B —
Exhibit 1) with the Lemon Grove Historical Society for the use of the H. Lee House located at
3205 Olive Street.

Item Summary:

Since 2005, the City and the Lemon Grove Historical Society ( Historical Society) entered into a
one- year lease agreement allowing the Historical Society to perform restoration work and repairs to
the H. Lee House ( Lee House).   In 2007, all restoration work was completed and the City and
Historical Society agreed to no fee lease agreement to allow the Historical Society to act as
caretakers for the property and conduct community special events for the residents of Lemon
Grove in addition to their prior events that included concerts,  poetry readings,  weddings and

fundraising activities.

As shown in draft agreement, the Historical Society will continue to pay all utility costs and be
responsible for all maintenance and repairs to the property.  The Historical Society will continue to
provide the City with all required certificates of insurance as well as an annual report to City staff
about the operations and uses of the property.

Fiscal Impact:

The City will continue to receive $ 100. 00 per event rental that the Historical Society hosts at the H.
Lee House.  In FY 2017- 2018, the City received approximately $ 400. 00.

Environmental Review:

Not subject to review Negative Declaration

Categorical Exemption, Section Ell Mitigated Negative Declaration

Public Information:

None Newsletter article Notice to property owners within 300 ft.

Notice published in local newspaper Neighborhood meeting

Attachments:

A.  Resolution



Attachment A

RESOLUTION NO. 2017 -

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA

APPROVING A FIVE YEAR LEASE AGREEMENT WITH THE LEMON GROVE HISTORICAL

SOCIETY FOR THE USE OF THE H. LEE HOUSE LOCATED AT 3205 OLIVE STREET.

WHEREAS, the City of Lemon Grove owns the property and building located at 3205
Olive Street, Lemon Grove, California known as the H. Lee House; and

WHEREAS, in 2005, the City and Lemon Grove Historical Society entered in multiple
agreements that allowed the Lemon Grove Historical Society to perform restoration work and
repairs to the H. Lee House; and

WHEREAS, in 2007, the City and Lemon Grove Historical Society formulated a no fee
lease agreement that allowed the Lemon Grove Historical Society to continue to utilize and
maintain the H. Lee House; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove believes that the leasing of the
H.  Lee House to the Lemon Grove Historical Society for special event and community event
usage is the most beneficial use of the property to the residents of Lemon Grove.

NOW, THEREFORE,  BE IT RESOLVED that the. City Council of the City of Lemon
Grove, California hereby:

1.  Approves a five year lease agreement with the Lemon Grove Historical Society for
the use of the H. Lee House located at 3205 Olive Street not exceed June 30, 2022;

and

2.   Directs the City Manager or her designee to manage and execute all documents
necessary to facilitate this lease agreement.

3-



Attachment A — Exhibit 1

Property and Event Use Agreement
for the H. Lee House

The parties to this Agreement are the City of Lemon Grove hereinafter referred to as the " City"
and the Lemon Grove Historical Society,  a California 501( c)( 3)  nonprofit corporation,  and

hereinafter referred to as " Society."

Recitals:

1.   City owns certain real property commonly described as 3205 Olive Street, Lemon Grove,
California ( hereinafter, the " Property").

2.  The City is willing to provide access to the Society, in exchange for Society acting as
caretakers, hosting community events at the H.  Lee House ( Lee), all at the Society' s
sole expense.

Now, therefore, it is hereby agreed as follows:

1.  Term of Agreement

This agreement shall commence on July 1, 2017 and shall continue through June 30,
2022, unless sooner canceled pursuant to Section 18 or 19 hereof.

2.   Use of Facility

Society is granted use of the Lee to perform maintenance and repairs at the Society' s
sole expense.   No one under the age of eighteen ( 18) is allowed to perform interior

restoration work or repairs on the Lee and anyone under that age entering the Lee
during restoration work or repairs must be accompanied by their respective parent( s)/ or
legal guardian( s).

Society is also granted use of the Lee for Society sponsored community events; this may
include,  but not be limited to,  weddings,  concerts and poetry readings.  Society
sponsored community events are at the Society' s sole expense, and the Society may
charge a fee to the public for such events.  Anyone who is attending a community event
at the Lee and who is under the age of eighteen ( 18) must be accompanied by their
respective parent( s)/ or legal guardian( s).

3.   Fee for Use:

The City agrees to not charge any fee to the Society for said use of the Lee.   The

Society will continue to provide a flat fee to the City of$ 100. 00 for each rental that that is
held at the Lee to include the attached open gazebo space.

4.   Report to be Provided

On or before June 30, of each year the Society shall submit to the City a written report of
all public events held along with restoration work in Section 3 completed at the Lee
during the term of this agreement, including any additional work approved by the City
Manager.

5.   Maintenance

Society shall provide interior maintenance of the Lee sufficient to maintain its current
condition.

6.  Access to Second Level

Access to the second level of the Lee shall be restricted to the general public and shall

only be made available to those performing repairs in the stairway and second level of
the Lee. City shall provide a barrier prohibiting general public access to the stairway and

5-



Attachment A — Exhibit 1

second level. Society shall maintain said barrier and ensure that the general public does
not have access to the stairway and second level during events at the Lee.

7.   Retention of Improvements

All structures, fixtures and improvements whether heretofore or hereinafter installed or

erected by Society,  shall,  upon the expiration of this Agreement or any extension
thereof, become the property of the City and shall not be removed from the Lee.

8.  Alcohol Use

Society must request in writing the use of alcoholic beverages at the Lee.   Written

requests are sent to the attention of the City' s Community Services Superintendent.
Requests to use alcoholic beverages are reviewed by the Community Services
Superintendent and,  if approved,  a permit may be issued for the date requested by
Society.  The City reserves the right to place restrictions on the use of alcoholic
beverages in accordance with State Law, City Code and Policy.

9.   Utilities

Historical Society shall pay all utilities for the term of this agreement.  In instances when

there is a significant and unforeseen cost related to any utility billing at the Lee, the City
may, at the sole discretion of the City, assist with funding a portion or all of the utility
cost.

10. Right of Inspection

City shall have the right to enter the Lee for the purpose of viewing and ascertaining the
condition of the property, to protect its interests in the Lee, and to inspect the operations
conducted within at any time.

11. Discrimination

Society shall not, for any reason, discriminate against any person because of race, sex,
age, creed, color, disability or national origin.

12. Assignment

Society shall not assign this Agreement, or any interest therein, or any part thereof; or
any right or privilege appurtenant thereto or suffer any other person ( the agents, officers
and employees of City excepted) to occupy or use the said Lee except as consistent
with the purpose of the Agreement, without the prior written consent of the City Council
of the City of Lemon Grove.  Consent to one assignment, occupation or use by any other
person shall not be deemed to be a consent to any subsequent assignment, occupation
or use by another person.  Any such assignment without such consent shall be void and
shall, at the option of City, terminate this Agreement.  This Agreement shall not, nor shall

any interest therein be assignable; by- oper-ation- of- law,- and- If- such- an- assignment- is-      --
made, the City may terminate this Agreement, at its option.

13. Compliance with Law

Society shall, at its sole cost and expense, comply and secure compliance with all the
laws, ordinances and requirements of all municipal, county, state and federal authorities
now in force,  or which may herein after be in force,  pertaining to the Lee,  or the
operations conducted thereon, and shall faithfully observe, and secure observance with,
in the use of the Lee, all municipal and county ordinances and state and federal statutes
now in force or which may hereinafter be in force, and shall pay before delinquency all
taxes, assessments, and fees assessed or levied upon Society or the Lee by reason of
any buildings, structures, machines, appliances or other improvements of any nature

g. WW



Attachment A - Exhibit 1

whatsoever, erected, installed or maintained by Society or by any reason of the business
or other activities of Society upon or in connection with the Lee.  Society shall comply
with all rules or regulations of the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove or the City
Manager applicable to the Lee.  The judgment of any court of competent jurisdiction, or
the admission of Society or any assignee in any action or proceeding against them, or
any of them, whether the City be a party thereto, or not, that Society or assignee has
violated any such regulations,  ordinance,  or statute in the use of the Lee shall be
conclusive of that fact as between City and Society.

14. Hold Harmless

City, its agents, officers and employees, shall not be, nor be held liable, for any claims,
liabilities, penalties, fines or for any damage to the goods, properties or effects of Society
or any of Society representatives,  agents,  employees,  guests,  licensees,  invitees,

patrons or clientele or of any other persons whatsoever, nor for personal injuries to, or
deaths of them,  or any of them,  whether caused by or resulting from any acts or
omission of Society or any act or omission of any person or from any defect in any part
arising out of the Society' s use of the Property or the Lee.

Society agrees to protect, defend, indemnify and hold harmless City, its officers, agents
and employees from any and all liability, claims, suits, liens and judgments, of whatever
nature,  including injury to any person, arising from performance or failure to perform
obligations of this Agreement caused or claimed to be caused by Society, its agents or
employees.   Society agrees it is its duty to defend even if the claim appears without
merit.

15. Employee Insurance

Society does not intend to have any employees.  Should it hire any person as an

employee, Society shall obtain Workers' Compensation Insurance in accordance with
State law and shall provide City with a certificate of insurance as specified in Section 17
hereof.

16. Volunteer Insurance

Volunteers -- All volunteers of Society shall be covered by Volunteer Accident Insurance
with a medical indemnity of not less than $ 10, 000.  Society shall provide a certificate of
insurance in the form and as required by Section 17 hereof.

17. Liability Insurance

Society agrees to secure and maintain commercial general liability and volunteer
insurance with an insurance carrier satisfactory to City to protect against loss from
liability imposed by law for damages on account of bodily injury, including death resulting
there from, suffered or alleged to be suffered by any person or persons whatsoever
resulting directly or indirectly from any act or activities of Society or any person, including
volunteers for Society or under Society' s control or direction and also to protect against
loss from liability imposed by law for damages to any property of any person caused
directly or indirectly by or from acts for activities under Society' s

control or direction.  Such public liability and property damage insurance shall be primary
insurance and maintained in full force and effect during the entire term of this Agreement
in the amount of not less than $ 1, 000, 000 for combined single limit or single occurrence

and not less than $ 3, 000, 000 per annual aggregate if an aggregate is applicable.  Proof

of such insurance shall be filed as required by Section 17 with City by Society prior to
conducting any activities under this Agreement, and shall be in a form satisfactory to the
City Attorney.

T



Attachment A — Exhibit 1

18. Certificate of Insurance

The commercial general liability policy required and volunteer insurance policy herein
shall name the City as an additional insured.   A certificate of insurance shall be provided

for each policy required herein and have a non-cancellation without thirty (30) day notice
to City clause and shall provide that copies of all cancellation notices shall be sent to the
Risk Manager.   All liability insurance policies shall be primary insurance and shall be
filed with the Risk Manager.    Provisions of this paragraph as to maintenance of

insurance shall not be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which Society held
responsible for the payment of damages to persons or property resulting from its
activities or the activities of any person or persons for which it is otherwise responsible.

19. Termination after Notice for Failure to Comply with Agreement

Should City determine that Society appears to be in violation of the Agreement ( except
for violations specified in Section 19 herein) it shall give Society thirty ( 30) day notice of
intent to terminate at the address specified in Section 20 hereof and identify the
perceived violations.  If said violations are not corrected within that time, this Agreement
shall be then forthwith terminated.

20. Termination in the Interest of the Public Health, Safety and Welfare

The City may terminate this Agreement without notice and cause the Lee to be
immediately vacated in the following instances.

a.  The City finds that the operation of Society at the Lee poses a threat to the public
health, safety or welfare.

b.  The Society fails to keep the insurance required by this contract in full force and
effect.

c.   The Society is placed in receivership or bankruptcy or is determined to be
insolvent.

21. Notices to Parties

Notices to the respective parties shall be hand- delivered or mailed in the State of
California by First Class Mail to:

For-     City of Lemon Grove, Attention:  City Manager
3232 Main Street

Lemon Grove, CA 91945

For:     Lemon Grove Historical Society, Attention:  President

Post Office Box 624

Lemon Grove, CA 91946

City of Lemon Grove Lemon Grove Historical Society
a municipal corporation a 501( c)( 3) corporation

Lydia Romero, City Manager Helen Ofield, President

m   ....._._....

Date Date

8-



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

Fa wFda
Y

INTERNAL MEMORANDUM

IFF k

DATE:    June 20, 2017

MEMO TO:     Mayor and City Council

FROM:   Mike James, Assistant City Manager/ Public Works Director

SUBJECT:     Changes to Item 11— Five Year Lease Agreement with the L. G. Historical

Society
uiuuuuuuuuuuuiuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuiuiuiuuuuuuiuiuiuiuiuiuiuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuuiuiuiuiuiuiuuuuiuiuiuiuiuiuiuiuiuiuiuuuuuuiuiuuuuuuiuiuiuiuiuiuiuiuiuiuiuiuiiiu     onoonoono uiuiuioiuiui iioioioi iioiooioioioioioio ooioioioi ui

In preparation for this item' s consideration by the City Council on June 20th, I forwarded
the staff report and lease agreement to the Lemon Grove Historical Society ( Historical
Society) for review.  The Historical Society met late last week and had two requests that
request clarification.   In staff' s opinion, the language required for clarification is more

than clerical in nature and requires a new version for the City Council' s review.   A

summary of the changes made include:

1.  Clarifying that the $ 100 flat fee will only be shared with the City when the Gazebo
Courtyard is included in the Historical Society' s rentals.

2.  The permit issued by the City for alcohol use is a no fee permit.

The attached staff report and agreement was updated and the changes are shown in red

lettering.  Staff continues to recommend that the five year agreement is approved by the
City Council.   Lastly, a hard copy of the new staff report and agreement was placed in
the public City Council agenda folder.

Page 1 of 1



LEMON GROVE' CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No.      1. L

Mtg. Date dune 20, 2017

Dept.   Public Works

Item Title:   ( Five Year Lease Agreement with the Lemon Grove Historical Society for the Use
of the H. Lee House Located at 3205 Olive Streets

Staff Contact:    (Mike James, Assistant City Manager/ Public Works Directoe

Recommendation:

Adopt a resolution ( Attachment B) approving a five year lease agreement (Attachment B —
Exhibit 1) with the Lemon Grove Historical Society for the use of the H. Lee House located at
3205 Olive Street.

Item Summary:

Since 2005, the City and the Lemon Grove Historical Society( Historical Society) entered into one-
year lease agreements allowing the Historical Society to perform restoration work and repairs to
the H. Lee House ( Lee House).   In 2007, all restoration work was completed and the City and
Historical Society agreed to no fee lease agreement to allow the Historical Society to act as
caretakers for the property and conduct community special events for the residents of Lemon
Grove in addition to their prior events that included concerts, poetry readings, weddings and

fundraising activities.

As shown in draft agreement, the Historical Society will continue to pay all utility costs and be
responsible for all maintenance and repairs to the property. The Historical Society will continue to
provide the City with all required certificates of insurance as well as an annual report to City staff
about the operations and uses of the property.

Fiscal Impact:

The City will continue to receive $ 100. 00 per event rental that the Historical Society hosts at the
H. Lee House.  In FY 2^' 82016- 2017, the City received approximately $ 400. 00.

Environmental Review:

Negative DeclarationNot subject to review j

Categorical Exemption, Section Mitigated Negative Declaration

Public Information:

None i Newsletter article       ! Notice to property owners within 300 ft,

Notice published in local newspaper l Neighborhood meeting

Attachments:

A.  Resolution

t.



Attachment A

RESOLUTION NO.
1:

2017

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA
APPROVING A FIVE YEAR LEASE AGREEMENT WITH THE LEMON GROVE HISTORICAL

SOCIETY FOR THE USE OF THE H. LEE HOUSE LOCATED AT 3205 OLIVE STREET.

WHEREAS, the City of Lemon Grove owns the property and building located at 3205 Olive
Street, Lemon Grove, California known as the H. Lee House; and

WHEREAS, in 2005, the City and Lemon Grove Historical Society entered in multiple
agreements that allowed the Lemon Grove Historical Society to perform restoration work and
repairs to the H. Lee House; and

WHEREAS, in 2007, the City and Lemon Grove Historical Society formulated a no fee
lease agreement that allowed the Lemon Grove Historical Society to continue to utilize and
maintain the H. Lee House; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove believes that the leasing of the
H. Lee House to the Lemon Grove Historical Society for special event and community event usage
is the most beneficial use of the property to the residents of Lemon Grove.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the;City Council of the City of Lemon Grove,
California hereby:

1.  Approves a five year lease agreement with the Lemon Grove Historical Society for the
use of the H. Lee House located at 3205 Olive Street not exceed June 30, 2022; and

2.   Directs the City Manager or her designee to manage and execute all documents
necessary to facilitate this lease agreement.

3-



Attachment A - Exhibit 1

Property and Event Use Agreement
for the H. Lee House

The parties to this Agreement are the City of Lemon Grove hereinafter referred to as the " City" and
the Lemon Grove Historical Society, a California 501( c)( 3) nonprofit corporation, and hereinafter
referred to as "Society."

Recitals:

1.   City owns certain real property commonly described as 3205 Olive Street, Lemon Grove,
California ( hereinafter, the " Property").

2.  The City is willing to provide access to the Society, in exchange for Society acting as
caretakers, hosting community events at the H. Lee House ( Lee), all at the Society' s sole
expense.

Now, therefore, it is hereby agreed as follows:

1.  Term of Agreement

This agreement shall commence on July 1, 2017 and shall continue through June 30, 2022,
unless sooner canceled pursuant to Section 18 or 19 hereof.

2.   Use of Facility

Society is granted use of the Lee to perform maintenance and repairs at the Society' s sole
expense. No one under the age of eighteen( 18) is allowed to perform interior restoration work

or repairs on the Lee and anyone under that age entering the Lee during restoration work or
repairs must be accompanied by their respective parent(s)/ or legal guardian( s).

Society is also granted use of the Lee for Society sponsored community events; this may
include, but not be limited to, weddings, concerts and poetry readings. Society sponsored
community events are at the Society' s sole expense, and the Society may charge a fee to the
public for such events.  Anyone who is attending a community event at the Lee and who is
under the age of eighteen ( 18) must be accompanied by their respective parent(s)/ or legal
guardian( s).

3.   Fee for Use:

The City agrees to not charge any fee to the Society for interior use of the Lee e

Leeexclusive of the Gazebo Courtyard north of the Lee.  The Society will continue to provide
a flat fee to the City of$ 100.00 for each rental that that

t aa u .., fwd on the,    a fW ro couu;    AI!      ffie, Lee corn Uried wth ffm

Gazebo Courtyard.  No fee shall be paid to the City for any event hosted by the Historical

ociety solleN Iln We the N ee Frith no use of flhe Gazebo Cou rtvard.

4.   Report to be Provided

On or before June 30, of each year the Society shall submit to the City a written report of all
public events held along with restoration work in Section 3 completed at the Lee during the
term of this agreement, including any additional work approved by the City Manager.

5.   Maintenance

Society shall provide interior maintenance of the Lee sufficient to maintain its current condition.

6.  Access to Second Level

Access to the second level of the Lee shall be restricted to the general public and shall only
be made available to those performing repairs in the stairway and second level of the Lee. City
shall provide a barrier prohibiting general public access to the stairway and second level.
Society shall maintain said barrier and ensure that the general public does not have access to
the stairway and second level during events at the Lee.



Attachment A - Exhibit 1

7.  Retention of Improvements

All structures, fixtures and improvements whether heretofore or hereinafter installed or erected

by Society, shall, upon the expiration of this Agreement or any extension thereof, become the
property of the City and shall not be removed from the Lee.

8.  Alcohol Use

Society must request in writing the use of alcoholic beverages at the Lee.  Written requests

are sent to the attention of the City' s Community Services Superintendent. Requests to use
alcoholic beverages are reviewed by the Community Services Superintendent and,  if

approved, a no fee permit may be issued for the date requested by Society. The City reserves
the right to place restrictions on the use of alcoholic beverages in accordance with State Law,
City Code and Policy.

9.   Utilities

Historical Society shall pay all utilities for the term of this agreement.  In instances when there
is a significant and unforeseen cost related to any utility billing at the Lee, the City may, at the
sole discretion of the City, assist with funding a portion or all of the utility cost.

10. Right of Inspection

City shall have the right to enter the Lee for the purpose of viewing and ascertaining the
condition of the property, to protect its interests in the Lee, and to inspect the operations
conducted within at any time.

11. Discrimination

Society shall not, for any reason, discriminate against any person because of race, sex, age,
creed, color, disability or national origin.

12. Assignment

Society shall not assign this Agreement, or any interest therein, or any part thereof; or any
right or privilege appurtenant thereto or suffer any other person ( the agents, officers and
employees of City excepted) to occupy or use the said Lee except as consistent with the
purpose of the Agreement, without the prior written consent of the City Council of the City of
Lemon Grove.  Consent to one assignment, occupation or use by any other person shall not
be deemed to be a consent to any subsequent assignment, occupation or use by another
person.  Any such assignment without such consent shall be void and shall, at the option of
City, terminate this Agreement.  This Agreement shall not, nor shall any interest therein, be
assignable, by operation of law, and if such an assignment is made, the City may terminate
this Agreement, at its option.

13. Compliance with Law

Society shall, at its sole cost and expense, comply and secure compliance with all the laws,
ordinances- and- requirements- of- all- municipal- count", atL- and- federal- authoritie-&- now ire

force, or which may herein after be in force, pertaining to the Lee, or the operations conducted
thereon, and shall faithfully observe, and secure observance with, in the use of the Lee, all
municipal and county ordinances and state and federal statutes now in force or which may
hereinafter be in force, and shall pay before delinquency all taxes, assessments, and fees
assessed or levied upon Society or the Lee by reason of any buildings, structures, machines,
appliances or other improvements of any nature whatsoever, erected, installed or maintained
by Society or by any reason of the business or other activities of Society upon or in connection
with the Lee.  Society shall comply with all rules or regulations of the City Council of the City
of Lemon Grove or the City Manager applicable to the Lee.  The judgment of any court of
competent jurisdiction, or the admission of Society or any assignee in any action or proceeding
against them, or any of them, whether the City be a party thereto, or not, that Society or

6-



Attachment A - Exhibit 1

assignee has violated any such regulations, ordinance, or statute in the use of the Lee shall
be conclusive of that fact as between City and Society.

14. Hold Harmless

City, its agents, officers and employees, shall not be, nor be held liable, for any claims,
liabilities, penalties, fines or for any damage to the goods, properties or effects of Society or
any of Society representatives, agents, employees, guests, licensees, invitees, patrons or
clientele or of any other persons whatsoever, nor for personal injuries to, or deaths of them, or
any of them, whether caused by or resulting from any acts or omission of Society or any act
or omission of any person or from any defect in any part arising out of the Society' s use of the
Property or the Lee.

Society agrees to protect, defend, indemnify and hold harmless City, its officers, agents and
employees from any and all liability, claims, suits, liens and judgments, of whatever nature,
including injury to any person, arising from performance or failure to perform obligations of this
Agreement caused or claimed to be caused by Society, its agents or employees.  Society
agrees it is its duty to defend even if the claim appears without merit.

15. Employee Insurance

Society does not intend to have any employees. Should it hire any person as an employee,
Society shall obtain Workers' Compensation Insurance in accordance with State law and shall
provide City with a certificate of insurance as specified in Section 17 hereof.

16. Volunteer Insurance

Volunteers -- All volunteers of Society shall be covered by Volunteer Accident Insurance with
a medical indemnity of not less than $ 10, 000.  Society shall provide a certificate of insurance
in the form and as required by Section 17 hereof.

17. Liability Insurance

Society agrees to secure and maintain commercial general liability and volunteer insurance
with an insurance carrier satisfactory to City to protect against loss from liability imposed by
law for damages on account of bodily injury, including death resulting there from, suffered or
alleged to be suffered by any person or persons whatsoever resulting directly or indirectly
from any act or activities of Society or any person, including volunteers for Society or under
Society' s control or direction and also to protect against loss from liability imposed by law for
damages to any property of any person caused directly or indirectly by or from acts for activities
under Society' s

control or direction.  Such public liability and property damage insurance shall be primary
insurance and maintained in full force and effect during the entire term of this Agreement in
the amount of not less than $ 1, 000, 000 for combined single limit or single occurrence and not

less than $ 3, 000, 000 per annual aggregate if an aggregate is applicable.   Proof of such

insurance shall be filed as required by Section 17 with City by Society prior to conducting any
activities under this Agreement, and shall be in a form satisfactory to the City Attorney.

18. Certificate of Insurance

The commercial general liability policy required and volunteer insurance policy herein shall
name the City as an additional insured.  A certificate of insurance shall be provided for each

policy required herein and have a non- cancellation without thirty( 30) day notice to City clause
and shall provide that copies of all cancellation notices shall be sent to the Risk Manager. All

liability insurance policies shall be primary insurance and shall be filed with the Risk Manager.
Provisions of this paragraph as to maintenance of insurance shall not be construed as limiting
in any way the extent to which Society held responsible for the payment of damages to persons
or property resulting from its activities or the activities of any person or persons for which it is
otherwise responsible.



Attachment A - Exhibit 1

19. Termination after Notice for Failure to Comply with Agreement

Should City determine that Society appears to be in violation of the Agreement ( except for
violations specified in Section 19 herein) it shall give Society thirty ( 30) day notice of intent to
terminate at the address specified in Section 20 hereof and identify the perceived violations.
If said violations are not corrected within that time, this Agreement shall be then forthwith
terminated.

20. Termination in the Interest of the Public Health, Safety and Welfare

The City may terminate this Agreement without notice and cause the Lee to be immediately
vacated in the following instances.

a.  The City finds that the operation of Society at the Lee poses a threat to the public
health, safety or welfare.

b.  The Society fails to keep the insurance required by this contract in full force and effect.
c.   The Society is placed in receivership or bankruptcy or is determined to be insolvent.

21. Notices to Parties

Notices to the respective parties shall be hand- delivered or mailed in the State of California by
First Class Mail to:

For:     City of Lemon Grove, Attention: City Manager
3232 Main Street

Lemon Grove, CA 91945

For:     Lemon Grove Historical Society, Attention:  President
Post Office Box 624

Lemon Grove, CA 91946

City of Lemon Grove Lemon Grove Historical Society
a municipal corporation a 501( c)( 3) corporation

Lydia Romero, City Manager Helen Ofield, President

Date Date

8-



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No.       1. M

Mtg. Date June 20, 2017

Dept.   Public Works

Item Title:    Levy and Collection of Assessments within the Lemon Grove Wildflower
Landscape Maintenance Assessment District 97- 1 for Fiscal Year 2017- 2018

Staff Contact:    Mike James, Assistant City Manager/ Public Works Director

Recommendation:

Adopt a Resolution ( Attachment B) approving the levy and collection of assessments within
the Lemon Grove Wildflower Landscape Maintenance Assessment District 97- 1 for Fiscal
Year 2017- 2018.

Item Summary:

The Lemon Grove Wildflower Landscape Maintenance Assessment District 97- 1 was created in

September 1997, pursuant to the provisions of the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972.   The

District includes 46 properties.

The engineer' s report was presented and approved by the City Council on September 2, 1997. In
order to pay for maintenance of the landscaped areas, the assessment may be adjusted annually
by the greater of 3 percent or the percentage increase of the Consumer Price Index ( CPI), within a

maximum cap of$ 335 per parcel.

Staff recommends a 3 percent increase in the assessment for Fiscal Year 2017- 2018.  The staff

report ( Attachment A) details the reasons and the proposed budget for the Wildflower Landscape
Maintenance Assessment District.

Fiscal Impact:

The FY 2017- 2018 budget anticipates a beginning fund balance and revenues of $ 7, 340 and

expenditures totaling $ 7, 340.

Environmental Review:

Not subject to review Negative Declaration

Categorical Exemption, Section Mitigated Negative Declaration

Public Information:

None Newsletter article Notice to property owners within 300 ft.

Notice published in local newspaper Neighborhood meeting

Attachments:

A.  Staff Report

B.  Resolution



Attachment A

LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

STAFF REPORT

Item No.      1. M

Mtg. Date Jun,e..20, 20.1...7...........

Item Title:    Levy and Collection of Assessments within the Lemon Grove Wildflower
Landscape Maintenance Assessment District 97- 1 for Fiscal Year 2017- 2018

Staff Contact:    Mike James, Assistant City Manager/ Public Works Director

Discussion:

On September 2,  1997,  the City Council created the Lemon Grove Wildflower Landscape
Maintenance Assessment District 97- 1 ( District), pursuant to the provisions of the Landscaping

and Lighting Act of 1972.   At that meeting,  an engineer' s report detailed the need for an

assessment in order to pay for the maintenance of the landscaped areas.  The District includes

46 properties located along both sides of Gold Lake Road, Blue Lake Court, Long Lake Court,
and Green Lake Court.

Each year, the City Council may increase the annual assessment by the greater of 3 percent or
the percentage increase of the Consumer Price Index ( CPI), with a maximum cap of $ 335 per

parcel.  As reported in March 2017 by the United States Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor
and Statistics, the CPI for All Urban Consumers in the San Diego area increased by 2. 4%
during the prior 12 months.

During the establishment of the Fiscal Year 2017- 2018 ( FY 2017- 18), city staff continues to
monitor the reserve balance goal of $ 11, 550 that was established in FY 2014- 15.  The reserve

goal equals one- year of anticipated expenditures plus 40 percent of operational expenditures.

In FY 2016- 17, staff continues to rely on the services of two contractors to maintain the District' s
landscaping and trees.   The two contractors are West Coast Arborists  ( WCA)  and Aztec

Landscaping Services, Incorporated ( Aztec).   Staff recommends continuing this maintenance
service for the next fiscal year.   In FY 2016- 17,  staff had to advertise the City' s landscape
management services contract and as a result a new contractor was selected.    Aztec

Landscaping,  Incorporated ( Aztec) was selected to replace Landcare Services.   As a direct

result of the public bidding process, the monthly cost to maintain the existing landscaping
increased from $ 141 to $ 299.  This is a $ 1, 896 increase in the annual landscaping maintenance
cost for the District.

For the reasons stated above, staff recommends a 3 percent increase in the assessment from
206. 04 to $ 212. 22 during FY 2017- 18, which equals the greater of 3 percent or the percentage

increase of the CPI.



Attachment A

The following District budget was prepared to reflect staff's recommendation,

FY 2017- 18 Budget Descriptions Balance

Beginning Fund Balance 2, 780)

Adjustment to Estimated Fund Balance 470

Revenue

Annual Assessment Revenue 9, 650

Total Resources 7, 340

Expenditure

Salaries — Regular 2, 340)

Benefits 1, 150)

Contract Services ( Landscaping)  2, 800)

SDG& E 100)

Helix Water 850)

Transfer to City for Admin & Operations 100)

Total Expenditures 7, 340)

Ending Fund Balance 0

At the end of FY 2017- 18, staff anticipates no surplus will be available to add to the District' s
reserve goal of $ 11, 550.   Staff will continue to monitor the fiscal stability of the District each
year,  paying close attention to the expenditures made and the need to adjust the annual
assessment in order to safeguard the District' s fiscal health to afford operational costs and
reserve goals.

Conclusion:

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a Resolution ( Attachment B) approving the levy
and collection of assessments within the Lemon Grove Wildflower Landscape Maintenance

Assessment District 97- 1 for Fiscal Year 2017- 18 and directs the City Clerk to file the levy with
the County of San Diego Auditor and Controller on or before August 10, 2017.



Attachment B

RESOLUTION NO. 2017 -

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA
APPROVING THE LEVY AND COLLECTION OF ASSESSMENTS WITH THE LEMON

GROVE WILDFLOWER LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE ASSESSMENT DISTRICT 97- 1 FOR
FISCAL YEAR 2017- 2018

WHEREAS,  on September 2,  1997, the City Council adopted Resolution No.  1805,

declaring the results of a property owner protest proceeding held in the Lemon Grove Wildflower
Landscaping Maintenance Assessment District 97- 1 ( District); and

WHEREAS, the engineer' s report for the District, approved by Resolution No. 1804, on
file with the City Clerk, gives a full and detailed description of the proposed assessments upon
assessable lots and parcels of land within the District; and

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to increase the assessment against parcels of land
with the District for the fiscal year commencing on July 1, 2017 and ending June 30, 2018, to
pay the expenses of operating, maintaining and servicing landscaping and appurtenant facilities
located within public places in the District; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that a 3 percent increase in the annual
assessment will be needed for Fiscal Year 2017- 2018.

NOW, THEREFORE,  BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon
Grove, California hereby:

1.   Sets the assessment rate for Fiscal Year 2017- 2018 in the Lemon Grove Wildflower
Landscape Maintenance Assessment District 97- 1 at $ 212. 22 per parcel; and

2.   Directs the City Clerk to file the levy with the County of San Diego Auditor and
Controller on or before August 10, 2017.

5



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No.       1... N......................._.
Mtg. Date June 20, 2017

Dept.   Public Works

Item Title:    Reject All Bids for the North Avenue/Olive Street 20A Muni-Trench & Conduit

Staff Contact:    Mike James, Assistant City Manager/ Public Works Director

Recommendation:

Adopt a Resolution ( Attachment B) rejecting all bids for the North Avenue/ Olive Street 20A
Muni- Trench & Conduit Project ( Contract No. 2017- 23).

Item Summary:

The City advertised the North Avenue/ Olive Street 20A Muni- Trench & Conduit in April 2017 as

part of the Lemon Grove Avenue Realignment Project.  On May 2, 2017, the City received two
sealed bids.  The apparent low bidder was Blue Pacific Engineering & Construction at $ 1, 948, 000.

The engineer' s estimate for this project was $ 1, 881, 750.  The lowest bid received was 3. 5 percent

or $ 66, 250 greater than the engineer' s estimate

The staff report ( Attachment A) details the items that were included in bid request, an analysis of
the bid' s received, and concludes with staff recommendation to adopt a Resolution ( Attachment

B) rejecting all bids for the North Avenue/ Olive Street 20A Muni- Trench & Conduit Project ( Contract

No. 2017- 23).

Fiscal Impact:

Sufficient funds are allocated within the SDG& E- managed 20A Conversion budget.

Environmental Review:

Not subject to review Negative Declaration

Categorical Exemption, Section 15304 Mitigated Negative Declaration

Public Information:

None Newsletter article        Notice to property owners within 300 ft,

Notice published in local newspaper Neighborhood meeting

Attachments:

A.  Staff Report

B.  Resolution



Attachment A

LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

STAFF REPORT

Item No.       1. N „

Mtg. IDate June 20, 2017

Item Title:    Reject All Bids for the North Avenue/ Olive Street 20A Muni- Trench & Conduit

Staff Contact:    Mike James, Assistant City Manager/ Public Works Director

Discussion:

The City advertised the North Avenue/ Olive Street 20A Muni- Trench & Conduit on April 13, 2017.

The project is a 20A Conversion project that utilizes funds that are allocated to municipalities

as a percentage of their local revenue.  Municipalities then decide which areas will be

converted within the guidelines of Rule 20A.  The City of Lemon Grove decided to replace
the existing overhead electric, telephone, and cable facilities with an underground system
along Olive Street (from Broadway to State Route 94) and along North Avenue ( from west
of Olive Street to Grove Street).

On May 2, 2017, the City received two sealed bids.  Each company is listed below with
its location and project bid total.

Bidder' s Name Location Amount

Asplundh Construction Corp,  Anaheim, CA 2, 591, 700

Blue Pacific Engineering &    San Diego, CA 1, 948, 000

Construction

Average Bid Amount 2, 269, 850

The engineer' s estimate for this project was $ 1, 881, 750.  The lowest bid was submitted

by Blue Pacific Engineering & Construction in the amount of $ 1, 948, 000. The lowest bid

received was 3. 5 percent or $ 66, 250 greater than the engineer' s estimate.

Conclusion:.

Due to the bids exceeding the engineer' s estimate and project budget, staff recommends
that the City Council adopts a Resolution ( Attachment B) rejecting all bids for the North
Avenue/ Olive Street 20A Muni- Trench & Conduit Project ( Contract No. 2017- 23),

3-



RESOLUTION NO. 2017-

RESOLUTION OF THE LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL REJECTING ALL BIDS FOR THE

NORTH AVENUE/ OLIVE STREET 20A MUNI- TRENCH & CONDUIT PROJECT

WHEREAS, as part of the Lemon Grove Realignment Project, 20A funds were

earmarked for the North Avenue/ Olive Street 20A Muni- Trench & Conduit Project; and

WHEREAS, bids were publicly solicited and two sealed bids were received for the North
Avenue/ Olive Street 20A Muni- Trench & Conduit Project; and

WHEREAS, bids were opened and read aloud and the lowest responsive bidder was Blue

Pacific Engineering & Construction; and

WHEREAS, all bids, including the lowest bid, were over the City' s engineer' s estimate and
project budget of $ 1, 881, 750; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds it in the public interest that all bids be rejected and
direct staff to follow LGMC 3. 24 to solicit prospective bidders to submit bids for this project as

soon as possible.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove,
California hereby rejects all bids for the North Avenue/ Olive Street 20A Muni- Trench & Conduit

Project received on May 2, 2017.



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No.       1' 0

Mtg. Date June 20, 2017

Dept.   P.u.b.l.l.c...   o.rks..........,

Item Title:    Revise the Completion Date for Converting the Overhead Distribution Facilities
within Underground Utility District No. 7

Staff Contact:    Mike James, Assistant City Manager/ Public Works Director

Recommendation:

Adopt a Resolution ( Attachment A) revising the completion date for converting the overhead
distribution facilities within Underground Utility District No. 7.

Item Summary:

On March 15, 2016, the City Council revised the deadline for the conversion of the overhead
distribution facilities for Phase 7A and 7B of the Underground Utility District ( UUD) No. 7 to June
30, 2017.

In Fiscal Year 2016- 2017, city staff continued to encounter multiple unforeseen challenges with
regards to the Lemon Grove Realignment Project which also includes the undergrounding
segment.  Some of those challenges included plan document preparation delays and additional

coordination efforts between the City and utilities involved in the project area.  Lastly, city staff

recently publicly advertised a bid request for the 20A undergrounding project and all bids received
were in excess of the City' s engineer' s estimate as well as project budget.  For these reasons,

staff requests additional time to select a contractor and construct the project.  Extending the UUD
will allow the proper collection and use of funds through the anticipated construction schedule of

the project.

Fiscal Impact:

Sufficient funds are allocated within the SDG& E- managed 20A Conversion budget.

Environmental Review:

Not subject to review Negative Declaration

Categorical Exemption, Section Mitigated Negative Declaration

Public Information:

None Newsletter article      ® Notice to property owners within UUD

Notice published in local newspaper Neighborhood meeting

Attachments:

A.  Resolution

t v.



Attachment A

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA

REVISING THE COMPLETION DATE FOR CONVERTING THE OVERHEAD DISTRIBUTION

FACILITIES WITHIN UNDERGROUND UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 7

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Ordinance No. 13, a procedure is established

for the creation of underground utility districts; and

WHEREAS, the City Council found that Underground Utility District No. 7 is in the general
public interest; and

WHEREAS,  on April 6,  2010,  the City Council adopted Ordinance No.  390 which

established Underground Utility District No. 7; and

WHEREAS,  on March 4,  2015,  the City Council revised the date of completion to
underground the utilities within the boundaries of Underground Utility District No. 7 as April 1,
2016 for Phase 7A and 7B; and

WHEREAS,  on March 15,  2016, the City Council revised the date of completion to
underground the utilities within the boundaries of Underground Utility District No. 7 as June 30,
2017 for Phase 7A and 713; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove,
California hereby:

1.   Revises and ratifies the date of completion to underground the utilities within the

boundaries of Underground Utility District No. 7 ( Exhibit 1) as June 30, 2018 for Phase 7A
and Phase 713; and

2.   Directs the City Clerk to provide appropriate noticing of said completion dates in
accordance with Ordinance No. 13.



UtilityUr  -undin 3r_    No, 7

p ON

s

Rrl

4•    

r-

v

e

v A

a

E.

E

F

m
e  



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No.     2

Mtg. Date June 20, 2017_
Dept. City Manager' s Department

Item Title:   Appointment of Three Permanent and Two Alternate Community Advisory
Commission Members

Staff Contact:    Miranda Evans, Management Analyst

Recommendation:

Adopt a resolution  ( Attachment B)  appointing three permanent members:  James Davis,
Angeles Nelson and Yajaira Preciado and two alternate members: Tom Clabby and Walter
Oliwa to the Community Advisory Commission.

Item Summary:

On June 13,  2017, the City Council interviewed fourteen Community Advisory Commission
CAC")  Candidates.  After conducting the interviews with the candidates,  the City Council

nominated and voted unanimously to appoint three permanent members: James Davis, Angeles
Nelson and Yajaira Preciado and two alternate members: Tom Clabby and Walter Oliwa to the
Community Advisory Commission.

Staff has prepared a resolution ( Attachment A) for the City Council' s consideration. The resolution
appoints three permanent CAC members and establishes the two alternate appointments to the
CAC as described above.

Fiscal Impact:

There is no fiscal impact.

Environmental Review:

Not subject to review Negative Declaration

Categorical Exemption Mitigated Negative Declaration

Public Information:

None Newsletter article Tribal Government Consultation Request

Notice published in local newspaper Notice to property owners within 500 ft.

Attachments:

A.  Staff Report

B.  Resolution 2017-

1.



Attachment A

LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

STAFF REPORT

Item No.      2
ITITIT_

Mtg. Date June 20, 2017

Item Title:   Appointment of Three Permanent and Two Alternate Community Advisory
Commission Members

Staff Contact:    Miranda Evans, Management Analyst

Background:

On September 15, 2015, the City Council adopted Ordinance 431 to assign Planning Commission
jurisdiction to the City Council and establish the Community Advisory Commission (" CAC"). CAC' s

role is to serve as a resident- led Committee or Focus Group with three permanent members

serving in the leadership positions for the Committee ( i. e. Chair and Vice Chair of the overall
committee or focus group and chairs of any sub- groups formed). The purpose would be to provide
more stability to the Committee/ Group with less reliance on staff to assume a leadership role.

On April 19, 2016, the City Council authorized staff to solicit interested residents in serving on the
CAC. The application process to apply for a position on the CAC occurred from December 21,
2016— January 9, 2017. Throughout the application process, a total of 16 completed applications
were received. A total of 14 interviews were scheduled for June 13, 2017 — one former candidate

withdrew their application and one former candidate currently serves in an incompatible office.

On June 13, 2017, the City Council interviewed fourteen CAC applicants. Following the interviews,
they deliberated on the candidates and came to a unanimous vote for the three permanent CAC
appointees and two alternates. The interview process and appointments are outlined in detail

below.

Discussion:

At the June 13, 2017 CAC candidate interviews, fourteen passionate and qualified applicants

were interviewed by the City Council. The caliber and diversity of candidates was impressive and
presented a difficult decision for the City Council. Each of the applicants were asked the following
five questions:

1)   Please share with us a bit about yourself including your community involvement. What
experience or special knowledge can you offer to the Community Advisory Commission?

2)  What knowledge do you have about ongoing City projects or programs?

3)  In your own words, please describe the mission of the Community Advisory Commission.

4)  How do you interact with someone when you have a difference of opinion on an important

matter?

5)   In your opinion, what do you perceive as the top three most pressing concerns Lemon
Grove faces?

Interviews were limited to ten minutes in total duration and two minutes per question. If additional

time was available after the fifth question, the candidate was permitted to share additional

information they would like the City Council to consider. Following the interviews, the City Council
deliberated on selecting the top three candidates. Considerations that were discussed were the
candidates'  current involvement in the community,  their City knowledge,  their likelihood to

3-



Attachment A

continue civic involvement in the future and the importance of the selection of a diverse group of
CAC appointees.

After deliberation, the City Council unanimously voted to appoint James Davis, Angeles Nelson
and Yajaira Preciado as the three permanent CAC members. The attached resolution authorizes

the three permanent member appointees to call an organizational meeting to establish who will
serve as Chair and Vice Chair and to discuss procedure. To establish terms of office, the three

appointees will draw straws to determine who will serve the three- year, two- year and one- year

term. These three permanent CAC members will be required to submit conflict of interest forms

and complete ethics training.

During this deliberation process, the City Council determined the need to also appoint two
alternate members to each serve a one- year term and unanimously voted to appoint Tom Clabby
as first alternate and Walter Oliwa as second alternate.

In addition to the first and second alternate members, ad hoc members can later be appointed

with temporary CAC membership to assist the permanent members in the study of issues
assigned to the CAC by the City Council. The number and makeup of the temporary membership
would change based upon the need for members as determined on an issue- by- issue basis by
the City Council.  Further,  due to their outstanding interviews,  experience and community

involvement, the remaining nine candidates will be notified of future opportunities for ad hoc
participation.

Conclusion:

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution ( Attachment B) appointing three
permanent and two alternate members to the Community Advisory Commission.

4-



Attachment B

RESOLUTION NO. 2017

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA
APPOINTING THREE PERMANENT AND TWO ALTERNATE MEMBERS TO THE

COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMISSION

WHEREAS,  on September 15,  2015,  the Lemon Grove City Council adopted an
Ordinance establishing the Community Advisory Commission; and

WHEREAS,  on April 19,  2016, the City Council authorized staff to solicit interested
residents in serving on the Community Advisory Commission; and

WHEREAS, the application process to apply for a position on the Community Advisory
Commission occurred from December 21, 2016 — January 9, 2017; and

WHEREAS, through the recruitment process,  sixteen residents expressed interest in

serving on the Community Advisory Commission; and

WHEREAS,  on June 13,  2017,  the City Council interviewed the fourteen available
candidates; and

WHEREAS, through a nomination process at the conclusion of the June 13,  2017

interviews, the City Council voted unanimously to appoint three permanent members: James
Davis, Angeles Nelson and Yajaira Preciado and two alternate members: Tom Clabby and Walter
Oliwa to the Community Advisory Commission.

WHEREAS, the City Council established procedures to begin the Community Advisory
Commission process; and

WHEREAS, the establishment of the one, two and three-year terms of office for the three

permanent Community Advisory Commission members will be determined through the process
of drawing straws; and

WHEREAS, the first and second alternates shall each serve a one- year term; and

WHEREAS, the Community Advisory Commission will operate under the spirit of the
Brown Act and the three permanent members shall file the Fair Political Practices Commission

FPPC) Form 700 and complete ethics training; and

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove, California hereby
ordains as follows:

SECTION ONE:

The findings listed above are true and correct.

SECTION TWO:

Approves the appointment of the following three permanent Community Advisory
Commission members:

1.   James Davis;

2.  Angeles Nelson; and

3.  Yajaira Preciado.

5-



Attachment A

SECTION THREE:

Establishes the appointment of two alternate Community Advisory Commission members
for a one- year period:

4.  Tom Clabby as first alternate; and

5.  Walter Oliwa as second alternate.

SECTION FOUR:

Authorizes the three permanent Community Advisory Commission members to call an
organizational meeting to establish Chair and Vice- Chair appointments and to discuss
procedures.

mg.



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL, ROADWAY LIGHTING DISTRICT BOARD,

SANITATION DISTRICT BOARD, AND SUCCESSOR AGENCY

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No.      3

Mtg. Date June 20, 2017

Dept.   City Manager' s Office

Item Title:    Fiscal Year 2017- 2018 Consolidated Operating and Capital Budget

Staff Contact:    Lydia Romero, City Manager and Gilbert Rojas, Finance Department

Recommendation:

1) Adopt a resolution (Attachment C) approving the Fiscal Year 2017- 18 City of Lemon Grove
Budget;

2) Adopt a resolution ( Attachment D) approving the Salary Plan & Classification Summary;

3) Adopt a resolution ( Attachment E) approving the FY 2017- 18 Appropriations Limit;
4) Adopt a resolution  ( Attachment F) approving the Fiscal Year 2017- 18 Lemon Grove

Roadway Lighting District Budget;
5) Adopt a resolution ( Attachment G) approving the Fiscal Year 2017- 18 Lemon Grove

Sanitation District Budget.

Item Summary:

Staff presents the final Fiscal Year 2017- 18 ( FY 2017- 18) Consolidated Budget ( Attachment B)

for the City of Lemon Grove, the Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District, and the Lemon Grove
Sanitation District.  The staff report addresses five resolutions related to the adoption of the FY
2017- 18 consolidated budget.

Fiscal Impact:

The consolidated budget reflects an expenditure plan of $ 26. 3 million in Fiscal Year 2017- 18,

Environmental Review:

Not subject to review Negative Declaration

Categorical Exemption, Section Mitigated Negative Declaration

Public Information:

None Newsletter article        Notice to property owners within 300 ft.

Notice published in local newspaper Neighborhood meeting

Attachments:

A.  Staff Report E,  Resolution — Appropriations Limit

B.  Fiscal Year 2017- 18 Consolidated Operating F.   Resolution — Roadway Lighting District
and Capital Budget Budget

C.  Resolution — City Budget
G.  Resolution — Sanitation District Budget

D.  Resolution — Salary Plan & Classification

Summary



Attachment A

LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL, ROADWAY LIGHTING DISTRICT BOARD,

SANITATION DISTRICT BOARD, & THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY

STAFF REPORT

Item No.      3

Mtg. Date June 20, 2017

Item Title:    Fiscal Year 2017- 2018 Consolidated Operating and Capital Budget

Staff Contact:    Lydia Romero, City Manager and Gilbert Rojas, Finance Department

Discussion:

On June 6, 2017, staff presented a draft of the Fiscal Year 2017- 18 ( FY 2017- 18) budgets for all

City funds as well as the Sanitation District and the Roadway Lighting District for feedback. Based
on feedback received, staff presents the FY 2017- 18 consolidated budget for approval by the City
Council, the Roadway Lighting District Board, the Sanitation District Board, and the Successor
Agency.   This staff report provides a summary of each of the five resolutions presented for
consideration.

The Draft Budget presented to the City Council on June 6, highlighted the following items:

1)  A 2% cost of living increase for all Fire Safety employees ( as specified in contract)
2)  A 6% increase in the Sheriff Department service contract

3)  A 10 year RCS lease to upgrade communication equipment at an annual cost of$ 49, 000
4)  Contracting for City Engineer service with an Engineering firm for $ 218, 000. Cost is

allocated over multiple funds.

5)  An increase for the Animal Services contract

Budget Resolutions

Staff presents a resolution ( Attachment C) approving the budget for 24 funds operated by the
City, as well as resolutions ( Attachments F and G) approving the budgets of the Roadway
Lighting Districts and the Sanitation District.  The FY 2017- 18 consolidated budget ( Attachment
B) includes anticipated revenues and projected expenditures for all of these funds.  The budget

document follows a pattern similar to previous budget documents.  The budget overview, which

begins on page 4 of the consolidated budget,  provides a description of the revenue and

expenditures for each fund.

Salary Plan & Classification Summary

Staff presents a resolution ( Attachment D) approving a Salary Plan & Classification Summary
for FY 2017- 18.  The Salary Plan & Classification Summary reflects the proposed positions and
pay schedules for FY 2017- 18, including a cost of living adjustment of 2 percent for fire personnel
per an existing Memorandum of Understanding ( MOU).

Appropriations Limit

As part of considering the budget,  State Constitution Article XII I- B ( Propositions 4 and 111)
requires the City Council to establish an Appropriations Limit.  The limit is adjusted each year by
multiplying the previous year' s limit by a factor based on either the change in the California Per
Capita Personal Income (CPCPI) or the Non- Residential Construction Valuation by the population
change of the City.  Staff presents a resolution ( Attachment E) for City Council approval that

3-



Attachment A

establishes the FY 2017- 18 Appropriations Limit at $ 47, 908, 413„   The proposed FY 2017- 18
Budget is within that limit.

Roadway Lighting District Budget

The Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District manages two funds for two separate activities.  Fund
11, the General Benefit Fund, provides funding for street light benefits throughout the community.
Fund 12, the Local Benefit Assessment Fund, provides for enhanced lighting benefits at the mid-
block.   Staff recommends that the Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District Board adopt the
resolution ( Attachment F), approving the District' s budget for FY 2017- 18.

Sanitation District Budget

The Lemon Grove Sanitation District manages three funds— an Operations Fund ( 15) and two
Reserve Funds ( 16 & 17). In FY 2017- 18, the District anticipates generating $ 5. 9 million in total
revenue, and $ 5. 6 million in operating costs.  In addition, the District anticipates spending $ 1. 6

million on capital improvement projects. Staff recommends that the Lemon Grove Sanitation
District Board adopt the resolution ( Attachment G), approving the District' s budget for FY 2017-
18.

Successor Agency Budget

The Successor Agency budget reflects the following expenditures related to the Lemon Grove
Successor Agency:

Bond Debt Service – the budget reflects bond debt service payments for the 2007, 2010,

and 2014 bonds, totaling $ 1, 749, 220

The Successor Agency' s budget approval is part of the resolution approving the City' s Budget
Attachment C).

Conclusion:

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt five resolutions:
1)  Resolution ( Attachment C) approving the Fiscal Year 2017- 18 City of Lemon Grove

Budget,

2)  Resolution ( Attachment D) approving the Salary Plan & Classification Summary,
3)  Resolution ( Attachment E) approving the Fiscal Year 2017- 18 Appropriations Limit, and

Staff also recommends that the Roadway Lighting District Board adopt a resolution ( Attachment
F) approving its Fiscal Year 2017- 18 budget. Finally, staff recommends that the Sanitation District
Board adopt a resolution ( Attachment G) approving its Fiscal Year 2017- 18 budgets.

4-



Attachment B

EXHIBIT 1

FISCAL YEAR 2017- 18 CONSOLIDATED OPERATING & CAPITAL BUDGET

INCLUDING THE SALARY PLAN & CLASSIFICATION SUMMARY)

5...



Attachment C

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA

APPROVING THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017- 2018 AND

AUTHORIZING EXPENDITURES THERETO

WHEREAS, the City of Lemon Grove administers 24 individual funds to fulfill the mission
and objectives of the City, and includes funds related to the Successor Agency to the Lemon
Grove Community Development Agency; and

WHEREAS, each year the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove adopts an operating
budget for anticipated revenues and expenditures for the upcoming year; and

WHEREAS,  the City Council desires to make provision for a level of service
commensurate with the needs of the City; and

WHEREAS, the City of Lemon Grove budget for Fiscal Year 2017-2018 was prepared by
City staff and reviewed by the City Manager; and

WHEREAS, the City of Lemon Grove General Fund budgets for Fiscal Year 2017- 18 were
reviewed by the City Council at its regular meetings held on June 6, 2017, and June 20, 2017;

WHEREAS, the City Council finds it in the public interest to approve the Fiscal Year 2017-
2018 City Budget.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove,
California hereby:

1.  Approves the City of Lemon Grove Budget for Fiscal Year 2017- 2018 ( Exhibit 1); and

2.  Authorizes expenditures thereto.



Attachment D

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA
APPROVING A SALARY PLAN AND CLASSIFICATION SUMMARY

WHEREAS, on June 20, 2017, the City Council adopted a resolution approving the City
Budget for Fiscal Year 2017- 2018; and

WHEREAS, the Salary Plan and Classification Summary identifies the positions included
in the budget, as well as salary ranges for each position and the number of employees per
position; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds it in the public interest to approve the attached Salary
Plan and Classification summary.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove,
California hereby approves the Salary Plan and Classification Summary ( Exhibit 1).

g-



Attachment D

EXHIBIT 1

The Salary Plan and Classification Summary is included beginning on page 72 of the Fiscal
Year 2017- 2018 Consolidated Operating & Capital Budget



Attachment E

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA
ESTABLISHING THE APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017- 2018

WHEREAS, Constitutional Article XIII- 13 ( Propositions 4 and 111) places an appropriations

limitation on State and Local Government; and

WHEREAS, this appropriations limitation is based on proceeds of taxes adjusted annually

from the base year 1986- 1987 by either the population growth factor for the City of Lemon Grove
or for the County of San Diego, and by either the change in the California Per Capita Personal
Income or the change in Non- Residential Construction for the City of Lemon Grove; and

WHEREAS, the City has received inflation and population data from the State Department
of Finance to calculate the Fiscal Year 2017- 2018 Appropriations Limit; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove wishes to select those options
providing the greatest rate of change as shown below:

Change in California Per City Population
Capita Personal Income Change

inflation fac Ir population factor) Factor

1. 0369 1. 0076 1. 0448

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Lemon
Grove, California establishes the Fiscal Year 2017- 18 Appropriations Limit at $ 47, 908,413.

11-



Attachment F

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-

RESOLUTION OF THE LEMON GROVE ROADWAY LIGHTING DISTRICT BOARD
APPROVING THE LEMON GROVE ROADWAY LIGHTING DISTRICT BUDGET FOR FISCAL

YEAR 2017- 2018 AND AUTHORIZING EXPENDITURES THERETO

WHEREAS, the Roadway Lighting District operates with two separate funds: the General
Benefit Fund ( Fund 11) and the Local Benefit Assessment ( Fund 12); and

WHEREAS, each year the Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District Board of Directors
District Board) adopts an Operating Budget for revenues and expenditures for the upcoming

year; and

WHEREAS,  the District Board desires to make provision for a level of service
commensurate with the needs of the District; and

WHEREAS, the District Board has reviewed the proposed Fiscal Year 2017- 2018 Budget;

and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of the Lemon Grove Roadway

Lighting District hereby:

1.  Approves the Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District Budget for Fiscal Year 2017-
2018 ( Exhibit 1);

2.  Authorizes expenditures thereto.

13-



Attachment F

EXHIBIT I

The Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District Budget for Fiscal Year 2017- 18 is included on
pages 51- 52 of the Fiscal Year 2017- 18 Consolidated Operating & Capital Budget.

14-



Attachment G

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-

RESOLUTION OF THE LEMON GROVE SANITATION DISTRICT BOARD APPROVING THE

LEMON GROVE SANITATION DISTRICT BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017- 2018 AND

AUTHORIZING EXPENDITURES THERETO

WHEREAS, the Sanitation District operates with three separate funds: the Operation Fund
Fund 15) and the Reserve Funds ( Fund 16 & 17); and

WHEREAS, each year the Lemon Grove Sanitation District Board of Directors ( District

Board) adopts an Operating Budget for revenues and expenditures for the upcoming year; and

WHEREAS,  the District Board desires to make provision for the level of service

commensurate with the needs of the District; and

WHEREAS, the District Board has reviewed the proposed Fiscal Year 2017- 2018 Budget;
and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of the Lemon Grove Sanitation

District hereby:

1.  Approves the Lemon Grove Sanitation District Budget for Fiscal Year 2017- 2018

Exhibit 1);

2.  Authorizes expenditures thereto.

15-



Attachment G

EXHIBIT I

The Lemon Grove Sanitation District Board Budget for Fiscal Year 2017- 18 is included on

pages 55- 58 of the Fiscal Year 2017- 18 Consolidated Operating & Capital Budget.

1  ...



I/

aGityt

CONSOLIDATED,   0"
CAPITAL BU197"O

Y 2 01 7

CELEBRATING

n

w

pal'"

oui. 

9

1
9771

7
ie

rr

r

j
r

a

N
0 i

r r r
n

u 1!.  v
ry

fl
r o



CITY OF LEMON GROVE.,

CALIFORNIA

Fiscal Year 2017-  2018

Consolidated

City of Lemon Grove

Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District

Lemon Grove Sanitation District

Lemon Grove Successor Agency

LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

Mayor Pro Tem Jennifer Mendoza Councilmember Jerry Jones

Mayor Racquel Vasquez

Councilmember David Arambula CouncIfirnember Mall Mendoza_



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

F C NTE TS

Letter from the City Manager 2

Organizational Chart 3

Budget Overview and Analysis 4

Description of Funds 11

GENERAL FUND

Fund Summary 14

Resources Comparison- Revenue & Transfers 16

Expenditures by Department 19

Expenditures by Category 19

Expenditures by Department and Division 21

Expenditure Detail by Department and Division 26

OTHER FUNDS

Gas Tax- Highway User Tax 43

Street Construction Reserve 44

Park Land Dedication Ordinance 45

General Reserve 46

Supplemental Law Enforcement Services 47

Grants 48

Community Development Block Grant 49

Transportation Development Act- TDA 50

Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District- General Benefit 51

Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District- Local Benefit 52

TransNet 53

Lemon Grove Sanitation District Operations 54

Lemon Grove Sanitation District Reserve o . . .      
57

Lemon Grove Sanitation District Pure Water Reserve a n,    58

Sidewalk Reserve 59

Integrated Waste Reduction 60

Wildflower Assessment District o ,    61

Serious Traffic Offender Program- STOP 62

Self- Insured Workers Compensation Reserve 63

Storm Water Program m,       ,..     64

Regional Transportation Congestion Improvement

Program 65

Self- Insured Liability Reserve 66

Public Educational and Governmental Access- PEG 67

Capital Reserve 68

Main Street Promenade Community Facilities District 69

Successor Agency to the former Lemon Grove

Community Development Agency 70

APPENDIX

Salary Plan and Classification Summary 72

is



June 20, 2017

Dear Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council:

I am pleased to present the City of Lemon Grove Consolidated Operating & Capital Budget for Fiscal Year

2017- 2018. The consolidated budget is inclusive of the budgets for the City' s General Fund and the 26
funds managed by the City, as well as district budgets for the Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District, the
Lemon Grove Sanitation District, and the Lemon Grove Successor Agency funds. This letter introduces the
FY 2017- 18 consolidated budget and presents themes of this year' s budget.

FY 2017-18 Consolidated Budget Document

The FY 2017- 18 budget document follows a pattern similar to prior fiscal year budgets.  Immediately

following this transmittal letter is a budget overview and analysis, City organizational chart, and budget
details for each fund managed by the City or related boards. It is the aim of City staff to present a budget
document that is accessible to Lemon Grove stakeholders. The salary plan and classification summary with
fund descriptions follow in appendices.

FY2017- 18 Budget Themes

The City' s General Fund, the primary budget for the general municipal services provided by the City, is
projected to experience a 6% growth in revenues in Fiscal Year 2017- 18. Sales tax, which comprises 42%

of the City revenue was significantly overestimated in last year' s budget and while actual growth is

expected the budget comparison with last fiscal year will show negative growth. The other significant

revenue source ( secured property tax and vehicle license fees) are expected to show positive gains over

the previous fiscal year. There is also a decline in revenue from building permits due to a slowing in solar
installations.

Looking in the future, the revenue growth in sales tax statewide is on a downward trend. With the increase

in internet sales, Lemon Grove' s sales tax share will continue to decline.  Over the next year staff will be

exploring new revenue options for the City Council and the community to consider.

I would like to commend the dynamic and austere city staff for their innovation and dedication to deliver
quality public services on a very lean budget.  The passion and dedication to serve the residents and

businesses in Lemon Grove is seen every day by the 52 talented public employees.

Sincerely,

i

Lydia R(,,) t'1wro

City ManagQr

11
1



Organizational Chart
Fiscal Year 2017- 18

LEMON GROVE ELECTORATE

CITY

a   - AC=; 3_ COUNCIL
0 Gru7&       ' firmG ova

Gm vs
Roaa

IY ZM.

MARAGER

DEVELOPMENT

MMAGER

L4o- f 

DIt m__

ASZ- . ANT ,      - 

1

r

r  
SERVICES

a

Cqe
R£

C
v

i

cup. : v SERViCm

i E.  ti
4 . u rra

00

t
c

a

RS

MAVICES
PARAMEDIC



City of Lemon Grove

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget
Budget Overview and Analysis

FISCAL YEAR 2017- 18 OPERATING BUDGET:

In Fiscal Year 2017- 2018, the total expenditure plan for the City and its related districts is approximately
26. 3 million. Of that, $ 20. 6 million will be spent on operational expenditures, $ 3. 9 million on capital

purchases or improvements, and $ 1. 8 million on debt service. The operating budget covers the day to
day costs of providing services,  such as law enforcement,  fire and emergency services,  park

maintenance, recreation services, sewer services, planning and code enforcement services, and storm
water programming.

The City uses a fund accounting system, which segregates revenues and expenditures by specific
activities. Each activity or Fund will have its own budget within this document.

In addition to the different funds, the City operates as an independent entity, as do the Lemon Grove
Roadway Lighting District, the Lemon Grove Sanitation District, and the Successor Agency to the Lemon
Grove Community Development Agency.  However, all districts rely on the City for support services,
such as operations, finance, IT, human resources, and general administration.

GENERALFUND

The following 2017- 18 General Fund sources and uses of funds is balanced without the use of reserves
as follows:

Sources of Funds:

Estimated Revenue
12, 463, 020

Transfers In
844, 500

Total Sources
13, 307, 520

Uses of Funds:

General Fund Operating Budget 13, 153, 490
Transfers Out

154, 030
Total Uses

13, 307, 520

Available General Fund resources are anticipated to be$ 13. 3 million. Revenue is projected to be$ 12. 4
million with the balance of funding comprised of$. 9 million in transfers from other funds for overhead
costs ( services, supplies and contracted services).   The Supplemental Law Enforcement Services
transfer is for law enforcement costs within the General Fund.

Proposed obligations for FY 2017- 18 are $ 13. 3 million.  This consists of an operating budget of$ 13. 2
million and $. 1 million in transfers to other operating funds.  Of that, $ 3. 6 million will be spent on
salaries, $ 1. 4 million on retirement and other benefits, and $ 8. 3 on operation services and supplies.
The City contracts out for City Attorney, City Engineer, Law Enforcement and a majority of its Plan
Checking services.

4



City of Lemon Grove

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget
Budget Overview and Analysis

The proposed FY 2017- 18 General Fund Operating Budget projects an increase to revenue of$. 7 million

or 6 %. The General Fund revenue projection and prior year comparison is as follows:

2016- 17 Revised 2017- 18 Projected arle

Sales Tax 5, 000, 000 5, 090, 000 1. 8%

Property Tax 2, 225, 000 2, 336, 500 5. 0

Property Tax in lieu of VLF 2, 135, 000 2, 405, 500 12. 6

Other Taxes 1, 007, 000 1, 250, 000 24. 0

Permits and Licenses 107, 000 105, 000 1. 9

Fire Department Fees 304, 000 278, 300 8. 5

Development Fees 431, 000 291, 000 32. 4

Parks and Recreation Fees 101, 700 123, 700 21. 6

Motor Vehicle License Fee 12, 000 12, 000 0

Fines & Forfeitures 161, 000 168, 500 4. 7

Investment Income 2, 000 7, 000 250. 0

Other Income 273, 320 395, 520 44. 7

TOTAL a........._11, 759, 020 12, 463, 020 6 0/

The following is an overview of the assumptions made for General Fund sources of revenue:

Sales tax is projected to reach a total of

5. 09 million in Fiscal Year 2017- 18.       REVENUE TREND
This represents a projected 1. 8% In Millions)

increase in Sales tax from the previous    $ 14

year' s revised budget estimate.   Last 12. 2
11. 8     $

12. 2

ear' s saes tax was estimated to    $
12 10, 9

11. 4

Y l
10. 4

increase by 6. 3%.  Lemon Grove' s two    $
10 1

major sales tax groups continue to be

a)  Auto   &  Transportation and b}     $ 8

Building  &  Construction.    Together S y
these two categoriesories make up 53% Of     $

6 l"
r

0  ' ii'       

pq

the total sales tax remitted annually. 4

ii
E    ;   '%       

l"
i/    6

qr ii%    1 l   %   %l'/%a  ``
r r

Property taxes are projected to     $
0

increase by 5%,  to reach projected a ti s̀ tib qN e

revenue of$ 2. 3 million.       
ti.       ti

1a,       ti5

Actual assessed values from the San

Diego County Assessor will not be
Total Revenue Sales Tax& Property Tax in Lieu

available until the end of June.

However, based on current property tax revenues and strong building permit activity in Lemon
Grove, an estimate of a 5% increase seems to be appropriate.  All real property not reduced by

5



City of Lemon Grove

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget
Budget Overview and Analysis

Proposition 8 may increase at the rate of the California Consumer Price Index ( CCPI) but cannot
exceed 2% per year unless the property is improved or sold to establish a new assessed value. Those

properties that received Proposition 8 temporary reductions in prior years are required to be
reviewed by the County Assessor outside of the CCPI adjustment factor.

Property tax in lieu of Vehicle License Fee ( VLF) is estimated to increase by 12. 6% to reach projected

revenue of$ 2. 4 million. Growth in this revenue is based on the change in assessed value of taxable

property in the city from the prior year. Prior year assessed value was up approximately 6%.

Other taxes, which include franchise Revenue Composition
fees, transient occupancy tax, property
transfer tax and the Redevelopment

Fines&    
Fire Fees Development

Property Tax Trust Fund RPTTF
Forfeits 3%  Fees Other Revenue

p Y 1%
2%  2%

residual payment,   is projected to
Permits&

increase by 24% to reach projected Licenses sales Tax

revenue of $ 1. 2 million.  This increase Other i    y 42%

in revenue is main)     p 0due to projected

increases in the property tax transfer ice "y

and the Redevelopment Property Tax
Trust residual payment.

Permits and licenses that are collected

for business,  animal and regulatory

licenses are anticipated to decrease by Property Ta,

2%.  The main decrease is anticipated Lieu of VLF

from Animal Licenses.  
20%

Fines and forfeitures have been Property Tax

budgeted to show an increase of 4. 7%.      
19%

This is primarily due to Traffic Safety
Fines and Tow Fees.  Both of these revenue sources have been collected at a higher amount then

budgeted in previous years.

Development Fees that are collected for Building, Planning and Engineering permits are projected
to decrease by $ 140 thousand. This is mainly due to home improvement and solar improvements
declining in the last year. Since the City contracts for plan checking services, if the revenue does not
materialize, the corresponding expense of plan checking will not occur.

Fire Department Fees are anticipated to decrease by $ 25, 000 or 8. 5%.  This decrease is due to

Emergency Transport Fees that are at a stable level.

The proposed 2017- 18 General Fund Operating Budget with the prior year is shown below.,

6

I'



City of Lemon Grove

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

Budget Overview and Analysis

2016- 17 Budxet 2017- 18 Budget of Total

City Council 88, 300 92, 860 1%

City Manager 432, 600 464, 980 3

City Attorney 186, 500 156, 500 1

Finance 281, 400 276, 590 2

Law Enforcement 51553, 800 5, 863, 060 45

Fire 4, 215, 200 41279, 820 33

Development Services 683, 700 582, 200 4

Public Works 1, 345, 000 1, 353, 980 10

Non- Departmental 227,00083,500 1

TOTAL 13, 013, 500 13, 153, 490 100%

2017- 18 BUDGET
OF GENERAL FUND)

Non- Departmental City Manager 3%
1%

City Council 1%  City Attorney 1%

Public Works 10% Finance 2%

J h ldlzi rr^ uuL

fF

l

r

N

s-

The proposed 2017- 18 General Fund Operating Budget is$ 13, 153, 490. This is an increase of$ 140 thousand
from the Fiscal Year 2016- 17 Operating Budget, adopted on June 21, 2016.

The following items contributed to this increase or change.
4, 280— Salaries

66, 080— PERS



City of Lemon Grove

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget
Budget Overview and Analysis

14, 190— Other Benefits

153, 920)— Services and Supplies

221, 460— Contract Services

12, 000)— Recreation Facility Cost

The General Fund Budget has been prepared with a 2% salary increase to Fire Safety employees as
required by contract.  In addition, the Sheriff Department' s service contract will increase by 6% or

approximately$ 314,000.

Also included within this Budget is our recurring City Engineer contract at$ 218,000 which is allocated
over multiple funding sources. The City signed a new RCS lease to upgrade communication equipment.
The annual cost is$ 49,000 for the next ten years.

The City also received a 20% increase in the required annual lump sum payment to PERS for the City' s
unfunded liability. Next year the City can anticipate an increase to the regular" normal cost" PERS rate
due to the decrease in the PERS investment rate of return.

Other Funds:

Major budget impacts for several other funds are summarized below.

Gas Tax Fund

The revenue from the Highway Users Tax will increase in FY 2017- 18 due to the State' s enacting Section
2030 of the Highway User Tax.  The tax will not start until October, 2017 and will yield an estimated

153, 000 in new Gasoline Tax revenue.

Street Construction Reserve Fund

All monies within this fund are committed to Lemon Grove Avenue Realignment Project..

Park land Dedication Fund

This year' s budget will enhance the Gazebo project in Berry Street Park,.

General Fund Reserve
1.

This fund will be used as a " true" reserve.  The City will no longer budget expenditures for Capital or
Operating expenses. Any use of Reserves will be approved by the City Council and treated as a transfer-
out from this fund and a transfer- in to the appropriate fund.

Supplemental Law Enforcement Services

These funds are allocated thru the County of San Diego and are used to fund activities within the Law
Enforcement budget.



City of Lemon Grove

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget
Budget Overview and Analysis

Grants Fund

Grants are applied for and awarded during the fiscal year. Staff will present a report during the fiscal
year that summarizes past grants and establishes new grants.

Transportation Development Act

These funds are from SANDAL and are to be used for maintenance upkeep of the Trolley area within
Lemon Grove.

Lighting District

The budget continues the maintenance of safety lights and lights that are for specific purposes.

TransNet

The Budget reflects the capital and maintenance road improvements that the City Council has approved
by a previous council action.

Sanitation District Onerations

The Operations budgetp g is similar to the budget last year.  The Capital Improvement Program is $ 1. 6

million and includes the following projects: Sewer Main Maintenance Project ( Construction); and

various Sewer Main Rehabilitation projects.

Sidewalk Reserve

There is...........no activity budgeted for these funds.

Integrated Waste Reduction

This fund will continue to fund programs to encourage recycling.

Wildflower Assessment District
The City Council approves this assessment district budget and activities by separate Council action,

Serious Traffic Offender Program

These funds are used for traffic related expenditures.,

Self--Insured Workers Compensation Reserve

This Reserve has been maintained at a $ 500 thousand fund balance,

Storm Water Program

The budget will continue to keep Lemon Grove compliant with storm water regulations.

Regional Transportation Congestion Improvement Program
These funds are committed to the Lemon Grove Avenue Realignment Project.

Self- Insured Liability Reserve

A required liability reserve is maintained at$ 300 thousand,

9



City of Lemon Grove

pY2U27' 1WOperating Budget
Budget Overview and Analysis

Public Educationaltal Access ( PEG)

These funds are used tonna/ nt inthegovernment information channel,

Capital Reserve

There are no Capital reserve funds available etthis time.

Main Street Promenade Connnn i District

This fund has contract services and Utility costs budgeted for the fiscal year,

Successor Agenc

The Agency has$ 1. 7million inscheduled bond payments.

10



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

DE S C RIPT 10 N OF Ff! N DS

As stated in the Budget Overview& Analysis section, the City manages its revenue and expenditures through

various funds. Between the City, Roadway Lighting District, and Sanitation District, the FY 2015- 16 consolidated
budget is comprised of 28 funds. Each fund identified in this budget is described in the sections below.

CITY FUNDS

General Fund( 01)

The General Fund is a governmental fund used to account for day- to- day operations of the City, All financial

activity that is not required to be accounted for in another fund is included in the General Fund. Public safety,

government administration, community services, street maintenance, environmental programs, and park

maintenance are funded from the General Fund.

Gas Tax Fund 10J
This fund is supported by revenue from the State gas tax fund. Fund proceeds may be used to research, plan,
construct, improve, maintain, and operate local streets.

Street Construction Reserve Fund( 03)

This fund was initially established to combine funds for larger street projects. With the use of the City' s
accounting program, it is possible to designate various funding sources over several years to accomplish this

same purpose. However, the fund is used to clearly demonstrate " Maintenance of Effort" by the City in
contributing funds for street projects in order to receive State transportation funding.

Parkland Dedication Ordinance Fund( 051

The City Municipal Code requires that subdivision development set- aside park land that will eventually be
developed as part of the municipal park system. The Code also allows the payment of a fee in- lieu of dedicating

actual land. Proceeds in the fund may be used by the City for the purchase of park land, the development of new
parks or the major rehabilitation of existing parks.

General Reserve Fund 06

The General Reserve Fund serves as the City' s" savings account," This fund was created for several purposes: for
use in times of emergency, one- time capital/ equipment purchases, setting aside funds for replacing equipment,
required grant matches, and to ensure funds are available for financial obligations( such as liability coverage and

accumulated leave time).

Supplemental Law Enforcement Fun  ( 7)

This fund, also known as the COPS fund, is supported by State grant proceeds. This fund is used to augment the
staffing level of Sheriff deputies. At one time, the grant amount paid for one deputy today it pays for
approximately half of one deputy position.

Grant Fund 8J

This fund provides for management of grants currently being administered by the City. It functions as an " in- and-
out" fund to ensure grant proceeds and expenditures are not mingled with. the General Fund or other fund

proceeds.

Community Development Block Grant Fund( 09}
This fund manages grant proceeds from the Community Development Block Grant program. Funds are expended

and then reimbursed by the County of San Diego.

11



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

J
DESCRIPTIO OF FUNDS Icont' d. l

Transit Development Act Fund® Transit( 10

Transit proceeds are allocated from MTS for maintenance of landscaping along the trolley corridor and
maintenance of trolley stations and bus shelters throughout the City.

TransNet Fund( 141

This fund manages proceeds from the TransNet allocation and street related projects eligible for TransNet

funding, This fund is specifically used to finance significant right- of- way improvements( streets and sidewalks),
storm drain, and traffic related projects.

Sidewalk Reserve Fund18

This fund was initially established to pool funds for larger sidewalk projects.

Ilrtgg! rqted Waste, Reduction F1afwd(2.1.).
i het. ty raoIi s card f rs Ik ns j Fav r Wwtrtlj, C' Its recycling and household hazardous waste disposal program as part of

compliance with Assembly Bill 939 Integrated Waste Management Act of 1989. This program is supported by AB
939 funds which are collected for the aforementioned programs. The City relies on this fund for contractual
services to provide household hazardous waste events, promote a higher level of recycling within the City, and
prepare annual program reports as required by AB939.

Wildflower Assessment District Fund(   '

This fund manages the Wildflower Landscaping Maintenance Assessment District. This fund tracks assessment

revenue and expenditures related to landscape upkeep of common areas within the Wildflower Assessment
District.

Serious Traffic Offender Program Fund(   )

This fund receives a portion of impound fees collected within the City. The City uses this fund to pay for Sheriff
traffic division overtime and other traffic related expenses.

Workers Compensation Reserve Fund( 5)

In FY 2003- 04, the City began to fund its own workers' compensation program. This was done to have better

control over the drastic increases in workers' compensation insurance premiums. This fund covers catastrophic
workers compensation claims.

Storm Water Propria Fund O
The Storm Water Program Fund was established in FY 2005- 06. The fund' s purpose is to collect designated

storm water program fees and support the City' s storm water program- a State and Federal mandated program,
The fund has not fully paid for the program since its inception. Increased mandates have increased fund
expenditures over the past few years.

Regional Transportation Congestion Improvement Program( Fund 271
This fund was created in FY 2008- 09 to manage fees related to the passage of the TransNet extension. These fees

represent per housing unit fees for new residential development. Expenditures from this fund are to be used to

initiate street improvement projects on a major arterial within the City.

Self.-insured Liability Reserve Fund ( 29)

In FY 2011- 12, the City established the Self- Insured Liability Reserve Fund to fund liability claims.

12



CITY OFLEMON GROVE

Fv2017- 18Operating Budget

DESCRIPTION OF FUNDS(,., Wd.)

Public Education and Government Fund( 30)

This fund collects designated monies from cable franchisees that operate within the City. The use of these

monies is restricted to capital items that enhance or facilitate public access to government information.

Cpp. it.al Reserve( 3.2. )

Initially this fund was established to track the purchase of a fire engine. In FY 2012- 13, the City received one- time

SAFE" program monies. These funds were accounted for in a separate fund- the Safety Capital Reserve Fund'

which helped offset the cost of purchasing a new fire apparatus. The City Council has now approved this fund to
be used to set aside funds for future capital improvement projects throughout the City.

Main stmet Promenade Community

During FY 2013- 14, the voters within the Main Street Promenade Community Facilities District voted to create an

assessment to fund ongoing maintenance and capital improvements to the Main Street Promenade.

Successor Agency Fund(§ P_ and 64 combined

This fund receives reimbursements for enforceable obligations approved by the California Department of Finance

and makes payments for said obligations, Obligations include debt service payments and outstanding projects

such asthe Main Street Promenade and Lemon Grove Avenue Realignment projects,

DISTRICT FUNDS

Roadway Lighting District( 111 and12 combined)

The Lemon Grove Roadway Lighting District manages two funds for two separate activities. Fund 11, the General

Benefit Fund, provides funding for street light benefits throughout the community. Fund 12, the Local Benefit

Assessment Fund, provides for enhanced lighting benefits at the mid- block.

Sanitation District( 15, 16 and 17 combined)

The Lemon Grove Sanitation District manages two funds- an Operations Fund ( 15) and a Reserve Fund ( 16). The

District relies on Fund 15 to collect revenue generated by Sanitation District rate payers and to pay the
operational costs tooperate the system. Fund 16 is used toset aside funds for equipment replacement, sewer

rehabilitation prm) ects, and rate stabilization.

13



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

Summary
GENERAL FUND

ACTUAL......

2015/ 16

CTUA

2016 1.. FY 2017 ° J8

L B'U' D'G'ET BUDGET

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE- July 1 3, 003, 430    $    4, 253, 920    $    4, 253, 920

Total Revenues 12, 729, 360 12, 220, 020 12,463, 020

Total Transfers 605, 760 793, 480 690, 470

Total Revenues& Transfers 13, 335, 120 13, 013, 500 13, 153, 490

Total Expenditures 12, 084, 630 13, 013, 500 13, 153, 490

ENDING FUND BALANCE- June 30 4, 253, 920    $    4, 253, 920    $    4, 253, 920

14



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

General Fund Resources

15



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

Resources Comparison

GENERAL FUND

2015/ 16
SOURCE

ACTUAL FBUDG

T17
FY 2017/ 18

GET

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE- July 1 3, 003, 430    $    3, 144, 700    $    4, 253, 920

Adjustment to Fund Balance

Sales Tax 5, 346, 930 5, 250, 000 5, 090, 000

Property Tax Secured 2, 075, 660 2, 150, 000 2, 336, 500

Property Tax Supplemental Roll 58, 310 45, 000 55, 000

Prop. Tax Homeowner' s Relief 15, 960 15, 000 15, 000

Prop. Tax Real Property Transfer Tax 111, 780 76, 000 90, 000

Property Tax Post Redevelopment 81, 860 80, 000 80, 000

Property Tax in Lieu of VLF 2, 135, 490 2, 135, 000 2, 405, 500

Franchise Fees 965, 070 960, 000 960, 000

Transient Occupancy Tax 53, 180 47, 000 50, 000

Other Taxes 5, 497, 310 5,508, 000 5, 992, 000

Business License 90, 640 88, 000 88, 000

Animal License 14, 160 15, 000 13, 000

Regulatory License 5, 600 4, 000 4, 000

Permits& Licenses 110, 400 m1077, 00000
m

105, 000

Emergency Transport Fees 224, 240 250, 000 224, 300

Fire Fees- Business Licenses 31, 700 32, 000 32, 000

Fire Fees- Development Services 28, 410 22, 000 22, 000

Fire Reimbursable OT/ Mutual Aid 30, 320

Fire Department Fees 314, 670
m.... 

304, 000 278    ..300

Building Permits 466, 960 420, 000 240, 000

Planning Permits 33, 640 40, 000 30, 000

Engineer Permits 66, 390 40, 000 20,000

State Collected Fee- ADA 1, 120 1, 000 1w1'00

Development Fees 568,110 501,

011
00 291, 000

Day Camp 90, 280 64, 000 81, 000

Special Events 23, 100 25, 000 30, 000

Recreation Classes 3, 990 6, 200 6, 200

Softball 10, 360 6, 500 6, 500

Parks& Recreation Fees 12.7„ 7:30 5101, 700 123 7OD

Motor Vehicle License Fee 10, 570 12, 000 12, 000

Sales Tax 1/ 2%( Public Safety) 41, 790 30, 000 35, 000

Traffic Safety Fines 91, 840 77, 000 77, 000

Booking Fee- County 7, 210 6, 500 6, 500

Parking Fines 29, 850 20,000 20, 000

Other Fines& Forfeitures 4, 020 2, 500 5, 000

Tow Fees 32, 160 25, 000 25, 000

Fines& Forfeitures 206, 870 161, 000 168, 500

i-
fil

16



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

Resources Comparison

GENERAL FUND

SOURCE
2015/ 16 FY 2016/ 17 FY 2017/ 18

ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

Investment Income 22, 870    $ 2, 000    $ 7, 000

Rental- Long Term 171, 510 171, 320 140, 000

Rental- Short Term 78, 130 70, 000 60,000

Cost Recovery 37, 200 5, 000 10,000

State Mandated Cost 78, 750 5, 000 5, 000

Abandoned Vehicle Abatement

Credit Card Surcharge 5, 060 2, 000 4, 000

Other Revenue 117, 490 10,000 136, 520

Administrative Citations 35, 760 10, 000 40, 000

Other Income 523, 900 273, 320 395, 520

Total General Fund 12, 729, 360 12, 220, 020 12, 463, 020

Gas Tax Fund 44, 500

Supplemental Law Enforcement Service Fund 100, 000 100, 000 114, 600

TDA Administration 17, 400 17, 400 17, 400

Lighting District- General District Administration 9, 400 9, 400 9, 400

Lighting District- Local Benefit Administration 4, 900 4, 900 4, 900

Integrated Waste( A6939) Administration 1, 200 1, 200 1, 200

Sanitation District Administration 552, 400 552, 400 552, 400

Wildflower District Administration 100 100 100

Successor Agency Loan Repayment 343, 200

Successor Agency- Administration
Transfer from Workers Compensation Fund 100,000

Transfer to Gas Tax Fund 100, 000)

Transfer to Pension Liability Fund

Transfer to Storm Water Fund 79, 640)  135, 120)   154, 030)

Transfers 605,760 793, 480 690, 470

Total Revenues& Transfers 13, 335, 120   _ 13, 013, 500 13, 153,490

Total Resources 13, 335, 120    $   16, 158, 200    $   17, 407, 410

l
J

17



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

WWw_ wwwwwww...................  ..—     .......®_...........................

General Fund Expenditures by
Department and Category

I'

18



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

Expenditures by Department
GENERALFUND

DEPARTMENT
2015/ 16 F

11

Y 2
11

016/ 17 FY 2017/ 18

ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

City Council 69, 780    $ 88, 300    $ 92, 860

City Manager 270, 120 432, 600 464, 980

City Attorney 192, 990 186, 500 156, 500

Finance 291, 150 281, 400 276, 590

Law Enforcement 5, 240, 330 5, 553, 800 5, 863,060

Fire 4, 047, 080 4, 215, 200 4, 279, 820

Development Services 656, 820 683, 700 582, 200

Public Works 1, 316, 360 1, 345, 000 1, 353, 980

Non- Departmental 227, 000 83, 500

Total Expenditures 12, 084, 630] 13, 013, 50000 13, 153, 490

General Fund Balance 4, 253, 920    $    3, 144, 700    $    4, 253, 920

Expenditures by Category
GENERAL FUND

EXPENDITURE CATEGORY
2015/ 16 FY 2016/ 17 FY 2017/ 18

ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

Salaries 3, 179, 410    $    3, 571, 200    $    3, 575, 480

Retirement 670, 610 624, 900 690, 980

Benefits- Other 630, 140 708, 400 722, 590

Services& Supplies 2, 154, 330 2, 353, 100 2, 199, 180

Contract Services 5, 385, 850 5, 690, 300 5, 911, 760

Recreation Facility Costs 64, 290 65, 600 53, 500

Total Expenditures 12, 084, 630    $   13, 013, 500    $   13, 153, 490

I,
r

19



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY 2017® 8 Operating Budget

General Fund Expenditure Summary by
Department and Division

20



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

Expenditures by Department and Division
GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT/ DIVISION
2015,/ 16 FY 2016/ 17 FY 2017/ 18

ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

CITY COUNCIL

City Council

Salaries 17, 180    $ 20, 600    $ 22, 700

Retirement 5, 570 4, 100 4, 930

Benefits- Other 9, 690 20,800 21, 280

Services& Supplies 37, 340 42, 800 43, 950

TOTAL CITY COUNCIL 69,780   $     _  88, 300 92 860

CITY MANAGER

City Manager Division

Salaries 118, 640    $      163, 800    $      177, 700

Retirement 49, 050 30, 800 38, 540

Benefits- Other 21, 090 27, 900 29, 270

Services& Supplies 81, 340 35, 800 37, 000

Total City Manager Division 270, 120 258, 300 282,510

Human ResourcesDivision

Salaries 49, 000 51, 800

Retirement 10, 400 12, 300

Benefits- Other 6, 000 6,010

Services& Supplies25,500 22, 700

Total Human Resources Division 90, 900 92, 810

City Clerk Division

Salaries 51, 700 54, 500

Retirement 11, 100 12, 850

Benefits- Other 6, 900 7, 210

Services& Supplies13, 700 15, 100

Total City Clerk Division 83, 400 89, 660

TOTAL CITY MANAGER 270, 12 0    $      432, 6® d 464, 980

t:

21



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

Expenditures by Department and Division

GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT/ DIVISION
2015/ 16 FY 2016/ 17 FY 2017/ 18

ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

CITY ATTORNEY

Code Enforcement 33, 010    $ 1, 500    $ 1, 500

Professional Services( Contract Salary)       159, 980 185, 000 155, 000

TOTAL CITY ATTORNEY 192, 990    $      186, 500 .   $-----------------------1.....56, 500

FINANCE

Salaries 119, 330    $      128, 400    $      126,350

Retirement 37, 990 25, 200 23, 170

Benefits- Other 28, 820 35, 200 28, 370

Services& Supplies 105, 010 92, 600 98, 700

TOTAL FINANCE 291, 150    $      281, 400    $      276, 590

LAW ENFORCEMENT

Sheriff' s Contract 4,992,840    $    5, 300, 000    $    5, 546, 600

Services& Supplies 47, 470 50, 000 107, 800

Animal Control 200, 020 203, 800 208, 660

TOTAL LAW ENFORCEMENT 5, 240, 330 5, 863, 06-0-,
W  ....$    

5, 553, 800 y 5, 863, 060 ,

FIRE

Salaries 2, 454, 520    $    2, 546, 200    $    2, 500, 460

Retirement 411, 220 439, 800 474, 140

Benefits- Other 459, 040 479, 000 496, 770

Services& Supplies 722,300 750, 200 808, 450

TOTAL FIRE 4, 047, 080    $    4, 215, 200    $    4, 279, 820

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

Planning

Salaries 170, 360    $      236, 200    $      253, 900

Retirement 66, 220 44, 700 55,440

Benefits- Other 29, 240 38, 600 40, 560

Services& Supplies 391, 000 364, 200 232, 300

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 656, 820    $  
Y

683, 700    $"-     582, 200

22



CITY OFLEMON GROVE

pYZo17' z8Operating Budget

Expenditures byDepartment and Division

GENERAL FUND

DEPARTIVIENT/ DIVISION
2015/ 16 FY 2016/ 17 FY 2017,118

ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

PUBLIC WORKS

Engineering Division

Salaries 50. 780 71, 200    $ 64, 240

Retirement 37' 610 9, 200 11, 880

Benefits Other 11' 070 11, 500 11, 900

Services& Supplies 198' 300 66' 200 154, 900

Total Engineering Division 297, 760 158,200 242,980

Administration Division

Salaries 24, 880 2I,800 22, 510

Retirement 9. 600 4, 600 5, 980

Benefits' 0thpr 10\ 270 10\ 300 10, 290

Services& Supplies 120, 650149, 80066, 450

Totm| Administrodmnoiv| don 165, 400 186500 10\* 30

Streets Division

Salaries 36, 600 43, 570

Retirement 7, 300 9\ 580

Benefits Other 9,500 I0,140

Services& Supplies 11,
1101,

110,12,
011,   109099 1

11

4
11

8
1

300

Total Streets Division 110' 020 222, 400 211, 690

Community Services Division

Salaries 112, 330 141, 100 153, 010

Retirement 22' 180 17, 100 19, 470

Benefits' Other 23' 990 28, 000 28, 460

Services& Supplies 57' 060 48. 300 70, 600

Recreation Facility Costs 64, 290 65600 53, 500

Total Community Services Division g\ aso 300, 100 325, 0* 0

Grounds Division

Benefits' Other 2, 300 4, 000 2, 300

Services& Supplies I92' 310 228, 600 226600

Tota| GvoundoDk/ ision 194, 620 233' 200 228\ 9¢ 0

23



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

Expenditures by Department and Division

GENERAL FUND

DEPARTMENT/ DIVISION
2015/ 16 FY 2016/ 17 FY 201 / 18

ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

PUBLIC WORKS( cont' d.)

Facilities Division

Salaries 111, 390    $      104, 600    $      104, 640

Retirement 31, 170 20, 600 23, 300

Benefits- Other 34, 630 30, 000 29, 970

Services& Supplies 91, 530 89, 400 82, 830

Total Facilities Division 268, 720      ............ 244, 600.._  -..................   240,7 .........40

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS 1, 316,360    $    1, 345, 000    $    1, 353, 980

NON- DEPARTMENTAL

Services& Supplies 227, 000 83, 500

TOTAL NON- DEPARTMENTAL 227, 000 83, 500

TOTAL GENERAL FUND

EXPENDITURES6
12, 084, 600     _ 13, 013, 500 13, 153,490

24



CITY OF LEMONOSB

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

General Fund Expenditures Detail by
De artment and Division

la

25



CITY OFLEMON GROVE

Pr2R17' 18Operating Budget

Expenditure Detail byDepartment and Division

GENERAL FUND

EXPENDITURES
2015/ 16 FY 2016/ 17 FY 2017)

ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

CITY COUNCIL

Salaries 17180    $ 20, 600    $ 2Z, 7O0

Total Salaries 17, 180 20, 600 22,700

Health Insurance 7' 280 18' 000 18' 450

Retiree Health 2, 140 2' 400 2' 450

Medicare 270 300 330

Life Insurance 100 50

Retirement 5, 57O 4' 100 4 3O

Total Benefits 4, 9U   --      26, 210

Community Promotions 2, 500 2' 500 3' 000

Computer Maintenance 4, 120 3' 400 3' 400

Copier Rental 200 200

Insurance Premium Liability 1, 200 800 800

Insurance Premium Property 290 hVO hOO

Membership& Dues 21, 160 23, 000 23, 000

Mileage 3, 910 4, 200 5, 300

Office Supplies 250 ZOO 1, 000

Travel& Meetings 1, 390 5, 000 3, 750

Ut||| des' Gas& Electric 2, 520 2. 9OO 2, 900

ot| e xioms upp| es 4, O0   ---------- 43, 950

TOTAL CITY CQUNC| L 69, 780

26



CITY OpLEMON GROVE

FvZVz7- z8Operating Budget

Expenditure Detail byDepartment and Division

GENERAL FUND

EXPENDITURES
2015/ 16 FY 2016/ 17 FY 2017111A

ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

CITY MANAGER

City Manaper Division

Salaries 118. 480 163, 800    $      174' 000

Overtime160 37O0

Total Salaries 118, 640 163, 800 177, 780

Health Insurance 12, 520 15, 900 10, 200

Retiree Health 2' 750 4, 300 5' 500

Deferred Compensation 900 3, 200 3' 240

Employee Assistance Program 60 50

Worker' s Compensation 1' 100 800 800

Medicare 2, 790 2' 400 2' 580

Life Insurance 230 00 160

Long Term Disability 800 1' 200 740

Retirement 49, 050 30, 800 38, 540

Total Benefits 46,14 ou 6/, 810

Computer Maintenance 9, 340 5, 000 5, 000

Copier Rental 1, 970 700 1' 500

Insurance Premium' Liability 4, 640 2, 000 2' 400

Insurance Premium Property 1' 160 2' 700 2' 700

Membership& Dues 1' 910 700 700

Mileage 2' 300 3, 200 3, 200

Office Supplies 6' 460 3, 500 3' 500

Professional Services 41, 540 10, 000 I0'000

Publishing 3, 570

Subscriptions & 800ks 180

Training 1, 920 1, 000 1' 000

Travel& Meetings 1, 360 1, 500 1, 500

Utilities Gas& Electric 2, 520 3, 100 3' 100

Utilities Telephone 2, 220 2, 100 2' 100

Utilities Water 250 300 300

Total Services& Supplies 8i.340 3s' 8
11

00 37, 000

Total City Manager Division i* 1i6 2so, aon 282' 510

Human Resources Division

Salaries 49, 000 52' 7

Total Salaries 49, 000 51, 760

Health Insurance 5' 008 5' 040

Employee Assistance Program 50 10

Worker' s Compensation 200 200

Medicare 700 750

Life Insurance 50 10

27



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

Expenditure Detail by Department and Division

GENERAL FUND

EXPENDITURES
2015/ 16 FY 2016/ 17 FY 2017/ 18

ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

CITY MANAGER( cont' d.)

Human Resources Division( cont- d.)

Retirement 10, 400    $ 12, 300

Total Benefits 16,400 18,310

Computer Maintenance 200 2, 000

Copier Rental 200 200

Employee Recognition 1, 500 1, 500

Health Exams 3, 000

Insurance Premium- Liability 500 400

Insurance Premium- Property 300 300

Membership& Dues 2, 000 500

Mileage 600 500

Office Supplies 200 300

Personnel Recruitment 6, 000 5, 500

Professional Services 1, 000 2, 000

Training 8, 000 3, 000

Travel& Meetings 3, 500 2, 000

Utilities- Gas& Electric 200 200

Utilities- Telephone 200 200

Utilities- Water 100 100

Wellness Program 1, 000 1, 000

Total Services& Supplies25, 500 22, 700

Total Human Resources Division 90, 900 92, 770

City Clerk Division

Salaries 51, 700 54, 540

Total Salaries 51, 700 54, 540

Health Insurance 5, 400 5, 490

Employee Assistance Program 50 20

Worker' s Compensation 200 200

Medicare 700 790

0(p, Insurance 0 20

Long Term Disability 500 690

Retirement 11, 100 12, 850

Total Benefits 18, 000.     ....     ............._.20, 0600

Computer Maintenance 200 2, 000

Copier Rental 200 200

Insurance Premium- Liability 500 400

Insurance Premium- Property 300 300



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

Expenditure Detail by Department and Division
GENERAL FUND

m

EXPENDITURES
20' 1. 5/ 16 FY 2016/ 17 FY 2017/ 18

ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

CITY MANAGER( cont' d.)

City Clerk Division( cont' d.)

Membership& Dues 300    $   300

Mileage 400 300

Office Supplies 500 800

Printing 1, 000 500

Professional Services 1, 500 1, 500

Publishing 5, 000 6, 000

Training 2, 000 1, 000

Travel& Meetings 1, 000 1, 000

Utilities- Gas& Electric 500 500

Utilities- Telephone 200 200

Utilities- Water 100 100
a

Total Services& Supplies 13, 700 15, 100

Total Cit Clerk Division 83, 400City 3 400 89, 700

TOTAL CITY MANAGER 270, 120   $      432, 600      464, 980'

29



CITY OFLEMON GROVE

pr2Qzs- 10Operating Budge

Expenditure Detail byDepartment and Division

GENERAL FUND

EXPENDITURES
2015/ 16 FY 2016/ 17 FY 2017/ 18

ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

CITY ATTORNEY

Code Enforcement 33, 010    $ 1, 500 I,500

Professional Services( Non' Sa| ary)   159. 980 185, 000 155, 000

TOTAL CITY ATTORNEY 192p990 186, 500    $

30



CITY OFLEMON GROVE

FY2O17- 10Operating Budget

Expenditure Detail bVDepartment and Division

GENERAL FUND

EXPENDITURES
2015/ 16 FY 2016/ 17 FY 2017/ 18

ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

FINANCE

Salaries 119' 270    $      128' 400 102, 600

Overtime 50

Part- Time 23750

Total Salahes 119, 330 128, 400 126, 350

Health Insurance 18, 140 22' 000 15, 210

Retiree Health 4, 020 8, 000 7' 960

Employee Assistance Program IOU 70

Worker' s Compensation 3' 940 2' 400 2, 400

Medicare 9' 220 1' 900 1, 830

Life Insurance 210 100 40

Long Term Disability 290 700 860

Retirement 37, 99n 25208 23' 170

Total Benefits 66, 810 60,400 51, 540

Computer Maintenance 9' 250 15, 000 12' 000

Copier Rental 1, 970 2, 000 3, 000

Credit Card & Bank Fees 16' 880 18' 000 18, 000

Insurance Premium' Liability 3, 608 2' 250 2' 400

nsumncePnemium- Prnperty 190 550 600

Membership& Dues 510 1, 100 500

Mileage 660 800 500

Office Supplies 4, 590 3' 500 3' 000

Pcnonnr| Recruitment/ 3c| nction 440

Printing 830 100 400

Professional Services 59' 620 40' 000 50' 000

Publishing 130

Training 1, 060 2, 400 2' 400

Travel& Meetings 60 100 lOO

Utilities Gas& Electric 2' 520 3' 800 5, 800

Utilities Telephone 2' 520 2, 700 2, 700

Utilities' Water 180 900 300

Total Services& Supplies 5, 010 92\ 600 98, 700

TOTAL FINANCE

az



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

Expenditure Detail by Department and Division
GENERAL FUND

PP„ e

EXPENDITURES
2015/ 16 FY 20L6/ 17 FY 2017/ 18

ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

LAW ENFORCEMENT

Sheriff

Contract Services 4, 992, 840    $    5, 300, 000    $    5, 546, 600

800 MHz 23, 430 25, 500 34, 300

Arjis 16, 330 16, 300 16, 300

Calld 6, 330 6, 400 6, 400

RCS Lease 49, 000

Utilities- Water 1, 380 1, 800 1, 800

Animal Control,
Contract Services 188, 650 192, 700 195, 560

After Hours Calls 7, 500 3, 600 3, 600

Fuel- Animal Control Vehicle 3, 870 5, 000 7, 000

Repairs- Animal Control Vehicle 2, 500 2, 500

TOTAL LAW ENFORCEMENT 5, 240, 330'   $    5-,-5-53, 800    $    5, 863, 060

32



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY2017- 18Operating Budget

Expenditure Detail byDepartment and Division

GENERAL FUND

ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

p| ms

Salaries 1' 577, 140    $    1, 805, 400    $    1840\720

Constant Staffing Scheduled 121' 390 130\800 128, 700

Constant Staffing Unscheduled 447. 780 500\000 300\ 000

Holiday Pay 45. 940 50\000 54' 000

JPA Reconciliation 71, 390 100\ 000

Overtime 7' 160

Part- Time 40' 060 40\ 000 12' 040

Reimbursable Overtime 25' 220 45' 000

Uniform Allowance 1744O20,000 ZC\ OOO

Total Salaries 2, 454, 520 2, 546, 200 2, 500, 460

Health Insurance 199' 900 242' 100 226' 800

Retiree Health 73' 080 84' 000 84, 000

Employee Assistance Program 000 590

Paramedic Recertification 42, 590 44, 000 50, 000

EMT' D[ Incentive 1, 140

Education Award 8. 350 10, 700 10' 700

Worker' s Compensation 98' 990 68' 800 90' 000

Medicare 35' 590 28' 100 34' 150

Life Insurance 700 530

Retirement 411' 220 439800 474, 140

Total Benefits 870' 260 918, 800 970, e10

ALS Supplies Pass Thru 45' 550 20' 000 26, 000

City Emergency Preparedness 25' 430 24' 500 4' 500

Communication Equipment 9' 700

Community Risk Reduction/ Fire Prevention 1' 000 2, 500 5' 200

Computer Maintenance 18' 280 25' 000 20\ 000

Copier Rental 1' 340 2' 400 2, 400

Departmental Expenditures 9, 770 10\ 000 l[\OOU

Dispatch Services 240' 100 265' 000 262, 000

Fire Prevention Software 6' 700

Fire Station Supplies 4' 140 5' 000 5' 000

Fire Truck Purchase 86, 090 86' 700 86' 700

Fuel 21, 330 25' 000 20' 000

Hazmat Emergency Response 20' 000

Health Examinations 10' 540 8' 300 8' 300

Insurance Premium Liability 33' 200 24' 000 25, 900

Insurance Premium' Property 6. 260 17' 100 17, 100

JPA Reconciliation Expenditures 3, 460 1. 500 2, 500

JPA Reimbursable Expenditures 810 1' 500

Lease Payment 22, 620

Membership& Dues 790 800 600

Office Supplies 1' 480 2, 300 2' 500

33



CITY DpLEMON GROVE

pY2O17- 18Operating Budget

Expenditure Detail byDepartment and Division

GENERAL FUND

EXPENDITURES
2015/ 16 FY 2016/ 17 FY 201vii

ACTUAL BUDGET BUD(

RRE( c" ntx.)

Patient Care Reporting PassTh/ u 1, 940 g 5, 800    $ 5' 800

Personal Exposure Reporting 290 300 300

Personal Protective Clothing 13' 640 16, 000 20, 000

Personnel Recruitment 2' 050

RCCPReimbuoab| e 38' 500

Repair& Maintenance- Equipment 4` 820 4, 500 4' 500

Repair& Kxaintenance- Vehides 64, 230 75, 000 75, 000

Reserve Firefighter Expense 5,420 6, 000 6, 000

Self- Contained Breathing Apparatus( 5CBA)    4, 100 4, 500 5' 000

Subscriptions QBooks 1, 000 1, 000

TIP Trauma Intervention Program 3, 830 3, 800 3' 850

Tools& Supplies 3, 830 4' 500 10. 000

Training 36, 610 39' 000 39' 000

Training- AMR Pass Thru 4, 940 19' 100 19, 100

Travel& Meetings 3, 000

Uniforms 4, 050 5, 000 1, 000

Utilities- Gas& Electric 18, 580 I2,000 22, 000

Utilities Telephone 5, 390 5, 500 5, 500

Utilities' Water 1' 800 3, 000 3, 000

Vehicle Supplies 2, 300 I,300 2, 300

Weed Abatement Expenditures 5' 800 b' OUO 7000

Total Services& Supplies 722, 300 750, 200 808, 450

TOTAL FIRE

34



CITY opLEMON GROVE

pvzot7' zoOperating Budget

Expenditure Detail bvDepartment and Division

GENERAL FUND

EXPENDITURES
2015/ 16 FY 2016/ 17 FY 2017/ 18

ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

Planning Division

Salaries 170' 300 226, 200 241' 570

Overtime 2, 330

Part- Time 10, 000 10,000

Total Salaries 170, 360 236.200 253, 900

Health Insurance 19' 340 26' 700 27, 720

Retiree Health 3' 060 4' 300 3' 980

Employee Assistance Program 100 80

Worker' s Compensation 3, 070 2, 400 2' 400

Medicare 2' 460 3, 400 3, 680

Life Insurance 100 80

Long Term Disability 1' 310 1, 500 3, 620

Retirement 66' 220 44. 700 55, 440

Total Benefits 95, 460 83, 300 96, 000

Computer Maintenance 12' 530 11' 000 14, 000

Copier Rental 2' 340 4' 000 3, 300

Fuel 1, 370 1' 500 500

Insurance Premium' Liability 6i080 4, 500 4, 900

Insurance Premium' Property 1' 160 3, 300 3, 300

Membership& Dues 1' 520 1' 500 1. 800

Mileage 1. 820 2. 100 2, 600

Noticing 3' 680 3. 000 5, 000

Office Supplies 4' 500 4' 000 4, 700

p000nne| Reuuitment/ So| octinn 950

P| an[ hecko/ Conou| mdons 349' 080 315, 000 I80. 000

Printing 300 300

Professional Services 540 1, 000 1, 000

Repair& Maintenance Vehicles lO 200 ZUO

Subscriptions& Books 90 400 300

Training 790 3' 000 1, 500

Travel& Meetings 300 1, 500 1, 000

Utilities Gas& Electric 2' 520 4` 400 4` 400

Utilities' Telephone 2' 500 3' 000 3, 000

Utilities Water 280 500 500

Tota| Se, Nces& Supplies 3e1' 000 364' 200 232, 300

Total Planning Division 656' 820 683, 700 582' 200

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 65 1926 6o37n0s 582a00

35



CITY orLEMON GROVE

FrZVz7' z8Operating Budget

Expenditure Detail byDepartment and Division

GENERAL FUND

EXPENDITURES
2015/ 16 FY 2016/ 17 FY 2017/ 18

ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

pVoUCxvOmx3

Engineering Division

Salaries 51' 920    $ 46, 300    $ 52, 390

Overtime 20 950

Part- Time 115D)     24, 900 10, 900

Total Salaries 50' 780 71, 300 64' 240

Health Insurance 6, 680 5, 300 0' 750

Retiree Health 610 1' 800 1, 840

Employee Assistance Program 50 20

Worker' s Compensation 2' 700 2' 400 2' 400

Medicare 850 1' 000 930

Life Insurance 10 50 20

Long Term Disability 220

Retirement 37610 9200 11880

Total Benefits 48, 680 20, 800 23, 040

Computer Maintenance 10\ 400 7, 100 9, 000

Copier Rental 2' 240 3, 000 3, 000

Development Support 2' 140 5, 900 4, 600

Fuel 1' 090 1, 400 1, 000

nsuranco- UabUby 5' 520 3, 750 4, 050

Insurance' Property 1' 060 2, 750 2, 750

Membership& Dues 220 900

Mileage 550 500 600

Office Supplies 3' 7/ 0 2, 300 3, 700

Printing 1, 000

Professional Services 140. 740 2' 000 98, 000

Protective Clothing 500

Repair& Maintenance- Vehicles 1' 000

Training 490 500

Travel& Meetings 500

Utilities' Traffic Signals 24. 720 28' 600 25, 000

Utilities Telephone 5, 060 5, 000 3, 000

Utilities Water 350 600 300

Total Services& Supplies 190, 300 86, 200 154' 900

Total Engineering Division 297, 76¢    158\200 242, 980

Administrative Division

Salaries 24,880Zl'OUO 22' 510

Total Salaries 24, 880 21, 800 22^510

Health Insurance 2. 630 2' 700 2' 700

Employee Assistance Program 50 10

36



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY201r- 1QOperating Budget

Expenditure Detail byDepartmentandDivisimn

GENERAL FUND

EXPENDITURES
2015/ 16 FY 2016/ 17 FY 2017/ 18

PUBL| CVVORKS( mm'o.)

A u)

Worker' s Compensation 6, 750    $ 7' 000    $ 7, 000

Medicare 390 300 330

Life Insurance OU 10

Long Term Disability 500 200 240

Retirement 9, 600 4, 600 5' 380

Total Benefits 1e, 8/ 0 14, 910 5, 6/ 0

Computer Maintenance 9, 940 8' 000 11, 800

Copier Rental 1' 800 3, 000 4, 800

Insurance Premium Liability 2, 480 1, 500 1' 500

Insurance Premium Property 960 2' 750 2. 750

Marketing Supplies 5, 080 7' 000 6' 000

Membership& Dues 1, 380 1, 700 l' OOO

Mileage 570 1, 200 OU

Office Supplies 3' 540 2, 000 2' 400

Professional Services 64, 550 93, 000

Protective Clothing 5, 760 7' 000 13, 000

Repair& Maintenance Equipment 900 900 900

Software( Minor)    5' 400

Training 16' 740 13. 000 9, 000

Travel& Meetings 70 500 1' 000

Utilities Gas& Electric 2' 520 4, 400 2' 500

Utilities Telephone 3, 150 3' 500 2' 500

Utilities VVate/    210 300 900

Total Services& Supplies 120, 650 149\750 66, 450

Total Administrative Division 165, 400 186.460 104, 630

Streets Division

Salaries 35' 100 41' 790

Overtime 1500 1880

Total Salaries 36, 600 3, 6/ 0

Health Insurance 6, 800 6' 980

Retiree Health 310

Employee Assistance Program 50 ZO

Worker' s Compensation 1, 800 1' 800

Medicare 500 630

Life Insurance 60 20

Long Term Disability 300 380

Retirement 73OO 9. 580

Total Benefits 16, 820 19,720

Computer Maintenance 5' 030 4' 500 6, 400

Contract Services 1' 730 5' 000 5' 000

Copier Rental 400 400

37 U



U

CITY OFLEMON GROVE

FY2017'% 8Operating Budget

Expenditure Detail byDepartment and Division

GENERAL FUND

EXPENDITURES
2015/ 16 FY 2016/ 17 FY 2027/ 18

ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

PUBLIC WORKS( c" mu.)

Streets Division( c= mu)

Cost Recovery Expenditures 1, 000    $ 1, 000

Dead Animal Removal 1, 980 2, 100 2, 000

Equipment Rental External 9, 580 9. 000 7, 000

Fuel 11, 790 15, 000 I2, 500

Graffiti Cleanup 2, 170 1, 800 1, 800

Health Exams 380 200 500

Herbicides/ Pesticides 1, 040 I,000 1, 000

Insurance Premium' Liability 5, 280 3, 750 4, 050

Insurance Premium Property 950 2, 750 2, 750

Membership& Dues 330 500 500

Office Supplies 120 200 200

Permit Expenses 290 400 400

Protective Clothing 240 13, I00

Repair& Maintenance' Equipment 14, 870 15, 000 17' 500

Repair& Maintenance' Sidewalk 5, 000 5, 000

Repair& Maintenance- StonnDrain 5, 140 15, 000 15, 000

Repair& Maintenance Vehicles 15, 860 21, 000 18, 500

Street Sweeping 14, 110 14, 000 14,000

Tools& Supplies 6, 120 18, 000 18, 000

UtU| ties- Gas& Becthc 450 1, 300 1, 300

UtUiUes- Te| ephnne 4, 550 3, 500 3, 500

UtiUdex- VVater 7, 990 15, 500 10. 000

Total Services& Supplies O    1 8, V    148, 300

Total Streets Division 110\ 020 222, 420 211, 690

Community Services Division

Salaries 66, 650 86' 000 85' 990

Overtime 430 1, 720

Part- Time 45, 250 55100 6I300

Total Salaries 112, 330 141, 100 153, 010

Health Insurance 8, 170 13" 500 13k500

Retiree Health 6' 120 6, 100 6, 120

Employee Assistance Program 50 40

Worker' s Compensation 4` 540 5, 600 5, 600

Medicare 3, 660 1' 800 2, 2I0

Life Insurance 50 40

Long Term Disability 720 900 940

Retirement 2I, 180 I7' 100 19' 470

Unemployment 780

Total Benefits 46, 170 45, 100 47' 9'3"o

Computer Maintenance 4' 720 1, 000 4' 000

38



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

Expenditure Detail by Department and Division
GENERAL FUND

EXPENDITURES
2015/ 16 FY 2016/ 17 FY 2017/ 18

UAL5 BUDGET BUDGET

PUBLIC WORKS( cont' d.)

Community Services Division( cont' d.)

Contract Services 620    $   800    $ 1, 000

Copier Rental 1, 000 800

Credit Card Fees 1, 000

Day Camp 17, 120 12, 000 25, 000

Equipment Rental 2, 000 1, 800 1, 800

Health Exams 100 100 500

Insurance Premium- Liability 2, 480 1, 500 1, 600

Insurance Premium- Property 190 600 600

Maintenance- Supplies 20 100 100

Membership& Dues 50 100 100

Mileage 100 100

Office Supplies 870 500 1, 000

Personnel Recruitment 60

Printing 500 500

Rental Expense 3, 860 5, 000 6, 000

Repair& Maintenance- Equipment 280 500 500

Special Events 24, 690 21, 700 27, 000

Training 80 100

Utilities- Gas& Electric 41, 820 44, 000 35, 000

Utilities- Telephone 5, 130 5, 500 5, 500

Utilities- Water 17, 260 16, 000 13, 000

Total Services& Supplies 121, 350 113, 900 124, 100

Total Community Services Division 279, 850 300, 100 325,040

Grounds Division

Retiree Health 2, 300 4, 600 2, 300

Total Benefits 2, 300 4, 600 2, 300

Contract Services 113, 040 115, 000 120, 000

Maintenance- Lighting 1, 180 2, 200 2, 200

Maintenance- Supplies 13, 050 22, 000 22, 000

Tree Trimming 21, 730 19, 000 25, 000

Utilities- Gas & Electric 4, 310 4, 400 4, 400

Utilities- Telephone 2, 870 3, 000 3, 000

Utilities- Water 36, 130 63, 000 50, 000

Total Services& Supplies 192, 310 228, 600 226, 600

Total Grounds Division 194, 610 233, 200 228, 900

39
I'



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY2O17- 18Operating Budget

Expenditure Detail byDepartment and Division

GENERAL FUND

EXPENDITURES
2015/ 16 FY 2016/ 17 FY 26fi/ i8

ACTUALS BUDGET BUDGET

PUBLIC WORKS( comm.)

Facilities Division

Salaries 85, 570    $      102, 100    $      101, 950

Overtime 2, 320 2, 500 2' 680

Part- Time 23500

Total Salaries 111, 390 104, 600 104,640-

Health Insurance 21' 870 I8, 000 18, 000

Retiree Health 3, 050 2, 400 2, 450

Employee Assistance Program 100 50

Worker' s Compensation 5' 770 7, 000 7, 000

Medicare 2, 540 1, 500 1' 520

Life Insurance 280 100 50

Long Term Disability 1, 110 900 900

Retirement 3117DIO, 60O I3300

Total Benefits O, OQ   ------------ 53, 270

Advertising 300 300

Computer Maintenance 3, 800 2, 200 2' 500

Contract Services 7, 470 10' 000 l[\OOO

Copier Rental 200 200

Cost Recovery 600

Equipment Rental 70 ZOU ZOO

Fuel 2, 010 2, 500 2, 430

Health Examinations 1, 900 100

Insurance Premium Liability I,640 2, 300 2, 300

Insurance Premium Property 480 1' 100 1, 100

Maintenance' Services 21' 700 15' 000 15. 000

Maintenance' Supplies 28, 050 28, 000 28, 000

Memberships& Dues 40

Repair& Maintenance 11, 630 10, 000 10, 000

Repair& Maintenance' ADA 1, 000 1, 000

Repair& Maintenance Equipment 2, 290 2, 000 I,000

Repair& Maintenance- Vehicles 600

Special District Assessment 5' 300

Tools& Supplies 2, 430 3, 000 3, 000

Utilities' Gas Q Electric 2, 890 4, 000 3, 000

Utilities' Telephone 2, 350 1, 600 1, 600

Utilities' Water 380 100 lOO

Total Services& Supplies 91, 530 89, 400 82, 830-

Total Facilities Division 268, 720 244, 600 240, 740

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS 1, 31-6, 360 1, 345, 000

40



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY2O17' l8Operating Budget

Expenditure Detail byDepartment and Division

GENERALFUNQ

EXPENDITURES
2015/ 16 FY 2016/ 17 FY 2017/ 18

ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

NOW DEPARTMENTAL

Animal Control Vehicle( carryover)   60\ 000    

Audio Visual Equipment 1, 500

General Election Costs 32, 000

General Plan Update( carryovor)   100, 000 76, 000

Maintenance Yard Security Gate 11, 000

Thermal Camera' Fire 12, 000

Vacation PuyoO 12, 090 7, 8OO

TOTAL WO0- OEPARTK8EWTAL 227, 000    $       83, 500

TOTAL GENERAL FUND 08
1

4
1 11,

600 Y3, 1-53, MO

41



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY 2027- 18 Operating Budget

OtherFunds

42



CITY OFLEMON GROVE

FY2VIFz8Operating Budget

GAS TAX FUND- HIGHWAY USER TAX

FUND 02

FUND ACTIVITY
2015/ 16 FY 201C)/ 17 FY 2017/ 8

ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

geG| Nm| NGpUNDBALAN[ E July 95, 730     $ 2, 510)    $      117, 490

Adjustment tnestimated Fund Balance 263' 190)

Revenues

Highway Users Tax Section 21O3 120, 110 61' 700 106' 600

Highway Users Tax Section Zl05 147' 000 183' 600 154,700

Highway Users Tax Section 21O5 101, 840 84' 600 98, 200

Highway Users Tax Section 2IO7 179' 430 237' 200 199' 800

Highway Users Tax Section Z1O7. 5 6, 000 6' 000 5' 000

Highway Users Tax Section 203O 153, 000

State Loan Repayment 30' 500

Transfer from General Fund 100, 000

Transfer from Sanitation District 100' 000 100,000 100000

Total Resources 750, 160 740, 590 703, 100

Expenditures

Salaries 444' 790 415' 500 418, 430

Overtime 15. 010 7' 600 11, 930

Part- Time 10' 110 8000

Total Salaries uy, yzu 429, 100 430, 360

Health insurance 76, 650 70' 000 68, 310

Retiree Health 8, 940 8' 100 10, 340

Deferred Compensation 570 600 600

Employee Assistance Program 200 180

Worker' s Compensation 18' 150 16' 200 16' 200

Medicare 7' 450 6, 200 6' 240

Life Insurance 820 ZOU 200

Long Term Disability 4, 200 2' 800 2, 860

Reti/emeot161 140 85,80096'210

Total Benefits i77, 92O i,§,  100 201, 140

Mileage 4' 840 3, 900 3' 900

Professional Services 42, 000

Transfer tuCity for Administration 44500

Total Services& Supplies 4, 840 90V 90, 400

Total Expenditures 52, 6/ 0 62*, 100 21, 900

ENDING FUND BALANCE' June 30 2' 510)   217, 498    &       ( 18, 800)

43



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

STREET CONSTRUCTION RESERVE FUND

FUND 03

ACTIVITY
2015/ 16

FUND
FY 2016/ 17 FY 2017/ 18

ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE- July 1 156, 980    $      158, 280     $ 8, 680

Adjustment to estimated Fund Balance 460

Revenues

Interest 1, 300 400 400

Total Resources 158, 280 158, 680 9, 540

Projects

Lemon Grove Avenue Realignment Project 150, 000 9, 000

p o..,
e    ...°..........

150, 000
w ....,.  ,.—_,...

9, 000.....Total Expenditures

ENDING FUND BALANCE- June 30 158, 280    $ 8, 680    $   540

44



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

PARK LAND DEDICATION ORDINANCE

FUND 05

FUND ACTIVITY
2025/ 26 FY 2016/ 17 FY 2017/ 18

ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE- July 1 51, 330 113, 190    $       43, 190

Adjustment to estimated Fund Balance 4, 600

Revenues

Development Fees 64, 880 10,000 10,000

Interest810

Total Resources 117, 020 123, 190 57, 790

Projects

Berry Street Park Gazebo 80, 000

Park Improvements 3, 830 50,000

Total Expenditures 3, 830 80, 000 50, 000

ENDING FUND BALANCE- June 30 113, 190    $       43, 190    $ 7, 790

45



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

GENERAL RESERVE FUND

FUND 06

FUND ACTIVITY
2015/ 16 FY 2016/ 17 FY 2017/ 18

ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE- July 1 1, 343, 400    $      488, 160    $      493, 160

Adjustment to estimated Fund Balance 4, 980)

Revenues

Interest 6, 490 5, 000 5, 000

Other 65, 200

Transfer from SIWC Reserve 25, 000

Total Resources 1, 440, 090 493, 160 493, 180

Expenditures

General Plan Update 40, 860

Payback to State 558, 950

Vacation Pay Off 62, 650

Capital Asset Purchases

Fire Equipment 79, 870

Facility Replacement- City Hall 8, 020

Facility Replacement- Public Works 183, 380

Animal Control Vehicle 18, 200
0     .   

Total Expenditures 951,930

ENDING FUND BALANCE- June 30 488, 160    $      493, 160    $      493, 180

46



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

SUPPLEMENTAL LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES

FUND 07

Citizen' s Option for Public Safety( COPS)

FUND ACTIVITY
24115/ 16 FY 2016/ 17 FY 2017/ 18

ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET
1,1- 1, 11......................

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE- July 1 40)   $       14, 580    $ 14, 580

Revenues

Annual Allocation 114, 620 100, 000 100, 000

Total Resources 114, 580 114, 580 114, 580

Expenditures

Transfer to City for Administration& Operations 100, 000 100, 000 114, 600

Total Expenditures 100, 000 100, 000 114, 600

ENDING FUND BALANCE- June 30 14, 580    $       14, 580    $    20)

47



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

GRANTS

FUND 08

FUND ACTIVITY
2015/ 16 FY 2016/ 17 FY 2017/ 18

ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE- July 1 93, 210)   $    

Revenues

Grant Revenues& Reimbursements 1, 101, 870

Total Resources 1, 008, 660

Expenditures

Public Safety
Disaster Preparedness Grants

Homeland Security Grants( SHSGP)    19, 370

UASI- Urban Area Security Initiative 1, 770

Department of Justice Grant 10, 850

Miscellaneous

Beverage Container Recycling Program 7, 100 7, 000

HEAL Zone Grant 46, 770

Safe Routes to School( Non- Infrastructure)   50, 040

Champs Program 20, 000

Irrigation Controller 47, 520

Systemic Safety Analysis 30, 690

Skate Park Expansion 85, 000

Capital Projects

Promenade Extension Planning 116, 890

Safe Routes to School( Federal)- Palm/ Golden 681, 420

Connect Main Street 379, 500

Total Expenditures
M

9p 23, 360 553, 560 27, 000

ENDING FUND BALANCE- June 30 85, 300    $     ( 553, 560)   $       ( 27, 000)

h

l

48



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT

FUND 09

FUND ACTIVITY
2015/ 16 FY 2016/ 17 FY 2017/ 18

ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE- July 1 440)   $    

Adjustment to estimated Fund Balance

Revenues

Allocation 173, 740 179, 500

Other Revenue440

Total Resources 173, 740 179,500

Expenditures

Golden Avenue Overlay 179, 500

Street/ Sidewalk Rehabilitation 173, 740
1111...._    .....,___

Total Expenditures 173, 740 179, 500

ENDING FUND BALANCE- June 30

49



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT( TDA)

FUND 10

TransNet Article 4

FUND
ACTUAL BUDGET

7 FY 2017/ 18
ACTIVITY

BUDGET

2015/ 16 FY 2016 1

1- 1--   J
BEGINNING FUND BALANCE- July 1 20, 900)   $      213, 460

Adjustment to estimated Fund Balance 190, 000)

Revenues,

Annual Allocation 121, 170 121,200 121, 200

Other Revenue( unallocated)      237, 400

Interest 160 100 100

Total Resources 121, 330 337, 800 144, 760

Expenditures

Salaries 48, 790 39, 400 24, 200

Overtime 220 120

Total Salaries 49, 010 39, 400 24, 320

Health Insurance 5, 420 4, 900 2, 880

Retiree Health 320 300 370

Deferred Compensation 30 100

Employee Assistance Program 20 10

Worker' s Compensation 100 100

Medicare 660 600 350

Life Insurance 10 20 10

Long Term Disability 560 300 220

Retirement 9, 770 8, 200 5, 700

Total Benefits 16, 770 14,5490 9, 640

Mileage 720 300 200

Capital Expenditures- Bus Shelter Replacement

Broadway/ LGA Roadway Repairs
Professional Services

Repair& Maintenance- Bus Shelter 42, 540

Repair& Maintenance- Trolley Facility

Trolley Corridor Landscape Maintenance 15, 790 52, 700 52, 700

Transfer to General Fund- Administration 17, 400 17, 400 17, 400

Total Projects 76, 450 70,400 70, 300

Total Expenditures 142, 230 124, 340 104, 260

ENDING FUND BALANCE- June 30 20, 900)   $      213, 460    $ 40, 500

i

I

50



CITY opLEMON GROVE

Prao1r' 1nOperating Budget

LEMON GROVE ROADWAY LIGHTING m| sTn|[ T

FUND 11

GENERAL BENEFIT

FUND ACTIVITY
2015/ 16 FY 2 O 16/ 17 FY 2017/ 18

ACTUAL BUDGET BUD

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE' July 1 271, 660    $      362, 330    $      386, 530

Adjustment toestimated Fund Balance 13' 900

Reserve for Street Light Improvement 30, 580 30, 600 30' 600

Revenues

General Lighting Assessment 175' 970 105,000 I65' 000

Interest 2' 980 400400

Total Resources 450' 600 517' 730 565. 838

Expenditures

Salaries 12, 980 18, 100 18' 400

Overtime 30 140

Total Salaries 13, 010 10, 100 18\ 600

Health Insurance 1' 660 2' 500 2' 250

Retiree Health 490 600 640

Deferred Compensation 30 80 80

Employee Assistance Program 10 10

Worker' s Compensation

Medicare 230 300 270

Life Insurance 20 10 10

Long Term Disability 70 100 120

Retirement 1. 050 3' 700 4. 280

TotalaeneOts 3' 530 7' 200 7. 560

Mileage 280 1' 000 1, 000

Professional Services 16, 500 I' 800

Repair& Maintenance Street Lights 3' 100 5, 000 6, 000

Utilities Street Lights 68' 950 74, 000 80' 000

Transfer tnCity for Administration 9' 400 9. 400 9400

Total Operations mz,/ ou 105, 900 99\ 200

Total Expenditures 9i,,276zi,ono za, ouo

EN0mGpUmDB4L4NCE'] une30 352, 330    $      386, 530 440, 471

51



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

LEMON GROVE ROADWAY LIGHTING DISTRICT

FUND 12

LOCAL BENEFIT ASSESSMENT

V
FUND ACTIVITY

2015/ 16 FY 2016/ 17 FY 2017/ 18

ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE- July 1 147, 710    $       32, 890    $       ( 81, 760)

Adjustment to estimated Fund Balance 5, 240)

Revenues

Local Benefit Lighting Assessment 87, 060 86, 700 87, 800

Interest 570 500 500

Total Resources 235, 340 120, 090 1, 300

Expenditures

Salaries 41, 490 54, 400 55, 400

Overtime 100410

Total Salaries 41, 590 54, 400 55, 810

Health Insurance 4, 690 7, 400 6, 750

Retiree Health 1, 410 1, 500 1, 600

Deferred Compensation 120 200 220

Employee Assistance Program 20 10

Worker' s Compensation 300 300

Medicare 760 800 810

Life Insurance 60 30 30

Long Term Disability 210 400 360

Retirement 11, 590 11, 000 12, 850

Total Benefits 18,840 21, 650
m

22, 930

Mileage 660 800 800

Professional Services 5, 050 5, 100 16, 300

Repair& Maintenance- Street Lights 6, 790 6, 000 6, 200

Utilities- Street Lights 113, 870 100, 000 100, 000

Street Light Repayment Program 10, 750 9, 000

Transfer to City for Administration 4, 900 4, 900 4, 900

Total Operatlons 142, 020     - -   125, 800 128, 200

Total Expenditures 202, 450 201, 850 206, 940

ENDING FUND BALANCE Jure 30 32„ 890    $       ( 81, 760)   $     ( 205, 640)

52



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

TRANSNET

FUND 14

Street Construction

FUNDACTIVITY
2015/ 16 FY 2016/ 17 FY 2017/ 18

ACTUAL BUDGET....................................................................,,,,,,,,,,,""'...........      BUDGET

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE- July 1 35, 110)    $     ( 301, 440)   $     ( 308, 300)

Revenues

Annual Allocation 818, 560 2, 346, 700 2, 346,700

Total Resources 783,450 2, 045, 260 2, 038,400

Expenditures

Salaries 75, 020 60, 800 60,360

Overtime 3, 280 3, 000 3, 760

Part-Time1, 500

Total Salaries 78, 300 65, 300 64, 120

Health Insurance 6, 040 12, 600 12, 600

Retiree Health 990 600

Employee Assistance Program 50 40

Worker' s Compensation 1, 600 1, 600

Medicare 990 900 930

Life Insurance 20 50 40

Long Term Disability 160 400 440

Retirement 22, 580 12, 700 13, 770
e-------------    - _.  

Total Benefits 30, 780 28, 300 30, 020

Mileage 170

Professional Services 42, 000

Lemon Grove Realignment( CR)- LG 13

Lemon Grove Realignment 1, 000, 000 1, 186, 000

Traffic Improvements( PM)- LG 14

Traffic Improvements( Citywide)     143, 040 120, 000 120, 000

Storm Drain Rehabilitation( PM)- LG 1.5

Storm Drain Maintenance( Citywide)  75, 150 88, 000 88, 000

Storm Drain Rehabilitation ( CR)- LG 16

Storm Drain Improvements 151, 660 39, 000 67, 000

Street Improvements

Street Improvement 62, 560 50, 000

Street Improvements( PM)- LG 17

Pavement Management 47, 520 50, 000

Traffic Improvements„ µ( CR),-LG

18 Traffic Signals 20, 000 20,

000 Street Improvements( CR)-LG

20 Street/Sidewalk Rehabilitation 396, 900 397, 000 397,

000 Main Street Promenade Extension( SGIP)- LG

21 Main Street 21,

000 Lemon Grove Realignment( SGIP)- LG

22 emon Grave Realignment 402,

000 Broadway Downtown Specific Plan( DVSP)- LG

23 Downtown Expansion 98, 980 123,

000 Total Projects 975, 810 2,260, 000 1,928,

000 Total Expenditures 1,084, 890 2,353, 600 2,064,

140 ENDING FUND BALANCE- June 30 301, 440)   $     (308, 300)   $       (25,

740)



CITY OFLEMON GROVE

FY2V17- 1BOperating Budget

LEMON GROVE SANITATION DISTRICT OPERATIONS

FUND 15

FUND ACTIVITY
2015/ 16 FY 2016/ 17 FY 2017/ 18

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE- July 2 8\ 217, 520    $    7, 777, 500 5, 713, 750

Adjustment toFund Balance

Revenues

Sewer Capacity Fee 37, 000 17, 000 17, 000

Interest 87, 590 21, 800 21, 800

Other Revenue 231' 010 587' 450 587' 450

Sewer Service Charges( net ofdelinquencies)     5. 994, 990 5, 929' 000 6' 356. 400

Sewer Service Charges- LG5Dand LK4 49, 430 50,000 50, 000

Total Resources 15, 617,540 14, 382, 750 12, 746, 400

Expenditures

Utilities 8. 500 7, 700 6, 500

Personnel 383, 640 1' 216' 500 1' 216, 490

Training& Travel 970 12, 000 2, 500

Vehicle& Equipment Maintenance 21, 290 35, 000 35, 000

Services& Supplies 4,020, 0I0 3, 045, 400 3, 672, 600

Transfer toGeneral Fund for Administration 552, 400 552, 400 552, 400

Transfer toGas Tax Fund for Operations 100, 000 100, 000 100, 000

Transfer toLGSanitation District Pure Water Reserve 3700000

Total Expenditures 5, 686, 810 8, 66$,$ 00 5, 585, 490

ENDING FUND BALANCE- June 3n 9, 930, 730    $    5, 713, 750    $    7, 160, 910

54



CITY oFLEMON GROVE

pvzoz7- zoOperating Budget

SANITATION OPERATIONS

FUND 15

EXPENDITURE DETAIL

ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

E? peqoitures
Salaries 741. 720 g 898,500 885' 960

Overtime 14' 700 14' 200 31, 040

Part-Time 14' 730 27, 200 27' 200

Total Salaries 771' 150 yx*, xuu 944' 800

Health Insurance 96' 280 147, 700 143, 280

Retiree Health 14' 310 15, 900 16, 520

Deferred Compensation 870 1, 700 1' 740

Employee Assistance Program 400 380

Worker' s Compensation 23' 140 12' 000 12, 000

Medicare 11, 720 13, 500 13' 700

Life Insurance 1, 190 500 460

Long Term Disability 5, 100 5, 400 5, 480

Retirement 79500 77030

Total Benefits 387, 510)   276, 600 271, 6e0

Claims Paid ZO' OOO 20, 000

Computer Maintenance 14' 010 46, 500 40' 500

Contract Services 46, 010 55, 000 55, 000

Copier Service 350

EmergencyCa||outs 5, 000 5' 000

Equipment Rental 5, 000 5' 000

Estimated Workers Comp Claim Payable 20' 000 20, 000

Fuel 8' 140 15' 000 15, 100

Industrial Enforcement 10' 000 10, 000

Insurance Premium Liability 39' 040 27' 750 27, 750

Insurance Premium Property 7, 410 20, 350 20' 350

Line Cleaning 10. 000 10' 000

Litigation Services 260 00' 000 60' 000

Health Exams 210 400 400

Membership& Dues 1, 680 2' 080 2' 000

Mileage 7, 850 9, 000 9' 000

Muni Sewage Capacity& Treatment 2' 301, 950 2, 465' 400 2, 968' 500

Muni Sewage Transportation 46, 530 65' 000 66, 000

Office Supplies 600 2, 000 2, 000

Pension Expense GASB 68 130' 450

Personnel Recruitment 90

Professional Services 37' 940 157, 000 257' 900

Professional Services( City Attorney)     O
o ey)      OOO

Protective Clothing 3, 620 4' 000 4' 000

Repairs & Maintenance 770 5' 400 5' 400

Repair& Maintenance Equipment 11' 810 25, 000 25' 000

Repair& Maintenance Vehicles 9' 480 10' 000 10' 000

Restoration Services 10' 000 20, 000

Street Sweeping 16' 150 lM' OOO 19,000

Tools& Supplies 13' 150 11' 000 11' 000

s



CITY QFLEMON GROVE

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

SANITATION OPERATIONS

FUND 15

EXPENDITURE DETA| L*^ mw

FUND ACTIVITY
2015/ 16 FY 2016/ 17 FY 201-7/ 1-8 ---
ACTUAL BUDGET BUDG

1",,"""""""" Ill""""""""""11","" I........... I......................

Traffic Safety Equipment 500    $   500

Training 6, 060 10, 000 2, 600

Transfer tnPERS Unfunded Liability 1, 820, 320

Travel& Meetings 970 Z' OOU 2' 000

Utilities' Gas& Electricity 650 700 1, 500

Utilities Telephone 6' 050 4' 500 4' 500

Utilities' VVater 1, 800 2, 500 500

Transfer tvGeneral Fund for Operations 552, 400 552, 400 552,400

Transfer toGas Tax Fund 100, 000 100, 000 100, 000

Transfer toL6Sanitation District Pure Water Reserve 3, 700, 000

Total Operations 5, 203, 170 7, 452, 500 4, 369, 000

Total Expenditures 5~500, 810    $    8, 669, 000    $    5, 585, 490

sa



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

LEMON GROVE SANITATION DISTRICT RESERVE

FUND 16

FUND ACTIVITY
2015/ 16 FY 2016/ 17 FY 2017/ 18

ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE- July 1 6, 934, 100    $    1, 520, 000    $    3, 371, 800

Rate Stabilization 3, 523, 200 3, 531, 200 2, 968, 500

Revenues

Interest 8, 000 8, 000 8, 000

Transfer From Operations 4, 195, 000

Transfer to Operations Reserve

Total Resources 10, 465, 300 5, 059, 200 10' 543, 300

Capital Improvement Projects

Contingent Costs 159, 140

Equipment Replacement 20, 000

Federal Blvd Sewer Rehab( Design) 80, 000

Federal Blvd Sewer Rehab( Construction) 600, 000

Sanitary Sewer Master Plan Update 100, 000

Sewer Main Maintenance Project( Construction) 250, 000 265, 230

Sewer Main Rehabilitation ( Design) 20, 000 106, 090

Sewer Main Rehabilitation( Construction) 1, 500, 000 400,000 1, 060, 900

Total Capital Improvement Projects 1, 520, 000 1, 450, 000 1, 591, 360

Operations Reserves Ending Balance"   8, 945, 300 3, 609, 200 8, 951, 940

ENDING FUND BALANCE- June 30 1, 520, 000    $    1, 450, 000    $    1, 591, 360

I
57



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

LEMON GROVE SANITATION DISTRICT PURE WATER RESERVE

FUND 17

FUND ACTIVITY
2015

ACTUAL

FY 2016/ 17 FY 2017/ 18

UAL BUDGET BUDG.......................      
I.............  ------------       I"   l"""""","""""',"""""""",""""""""""""""',  ' IET

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE- July 1 3, 700, 000

Adjustment to estimated Fund Balance

Revenues

Transfer from Operations 3, 700, 000

Total Resources 3, 700, 000 3, 700, 000

Expenditures

1- 1.  ......................  _..........................................._.........

Total Expenditures

ENDING FUND BALANCE- June 30 3, 700, 000    $    3, 700, 000

58



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

SIDEWALK RESERVE

FUND 18

AC TY
15/ 16 FY 2016/ 17 FY 2017/ 191

ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET
FUND ACTIVITY

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE- July 1 22,930    $       23, 120    $ 23, 170

Adjustment to estimated Fund Balance

Revenues

Interest 190 50 100

Total Resources 23, 120 23, 170 23, 270

Expenditures

Total Expenditures

ENDING FUND BALANCE- June 30 23, 120    $       23, 170    $ 23, 270

59



CITY OFLEMON GROVE

pY2O17' 1WOperating Budget

INTEGRATED WASTE REDUCTION

FUND 21

Am939- Integrated Waste Reduction Act of 1990

FUND ACTIVITY
2015/ 16 FY 2016/ 17 FY 2017/ 18

ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE- July 1 146, 060    $      142, 230 101' 110

Adjustment toestimated Fund Balance

Revenues

AB939Fees 25' 590 20' 000 23' 000

OthorRevenue

Interest 1, 630 400 800

Total       Resources 173, 200 163, 630 124, 910

Expenditures

Salaries 15' 780 20' 900 20' 650

Overtime 80

Total Salaries 15, 700 20, 900 0 3

Health Insurance 1, 600 3, 200 2, 610

Retiree Health 550 BOO 980

Deferred Compensation 30 100 60

Employee Assistance Program 10 10

Worker' s Compensation 300 300

Medicare 290 300 300

Life Insurance 10 10 10

Long Term Disability 170 200 240

Retirement 1' 170 4400 4' 940

BBenefitsTotal ene s 3, 830 9, 120 9, 450

Consultant Fees 3' 350 5' 500 4' 500

Mileage 190 300 500

Professional Services 16' 500

Household Hazardous Waste Drop- off 6, 780 8, 000 8, 000

Transfer toCity for Administration 1, 200 1200 1, 200

Total Operations 11,$ 20 31, 500 14, 200

Total Expenditures 31, 050 61, 520------  ------' 44, 380

ENDING FUND BALANCE- June 3V 142, 230    $      101, 118    $       80, 530

60



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

WILDFLOWER ASSESSMENT D15TRICT

FUND 22

Wildflower Landscape Maintenance Assessment District 97- 1

FUND ACTIVITY

2016/ 17 FY 2017/ 18  _

ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

2015/ 16— , ..._ 

FY     .. e       ", I,'–',---------,.,,

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE- July 1 4, 930    $ 4, 790    $ 2, 780)

Adjustment to estimated Fund Balance 470

Revenues

Annual Assessment Revenue 9, 100 9, 100 9, 650

Interest40

Total Resources 14,070 13, 890 7, 340

Expenditures

Salaries 4, 770 9, 400 2, 340

Overtime 100

Total Salaries 4, 870 9, 400 2, 340

Health Insurance 500 900 230

Retiree Health 60 300 310

Employee Assistance Program 10

Medicare 100 30

Life Insurance 10

Long Term Disability 60 100 30

Retirement450 2, 000 550

Total Benefits 1, 070 3, 420 1, 150

Contract Services 2, 350 2, 800 2, 800

Utilities- Gas& Electric 90 100 100

Utilities- Water 800 850 850

Transfer to City for Administration 100 100 100

Total Operations 3, 340 3, 850 3, 850

Total Expenditures 9, 280 16, 670 7, 340

ENDING FUND BALANCE- June 30 4, 790    $ 2, 780)   $      0

61



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

SERIOUS TRAFFIC OFFENDER PROGRAM ( STOP)

FUND 23

FUND ACTIVITY
2015/ 16 FY 2016/ 17 FY 2017/ 18

ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE- July 1 27, 690    $       36, 030    $       33, 180

Adjustment to estimated Fund Balance 17, 160)

Revenues

Impound Fee Share 13, 330 9, 500 7, 000

Interest 270100 100

Total Resources 41, 290 45, 630 23, 120

Expenditures

Salaries 1, 440 1, 700 1, 780

Total Salaries 1, 440 1, 700 1, 780

Health Insurance 40 100 90

Retiree Health 90

Deferred Compensation 30 100 60

Worker' s Compensation 100 100

Medicare 60 30 30

Long Term Disability 10 20 10

Retirement 60 300 380
m  .. ................ .       

Total Benefits 290 650 670

General Expenditure 3, 470 10, 000

Mileage 60 100 100
111111111111111,

Total Operations 3, 530 10, 100 100

1111_     .........

Total Expenditures 5, 260 12,450 2, 550

ENDING FUND BALANCE- June 30 36, 030    $       33, 180    $ 20, 570

62



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

SELF- INSURED WORKERS COMPENSATION RESERVE

FUND 25

FUND ACTIVITY
2015/ 16 FY 2016/ 17 FY 2017/

18ACTUALBUDGET BUDGET

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE- July 1 525, 560    $      636, 630    $      638, 030

Adjustment to estimated Fund Balance

Revenues

Interest 5, 400 1, 400 1, 400

General Reserve Transfer

Other Revenue 132, 640

Total Resources 663, 600 638, 030 639, 430

Expenditures

Estimated Claims Payable

Professional Services 1, 970

Transfer to General Fund Operations 25, 000 100, 000

Total Expenditures 26, 970 100, 000

ENDING FUND BALANCE- June 30 636, 630    $      638, 030    $      539,430

Fund Balance Includes$ 25, 000 on deposit with Tristar.

63



CITY mFLEMON GROVE

FY2ucFx8Operating Budget

STORM WATER PROGRAM

FUND 26

FUND ACTIVITY
2015/ 16 FY2016/ 17 FY 26f ji
ACTUAL BUDGET BUI

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE- July 1
Adjustment tuestimated Fund Balance

Storm Water Fees' Commercial( Business License)  49, 710 49. 300 47, 000

Storm Water Fees' Discretionary( Building Fee)     20, 810 19, 000 10, 000

Transfer from General Fund 79640 13I120 154030

Total Resources 150' 160 203^420 211, 030

Expenditures

Salaries 25, 430 25, 800 25' 780

Overtime 90

Tqta| Sm| aries 25, 430 25, 800 25, 870

Health Insurance 2, 970 3, 000 2, 970

Retiree Health 300

Employee Assistance Program 10 10

Worker' s Compensation 500 500

Medicare 380 400 370

Life Insurance 10 10

Long Term Disability 390 300 340

Retirement 1, 750 4800 6, 310

T   | BBenefitsa an       5, 730 9, 020 1¢ 510

k8OUCost Share Agreements 103' 000

Program Fees 119, 000 168, 508 15' 000

Mileage 100 350

Professional Services 55, 000

Training100 I300

Total Operations 129, 000 188, 800 74, 6$ O-

Tmta| Expenditures 150, 160 203, 420 211, 030

ENDING FUND BALANCE- June 30

64



CITY OPLEMON GROVE

FY2017- zQOperating Budget

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION CONGESTION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

FUND 27

FUND ACTIVITY
ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE' July z 27S, 900    $     ( 182, 000)

Adjustment tnestimated Fund Balance 187, 000

Revenues

Interest 3. 320

RTC| PFees($ 2, 4O4per residential housing unit)    272' 580 100, 000 50' 000

Total Resources 275, 900 375, 900 55, 000

Expenditur s

Lemon Grove Avenue Realignment Prcject 557, 900

Total Expenditures

ENDING FUND BALANCE' June 30 275' 900    $     ( 182, 000)   $       55, 000

Above fund balance does not reflect$ 187, 100indeferred revenue at6/ 30/ 16

65



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

SELF- INSURED LIABILITY RESERVE

FUND 29

FUND ACTIVITY
2015/ 16 FY 2016/ 17 FY 2017/ 18

ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET
I' ll",...........................................................................................--—----------------I I...................I..............................

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE- July 1 458, 760    $      410, 470    $      376, 670

Adjustment to estimated Fund Balance 18, 280

Revenues

Interest 4, 010 1, 200 4, 000

Dividend 5, 040 5, 000

Miscellaneous Revenue 2, 090

Total Resources 469, 900 411, 670 403, 950

Expenditures

Claims 30, 100 10, 000 20, 000

Professional Services 15, 000 15, 000

Safety Loss Prevention Regulatory Compliance 29, 330 10, 000 10, 000

Total Expenditures 59, 430 35, 000 45, 000

ENDING FUND BALANCE- June 30 410, 470    $      376, 670    $      358, 950

iP

66



CITY OFLEMON GROVE

pY2mo- 10Operating Budget

PUBLIC EDUCATIONAL AND GOVERNMENTAL ACCESS< PcG>

FUND 30

FUND ACTIVITY
20. 1. 5/ 16 FY 2016/ 17 FY 201-7/ 18

ACTUAL BUDGET BUD

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE- July 1 209, 690 215,130    $      208, 630

Adjustment toestimated Fund Balance 29, 640

Revenues

Interest 1' 640 500 SOO

PEG Fees 57, 780 30, 000 60' 000

Total Resources 269, 110 245, e30 298\ 770

Expenditures

Computer Expense 35' 120 36. 000 36' 000

Professional Services 1. 000 1' 000 1, 000

Capital | mprovements17860_

Total Expenditures 53, 980 37, 000 37, 000

ENDING FUND BALANCE- June 30 215, 130    $      208, 630    $      261, 770

67



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

CAPITAL RESERVE

FUND 32

FUND ACTIVITY
20, 15/ 16 FY 2018/' 17 FY 2017/ 18

ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE- July 1 180, 000    $      180, 000    $      180, 000

Adjustment to estimated Fund Balance

Revenues

Revenue

Total Resources 180, 000 180, 000 180, 000

Expenditures

Facility Repairs and Upgrades 180, 000

Total Expenditures 180, 000

ENDING FUND BALANCE- June 30 180, 000    $      180, 000    $

68



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

MAIN STREET PROMENADE COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT

FUND 33

FUND ACTIVITY
2015/ 16 FY 2016/ 17 FY 2017/ 18

ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET
I.....................................  ""' I',,-------" I'''— 11111111111111-1-'-'-,-,-, I'll-------]

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE- July 1 30)   $ 1, 600)   $ 1, 000)

Adjustment to estimated Fund Balance 3, 900)

Revenues

Assessment 9, 470 14, 600 8, 700

Other Revenue 290

Total Resources 9, 730 13, 000 3, 800

Expenditures

Contract Services 8, 550 10,000 10, 000

Repair& Maintenance 190 500 500

Utilities- Gas& Electric 2, 110 3, 000 3, 000

Utilities- Water 480 500 500
a_     

Total Expenditures 11, 330 14, 000 14, 000

ENDING FUND BALANCE- June 30 1, 600)   $ 1, 000)   $       ( 10, 200)

69



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

SUCCESSOR AGENCY

FUNDS 60 AND 64

FUND ACTIVITY
2015/ 16 FY 2016/ 17 FY 2017/ 18

ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET
1111, " 1,"]

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE- July 1 14, 534, 020)   $  ( 13, 179, 480)   $  ( 12, 200, 480)

Adjustment to estimated Fund Balance

Revenues

ROPS Reimbursement 2, 488, 720 2, 400,000 2, 400,000

Rent 94,510

Interest Revenue 14, 630

Total Resources 11, 936, 160)       ( 10, 779, 480) 9, 800, 480)

Expenditures

Salaries 121, 230

Total Salaries 121,230

Health Insurance 11, 830

Retiree Health 7, 880

Deferred Compensation 420

Employee Assistance Program

Worker' s Compensation

Medicare 2, 810

Life Insurance 210

Long Term Disability 930

Retirement 74, 600

Total Total Benefits 98, 680

Interest- Bonds 1, 095, 760 1, 071, 800 1, 039, 220

Administrative Reimbursement 39, 830 100, 000

City Loan Repayment 343, 200

Depreciation 16, 380

General Expenditure 5, 480

Legal Services

Lemon Grove Realignment- CIP 830

Mileage 2, 190

PERS Actuarial Unfunded Liability 137, 060)

Professional Services 6, 000 6, 000

Total Operations 1, 023, 410 1, 421, 000 1, 145, 220

Total Expenditures 1, 243,320 _    ,1"1, 421, 000 1, 145, 220

ENDING FUND BALANCE- June 30 13, 179,480)   $  ( 12, 200, 480)   $  ( 10, 945, 700)

In addition the following principal and capital payments have or will be made( these payments do not affect Fund Balance)

2004 Tax Allocation Bonds- principal only 75, 000

2007 Tax Allocation Bonds- principal only 190, 000 205, 000 215, 000

2010 Tax Allocation Bonds- principal only 345, 000 365, 000 380, 000

2014 Tax Allocation Bonds- principal only 115, 000 115, 000

TOTAL BOND PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS 1, 110, 000    $    2, 485, 000    $      710, 000

70



CI F LEMON GROVE

Y 7- 113 Operating Budget

Appendix

71



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

1^
H

Salary Plan
r FY 2®t7-2®t8

1 im1 Y' o w Effective Date: June 21, 2017)

RANGE

ACCOUNT CLERK

17, 2 A B C D E

ANNUAL 29, 437. 20 30, 909. 06 32, 460. 48 34, 091. 46 35, 782. 11

MONTHLY 2, 453. 10 2, 575. 76 2, 705. 04 2, 840. 96 2, 981. 84

BI- WEEKLY 1, 132. 20 1, 188. 81 1, 248. 48 1, 311. 21 1, 376. 24

HOURLY 14. 80 15. 54 16. 32 17. 14 17. 99

ACCOUNTING ANALYS7

32. 7 A B C D E

ANNUAL 62, 733. 06 65, 875. 68 69, 157. 53 72, 618. 39 76, 258. 26
MONTHLY 5, 227. 76 5, 48964 5, 763. 13 6, 051. 53 6, 354. 86

BI- WEEKLY 2, 412. 81 2, 533. 68 2, 659. 91 2, 793.02 2, 933. 01
HOURLY 31. 54 33. 12 34. 77 36. 51 38. 34

D 1 IST TIV T T

2 A B C 0 E

ANNUAL 41, 430. 87 43, 499, 43 45, 687. 33 47, 954. 79 50, 361. 48

MONTHLY 3, 452. 57 3, 624. 95 3, 607. 28 3, 996. 23 4, 196. 79

BI- WEEKLY 1, 593. 50 1, 673. 06 1, 757. 21 1,   , 42 1, 936. 98
HOURLY 20. 83 2187 22. 97 24, 11 25. 32

AWNISTRATIVE ANALY81

29. 7 A B C D E

ANNUAL 54, 180. 36 56, 905 29 59, 749. 56 62, 733. 06 65, 875. 68

MONTHLY 4, 515. 03 4, 742. 11 4, 979. 13 5, 227. 76 5, 489. 64

BIWEEKLY 2, 083. 86 2, 188. 67 2, 29& 06 2, 412. 81 2, 533. 68

HOURLY 27. 24 28. 61 30, 04 31. 54 33. 12

ASSISTANT CITY ANAER/ K UBLlC WORKS DICTQF

52. 2 A B C D E

ANNUAL 127, 276. 11 133, 621. 02 140, 304. 06 147, 325. 23 154, 684. 53

MONTHLY 10, 606. 34 11, 135. 09 11, 692. 01 12, 277. 10 12, 890. 38

81- WEEKLY 4, 895. 24 5, 139. 27 5, 396. 31 5, 666. 36 5, 949. 41

HOURLY 6399 6718 70. 54 74. 07 77. 77

AS§ 14TANT ENGINggR

32. 7 A B C D E

ANNUAL 62, 733. 06 65, 875. 68 67, 168. 53 72, 618. 39 76, 258. 26

MONTHLY 5, 227. 76 5, 489. 64 5, 597. 38 6, 051. 53 6, 354. 86

BI- WEEKLY 2, 412. 81 2, 533. 68 2, 583. 41 2, 793. 02 2, 933. 01

HOURLY 31. 54 33. 12 33, 77 36. 51 38. 34

ASSISTANT PLAN R

32. 7 A B C D E

ANNUAL 62, 733. 06 65, 675, 68 67, 168. 53 72, 618. 39 76, 258. 26
MONTHLY 5, 227. 76 5, 489. 64 5, 597. 38 6, 051. 53 6, 354. 86

BI- WEEKLY 2, 412. 81 2, 533. 68 2, 583. 41 2, 793. 02 2, 933. 01

HOURLY 31, 54 33. 12 33. 77 36. 51 38. 34

A5§ QgIATE ACCQUNJANI
29. 7 A B C D E

ANNUAL 54, 180. 36 56, 905. 29 59, 749. 56 62, 733. 06 65, 875. 68

MONTHLY 4, 515. 03 4, 742. 11 4, 979. 13 5, 227. 76 5, 489. 64

BI- WEEKLY 2, 083. 86 2, 188. 67 2, 298. 06 2, 412. 81 2, 533. 68

HOURLY 27. 24 28. 61 30. 04 31. 54 33. 12

72



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

ASSOCIATE CIVIL ENGINEER

36. 5 A B C D E

ANNUAL 74, 030. 58 77, 750. 01 81, 628. 56 85, 706. 01 90, 002. 25

MONTHLY 6, 169. 22 6, 479. 17 6, 802. 38 7, 142. 17 7, 500. 19

BI- WEEKLY 2, 847. 33 2, 990. 39 3, 139. 56 3, 296. 39 3, 461. 63

HOURLY 37. 22 39. 09 41. 04 43. 09 45. 25

ASSOCIATE PLANNER

33. 4 A B C D E

ANNUAL 64, 920. 96 68, 163. 03 71, 564. 22 75, 144. 42 78. 903. 63

MONTHLY 5, 410. 08 5, 680. 25 5, 963. 69 6, 262. 04 6, 575. 30

81- WEEKLY 2. 496. 96 2, 621. 66 2, 752. 47 2, 890. 17 3, 034. 76

HOURLY 32. 64 34. 27 35. 98 37. 78 39. 67

BATTALION CHIEF 76. 50 shift

40. 55 A B C 0 Y

ANNUAL 87, 676. 68 93, 551. 04 99. 819. 00 106. 606. 68 115, 476. 48

MONTHLY 7, 306. 39 7, 795. 92 8, 318. 25 8, 883. 89 9, 623. 04

131- WEEKLY( 106 hrs)    3, 372. 18 3, 598. 12 3, 839. 19 4, 100. 26 4. 343. 67

HOURLY( 2, 756 hrslyr)     31. 81 33. 94 36. 22 38. 68 56. 78

MONTHLY( 56 Hrs/ wk. RATE)   7, 926. 74 8, 457. 84 9, 024. 52 9, 638. 18

53 regular+ 3 sch' d OT)

CITY CLERK

35. 2 A B C D E

ANNUAL 70, 868, 07 74, 408. 49 78, 127. 92 82, 026. 36 86, 143. 59

MONTHLY 5, 905. 67 6, 200. 71 6, 510. 66 6, 835. 53 7, 178. 63

81- WEEKLY 2, 725. 70 2, 861. 87 3, 004. 92 3. 154. 86 3, 313. 22

HOURLY 36. 63 37. 41 39. 28 41. 24 43. 31

CITY MANAGER 175, 000. 00

14, 583. 33

CONTRACT 6, 730. 77

87. 98

CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER

26. 2 A 8 C D E

HOURLY 22. 97 24. 11 25. 32 26. 59 27. 92

CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER/ WATER QUALITY JN?5E! grgjQR
29. 7 A B C D E

ANNUAL 54, 180. 36 56, 905. 29 59, 749. 56 62, 733. 06 65. 875. 68

MONTHLY 4, 515. 03 4, 742. 11 4, 979. 13 5. 227. 76 5, 489. 64

BI- WEEKLY 2, 083. 86 2, 188. 67 2, 298. 06 2, 412. 81 2, 533. 68

HOURLY 27. 24 28. 61 30. 04 31. 54 33. 12

COMMUNITY SERVICES ASSISTANT

19. 1 A B C D E

ANNUAL 32, 301. 36 33, 912. 45 35, 622. 99 37, 393.20 39. 262. 86

MONTHLY 2, 691. 78 2, 826. 04 2, 968. 58 3, 116. 10 3, 271. 91

131- WEEKLY 1, 242. 36 1, 304. 33 1, 370. 12 1, 438. 20 1, 510. 11

HOURLY 16. 24 17. 05 17. 91 18. 80 19. 74

COMMUNITY SERVIC95 SUPERINTENDENT
36. 1 A B C D E

ANNUAL 74, 030. 58 77, 750. 01 81, 628. 56 85, 706. 01 90, 002. 25

MONTHLY 6, 169. 22 6, 479. 17 6, 802. 38 7, 142. 17 7, 500. 19

BI- WEEKLY 2, 847. 33 2, 990. 39 3, 139. 56 3, 296. 39 3, 461. 63

HOURLY 37. 22 39. 09 41. 04 43. 09 45. 25

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR

42. 2 A B C D E

ANNUAL 99, 708. 57 104, 700.96 109, 932. 03 115, 441. 56 121, 209. 66

MONTHLY 8, 309. 05 8, 725. 08 9. 161. 00 9, 620. 13 10, 100. 81

BI- WEEKLY 3, 834. 95 4, 026. 96 4, 228. 16 4, 440. 06 4, 661. 91

HOURLY 50. 13 52. 64 55. 27 58. 04 60. 94

73



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES TECHNICIAN II

29. 7 A B C D E

ANNUAL 54, 180. 36 56, 905. 29 59, 749. 56 62, 733. 06 65, 875. 68

MONTHLY 4, 515. 03 4, 742. 11 4, 979. 13 5, 227. 76 5, 489. 64
131- WEEKLY 2, 083. 86 2, 188. 67 2, 298. 06 2, 412. 81 2, 533. 68

HOURLY 27. 24 28. 61 30. 04 31. 54 33. 12

ENGINEERING INSPECTOR

29. 7 A B C D E

ANNUAL 54, 180. 36 56, 905. 29 59, 749. 56 62, 733. 06 65, 875. 68

MONTHLY 4, 515. 03 4, 742. 11 4, 979. 13 5, 227. 76 5, 489. 64

131- WEEKLY 2, 083. 86 2, 188. 67 2, 298. 06 2, 412. 81 2, 533. 68

HOURLY 27. 24 28. 61 30. 04 31. 54 33. 12

ENGINEERING TECH III

29. 7 A B C D E

ANNUAL 54, 180. 36 56, 905. 29 59, 749. 56 62, 733. 06 65, 875. 68
MONTHLY 4, 515. 03 4, 742. 11 4, 979. 13 5, 227. 76 5, 489. 64

61- WEEKLY 2, 083. 86 2, 188. 67 2, 296. 06 2, 412. 81 2, 533. 68

HOURLY 27. 24 28. 61 30. 04 31. 54 33. 12

EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT

24. 2 A B C D E

ANNUAL 41, 430. 87 43, 499. 43 45, 687. 33 47, 954. 79 50, 361. 48

MONTHLY 3, 452. 57 3, 624. 95 3, 807. 28 3, 996. 23 4, 196. 79

BI- WEEKLY 1, 593. 50 1, 673. 06 1, 757. 21 1. 844. 42 1, 936. 98
HOURLY 20. 83 21. 87 22. 97 24. 11 25. 32

ILITY TECH...I
18. 0 A B C D E

ANNUAL 30, 610. 71 32, 142. 24 33, 753. 33 35, 443. 98 37, 194. 30

MONTHLY 2, 550. 89 2, 678. 52 2, 812. 78 2, 953. 67 3, 099. 53

131- WEEKLY 1, 177. 34 1, 236. 24 1, 298. 21 1, 363. 23 1, 430. 55
HOURLY 15. 39 16. 16 16. 97 17. 82 18. 70

FACILITY TECH II

22. 0 A B C D E

ANNUAL 37, 214. 19 39, 063. 96 41, 033. 07 43, 081. 74 45, 229. 86

MONTHLY 3, 101. 18 3, 255. 33 3, 419. 42 3, 590. 15 3, 769. 16

BI- WEEKLY 1, 431. 32 1, 502. 46 1, 578. 20 1, 656. 99 1, 739. 61
HOURLY 18. 71 19. 64 20. 63 21. 66 22. 74

FINANCE MANAGER

36. 1 A B C D E

ANNUAL 74, 030. 58 77, 750. 01 81, 628. 56 85, 706. 01 90, 002. 25

MONTHLY 6, 169. 22 6, 479. 17 6, 802. 38 7, 142. 17 7, 500. 19

BI- WEEKLY 2, 847. 33 2, 990. 39 3, 139„ 56 3, 296. 39 3, 461. 63

HOURLY 37. 22 39. 09 41. 04 43. 09 45. 25

FIRE CAPTAIN

38. 45 A B C D

ANNUAL 83, 098. 20 88, 665. 84 94, 606.44 101, 039. 76

MONTHLY 6, 924. 85 7, 388. 82 7, 883. 87 8, 419. 98

BI- WEEKLY( 106 hrs)   3, 196. 08 3, 410. 22 3, 638. 71 3, 886. 14

HOURLY( 2,756 hrs/yr)     30. 15 32. 17 34. 33 36.66

MONTHLY( 56 Hrs/ wk. RATE)   7, 512. 81 8, 016. 17 8, 553. 26 9, 134. 88

53 regular+ 3 sch' d OT)

FIRE DIVISION CHIEF

43. 75 A B C D E

ANNUAL 107, 585. 01 112, 955. 31 118, 623. 96 124, 531. 29 130, 776. 75

MONTHLY 8, 965. 42 9, 412. 94 9, 885. 33 10, 377. 61 10, 898. 06

131- WEEKLY 4, 137. 89 4, 344. 44 4, 562. 46 4, 789, 67 5, 029. 88

74



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

FIRE ENGINEER

34. 25 A B c D
ANNUAL 67, 701. 36 72, 237. 36 77, 077. 20 82, 291. 44
MONTHLY 5, 641. 78 6. 019. 78 6, 423. 10 6, 857. 62
131- WEEKLY( 106 hrs)    2, 603. 90 2, 778. 36 2, 964. 51 3, 165. 06

HOURLY( 2, 756 hrs/yr)     24, 57 26. 21 27. 97 29. 86

MONTHLY( 56 Hrs/ wk. RATE)   6, 120. 80 6. 53089 6, 968. 46 7, 439. 87

53 regular 4- 3 sch' d o-o

FIRE INSPECTOR

26. 3 A B C D E
ANNUAL 45, 906. 12 48, 193. 47 50, 620. 05 53, 146. 08 55. 851 12
MONTHLY 3, 825. 51 4, 016. 12 4, 218. 34 4, 428. 84 4, 654, 26
BI- WEEKLY 1, 765. 62 1, 85160 1, 946. 93 2, 044- 08 2, 148, 12
HOURLY 23, 08 24. 23 25. 45 26. 72 28. 08

FIRE PREVENTION/ PUBLIC EDUCATION SPECIALIST

26. 3 A B c D E
HOURLY 23, 08 24. 23 25. 45 26. 72 28. 08

FIR.EFIGHTER/ PARAMEDI. Cl
33. 45 A A+     B C D

ANNUAL 65, 109. 60 67. 290. 78 69. 471, 96 74, 126. 52 79, 167. 24
MONTHLY 5, 425. 80 5, 607. 57 5, 789. 33 6, 177. 21 6, 597. 27
BI- WEEKLY( 106 hrs)    2. 504. 22 2. 588. 11 2, 672. 00 2. 851, 02 3, 04489
HOURLY( 2, 756 hrs/ yr)     23. 62 24. 42 25. 21 26, 90 28. 73

MONTHLY- 56 Hrs/ wk. RATE 5, 886. 48 6, 083. 68 6, 280. 88 6, 701. 69 7. 157. 42
53 regular+ 3 sch' d OT)

HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGER

36. 1 A 6 C 0 E
ANNUAL 74, 030. 58 77, 750. 01 81, 628. 56 85, 706. 01 90. 002. 25
MONTHLY 6, 169. 22 6, 479, 17 6, 80238 7, 142. 17 7, 50019
BI- WEEKLY 2, 84733 2, 99039 3, 139. 56 3, 296. 39 3, 461. 63
HOURLY 3722 39. 09 41. 04 43. 09 45. 25

LICENSE CLERK

21. 0 A B c D E
ANNUAL 35, 443. 98 37, 214. 19 39, 063. 96 41, 033. 07 43, 081 74
MONTHLY 2, 953. 67 3, 101. 18 3, 255. 33 3, 41942 3, 590, 15
BI- WEEKLY 1, 36313 1, 431. 32 1, 502. 46 1, 578. 20 1, 656. 99
HOURLY 17. 82 18. 71 19. 64 20. 63 21, 66

MAINTENANCE SERVICE WORKER

12. 4 A B c D E
ANNUAL 23, 291, 19 24.464.70 25, 697. 88 26, 970. 84 28, 323. 36
MONTHLY 1, 940, 93 2, 038. 73 2, 141. 49 2, 24757 2. 360. 28
BI- WEEKLY 895. 82 940. 95 988. 38 1, 037. 34 1, 089. 36
HOURLY 11. 71 12. 30 12. 92 1356 1424

MANAGEMENT ANALYST

33. 2 A B c D E
ANNUAL 64, 284. 48 67, 486. 77 70, 868. 07 74, 408. 49 78, 127 92
MONTHLY 5, 357. 04 5, 623. 90 5, 905. 67 6, 200. 71 6, 510. 66
BI- WEEKLY 2. 472.48 2. 595, 65 2, 725, 70 2, 861. 87 3, 00492
HOURLY 32. 32 33. 93 35. 63 37, 41 39, 28

OFFICE AIDE

10. 8 A 8 C.      D

HOURLY 10. 83 11 38 11. 94 12 54 13, 17



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

PARK RANGER

HOURLY

19. 6 A

16. 65

0 E

17. 48

c

1& 35

D

1927 20. 23

PRINCIPAL PLANNER

36. 1 A B c D E
ANNUAL 74, 030. 58 77, 750. 01 81, 628. 56 85, 706. 01 90, 002. 25
MONTHLY 6, 169. 22 6, 479. 17 6, 802. 38 7, 142. 17 7, 500. 19
BI- WEEKLY 2, 847. 33 2, 99039 3. 139, 56 3, 296. 39 3, 461. 63
HOURLY 37, 22 39. 09 41, 04 43. 09 45. 25

EUSLIC WORKS SECRETARY

21. 0 A B c D E
ANNUAL 35, 443. 98 37, 214. 19 39. 063. 96 41, 033. 07 43, 081. 74
MONTHLY 2, 953. 67 3, 101. 18 3, 255. 33 3, 419. 42 3, 590. 15
BI- WEEKLY 1, 363. 23 1, 431. 32 1, 502. 46 1, 578. 20 1, 656. 99
HOURLY 17. 82 18. 71 19. 64 20. 63 21. 66

PUBLIC WORES SUPERINTENDENT
36. 1 A B c D E

ANNUAL 74, 030. 58 77, 750. 01 81, 628. 56 85. 706. 01 90, 002. 25
MONTHLY 6, 169. 22 6, 479. 17 6, 802. 38 7, 142. 17 7, 500. 19
BI- WEEKLY 2, 847. 33 2, 990. 39 3, 139. 56 3, 296. 39 3, 461. 63
HOURLY 37. 22 3909 41. 04 43. 09 45, 25

RECREATION LEADER I

10. 0 A 6 c 0 E
HOURLY 10, 42 10. 92 11. 48 12. 06 12. 66

RECREATION LEADER 11

12. 4 A B c D E
ANNUAL 23, 291. 19 24,464.70 25, 697. 88 26, 970. 84 28, 323. 36
MONTHLY 1, 940. 93 2, 038.73 2, 141. 49 2, 247. 57 2, 360.28
BI- WEEKLY 895. 82 940. 95 988. 38 1, 037. 34 1, 089. 36
HOURLY 11. 71 12. 30 12. 92 13. 56 14. 24

SANITATION SUPERVISOR

27.5 A B c D E
ANNUAL 48, 670. 83 51, 117. 30 53, 663. 22 56, 348. 37 59, 172. 75
MONTHLY 4, 055, 90 4, 259. 78 4, 471. 94 4, 695. 70 4, 931. 06
BI- WEEKLY 1, 871. 96 1, 966. 05 2, 063. 97 2, 167. 25 2, 275. 88
HOURLY 24. 47 2570 2698 2833 2915

SENIOR PLANNER

34. 4 A B c D E
ANNUAL 68, 163. 03 71, 564. 22 75, 144. 42 78, 903. 63 82, 841. 85
MONTHLY 5, 680. 25 5, 963. 69 6, 262. 04 6. 575. 30 6, 903. 49
Bi- WEEKLY 2, 621. 66 2, 75247 2, 890. 17 3, 034. 76 3, 186. 23
HOURLY 34. 27 35, 98 37. 78 39. 67 41. 65

STREET SUPERVISOR

27, 5 A s c,      r)      E
ANNUAL 48, 670. 83 51, 11 7. 30 53, 663. 22 56, 348. 37 59, 172. 75
MONTHLY 4,055. 90 4, 259. 78 4, 471. 94 4, 695. 70 4, 931. 06
BI- WEEKLY 1, 871. 96 1, 966. 05 2, 06197 2, 167. 25 2, 275. 88
HOURLY 24.47 25. 70 26. 98 28. 33 2975

STREET TECH I

18. 0 A 8 c D E
ANNUAL 30, 610, 71 32, 142. 24 33, 75133 35, 44198 37, 194. 30
MONTHLY 2, 550. 89 2, 678, 52 2, 812. 78 2, 95167 3, 099.53
BI- WEEKLY 1, 177. 34 1, 236, 24 1, 298 21 1, 36123 1, 430. 55
HOURLY 15. 39 16. 16 16. 97 1782 18. 70

STREET TECH II

76



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

22. 0 A B C D E

ANNUAL 37, 214. 19 39, 063. 96 41, 033. 07 43, 081. 74 45, 229. 86

MONTHLY 3, 101. 16 3, 255. 33 3, 419. 42 3, 590. 15 3, 769. 16

BI- WEEKLY 1, 431. 32 1, 502. 46 1, 578. 20 1, 656. 99 1. 739. 61

HOURLY 18. 71 19.64 20. 63 21. 66 22. 74

TECHNICIAN I

18. 0 A B C D E

ANNUAL 30, 610. 71 32, 142. 24 33, 753. 33 35, 443. 98 37, 194. 30

MONTHLY 2, 550. 89 2, 678. 52 2, 812. 78 2, 953. 67 3, 099. 53

BI- WEEKLY 1, 177. 34 1, 236. 24 1, 298. 21 1, 363. 23 1, 430. 55

HOURLY 15. 39 16. 16 16. 97 17. 82 18. 70

TECHNICIAN 11TECHNICIAN.........................
22. 0 A B C D E

ANNUAL 37, 214. 19 39, 063. 96 41, 033. 07 43, 081. 74 45, 229. 86
MONTHLY 3, 101. 18 3, 255. 33 3, 419. 42 3, 590. 15 3, 769. 16

BI- WEEKLY 1, 431. 32 1, 502. 46 1, 578. 20 1, 656. 99 1, 739. 61
HOURLY 18. 71 19. 64 20. 63 21. 66 22. 74

77



CITY OF LEMON GROVE

FY 2017- 18 Operating Budget

CLASSIFICATION SUMMARY

Effective Date: June z,, aoiq)
4K pf1 Y, r

r  -

RANGE OF AUTHORIZED
CLASS TITLE/ GROUPISTATUS NO.    SALARY RANGE EMPLOYEES-

CLASSIFIED

CLERICAL I ADMIN SUPPORT GROUP MONTHLY

Account Clerk 17. 2 2, 453 2, 962 0

Administrative Assistant 24, 2 3, 453 4, 197 1

Community Services Assistant 19, 1 2, 692 3, 272 1

Executive Assistant( Confidential)   24. 2 3, 453 4, 197 1

License Clerk 21. 0 2, 954 3, 590 1

Public Works Secretary 21. 0 2, 954 3, 590 1

5. 00

OPE TLONS/ MAINTENANCE GROUP

Community Services Superintendent 36, 1 6169 7, 500 1

Facility Tech 1 180 2, 551 3, 100 1

Facility Tech II 220 3, 101 3, 769 1

Public Works Superintendent 36. 1 6, 169 7, 500 I
Sanitation Supervisor 275 4, 056 4, 931 I
Street Supervisor 27. 5 4, 056 4, 931 P.
Street Tech 1 16, 0 2, 551 3, 100 2
Street Tech 11 22, 0 3, 101 3, 769 3

Technician 1 16. 0 2, 551 3, 100

Technician II 22. 0 3, 101 3, 769 2-
15, 0015, 00

PUBLIC SAFETY GROUP
Fire Captain 36. 5 0, 925 6, 420 6

Fire Engineer 34. 3 5, 642 6, 656 6

Firefighter/Paramedic 33. 5 5, 600 6, 597 6
m..................

16. 0

PROFESSIONAL/ TECHNICAL GROUP

Accounting Analyst 32. 7 5, 226 6, 355 1

Administrative Analyst 29. 7 4, 515 5, 490 1

Assistant Engineer 32. 7 5, 226 6, 355 1
Assistant Planner 32. 7 5, 226 6, 355 1

Associate Accountant 29. 7 4, 515 5, 490 1

Associate Civil Engineer 36. 5 6, 169 7, 500 0

Associate Planner 33. 4 5, 410 6, 575 1

City Clerk 35. 2 5, 906 7, 179 1

Code Enforcement Officer/ Water Quality Inspector 29. 7 4, 515 5, 490 1

Development Services Technician II 29. 7 4, 515 5, 490 1

Engineering Inspector 297 4, 515 5, 490 1

Engineering Tech 111 29. 7 4, 515 5, 490 0

Finance Manager 36. 1 6, 169 7, 500 1

Fire Inspector 26. 3 3, 626 4, 654 0

Human Resources Manager 36. 1 6, 169 7, 500 1

Management Analyst 332 5, 357 6, 511 2
Principal Planner 36. 1 6, 169 7, 500 0

Senior Planner 34. 4 5, 660 6, 903 0

14. 00

M AGEMEryT GROUP

Assistant City Manager/ Pubilc Works Director 522 10, 006 12, 890 1

Battalion Chief 40. 6 7, 316 9, 323 1

City Manager( contract)     14, 583 14, 583 1

Development Services Director 42. 2 8, 309 10, 101 t

Fire Division Chief 43 6 o, 985 10; 890

5. 0...................

PART- TIMEITEMPORARX SEASONALfOT R HOURLY

Class Instructor'( other)   1000 25.00 0.5

Code Enforcement Officer 26. 2 2291 27. 92 0. 00
Engineer"( other) 3030 30. 30 0

Fire Prevention/ Public Education Specialist 26. 3 23. 09 29. 09 0. 5

Office Aide"     10. 6 10. 83 13. 97 1
Intern'( other)    10. 00 15. 00 0
Maintenance Service Worker'      12. 4 1, 941 2, 360 3. 5
Park Ranger`   19. 6 1665 2023 0. 5

Recreation Leader 1'     10. 0 1042 12. 66 2. 25
Recreation Leader 11 12. 4 1, 941 2, 360 2, 25

Full Tlme Equivalenl( fte) 70. 50

m

TOTAL EMPLOYEES: 87. 50

78



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No. 4

Mt DateMtg.    June 20, 2017

Dept.   Development Services Department

Item Title:    Public Hearing to Consider Variance Request VA1- 700- 0001 to Modify
Development Standards Requiring Two Off-street Parking Spaces to be
Garaged in the Residential Low Zoning District.

Staff Contact:    Michael Viglione, Assistant Planner

David De Vries, Development Services Director

Recommendation:

1)  Conduct the public hearing; and
2)  Either adopt a Resolution ( Attachment B) approving Variance application VA1- 700- 0001

granting a modification of off- street parking requirements;  or adopt a Resolution

Attachment C) denying Variance application VA1- 700- 0001 upholding off- street parking
requirements.

Item Summary:

On October 12, 2016, the Code Enforcement Division issued an Administrative Citation for non-

permitted construction to the property owner at 6547 MacArthur Drive.  The non- permitted
construction included the conversion of existing garages to habitable space leaving the property
without the two garaged off- street parking spaces required by the Residential Low ( RL) Zoning
District. The property owner applied for a variance to modify the Development Standard in order
to allow the two required parking spaces to be unenclosed ( without a garage), but not visible

from the adjacent public street, MacArthur Drive.

Fiscal Impact:

No fiscal impact.

Environmental Review:

Not subject to review Negative Declaration

Categorically Exempt, Section 15301 Mitigated Negative Declaration

Public Information:

None Newsletter article Notice to property owners within 500 ft.

Notice published in local newspaper Neighborhood meeting

Attachments:

A.  Staff Report E.  Code Enforcement Administrative Citation

B.  Draft Resolution of Approval F.  Site Photos

C.  Draft Resolution of Denial G.  Aerial and Vicinity Map

D.  Letters from the Applicant H.  Exhibit A— Project Plans



Attachment A

LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

STAFF REPORT

Item No. 4

Mtg. Date June 20, 2017

Item Title:    Public Hearing to Consider Variance Request VAI- 700- 0001 to Modify
Development Standards Requiring Two Off- street Parking Spaces to be
Garaged in the Residential Low Zoning District.

Staff Contact:    Michael Viglione, Assistant Planner

David De Vries, Development Services Director

Application Summary:

APPLICANT/ OWNER Miroslav Tomic, 6547 MacArthur Drive, Lemon Grove, CA 91945

PROPERTY
6547 MacArthur Drive. APN: 478- 220- 05- 00. The site is located on

LOCATION: 
the south side of MacArthur Drive approximately 1, 200 feet east of its
intersection with Federal Boulevard.

PROJECT AREA:  1. 03 acres ( 44, 867 square feet)..
m.,    .---      ....................................................    

EXISTING ZONE;  Residential Low ( RL).

GENERAL PLAN

LAND USE Low Density Residential,
DESIGNATION:

North: Single-family residential

SURROUNDING South: Single- family residential.
PROPERTIES:     East: Single- family residential.

West: Single- family residential.

ENVIRONMENTAL
The project is Categorically Exempt from the California Environmental

IMPACT:      
Quality Act Section 15301,  Class 1.  Mitigation measures are not

required and no environmental impact is anticipated.

3-



Attachment A

Background

The subject property slopes significantly from its frontage along MacArthur Drive to its back yard
such that the rear property line sits about 60 feet below the front of the house along MacArthur
Drive making the rear portion of the property difficult to see by pedestrians along MacArthur
Drive. The property is nearly 100 feet wide and approximately 447 feet deep on average and
was created by the Sonka Urban Heights subdivision in 1946. The original residence, attached
garage, basement, pool house and swimming pool were constructed with permits in 1955. In
2004, three separate completed building permits allowed for the addition of two balconies and a
new entry way on the main floor of the residence and a detached garage behind the residence.
Code Enforcement action in 2016 revealed that the original basement, the garage attached to
the residence and the newer detached garage were all converted to habitable spaces without

building permit approval. It is unclear how many separate households may have been utilizing
the unpermitted habitable areas,  however,  after code enforcement action,  only the property
owner resides on the premises ( no separate rental units currently exist).

The Code Enforcement Division required that the property owner legalize all non- permitted
construction on the property either by obtaining building permits or returning the structures to
their original,  legal conditions through demolition and interior improvement permits.  Since

originally receiving the Administrative Citation, the property owner has sought to legalize this
non- permitted construction to the greatest extent possible without demolition,  however,

permitting both garage conversions without constructing two additional garaged parking spaces
is not allowed in the Residential Low Zoning District. The development standards require two
garaged spaces with each primary single- family residence. To address this issue, the property
owner filed a Variance application on January 2, 2017 to modify the two garaged parking space
requirement and provide four parking spaces with wheel stops on a gravel ground cover
uncovered ( no garage or carport) in the rear yard out of sight from through traffic on MacArthur
Drive.

The property owner states that returning the non- permitted garage conversions to their original
conditions would destroy art and architectural elements of substantial value and significance.
Specific reference was made to the stone inlay floor in the main house garage conversion, an
artistic fountain and front wall and gate on the driveway in front of the main house off of
MacArthur Drive and the plaster finished art wall in place of the removed garage door in the

detached garage conversion in the rear of the property.

In a letter to City Council dated May 16, 2017 ( ATTACHMENT D), the applicant opines that the

Variance application satisfies the required findings outlined in Municipal Code Section

17. 28. 060. 13. He asserts that: the uncommon zoning designation, size and topography of the lot,
the- small- percentage-- of- RL- pro etes- in-- apparent- c6m lia-nce - with---of- street- - arkn-g- -    --     -  -

requirements, lack of impact to the public and apparent consistency with the off- street parking
conditions of nearby properties warrant approval of his variance application.

The property owner also states that returning the property to its original permitted condition or
complying with the requirements of the zone through construction of additional garaged parking
is not financially feasible as it would constitute a financial and physical hardship. As evidence of
this hardship,  the applicant provided a separate letter to City Council dated June 1,  2017

ATTACHMENT D)  which describes in detail the life events and financial circumstances

preventing compliance with Municipal Code Off- Street Parking requirements.

4-



Attachment A

On May 18,  2017, the property owner furnished an undated document ( ATTACHMENT D)

signed by the residents of five nearby properties indicating their support for his parking variance
application.

Discussion

As a development regulation, the off-street parking requirement is a component of the larger
Zoning Ordinance, the purpose of which is to promote, protect and preserve the public health,
safety, peace, comfort and general welfare through the regulation of property and land use.
Further,  the stated purpose of the Landscaping and Screening regulations in Section
17. 24.050.A is to  " protect individual properties from undesirable impacts generated by

surrounding land uses and general urban activity,  and to improve the appearance of

neighborhoods in the City by providing adequate landscaping and screening." The inclusion of a

screening requirement for vehicle parking in these regulations clearly indicates the potential for
parking to become a visual nuisance.  Staff believes that the off- street parking requirement
articulated in the zone is intended to protect the public in this regard and that the purpose of the

garage requirement is to retain the appearance of a traditional single- family residence and to
limit the number of vehicles in view from public streets and places.

The parking area in the Variance application is proposed between the detached garage
converted to an accessory dwelling unit)  and the pool behind the main residence.  The

topography of the lot is such that the elevation of the proposed four space parking pad at its
highest point is at least 10 full feet below the grade of main residence along its frontage on
MacArthur Drive. In conjunction with the mature trees and shrubs along the property lines, this
position both behind and lower than the residence, serves to completely obscure the proposed

parked vehicles from view along MacArthur Drive.  Should the City Council approve the
Variance, a condition of approval will require that these four uncovered vehicle parking spaces

be retained on the site. The number of parking stalls proposed exceeds the three parking stalls
required by the Municipal Code for a primary residence and accessory dwelling unit at this
location. Off- street parking is not available along the property' s frontage as the old driveway is
blocked by a decorative wall and fountain.

The property owner will be required to legalize all non- permitted construction as part of the
Code Enforcement process regardless of City Council' s decision to approve or deny the
variance application. If the Variance is approved, the property owner may choose to convert the
garage to a detached bedroom or game room with a covenant that the building will not be used
as a separate dwelling unit or the owner may convert it to an accessory rental dwelling unit with
payment of appropriate impact fees paid.

In order for City Council to approve a variance,  the findings of fact outlined in Section

17. 28. 060. B.  must be made as shown in Attachments B and C.  Staff believes that in this

circumstance findings to either approve or deny the Variance can be made and as such
resolutions for both scenarios are drafted for City Council' s consideration ( Attachments B and
C).

Public Information:

The Notice of Public Hearing was published in the June 8, 2017 edition of the East County
Californian and mailed to all property owners within 500 feet of the subject property.



Attachment A

The City of Lemon Grove received no comments in response to the Notice of Public Hearing
and Environmental Analysis at the time this staff report was prepared. Staff will provide the City
Council at the time of the public hearing with any comments.

Conclusion:

Staff recommends that the City Council conduct the public hearing and either approve the
Resolution ( Attachment B) to conditionally approve the variance application or approve the
Resolution ( Attachment C) to deny the variance application.

6-



Attachment B

RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION OF THE LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL APPROVING VARIANCE

REQUEST VA1- 700- 0001 TO MODIFY OFF- STREET PARKING REQUIREMENTS FOR TWO
OFF- STREET PARKING SPACES TO BE UNENCLOSED  ( NOT GARAGED)  AT 6547

MACARTHUR DRIVE, LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA.

WHEREAS, the applicant, Miroslav Tomic, filed a complete application for a Variance
request ( VA1- 700- 0001) on May 18, 2017 to modify the Residential Low Zoning District' s off-
street parking development standards to have the two required spaced be unenclosed ( not

garaged) to accommodate the existing conversion of all on- site garages to habitable space on a
lot developed with a single- family home at 6547 MacArthur Drive, Lemon Grove, California; and

WHEREAS, a variance request associated with the conversion of existing facilities is
categorically exempt from the environmental review requirements of the California

Environmental Quality Act pursuant to Section 15301; and

WHEREAS,  a public hearing was duly noticed and held by the Lemon Grove City
Council on June 20, 2017; and

WHEREAS, Section 65852. 150 of the State Government Code finds and declares all of

the following:

1. Accessory dwelling units are a valuable form of housing in California.

2.       Accessory dwelling units provide housing for family members, students, the elderly, in-
home health care providers, the disabled,  and others,  at below market prices within

existing neighborhoods.

3. Homeowners who create accessory dwelling units benefit from added income, and an
increased sense of security.

4. Allowing accessory dwelling units in single-family or multifamily residential zones
provides additional rental housing stock in California.

5. California faces a severe housing crisis.

6. The state is falling far short of meeting current and future housing demand with serious
consequences for the state' s economy, our ability to build green infill consistent with
state greenhouse gas reduction goals, and the well- being of our citizens,  particularly
lower and middle- income earners.

7. Accessory dwelling units offer lower cost housing to meet the needs of existing and
future residents within existing neighborhoods, while respecting architectural character.

8. Accessory dwelling units are, therefore, an essential component of California' s housing
supply; and

WHEREAS, the City Council determined that the following findings of fact as required by
section 17. 28. 060( B) can be made as follows:

1. There are special property circumstances,  ( size,  shape,  topography,  location or

surroundings) that would cause the strict application of this title to deprive the property of

rights enjoyed by other properties in the same vicinity and zoning district; and

a.   The subject property is steeply sloped. The topography and shape of the property is

7,



Attachment B

such that views of the rear yard from public right- of-way are not visible. The elevation
at the front of the property along MacArthur Drive is approximately 10- 15 feet above
the finished grade of the basement floor and the pool immediately behind it.
Moreover, the grade of the slope only steepens toward the back of the property. The
proposed parking area/ open space is suitable for proposed parking and visually
obscured from the public right-of-way. Also, trees located on the property visually
obscure the proposed parking area. Requiring the replacement of a garage in this
area is not warranted since the parking spaces and garage are not visible from the
public right of way. In addition, four uncovered parking spaces are provided where
only two are required.

2. Granting the variance is necessary to preserve a substantial property right possessed by
other property in the same vicinity and zoning district; and

a.   Granting the proposed variance preserves the ability of the property owner to use
their property in the manner proposed consistent with the intent of the General Plan

land use designation. Other property owners in the vicinity do not have a garage.
3. Granting the variance will not be materially detrimental to the public health, safety or

welfare, or injurious to the property or improvements; and

a.  The proposed variance is without adverse impacts. Approving the variance preserve
approximately 400 square feet of pervious surfaces reducing heat island effect and
potentially provides additional housing that is deemed desirable by the State
legislatures.

4. Granting the variance does not constitute a special privilege inconsistent with the
limitations upon other properties in the same vicinity and zoning district.
a.  The stated purpose of the Off-street Parking regulations in the Municipal Code

Section 17. 24. 010)  is multi- modal user equity,  reduced traffic congestion and

efficient use of the right- of-way and the parking area screening requirements
Section 17. 24. 050) are intended to protect properties from undesirable impacts of

surrounding land uses and improve appearance, we can conclude that the two car
garage requirement is intended to preserve community aesthetics and right- of-way
function.  Approving this variance with conditions will not compromise the stated
purposes of either the Off- Street Parking Regulations or the Screening regulations.
The subject parking area, which is accessed via driveway on the western property
boundary and provides space for up to four ( 4) vehicles, is located both behind and
below the grade of the existing single family dwelling and the fronting public street,
MacArthur Drive, and the proposed parking area is not visible from the public right-
of-way. There is ample parking for residents of both the main dwelling and accessory
dwelling unit.__Moreover, mature trees along the driveway screen the_ parking area
from the view of the property immediately west of the subject property.

NOW, THEREFORE,  BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove,
California hereby:

SECTION 1.  Finds and determines that the facts set forth in the recitals of this Resolution are
declared to be true; and

SECTION 2.  Conditionally approves Variance VA1- 700- 0001, a request to modify the Off-street
Parking requirements to allow required parking spaces to be unenclosed  ( without a garage)

provided appropriate permits are obtained and finaled for all unpermitted construction on the

property and provided four unenclosed parking spaces with wheel stops and appropriate ground

8-



Attachment B

cover are installed and retained behind the existing single- family residence on a site developed
with a single- family residence and detached garage at 6547 MacArthur drive, Lemon Grove, CA.



Attachment C

RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION OF THE LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL DENYING VARIANCE REQUEST

VA1- 700- 0001 TO MODIFY OFF- STREET PARKING REQUIREMENTS FOR TWO OFF-
STREET PARKING SPACES TO BE UNENCLOSED   ( NOT GARAGED)   AT 6547

MACARTHUR DRIVE, LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA.

WHEREAS, the applicant, Miroslav Tomic, filed a complete application for a Variance
request ( VA1- 700- 0001) on May 18, 2017 to modify the Residential Low Zoning District' s off-
street parking development standards to have the two required spaced be unenclosed ( not

garaged) to accommodate the existing conversion of all on- site garages to habitable space on a
lot developed with a single-family home at 6547 MacArthur Drive, Lemon Grove, California; and

WHEREAS, a variance request associated with the conversion of existing facilities is
categorically exempt from the environmental review requirements of the California

Environmental Quality Act pursuant to Section 15301; and

WHEREAS,  a public hearing was duly noticed and held by the Lemon Grove City
Council on June 20, 2017; and

WHEREAS, the City Council determined that the following findings of fact as required by
section 17. 28. 060( B) cannot all be made as follows:

1. There are not special property circumstances,  ( size,  shape,  topography,  location or
surroundings) that would cause the strict application of this title to deprive the property of

rights enjoyed by other properties in the same vicinity and zoning district; and

a.  The property is not physically constrained by lot size, dimension, topography or its
surroundings.  The two car garage required by the strict application of the
development standards in Residential Low Zoning District could be accommodated
on the property.

2. Granting the variance is not necessary to preserve a substantial property right
possessed by other property in the same vicinity and zoning district; and

a.   Granting the variance request does not afford the applicant a substantial property
right enjoyed by other property owners in the vicinity. Most property owners within
the Residential Low Zoning District comply with Off- Street parking requirements. The
property owner converted two separate two- car garages to habitable living space
without permits brining the property into nonconforming status.

3. Granting the variance will be materially detrimental to the public health, safety or welfare,
or injurious to the property or improvements; and

a.  The variance application reduces garage parking in the area which is a required
improvement.

4. Granting the variance constitutes a special privilege inconsistent with the limitations
upon other properties in the same vicinity and zoning district.

a.  Approval of the variance request would grant the property owner a special exception
from the Residential Low Zoning District' s development standards with which other
property owners must comply.

11-



Attachment C

NOW, THEREFORE,  BE IT RESOLVED that the _City Council of the City of Lemon Grove,
California hereby:

SECTION 1.  Finds and determines that the facts set forth in the recitals of this Resolution are
declared to be true; and

SECTION 2.    Denies Variance VA1- 700- 0001,  a request to modify the Off- street Parking
requirements to allow required parking spaces to be unenclosed ( without a garage) on a site
developed with a single- family residence and a detached garage at 6547 MacArthur drive, Lemon
Grove, CA.

12-



Attachment D

From: Miroslav Tomic, Property Owner CITY OF LEMON GROVE

6547 MacArthur Drive

Lemon Grove, CA 91945 MAY 18 2017

To: Lemon Grove City Council DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

3232 Main Street

Lemon Grove CA 91945

Re: Request for Parking Variance at 6547 MacArthur Drive

May 16, 2017
Dear Honorable Mayor Vasquez and Members of the Council,

I would like to request your consideration to approve a parking variance for a garage AU
renovation at a residential site zoned Low-Density on the outskirts of town. This letter and the
application enclosed serves as proof that there are special circumstances surrounding this rare zone,
whereby granting a variance creates no obstruction to city streets/ property setbacks, provides no

special privilege, creates no health/ safety hazards, and is consistent with the property rights enjoyed
by the vast majority of those in our district.

Background: According to article 17. 24.010, all single- family residential properties must have
two spaces per unit, both of which must be in an enclosed garage. This law protects both the

function and the aesthetics of our neighborhood city streets. Section 7 of this article gives you,
the city council the right to permit a variance if the proposed project meets four specific
requirements for approval. These are as follows:

1)  There are special property circumstances involved with the project proposal site( size,
shape, topography, location or surroundings).

Fact:  Over 90% of the parcels located in the city of Lemon Grove are on small lots
zoned Medium to High Density. ( See Zoning Map Attached). Without the
requirement for garages, the proliferation of these small parcels would definitely
crowd streets and neighborhoods and obstruct property setbacks.

Fact: This project proposal is for a unique site in an area zoned Low Density. On
conservative estimate, Low Density parcels constitute approximately 2% of all

parcels in our city. Like many of our neighbors, our plot of land is in excess of an
acre. We have a fully landscaped front yard set-back that completely prohibits
parking front of the house. There is a long asphalt driveway on the side of the home
that leads into the back acre. On this gentle stop private open air area, there is a large
approximately 3, 000 sq ft) flat historically used as the property' s private off-street

parking platform,( See Photos and Plot Map Attached). As noted in the project plan,

there are 4 proposed off-street parking spots( With potential of up to 7 if ever
needed), This ample off-street parking is completely from the street and

11u, , ront oEonr hc) wse and 01e frce iuO ck:ar I'ron1any
kind ofparkingobstruction,

13-



Attachment D

2)  Granting the variance is necessary to preserve a substantial property right possessed by
others in the same vicinity and zoning district.

Fact: A mid- day/mid-week walking survey of similar homes with a shared Low
Density Zoning allocation on our street prove that only one- third ( 1/ 3) of the
properties appear to comply with the residential parking requirement. Specifically,
only eighteen ( 18) of fifty-two( 52) nearby single family homes appear to have a
two- car covered garage on the premise

Fact: Of those eighteen( 18) apparent two-car garages, eleven ( I I) garages were
either fully or partially obstructed and had additional cars obstructing the required
front and side setbacks. This observation( and other known ' neighborly' information)
suggests that the actual number of properties in our zoning district that have and
use a functioning two- car garage is likely more around 13% ( or 7 of 52= 13%).

3)  Granting the variance will not be materially detrimental to the public health, safety or
welfare, or injurious to the property or improvements;

Fact: No part of this request for variance is injurious, nor does it pose any level of
risk to the health and safety of us or our neighbors.

4)  Granting the variance does not constitute a special privilege inconsistent with the
limitations upon other properties in the same vicinity and zoning district.

Fact: As noted in the supporting facts of part 2 above, granting this variance does not
provide any special privileges that are inconsistent with the properties in the Low
Density Zoning District. On the contrary, the special circumstances and culture of our
particular zoning district is that individual property owners have more than enough
land on their own parcels to accommodate parking for their use and the use of their
guests. In the 14 years I have called MacArthur Drive my home, I have never known
parking to be an issue for anyone on my shared street.

In conclusion, as a long- time home owner and resident of Lemon Grove, I completely support the
city' s effort to keep excess parked cars off of our public streets. I also support the city' s efforts
towards encouraging property owners to keep property set- backs free from obstruction. As you can
see from the attached application, the request for this parking variance honors both of these goals.
Enforcing a mandate to build another garage would only crowd the rare open- space preserve in our
back acre. Further, the mandate would seem egregious, given the uniqueness of this zone, the support
of our neighbors, and the predominant culture shared and enjoyed in the quiet peacefulness of our
neighborhood.

In appivc I It ti, on for your consideration,

Property Owner

14-



r1l AP 2 35 1

P)- 4 7

TOM K

kDPE E  

City of Lemon Grove
3

z
F

Zoning

r~

M3
F

Rem 0

Mari
s= 611

mrz

r

Use te a

s 5-  uy

IAS

Sk-

P, t

Rest _     47- c           -- mss- '_

6

LQ Pai'W's
E

SQA 11, Massachusetis Sin
TxR

STA m, RalCorromroal
RAp

51"A N, Wastem Cerra( Avews Reakkafial

STA V. Pte! 9wWvardAtt xrcMW Sakn 01s63d

A' V1, Aven ue

wt"AVH, TrW S R- 125 PlanningArea

57A VW, Eastern Central Avenue

1 mets® 1, 400 feet Jemmy 2012

15®



Attachment D

E

Pte, Lin swao

I/

STA

3

z

a

A x
j I JH

411 non,

3

in
UE

i

WH L

Lill
34

no

f

Tv
a

Muss H
51-

m

11 1A

MAY,wh" P! RI NA

Ali

rte



Attachment D

w    ....

Map 2351
Lot# 13 Rancho Mission

Assessor' s PI 4478- 220- 05

Owner: MiroslavTomic

Address: 6547 MacArthur Drive

Project Name:    
oY

1  ^

Garage Conversion to ARDU&

Tomic Parking Variance

Attached Photos Note

Front of house street view i

Decorative gating& fully landscaped
setback f=

Back acre lot approx. 30 feet

below street level elevation

and entirely not visible as noted on

Photos Pg 1& 2

Pre- existing permitted& approved

asphalt driveway leading to large ap-
prox. 3, 000 sq ft private parking flat

ARDU maintains consistent roofing

with main house& existing

structures

5 spaces available on open flat
o

49' in width( 9' x5 spaces= 45')   

4 Each space in excess of the required

19' in length( 70' length)

ARDU has addition 2 off- street park-  d

ing spaces, both amply measure in
excess of 9' x19' and remain invisible

1Nt0 Street
gum

1 y

1 r

17



Attachment D

Map 2351

Lot# 13 Rancho Mission

Assessor' s PI# 478- 220- 05

Owner: MiroslavTomic

Address: 6547 MacArthur Drive

Project Name:

Garage Conversion to ARDU&

Tomic Parking Variance

a

d

yIfIH

r      l n// rf r r AOS

ung
f j

JJ
JV

A

41,

A

a r

ulfp y
rpo,.i U9,      R(/ v  f , Iw'('   l^ 01' r, L     R   ! Vf V"'      ;`  A,.,,  
d,   ..

18—



Attachment D

Map 2351

Lot 413 RanchoMission'

Assessor' s PI# 478- 220- 05

Owner: Miroslav Tomic J

Address: 6547 MacArthur Drive

41

Project Name:   
vq

Garage Conversion to ARDU&

Tomic Parking Variance 1      ,..

W.

v.     
t

v

u d I W
rl̀Ii',  IYUr

rf
i+I Q     

fi rr l

ti ? Nj" Y b  '' p1N l. rIlm l f 7" fI f
lli yA, u'' d' 1 , Fi w, tl" 4w'

Ail

Of
o,

31_ J, 4zau'•r
M  ,  

Oh C

004

19-



Attachment D

From: Miroslav Tomic, Property Owner
6547 MacArthur Drive CITY OF LEMON GROVE

Lemon Grove, CA 91945

MAY 18 2017
To: Lemon Grove City Council
3232 Main Street DEVELOPMENT SERVICES
Lemon Grove CA 91945

Re: Parking Variance at 6547 MacArthur Drive, Proof of Hardship

June 1, 2017

Dear Honorable Mayor Vasquez and Members of the Council,

We have been residents of Lemon Grove and property owners of 6547 MacArthur Drive for the
last 14 years. We purchased the home as a rehab in great disrepair and have spent the better part
of the last decade creating the artistic residence you see now. As avid " do- it- yourselfers" we are
proud of our home, but do not want the' niceness' of any of our things to mislead you or anyone
else. Up until this year we have led a comfortable, albeit modest artist lifestyle.

Miro draws a$ 367/ month social security check and Andrea has always managed to make up the
difference in living expenses with her varied roles as a psychotherapist and non- profit director.
Miro travels once a year to his childhood home in Croatia and stays there for several months. He
does this in large part, because the cost of living is so much cheaper there.

The truth of the matter is that we were, in the past, just getting by. Now, since the horrible car
accident Andrea was in just this last November( and AGAIN here in Lemon Grove this last
March), expenses continue to rise out of control and$ 30, 000 to construct a new garage( that we
never used to begin with) is just plain insurmountable.

It's been over 6 months since Andrea has been able to work at all. That first devastating car
accident in November has left her with a brain in'jury that makes remembering/ recording
information very difficult. She still see specialists and treatment doctors 3- 5x every week and
while she' s getting some of her previous thinking/speaking abilities back, her brain and body is
still far away from what it used to be. There is question as to whether or not she will ever fully
recover and make money as a therapist again.

We' ve attached a letter from Andrea' s neurologist and Miro' s SS stub to validate all of the above.
We are also including Andrea' s unfortunate letter of resignation as Director of Vanguard Culture
the LLC and 501( c) 3, after months of her continued inability to tolerate music, light, or noise.

We appreciate your heartfelt consideration.

Property Owner



Attachment D

Your New Benefit Amount IIU% 4

BENEFICIARY' S NAME: MIROSLAV M TOMIC

Your Social Security benefits will increase by 1. 7 percent in 2015 because of a rise in the cost of
living. You can use this letter when you need prool' of your benefit amount to receive food,
rent, or energy assistance; batik loans- or for other business. Keep this letter with your
important financial records.

How Much Will I Get And When?

Your monthly amount( before deductions) is 367, 00

The amount we deduct for Medicare medical insurance is
f-you did- twAA+ ave lMedieare as- of Nov. 20, 2014,-

or if someone else pays your premium, we show$ 0. 00.)

The amount we deduct for your Medicare prescription drug plan is 0. 00,

If you did not elect withholding as of Nov. 1, 2014, we show$ 0. 00.)
The amount we deduct for voluntary Federal tax wit olding is 0. 00,

if you did not elect voluntary tax withholding as of
Nov. 20, 2014, we show$ 0. 00.)

After we take any other deductions, you will receive 367. 00

on or about Jan. 21, 2015.

If you disagree with any of these amounts, you must write to us within 60 days from the date
you receive this letter. We would be happy to review the amounts.

You may receive your benefits through direct deposit, a Direct Express' card, or an Electronic
Transfer Account. If you still receive a paper check and want to switch to an electronic

payment, please visit the Department of the Treasury' s Go Direct website at wwmgodireaorg,

What If I Have Questions?

Please visit our website at mvmsocialsecurily. gov for more inforimation and a variety of online
services. You also can call 1, 81 772- 1213 and speak to a representative from 7 a. m. until 7 p. m.,

Monday through Fri&iy. Recorded infortriation and services are available 24 hours a day. Our lines are
busiest early in the week, early In the month, as well as during the week between Chnistrn,-os and New
Year Day; it Ls N to call at other firries. If you are deaf or hard of hearing, call our TTY number,`
1- 8W325-0778. Ifyou are outside the United States, you can contact any U.S. embassy or consulate
office. Please have your Social Security claim number available when you call or visit and include it on
any letter you send to Social Security. Ifyou are inside the United States and need assisuince of any kind,
you can visit your local office.

7961 UNIVERSITY AVE

LA MESA CA

BNC#:  141313241337689 Cher 110•

21-



Attachment D

ANDREA V. WEBSTER, M.A.
t*, CA 91945. 619 453 969.3 , Andrew' iclmaOO( dq,,m,. itcom.6547 \ lacarthur Bk,d. San Pu.

Susanna Peredo- Swap
Vanguard Culture

590 Fir Street

San Diego, CA 92101

February 10, 2017
Dear Mrs. Peredo- Swap,

As per our most recent conversations, I would like to offer my official resignation as Vanguard
Culture' s Director of Development and Community Engagement.

You all have been extraordinarily patient with me during this trying time of recovery. In the brief
discussions we' ve had since the accident, I rccognize that Vanguard Culture remains at a crucial
time of organizational growth and development. I recognize that I still cannot give what I was

giving prior to the accident, and that my disabilities are holding the growth of Vanguard Culture
back.

After the many weeks have now passed, we come now to face the unfortunate reality that I still
just do not currently have ( and reasonably may not have), the physical or mental ability to lead
this very important aspect of the company' s operations in the near future.

As per previous agreements on salaries and co- ownership of the for- profit businesses doings, I
hereby relinquish my rights to the agreed upon 50% equity of Vanguard Culture LLC, and the
non- profit salary of $55, 000/ year, agreed upon and voted in by the board in the summer of
2016.

It is with deep regrets that I furnish this letter of resignation. The mission and vision of
Vanguard Culture was tremendously moving for me and I was/ am terribly grateful for the
opportunity to serve. Vanguard culture remains on the verge of great growth in its unique value

proposition. While I can no longer officially serve in the roles formerly imagined, I look forward
to watching the magic behind the vision of Vanguard Culture come to fruition.

Sincerely,

Andrea Vielma Webster, MA LMFI'

22,



Attachment E

wwrrai CITY OF LEMON GROVE

ADMINISTRATIVE CITATION

A) TYPE OF VIOLATION

Circle One:      ( Wamn in l
IS'

100 200

2 GtlaP. iun 3" Citation 4" 1 Citation

Y
q r

Cel flue CiPayment al an  ""     i< due no later than G„   . rk'   /„,— ."} @,-__.    oP, y rat L. aa rr r'ror CrxUc: aarr,,

The City accepts cash, check or credit card.

If the violation is not corrected by the date specified therein and/ or payment is not received by the date

above, the next level of citation may be issued, other enforcement actions may occur, and penalties may be
assessed ( 25% and interest at the rate of 10% per annum). Payment of fine does not excuse or discharge

the failure to correct violation identified below.

B) RESPONSIBLE PARTY INFORMATION

I' erson( s)( cited: 1l.  trCtt ' ytv f t)v ry 2)

Circle fans:      qt) s y d 1 rate  "       Tenant Business Owner Gather    _      

y_..
Mailing Address: ' 1)     S ' 17......    (AG t` l.' kt 7_ 0 IIVC,   b C, N td:  t'n Gro   ,_("A...     Y d Ì r

Business Name( if applicable): e

C) VIOLATION( S) INFORMATION

Date( Violation Observed)      f- ime( Violation Observed).-

Location

bserved):

Location of Violation,   rr

a000i Arloj  ,;.)    /  
r.    

APN)       ,
t   , t

Violation( s) Observed( Code Section and Dcscriphorw):(,, Oot r

arn7V
reulvQa Fr 0011YePInPtted c0IlSrr4, kk

ut a   .    t r r t1 r f 1f, fs rfl

yy

its r'

1 r* ) 

t // w,   

l/. ........... ....

Up  ( Arm +! GMt.01',r t1l'.   P J.    rf/

Yl&".
3'  d mgrrpa° tmd A,     .. r PC, 4en; r

D) coRREcTIo"( S)

IItI,  

LaRAO T0 BE Co P L ET E

1

e Y:  µ 14 

fxio)  dl'r

1(yo11( r:Id
A)

rr      da

e. IV,? Wit!,„ Mr”)

r^

r   (
rI^,,, a";

Ia        
t*  

Ir,"   t M+

d E) SERVICING CITATION

INFORMATION t 11ir trio) t?t11r( r Namo Phone No.       

Date Citation Served( circle ogre) In ll rse: nur I yr t1 n+(   Posted on
Property

1,µ this citation may be appealed within 9' ii0y( 30) days from date of correction identified in Section D.To
request an appeal,a Bequest an Appeal I learing lour ( available.: at.City Hall or on the City websites www lerrrongrove
ca. gov)) should be completed and returned to City Hall In the event a Hardship Waiver is requested, the bequest

for an Appeal Hearing and Raodship Waiver forms are required within fifteen( 15)days frorn the correction
dale: identified in

Section D WHII F- ORIGINAL f:,`C10 K)N CARD. OWk,"

M':



Attachment F

6547 MacArthur Drive from Street

N

a

r r

w, rrnrr rrw Wurn ' 1r r r,ie»r, ur+auz,,,

f, p

Driveway with Fountain and Wall and Gate

I j

r

a

u

r r'

25



Attachment F

Converted attached garage with stone inlay

dF i rs

III

r r

Jul'%
i

ONi
Proposed Parking Pad

a,

4 1

rW r N
i

N I

I

r f

4  /

r

4 r
NI   "

4

qq

o I X

n

a f

r
afi rrc;;,°  

m/ ilrNilU

m

ri    r r '' Nrl l/r y v  r y µ

1



Attachment F

pIIII

Artistic Plaster Finish in Detached Garage

i pr i

IfpJr i/

d
J

i lrOr, yi of dyl

WI wi i
iii

iumuu VVI IW.

I

III111
t t

dIIIIr

1

u;    

I„

Detached Garage

4

Y,

C

vo+  y

27-



f

UD

t ell
0 a

a  ,,

fv
M

E. i
r  e

r
rp' r   e,   

t '

I  , 

ra r        ,.,. Iy
y

STV

J 1 6 n@W
y 4 d

i/r,.    
01

CL

r

a

I

r

u ii r

x

rw

OP

If

IIIIIIIIIIII       iV  

r       ,      a       I r' x
44-

FA

f

r p,  y,

uAb

of xry w y yip

U . NO

hogh

u
1      

i

i

r,

y'
1%

r



Attachment H

EXHIBIT A — PROJECT PLANS

Not Attached

Enclosed in City Council packet or available at City Hall for Review

31....



LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Item No.   _........5..
Mtg. Date June20, 2017

Dept.       _ Develooment Services Department.... .

Item Title:    Public Hearing to Consider Ordinance No. 446 — Zoning Amendment ZA1- 500-
0002 Amending the Alcoholic Beverage Sales Regulations and the General
Commercial Zoning District Regulations to Allow for Light Manufacturing,
Brewpubs, Wine Bars and Related Accessory Uses

Staff Contact:    David De Vries, Development Services Director

Recommendation:

1)  ' Conduct the public hearing; and
2)  Introduce Ordinance No. 446 ( Attachment B).

Item Summary:

The proposed zoning amendment allows for alcoholic beverage manufacturers ( e. g., breweries,

wineries,  distilleries,  brewpubs,  and wine bars)  to be permissible by- right in industrial and
commercial zones with related accessory uses ( e. g., tasting rooms, off-sale beverages, outdoor
consumption in fenced area, catering on- site, live music indoors, etc.). Such uses will be required

to obtain a business license and a building permit for any site improvements and comply with
minimum conditions of approval and performance standards related to noise, traffic, hazardous

materials, airborne emissions,  etc. A zoning clearance will be required for all such operations
which may be part of the business license application process. A zoning clearance would be
required for all incidental alcoholic beverage sales uses such as restaurants and drug and grocery

stores that sell alcohol ( currently a minor use permit is required with public noticing). Single- serve

alcoholic beverages for off- site consumption would also be prohibited. The City recently received a

business license application for a brewery in the Heavy Commercial Zoning District.  Other

prospective brewers, distillers and rectifiers have shown interest in locations within Lemon Grove
as well.  This staff report provides background information and an overview of the proposed

amendments to Chapter 18. 27  ( Alcoholic Beverage Sales)  and Section 17. 16. 070  ( General

Commercial Zoning District Regulations).

Fiscal Impact:

None.

Environmental Review:

Not subject to review Negative Declaration

Exempt, Section 15307 and 15308 Mitigated Negative Declaration

Public Information:

None Newsletter article Tribal Government Consultation Request

Notice published in local newspaper Notice to property owners within 500 ft.

Attachments:

A.  Staff Report C. Mitigated Negative Declaration ND17- 02

B.  Ordinance No. 446 — ( ZA1- 500- 0002)



Attachment A

LEMON GROVE CITY COUNCIL

STAFF REPORT

Item No.      5

Mtg. Date June 20, 2017

Item Title:    Public Hearing to Consider Ordinance No. 446 — Zoning Amendment ZA1-
500- 0002 Amending the Alcoholic Beverage Sales Regulations and the
General Commercial Zoning District Regulations to Allow for Light

Manufacturing, Brewpubs, Wine Bars and Related Accessory Uses
Staff Contact:    David De Vries, Development Services Director

Background:

The purpose of the City' s Alcoholic Beverage Sales Ordinance ( Chapter 18. 27 of the Lemon
Grove Municipal Code)  is to regulate and ameliorate problems and adverse conditions

associated with establishments which sell,  serve,  or give away alcoholic beverages.  This
purpose has been implemented by providing separation requirements between alcohol related
uses and from sensitive uses like churches, schools,  parks,  health facilities, and residential
uses.

Within the last few years, the City has received inquiries and business license applications to
establish new breweries, brewpubs, distilleries, and rectifiers ( mixing and bottling spirits) within

the City. The City recently received a business license application for a brewery in the Heavy
Commercial Zoning District.

These alcoholic beverage manufacturing businesses were found to be impermissible either
because the general commercial zone and/ or most of the downtown village specific plan zones

did not allow for alcoholic beverage manufacturing related uses or because the minimum
conditions of approval in the Alcoholic Beverage Sales Ordinance require separation

requirements between alcohol related businesses and other alcohol related businesses and/ or
sensitive land uses like schools,  places of worship,  medical facilities,  public parks and

residences.  Additionally,  these alcoholic beverage manufacturing related uses require a

conditional use permit with additional processing times and fees and approval required by the
City Council. There are incidental alcohol related land uses tike drug and grocery stores and
restaurants selling beer and wine that are exempt from these separation requirements, but a
minor use permit is still required with conditions of approval established by the Development
Services Director and public noticing to property owners within 500 feet of the prospective
property and a notice in the local newspaper is still required. Also, many accessory uses that
are common with breweries are not permissible in the Alcoholic Beverage Sales Ordinance.
These include tasting rooms,  live music both indoors and outdoors,  outdoor patios, on- site
catering, and the sale of growlers and kegs for off-site consumption.

The San Diego region is emerging as one of the nation' s top destinations for craft brewing. Craft
beer is not only an increasing important piece of the regional economy, but is also the fastest
growing segment of alcoholic beverage production in the United States'.  Breweries have

become major economic drivers for cities and are supportive uses to a retail community.  Unlike

restaurants, almost every brewery that has opened in San Diego County has either remained
open or expanded after a year.   Breweries and related manufacturers also add to a City' s

City of San Diego Draft Economic Development Strategy 2014- 2016



Attachment A

employment base. According to the California Association of Local Economic Development, for
each direct brewery job, beer manufacturing creates 4. 7 additional jobs in wholesale, retail, and
service sectors.

Local breweries also serve as a point of local pride and branding opportunity for local
jurisdictions. Communities including Vista and the Miramar District in the City of San Diego have
capitalized on this opportunity and are now regional beer- tasting destinations for locals and
visitors to the San Diego region providing increased sales and property tax revenues for those
jurisdictions. Based on conversations between staff and local breweries, an expedited and easy
to understand permit process and a single point of contact are some of the most important

factors in siting for breweries. Areas in the City of Vista where breweries are permitted by right
have shown substantially more brewery growth then areas where a conditional use permit or
minor use permit discretionary approval is required.

The San Diego Brewer' s Guild Map shows that there are currently no breweries or brewpubs in
the City of Lemon Grove. The City of Lemon Grove' s proximity to downtown San Diego, East
County residential communities,  and service from the San Diego Trolley provide a unique

opportunity for local breweries and related alcohol manufacturing land uses.

State regulations require alcoholic beverage sales businesses to obtain an Alcoholic Beverage
License from the Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control ( ABC) with conditions of approval,
an Alcohol and Tobacco Tax and Trade Bureau ( TTB) permit and registration with the Food and

Drug Administration ( FDA). A state seller' s permit and health permit and approval by the County
Hazardous Material' s Division and Air Pollution Control District may also be required.

Discussion

Proposed Amendments

The proposed zoning amendment amends the General Commercial zone ( Section 17. 26. 070) to
allow brewpubs and wine bars and light manufacturing businesses. A retail storefront is required
e. g., a brewery with a tasting room or merchandise sales). Light manufacturing is currently

allowed in other commercial and industrial zones, but does not require a retail component and

brewpubs and wine bars are not permitted in these zones. The Draft Downtown Village Specific

Plan Expansion will include revisions allowing for light manufacturing throughout the downtown
with a retail storefront required along major streets.

For new developments, a planned development permit and City Council approval will continue
to be required as follows, but aside from this criteria, the City Council will not review permits for
light manufacturing type uses like breweries and brewpubs:

1.   Development that includes three or more principal buildings on one site;

2.   Development of principal uses on commercial, industrial, and/ or mixed use sites of one

acre or more; and

3.   Development in the Downtown Village specific plan area.

The proposed zoning amendment also amends the Alcoholic Beverage Sales regulations
Chapter 18. 27) allowing for alcoholic beverage light manufacturing land uses as incidental

alcoholic beverage sales land uses. Existing incidental uses include restaurants selling beer and
wine and drug and grocery stores selling alcoholic beverages. Additionally, incidental alcoholic
beverage sales land uses are proposed to only require a zoning clearance instead of a minor

4-



Attachment A

use permit. Through the zoning clearance,  such uses will be required to obtain a business
license and a building permit for any site improvements and be required to comply with the
minimum conditions of approval shown in the Alcoholic Beverage Sales Ordinance and

performance standards related to noise, traffic, hazardous materials, airborne emissions, etc.

Section 17. 24. 080).  Other Municipal Code requirements will also apply.

The proposed zoning amendment also permits by- right accessory uses that are common to
breweries ( e. g., tasting rooms, outdoor consumption in fenced area, catering on- site, live music
indoors,  recreational activities including games of skill or chance and retail sales for off-site
consumption). Food trucks are already permitted on a temporary basis and can only stop when
servicing customers.  Staff is also recommending that the sale of single- serving alcoholic

beverages ( e. g., a single 32 ounce beer can or a 40 ounce beer bottle) be prohibited. This may
be a minor concern for some alcoholic beverage manufacturers, but this prohibition is consistent

with recommendations from the Sheriff' s Department.

Concentration of Alcoholic Beverage Sales Businesses

The provision of alcoholic beverage licenses from ABC allows jurisdictions to determine when

there is an undue over-concentration of alcoholic beverage sales businesses. ABC measures

undue concentration in two ways: excess crime ( greater than 20 percent of crime reporting
district)  and ratios of licenses to residents compared with the county as a whole.  Both

measurements are considered at the city and census tract level. The City of Lemon Grove is
allowed 20 off-sale ( sales for consumption off- site) and 35 on- sale ( sales for consumption on-

site) licenses using ABC' s population ratios and the 2010 Census. Currently, 16 off- sale of 20
on- sale have been issued in the City.

Any new off-sale licenses or any licenses in Census Tract 144, which includes the Broadway
Commercial Corridor, will require letters of public convenience or necessity from staff. Census
tract 144 has a higher crime rate than the City as a whole,  largely attributed to its retail
commercial and higher density residential land uses. A recent survey was conducted over a six
month period in 2015 showed the majority of crimes in the City during the Spring and Summer
were theft related ( Figure 1).

The relationship between alcohol licenses and crime is illustrated in Figure 1 and Map 1 on the
following page.  The Alcoholic Beverage Sales Ordinance includes provisions for minimum
conditions of approval for all alcohol sales including the volume, advertising, and separation
distances from sensitive land uses such as schools. These regulations are used to regulate the

type and character of alcohol sales in the City and discourage problem drinking behavior.
Because of the separation requirements, new alcohol beverage sales businesses that are not

incidental,  like liquor stores, bars,  night clubs, and convenience store sales will be severely

impacted by the existing separation requirements and few if any such businesses will be
allowed to open in the future as a result.   These separation requirements are proposed to

remain since they include more intensive alcohol related uses.

5-



Attachment A

Figure 1: Crime Typography in Lemon Grove

Assault

Other 5%

15%

Shoplifting,p g

Drug Related  V Theft, Burglary,

17%             Robbery, and

related crimes

42% j
Drunk in public

or DUI

21%

Source: Crimemapping. org. Crimes Between February
121h— August 11, 2015

Map 1:
Alcohol Licenses & Related Crime, Lemon Grove, CA

DUl/ Drunk in Public
t

94       -  1

BNfDaA' V' vda jP na     C;+   5

s 10

T47tru4 Crimes

143 ,,
r

I

NYP,
i

le/Pi ,     

5
i,"       Y     , V11v̀ ( JL GI Ave
ri

1 d

r

25
IIWUu

mw,       1 %

G
r      CJumbeir of Alcohol Licences

per Census Tract

i
y

f,kn1 40. 0 rn

142

C
ri i 

t t
cs rejp ired l r lbiiu4' ly 02ND 01 l5 -  

n 0 ! i i
he r nfit'r n r Irrl rpu. r'°  ",  I P6iile

0 S R;" erazgisr. 2013

T, f16"1'1 cnr° Tmu" SM Pfi4'.':: 1o' I' 2Of5
A N''or,"" h', 2W5

reg_



Attachment A

The State Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control ( ABC) investigates overconcentration and

crime statistics within a specific Census Tract. Census Tract 144 is shown on Map 1. ABC has
determined that there is an over- concentration of off- sale licenses ( two permitted; 10 existing)
and that there is a higher than average crime rate ( 137. 9% of average) within Census Tract 144.

As a part of the approval of this ordinance, staff recommends that the City Council find that
public convenience or necessity would be served by the issuance of alcoholic beverage sales
manufacturing businesses.  Staff believes this ABC finding can be made as follows  ( also

described in the draft Resolution of approval ( Attachment B):

1.   For the City as a whole  ( all census tracts),  there are 16 active off- sale alcoholic

beverage licenses and approximately 20 off- sale licenses that may be allowed using
ABC' s population ratio.

2.  The majority of alcohol related businesses will continue to be located within Census
Tract 144, which is shown to have high crime, however, allowing alcoholic beverage
sales manufacturers improves property, increases employment and services to the site
thereby increasing " eyes on the street" in the surrounding area and attracts economic
development and visitors to the City.

3.  The prohibition of single- serving alcoholic beverages will reduce public consumption of
alcoholic beverages.

Public Information:

A Mitigated Negative Declaration ( MND) of Environmental Impact has been prepared for this
project ( Attachment C) and will be filed subsequent to the adoption and final approval of the

proposed ordinance by the City Council.  The Initial Environmental Study prepared for this
project identified potential environmental impacts related to noise from indoor live music and
outdoor patios.  Mitigation measures include compliance with noise regulations, patio areas are

required to have appropriate barriers and interior spaces require double entry doorways and
appropriate STC rated windows, and a closed window and door condition and a HVAC system

is required when live music is proposed. Alternatively, a noise analysis may be prepared to
identify appropriate noise mitigations.

The Notice of Public Hearing for this item was published in the March 25, 2017 edition of the
East County Californian.

No formal public comments have been received as of the writing of this report.

Conclusion:

Staff recommends that the City Council: 1) conduct public hearing, 2) introduce Ordinance No.
446 certifying Mitigated Negative Declaration ND17- 02 and approving Zoning Amendment ZA1-
500- 0002 ( Attachment B).

7..



Attachment B

ORDINANCE NO. 446

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA
AMENDING CHAPTER 18. 27 ( ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE SALES REGULATIONS) AND

SECTION 17. 16. 070 ( GENERAL COMMERCIAL ZONING DISTRICT REGULATIONS) OF
THE LEMON GROVE MUNICIPAL CODE TO ALLOW FOR LIGHT MANUFACTURING,

BREWPUBS, WINE BARS AND RELATED ACCESSORY USES

WHEREAS, staff has received several inquiries and business license proposals from

prospective alcoholic beverage manufacturers to open a related business within the City; and

WHEREAS,  allowing and encouraging alcoholic beverage manufacturing and related
accessory uses is found to be an important economic development strategy. Alcoholic beverage
manufacturers create employment opportunities,   revitalize property,   stimulate economic

development,  create regional destinations that attract visitors,  and provide increased tax

revenue; and

WHEREAS,  on June 20, 2017,  a public hearing was duly noticed and held by the
Lemon Grove City Council; and

WHEREAS,  the City of Lemon Grove conducted an environmental assessment for
Zoning Amendment ZA1- 500-0002 on May 25, 2017. A Mitigated Negative Declaration ( MND)
of Environmental Impact will be filed subsequent to the adoption and final approval of the

proposed project. The Initial Environmental Study prepared for this project identified potential
environmental impacts related to noise from indoor live music and outdoor patios.   Mitigation

measures included compliance with noise regulations;  patio areas are required to have

appropriate barriers and interior spaces will require double entry doorways, appropriate STC
rated windows with a closed window and door condition and a HVAC system when live music is
proposed.    A noise analysis may alternatively be prepared to identify appropriate noise
mitigations; and

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the following findings required to approve a
Zoning Amendment can be made in accordance with Section 17. 28. 080( B) of the Municipal
Code:

1.   That the proposed amendment is consistent with the General Plan,  in accordance with

Government Code Section 65860, as amended.

Provisions for alcoholic beverage sales and manufacturing uses include implementation
of and consistency with General Plan goals and policies including encouraging
redevelopment of the Broadway corridor to attract regional shoppers;  fostering
revitalization of the light industrial district;   pursuing new local entertainment

opportunities; cultivating small businesses; and encouraging outdoor dining.

2.   That the public health, safety, and general welfare benefit from the adoption of the proposed
amendment.

Allowing alcoholic beverage sales manufacturers improves property aesthetics,

increases employment and services to the site thereby increasing " eyes on the street" in
the surrounding area where the manufacturer is located and attracts economic
development and visitors to the City.   Also, the prohibition of single- serving alcoholic
beverages will reduce public consumption of alcoholic beverages ensuring appropriate

9-



Attachment B

safety measures are taken to benefit the public health, safety and general welfare of the
community; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has considered the following findings of fact, as required by
Section 18. 27. 050 of the Lemon Grove Municipal Code ( LLMC) for allowing alcoholic beverage
manufacturing businesses with accessory uses within commercial and industrial zones:

1.  Whether the proposed use will result in an undue concentration of establishments selling

alcoholic beverages as defined by the State Alcoholic Beverage Control Department ( ABC)
or by City ordinance or policy.

The City Council finds that the proposed project will result in an over-concentration of
establishments selling alcoholic beverages within Census Tract 144, however, because
permits for off-sale alcohol uses in the entire City are less than what is allowed ( 16 exist;
approximately 20 allowed), there will not be an undue concentration for the City as a

whole and the proposed zoning amendment will not result in an undue concentration of
establishments selling alcoholic beverages in the City.

2.  Whether the approval of the proposed use will violate the minimum requirements, set forth in
Chapter 18. 27, for distance separations between establishments which sell, serve or give

away alcoholic beverages; and separations between establishments which sell, serve or
give away alcoholic beverages and other specific land uses.

The City Council finds that the proposed zoning amendment continues to support
separation and minimum requirements to limit alcoholic beverage sales businesses

within the City.

3.  Whether the proposed use will be located in an area which, based on the most recent yearly

compilation by the San Diego County Sheriff' s Department or other appropriate law
enforcement agency, has experienced a greater than average number of reported crimes
and arrests,  including those reported as alcohol- related,  as well as,  criminal homicide,

forcible rape,  robbery,  aggravated assault,  burglary,  larceny,  theft,  motor vehicle theft

combined with all arrests for other crimes,  felonies and misdemeanors,  except traffic

citations.

The City Council finds that the City includes Census Tract 144, which is shown to have
high crime  ( 137. 9%  of average),  however,  the proposed zoning amendment,  which

includes allowing alcoholic beverage sales manufacturers, improves property aesthetics
and encourages redevelopment, increases employment and services to the site thereby

increasing  " eyes on the street"  in the surrounding area where the manufacturer is
located and attracts economic development and visitors to the City.  Also, the prohibition

of single- serving alcoholic beverages will reduce public consumption of alcoholic
beverages and is consistent with Sheriff staff public safety recommendations; and

WHEREAS, based on crime statistics and number of alcohol beverage sales licenses

within Census Tract 144,  the State Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control  ( ABC)  has

determined that there is an over-concentration of licenses ( two permitted;  10 exist) and that

there is a higher than average crime rate in the Census Tract that the subject property is located
in ( 137. 9% of average) and as a result, ABC requires that the governing body determine that
public convenience or necessity would be served by the issuance of this license.

The City Council finds that public convenience and necessity would be served by
allowing alcoholic beverage sales manufacturers within the City based on findings stated
herein; and

10-



Attachment B

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Lemon Grove hereby ordains as
follows:

SECTION ONE:

ENVIRONMENTAL FINDING. The City Council finds in its independent judgment that
the proposed amendment to the Municipal Code could not have a significant effect on the
environment and certifies Mitigated Negative Declaration ND17- 02.

SECTION TWO:

Amendments to Chapter 18. 27  ( Alcoholic Beverage Sales Regulations) and Section

17. 16. 070 ( General Commercial Zoning District Regulations) of the Lemon Grove Municipal

Code to Allow for Light Manufacturing, Brewpubs, Wine Bars and Related Accessory Uses, are
hereby added to the City of Lemon Grove Municipal Code to read as shown in Exhibit A.

INTRODUCED by the City Council on June 20, 2017.

11-



Attachment B

EXHIBIT A

TEXT OF PROPOSED REGULATIONS

NOTE:

Text proposed to be added is displayed in underlined type.

Text proposed to be deleted is displayed in strikeout type.

The City of Lemon Grove Municipal Code to amend Zoning District Regulations for the General
Commercial Zone, Section 17. 16. 070, and to amend the Alcoholic Beverage Sales Regulations,
Chapter 18. 27, to read as follows:

17. 16. 070 General commercial ( GC) zone. [ Excerpts Only]

A.    Purpose. The general commercial ( GC) zone is available to auto- oriented, generally

large- scale businesses and activities offering retail goods and services meant to serve the
needs of local and regional shoppers. These regulations establish development standards and

conditions through which uses may be located in this zone. All uses shall be subject to the
applicable regulations of this title.

B.     Permitted Uses. Uses that are consistent with the following categories, as determined
by the development services director, are permitted by right, as verified by zoning clearance:

1.    Animal Sales and Services— Pet Supplies. Uses that provide sales of pet supplies

including feed and grain. Facilities and operations shall comply with all standards set forth in this
title.

2.    Animal Sales and Services— Grooming. Uses that provide animal grooming, with or
without the sale of supplies, for household pets and small farm animals as defined in LGMC

Chapter 18. 16. Facilities and operations shall comply with all standards set forth in this title.

3.     Brewr) ubs and wine bars as defined by Chapter 18. 27.

34.     Business and Professional. Uses related to the practice of a vocation requiring

specialized training or education that can be performed in an office setting.

45.     Business Support. Uses that provide printing, copying, photographic, computer, or
technological services.

96.     Educational and Training Facilities. Uses that provide classroom- style instruction for
occupancies less than fifty persons as determined by the building official.

67.     Financial Institutions. Uses related to the exchange, lending, borrowing, and safe-
keeping of money.

78.     Food and Beverage Establishments with Drive- Through. Uses that prepare, provide, or

serve food or beverages for consumption on or off the premises that may include drive-through
service. Alcoholic beverage sales shall be subject to LGMC Chapter 18. 27.

89.     Funeral and Mortuary Services— No Assembly Space. Uses that provide services
related to the death of a human ( without crematoria). This use does not include assembly
space.

910.   Government. Uses related to local, state, or federal government agencies in an office

setting.

12-



Attachment B

11

wL
iaht ManufaAturing. Uses that proces_s fabricate. aITss,e,,mble_ La o _packagefinished

p arts or products, of a Nmited intensity

oy
that result in few outside impacts. This use reauires_aIT

retail cpmDonent along tl' ie entire street frontages.

4012.   Maintenance and Repair of Consumer Goods. Uses that provide maintenance,

cleaning, and repair services for consumer goods. This use does not include vehicle repair
uses.

4413.   Medical, Dental, Clinics and Health Practitioners. Uses related to diagnosis and

treatment of human illness and physical malfunction, including medical and dental laboratories
that can be performed in an office setting.

4-214.   Parking. Uses that provide surface or structure parking for passenger vehicles.
Parking areas may be public or privately- owned and managed.

4315.   Personal Services. Uses that provide a variety of services associated with personal

grooming or adornment, health maintenance, or well- being.

4-416.   Recreation— Small. Uses or facilities associated with indoor or outdoor, active or

passive recreation for indoor occupancies less than fifty persons as determined by the building
official and outdoor occupancies less than fifty persons as determined by the community
development director.

417.   Retail. Uses that provide new consumer goods, large and small, functional and

decorative, for use, entertainment, comfort, or aesthetics; goods for personal grooming or day-

to- day maintenance of personal health and well- being. This use includes, but is not limited to,
furniture, appliances, sundries, pharmaceuticals, wearing apparel and accessories, small
equipment sales and rentals. This use does not include vehicle uses.

4618.   Retail— Antiques. Uses that provide antique goods, large and small, functional and
decorative, for use, entertainment, comfort, or aesthetics.

419.   Vehicle Equipment and Supplies Without Installation. Uses related to the sale of new

or used parts, tools or supplies for repairing or maintaining vehicles. This use does not include
on- site installation.

Chapter 18. 27 ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE SALES

18. 27. 010 Statement of necessity.

A.   The city council finds and determines that the sale and use of alcoholic beverages
contributes to problems encountered by residents, businesses, property owners, visitors and

workers of the city of Lemon Grove. Documented problems include: ( 1) debilitating and life-

threatening medical conditions such as those related to the dysfunction of the heart and
circulatory system, stroke and diseases of the liver; ( 2) social problems such as child and family
neglect and abuse, public drunkenness, and lost productivity; ( 3) public safety issues relating to

drunk driving and related automobile traffic and pedestrian accidents, violence and crime.

B.    The city council finds and determines that, without the appropriate regulation, the sale,
service and use of alcoholic beverages may adversely and seriously affect the peace, health,
safety and welfare of residents of the community and may specifically affect the safety of

13-



Attachment B

children and of visitors to the city, may contribute to the deterioration of neighborhoods, cause
devaluation of property, erode community values and lower the quality of life.

C.    The city council finds that relatively high densities of alcohol outlets are associated with
relatively higher rates of related medical disorders, relatively higher rates of social problems and
alcohol- related traffic casualties.

18. 27. 020 Purpose.

A.   To deal with and ameliorate problems and adverse conditions associated with

establishments which sell, serve or give away alcoholic beverages by restricting the location of
such uses in relation to one another, and their proximity to facilities primarily devoted to use by
children and families and the general public, and through the denial of a conditional use permit

or through the imposition of conditions on a case by case basis, thereby preventing undue
concentration and undesirable community impact of such uses, and by the imposition of
reasonable conditions upon the operation of all such uses both existing and in the future.

B.    To implement the purposes, policies, and programs of the general plan.

18. 27. 030 Definitions.

The following words and phrases are specifically defined to apply to the regulations of this
chapter. Where words are not defined here or elsewhere in this municipal code, their common

meaning shall apply.

A.   " Alcoholic beverage" means and includes alcohol, spirits, liquor, wine, beer, and every

liquid or solid containing alcohol, spirits, wine, or beer and which contains one- half of one
percent or more of alcohol by volume and which is fit for beverage purposes either alone or
when diluted, mixed, or combined with other substances.

B.    Alcoholic Beverage Sales, Incidental.

1.    Alcoholic beverage sales in restaurants shall be considered incidental if all of the

following conditions exist:

a.    Alcoholic beverages are sold for consumption on the premises only;

b.    The primary purpose of the establishment is sit-down dining with table service;
c.    The restaurant contains a fully equipped kitchen, which is utilized each day of business

operation for preparation of meals to be served to patrons;

d.     Full food service is available in the restaurant for all hours that the facility, including the

bar or cocktail lounge, is open;

e.    Take- out food service, if any, is only incidental to the primary use, sit- down food
service;

f.     The restaurant offers no drive- up or drive- through service and does not have a take- out
window.

g.    A separate bar or cocktail lounge may be located on the premises ( s bjeGt to the
h set forth an SeGtien 17. 28. 050 GORditional use permits, E) f the Gity E) f LeMOR Grove

14-



Attachment B

h.    No alcoholic beverage is served in conjunction with

Lill OF nhanno any athletic event or    /  accordance withsf an form of adult entertainment in

Chapter 18. 28.

2.    Alcoholic beverage sales in food stores other than convenience markets shall be

considered incidental when the shelving or display area allocated to alcoholic beverages does
not exceed more than ten percent of the total shelf and display area within the store;

3.    Alcoholic beverage sales in drug stores with a floor area greater than ten thousand
square feet, with or without the sale of household merchandise, beauty supplies, toiletries, and
packaged food products, shall be considered incidental when the shelving or display area
allocated to alcoholic beverages does not exceed six percent of the total shelf and display area
within the store.

i b manufacturers wit accessory4.     3r°cwNtwbs, wine bars rectifiers. and alcoholic beverage

on- and off- sale alcoholic beveraae sales including, but not limited to, tasting rooms and off sale
on- sitewithN caterungjr grmitted oto„  tto t!q!l too.alcoholicalcoholicalcoholicwk

w vcrar s tl° t are manufacture....

r. onsidered incmiwdwmwe._._n..tal provided perorrigco slandards In.
m,.Sm. o Nw r N7 _. 4.. BEj are adhered to,

5-    Accessory indoor       .. outdoor    . n sumo.._t.._io. n of alcoholicbeveraaes_..w......i.t hin a

rcar(ivvrte fenced areall b considered icde     rivrdd noise ulations wrNNwNr Sectionn

dig the hobetween......., M,9. 24,.080( 6)„ are adhered tourmmn urs 7 P M. to 7 A. M.

C.      Brewpub means,, a small anmary or accessory beer manufacturer. which mavwwincludem

i own premises and sold for ona restaurant, where the alcohol is reduced Nusively at its

and/ orobowsthe sale of other supplier'smalcohol foroff- site c nsltr° pptlon This operation allows
consumption on its ownmmmpremises,

SD.    " Convenience markets" means, for purposes of this chapter, any store selling food
and household merchandise to the public, which has a floor area less than ten thousand square

feet.

BE.    " Establishment" means a place of business with its furnishings and staff which may be

regarded as the smallest unit conveyable by sale, rent or lease.

F.    " Notice and order" means the community development director' s written notice and

orderr to a business or facility owner or operator which directs such owner or operator to comply
with city regulations and the specific requirements of the conditional use permit or mi  —
permitzoning clearance authorizing the operation of the business or facility which sells, serves
or gives away alcoholic beverages.

FG.    " Off- sale liquor establishment" means any establishment wherein alcoholic beverages

are sold or given away for consumption off the premises including but not limited to any
establishment which is applying for or has obtained a liquor license from the California
Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control, including types 20 and 21.

H.   " On- sale liquor establishment" means any establishment wherein alcoholic beverages

are sold, served or given away for consumption on the premises including but not limited to any
establishment which is applying for or has obtained a California Department of Alcoholic
Beverage Control license types 41, 42, 47, 48, 51, 52 and 63.

I. Rectifier"er means to Cut blend,, re t

mmix.
flavor and color distilled saints„and wine

n which been paid and, yte licensee or another person,n wh c excise tax has n  whether rectified b h, 
ro

15-



Attachment B

to packaqe, label. export and sell the products to persons holding licenses at,,thorizina the sale

of distilled spirits

J.      " Tastina Rooni" means an area used for accessory alcolholic beveraae retail

K.     " Wine bar" means a small r) rimary or accessor wine beveraae manufacturer. which

rnay includ.e a restaurant, where the wirlfLLsjm) duced exclusively at its own premises and sold
for on- and/ or off- site consumption,  This or) eration allows the sale of other surmlier' s alcohol for

consumption on its own premises.

HL.    Substantial Change in Mode or Character of Operation. Any of the following actions or
situations will constitute o " substantial change in mode or character of operation" for purposes of

this chapter:

1.    The establishment changes its type of retail liquor license within o license classification;

or

2.    The establishment 000aee operation for a period of thirty- one days. The suspension of

business during the diligent prosecution of building repairs or remodeling undertaken under the
authority of o valid building permit ehoU not be considered e substantial change in the mode or
character of operation if the repairs or remodeling do not change the nature of the licensed
pnannioee and do not increase the square footage of the area which constitutes the

establishment;

3.    Any addition exceeding ten percent of the existing floor area is made to the building or
portion of a building occupied exclusively by a business which sells or serves alcoholic
beverages and which would be subject to approval by conditional use pennb, if being
established as a new use;

4.    Any nnodificaUon, remodeling or renovation of an existing buUding, or portion thereof,
occupied exclusively by o business or facility which aaUa or serves alcoholic beverogaa, when
the value of such rnodifioodon, nennode| ing, or renovation exceeds fifty percent of the
replacement value of the subject premises as determined by the building official;

5.    The establishment is found to be a public nuisance by the city council;

O.    The California Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control has held m formal hearing

regarding accusations of violations, by the aatab| iohnnent, of ABC rules and has determined that
such violations have occurred.

0N.     Timely Compliance.

1.    For all violations involving the unauthorized enlargement or physical modification to the
existing bui| dinQ, facility or outdoor service area, timely compliance means complete removal of
the physical modifications which constitute the vi0| adnO or submittal of detailed working

drawings sufficient for on application for building permit and a complete application for
modification of the conditional use permit or which authorizes

the business or facility. Evidence of the complete removal of unauthorized vvVrk, or the working
drawings and complete mpp| ioodnn shall be filed in the office of the Gemmunity development
services department within fifteen calendar days following the receipt of the GOMMURity

development services director' s notice and order by the ovvner, operator or employee- in- charge

of the business or facility.

16-



Attachment B

2.    For all violations, other than those described in subsection # L of this section, such as,

but not limited to, the sale or display of unauthorized fortified wines, the display of unauthorized
advertising signs, exceeding shelf area limitations; " timely compliance" means full compliance

within twenty- four hours following receipt of the GOMMun+ty development services director' s
notice and order by the owner, operator or employee- in- charge of the business or facility.

18. 27. 040 General provisions.

A.   Alcoholic Beverage Sales or Service, New and Substantial Changes. Except as

otherwise stated herein, on and after the effective date of the ordinance creating this chapter, no

place, facility or business wherein alcoholic beverages are sold, served or given away for on-
site or off-site consumption, shall be established or shall affect a " substantial change" in mode
or character of operation as defined in Section 18. 27. 030( G) without first obtaining a conditional

use permit, or modification of an existing conditional use permit, pursuant to Section 17. 28. 050
of the zoning ordinance. A zonin

clearance shall be required if alcoholic beverage sales or services are " incidental" as defined in
Section 18. 27. 030( B).

B.    Alcoholic Beverage Sales or Service, Not Authorized by CUP or Ml jpzonin
clearance. Except for those places, businesses and facilities described in subsection A of this

section as an establishment having a conditional use permit or miner „ moo norrMzonin

clearance and being in full or substantial compliance with current requirements, on and after the
effective date of the ordinance creating this chapter, all existing places wherein alcoholic

beverages are sold, served, or given away for on- site or off-site consumption shall be
considered nonconforming uses. Elimination of nonconforming status may be achieved by filing
the appropriate application, receiving a conditional use permit or

miner „ moo .  4wAzonin

clearance as required by this chapter, and complying with conditions of approval which shall be
limited to the minimum conditions of approval as set forth in Sections 18. 27. 060(A) and ( B).

These requirements shall be enforced according to the provisions of subsection C of this
section. For existing businesses selling alcoholic beverages, the requirements of this chapter
relating to minimum separations between the existing business, similar establishments and
other specific land uses shall be waived.

C.    Alcoholic Beverage Sales or Service— Enforcement. The alcoholic beverage sales

ordinance shall be enforced according to the provisions of Section 18. 27. 120 of the
development code and Section 17. 28. 020 of the zoning ordinance. ( Ord. 386 § 3, 2009)

18. 27. 050 Findings.

In addition to the findings required for the granting of conditional use permits by Section

17. 28. 050 of the zoning ordinance, the decision making authority shall consider the following:
A.   Whether the proposed use will result in an undue concentration of establishments

selling alcoholic beverages as defined by the state Alcoholic Beverage Control Department
ABC) or by city ordinance, resolution, or policy.

B.    Whether the approval of the proposed use will violate the minimum requirements, set

forth in this chapter, for distance separations between establishments which sell, serve or give

17-



Attachment B

away alcoholic beverages; and separations between establishments which sell, serve or give
away alcoholic beverages and other specific land uses.

C.    Whether the proposed use will be located in an area which, based on the most recent

yearly compilation by the San Diego County sheriff' s department or other appropriate law
enforcement agency, has experienced a greater than average number of reported crimes and
arrests, including those reported as alcohol- related, as well as, criminal homicide, forcible rape,
robbery, aggravated assault, burglary, larceny, theft, motor vehicle theft combined with all
arrests for other crimes, felonies and misdemeanors, except traffic citations. ( Ord. 386 § 3,

2009)

18. 27. 060 Minimum conditions of approval.

A.    Businesses or facilities providing alcoholic beverages for off- site consumption shall

comply with the following minimum conditions of approval. However, the planniRg Go
ar--city councils appeal, may impose such additional conditions and restrictions as found
necessary or desirable to achieve the purposes of this chapter.

1.    No alcoholic beverages shall be consumed on the premises under the control of the

business owner or the property owner, excepting when alcoholic beverages are manufactured
on the premises.

2.    Adequate litter receptacles shall be provided.

3.    All display of alcoholic beverages shall be located a minimum of five feet from the store
entrance.

4.    For establishments which sell or give away alcoholic beverages and also sell gasoline,

no signs advertising alcoholic beverages may be visible from the exterior of the building. Except
for liquor stores, the signage for which shall be governed by conditional use permit and the city

sign ordinance, signage advertising alcoholic beverages for all other establishments selling
alcoholic beverages for off- premises consumption shall be limited to no more than fifty percent

of the temporary window display permitted by the sign ordinance ( twelve and one- half percent of
total window area). Not more than two neon signs which hang on the inside of a window may be
permitted subject to, and deducted from, the area limitations established in this subsection. No

reference to liquor, any alcoholic beverage or product, or alcoholic beverage brand name may
be included in any permanent signage for any establishment selling alcoholic beverages for off-
site displayed y q ever a e manufacturerssite consumption other than that dis la ed b liquor stores or alcoholic

when thev are on the premises.

5.     No wine shall be displayed, sold or given away in containers of less than seven hundred
ml, except multipack containers of wine and wine coolers containing no more than & Wifteen

percent alcohol by volume.

6.     No distilled spirits shall be displayed, sold or given away in containers of less than two

hundred fifty ml, except two- hundred- ml pre- mixed cocktails.

7.    The display, sale or distribution of fifty ml " airport bottles" and three- hundred- seventy-
five ml " hip flask" containers is prohibited.

8.    No single- serve beer, ale or malt liquor shall be offered for sale in a container with a

volume greaterequal toor less than thirly tweforty ounces. This restriction is not intended to

18-



Attachment B

prohibit the sale of such beverages in kegs or other types of containers, with a volume of two 0

mere ga" GRS, which are clearly designed to dispense multiple servings.

9.    No wine with an alcoholic content greater than fifteen percent by volume shall be

displayed, sold or given away unless the following conditions are met:

a.    The alcohol content is solely the result of the natural fermentation process; or

b.     If the alcohol content resulting from natural fermentation has been increased by the

addition of wine spirits, brandy, or other alcohol, the wine must be sealed and capped by cork
closure and aged for two or more years.

10.   All litter shall be removed from the exterior areas around the building as required and no

less frequently than once each day this business is open.

11.   The operation of the business shall comply fully with all the rules, regulations and

orders of the state Alcoholic Beverage Control Department. Failure to comply with these
requirements shall constitute grounds for revocation of a conditional use permit or mise

per+x+tzoning clearance.

12.   The business shall comply with all of the conditions of the conditional use permit or
miner „ moo permi+zoning clearance which authorizes its operation.

13.   For all businesses other than liquor stores, brewpubs, wine bars, rectifiers and

manufacturing, warehouse, and distribution facilities, the display, sale and distribution of

alcoholic beverages shall be accessory to other permitted activities. Except where Section
18. 27. 030( B)( 3) requires a greater limitation, shelving or other display area allocated to the

display of alcoholic beverages shall not exceed ten percent of the total shelf or display area
within the premises.

14.   No sale or distribution of alcoholic beverages shall be made from a drive- up or walk- up

window.

15.   No display, sale or distribution of beer or wine, wine coolers or similar alcoholic
beverages shall be made from an ice tub, barrel or similar container.

16.   Employees engaged in the sale or distribution of alcoholic beverages shall be at least

twenty- one years old, or at least one salesperson twenty- one years old or older must be on the
premises during all times when alcoholic beverages are sold.

17.   Businesses engaged in the sale or distribution of alcoholic beverages for off- site

consumption shall maintain a minimum separation of five hundred feet from any other business
required to have a conditional use permit for the sale of alcoholic beverages. This subdivision

shall not apply to incidental alcoholic beverage sales and the fellowing-
M.

1.    1A warehouses, and distribution facilities

2.    Feed or dFug stores eRgaged an the ' RGidental sale of alGehGIiG beverages as defined ' R
SeGtien 18. 27. 030( B).

B.    Businesses providing the sale or service of alcoholic beverages for on- site consumption
shall comply with the following minimum conditions of approval. However, the g

GOMMOSSiOR, or city council en appeal, may impose such additional conditions and restrictions
as are found necessary or desirable to achieve the purposes of this chapter.

19-



Attachment B

1.     Except within city- approved outdoor eating places which are adequately separated from
direct public access via a fence or other means, no alcoholic beverages shall be consumed

outside of an enclosed building.

2.     For restaurants, bars, taverns and cocktail lounges, signs advertising alcoholic

beverages shall be limited to no more than fifty percent of the temporary window display

permitted by the sign ordinance ( twelve and one- half percent of total window area). Not more

than two neon signs which hang on the inside of a window may be permitted subject to, and
deducted from, the area limitations established in this subsection.

3.     Except for manufacturers, brewpubs, wine bars and rectifiers, Nno reference to liquor,

any alcoholic beverage or product, or alcoholic beverage brand name may be included in any
permanent signage for any establishment selling alcoholic beverages for on- site consumption
other than that displayed by bars, taverns and cocktail lounges.

No wine with an alcoholic content greater than fifteen percent by volume shall be displayed,

sold or served unless the following conditions are met:

a.    The alcohol content is solely the result of the natural fermentation process; or

b.     If the alcohol content resulting from natural fermentation has been increased by the
addition of wine spirits, brandy, or other alcohol, the wine must be sealed and capped by cork
closure and aged for two or more years.

4.    All litter shall be removed from the exterior of the building as required and no less

frequently than once each day the business is open.

5.    The operation of the business or facility shall comply fully with all the rules, regulations
and orders of the state Alcoholic Beverage Control Department. Failure to comply with these
requirements shall constitute grounds for revocation of a conditional use permit or m„  nGF Esse

per * zoning clearance.

6.    For all businesses and other facilities engaged in the sale or service of alcoholic

beverages for on- site consumption other than bars and taverns, the sale of alcoholic beverages

shall be incidental and accessory to other permitted activities.

7.    Employees engaged in the sale or service of alcoholic beverages for on- site

consumption shall be at least twenty- one years old.

8.     Except for restaurants rincidental on- site alcoholic beverage sales

businesse con uri-ipti( rt, businesses engaged in the sale or service of alcoholic beverages for

on- site consumption shall maintain a minimum separation of one thousand feet from another

business selling or serving alcoholic beverages for on- site consumption and a minimum of five
hundred feet from any other business requiring a conditional use permit for the on- site or off-site
sale or service of alcoholic beverages; any church or other place of worship; any public or

private preschool, elementary school or high school; any public park or playground; any
hospital, clinic, or other health care facility; any residential unit other than a caretaker' s dwelling
on a commercial or industrial property; and any property zoned for residential use. Except that
existing businesses that serve alcohol and that were located closer than five hundred feet or
one thousand feet from another business serving alcohol prior to adoption of the ordinance
codified in this chapter shall be allowed to expand their business as long as the expansion does
not violate the distance requirements from any of the designated sensitive uses identified in this
section above. Based upon the particular circumstances involved, the PlaRRiRg GOrnmissionCity

20-



Attachment B

Council shall determine the appropriate separation between private clubs and lodges operated

by recognized national, state or regional religious or fraternal order and appropriate distances
between such clubs and lodges and other types of land use.

18. 27. 070 Measurement of distance.

A.   Types of Uses.

1.    " Regulated uses" are those businesses and facilities which sell, serve or give away

alcoholic beverages and which have been identified in Sections 18. 27.060(A)( 16) and

18. 27. 060( B)( 8).

2.    " Protected uses" are churches or other places of worship; any public or private

preschool, elementary school or high school; any park or playground; any hospital, clinic, or
other health care facility; any residential unit other than a caretaker' s dwelling on a commercial
or industrial property; and any property zoned for residential use.

B.     Distance Computation.

1.    When a physical separation is required between two regulated uses, the distance of

such separation is measured along a straight line extending between the closest exterior
structural walls of each use.

2.    When a physical separation is required between a regulated use and a protected use,

the distance of such separation is measured along a straight line extending between the closest
exterior structural wall of the regulated use and the closest property line of the protected use.

18. 27. 080 Notification to alcoholic beverage control department.

A.   Within five days following the city' s approval of a conditional use permit or ase
per itzoninq clearance for a business proposing to sell, serve or give away alcoholic

beverages, the city will send a written notice of such approval to the local office of the State
Alcoholic Beverage Control Department.

1.    The notice shall include a copy of the resolution or notice of approval and will state that
city approval of the business or other facility proposing to sell, serve or give away alcoholic
beverages has been granted subject to compliance, by the business or facility, with certain
specific conditions.

2.    The notice shall indicate the final date for the filing of any appeals from the decision or
conditions of approval.

3.    The notice shall state clearly in its heading and text that formal city approval of the
business or facility which proposes to sell, serve or give away alcoholic beverages will be
withheld until the business has complied with all appropriate conditions of approval.

B.    Within three working days of the city' s determination that a business proposing to sell
alcoholic beverages has fully complied with all appropriate conditions of approval of a
conditional use permit or mi^^

r nor^ ' zoning clearance, a notice regarding such full
compliance will be sent to the local ABC office.

21-



Attachment B

18. 27. 090 Notification regarding violations.

Each time the GOMMunity development services director determines that a business or other
facility which sells, serves or gives away alcoholic beverages has violated any provision or
condition of its conditional use permit, minormi+zoning clearance, other city law or

regulation, or any requirement of the state Alcoholic Beverage Control Department, it shall issue
a written notice and order to the owner of the business or facility. The notice and order shall

include the following:

A.   A requirement that the business owner or facility operator correct all violations

immediately.

B.    A statement that a violation of the alcoholic beverage sales ordinance constitutes a

misdemeanor subject to the general penalty provisions of this code, that conviction of a
misdemeanor shall be punishable by fine or imprisonment or both such fine and imprisonment,
and that each day a violation is committed or continued constitutes a separate offense.

C.    A statement that, in addition to the penalties stated in Section 18. 27. 080, failure to

comply in a timely manner or repeated violations may result in a revocation of the conditional
use permit or miner normi+zoninq clearance which authorizes the maintenance of an

establishment selling, serving or giving away alcoholic beverages.

D.   A notification that a written report of such violation or violations has been transmitted to

both the owner of the property where the business or facility is being conducted or operated and
to the local office of the Alcoholic Beverage Control Department.

18. 27. 100 Justification for revocation of approvals.

Any business establishment which has been authorized by the city to sell, serve or give away
alcoholic beverages shall comply fully with all city zoning and sign regulations, with all
conditions attached to the approval of its conditional use permit or miner ice normi+tonin

clearance, and with all rules, regulations and orders of the State Alcoholic Beverage Control

Department. Failure to comply with any of these requirements shall constitute grounds for
revocation of a conditional use permit or miner „ moo normi+zoninq clearance.

18. 27. 110 Hearing regarding alleged violations.

If a business or other facility which sells, serves or gives away alcoholic beverages has been
declared a public nuisance; if it has been found, by the California Department of Alcoholic
Beverage Control, to be in violation of ABC rules; if its owner or operator fails to comply or

refuses to comply with a notice and order to correct a violation in a timely manner; or if the
GOMmunit development services director, on three separate occasions within any twelve- month

period, has issued a written notice and order to the owner of said business or operator of the

facility, pursuant to Section 18. 27. 080, requiring the correction of specific violations of its
conditional use permit or miner „ moo 4-PPA clearance; theGE)MMi66iGRCitV

Council will schedule a public hearing, consistent with the requirements of Section 17. 28. 020 of
the zoning ordinance to consider these matters. Following such public hearing, the g

rnCity Council may make any findings which it believes to be supported by the facts
presented in the hearing, including the following.-

22-



Attachment B

A.    It may find that the alleged violation( s) did not occur, were beyond the control of the
business owner or facility operator, or were insignificant.

B.     It may find that the alleged violation( s) did occur, that they were the responsibility of the
business owner or facility operator, and were significant. As part of its determination regarding
the appropriate action to be taken, the plaRning G0MMiGSiGRQitV Council may consider whether

the violations were corrected immediately after being brought to the owner' s or facility operator' s
attention, whether such violations constitute a minor or major violation of this chapter and its
purpose and intent, and whether such violations appear to constitute a pattern of disregard for

the city' s laws and the standards of the community. ( Ord. 386 § 3, 2009)

18. 27. 120 City actions in response to violations.

If, after a public hearing and full examination of the evidence regarding alleged violations of
the city' s regulations governing the sale, service or distribution of alcoholic beverages, the
planning City Council makes findings similar to those stated in Section 18. 27. 110(A)
it may choose to take no action against the owner of the subject business or operator of the
subject facility. However, if the evidence submitted in the public hearing convinces the planRiRg
sei66iCity Council that a significant violation has occurred, it may take one or more of the

following actions:

A.    Imposition of additional conditions governing the physical design of the building or
property where the business is conducted or the facility is operated.

B.    Attachment of additional conditions or limitations affecting the operations of the

business or facility.

C.    The planniRg GOMmissionCity Council may determine that the business or facility, and
its manner of operation, constitutes a serious threat to the preservation of the public health,

safety and welfare and may take one or both of the following actions:
1.     It may revoke the conditional use permit or miner „ moo norm'+ zoning clearance which

authorizes the business or facility to sell, serve or give away alcoholic beverages.

2.     It may recommend that the city council declare that the business or facility is a public
nuisance subject to abatement or enjoinment in the manner provided by law.

23-



Attachment C

INITIAL STUDY / ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST

ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT NO. ND17- 02

FOR ZONING AMENDMENT ZA1- 500- 0002

CITY-WIDE

LEMON GROVE, CALIFORNIA

Prepared by:
Lemon Grove Planning Division Staff

3232 Main Street

Lemon Grove, CA 91945

619) 825- 3805

May 25, 2017

25-



Attachment C

City of Lemon Grove
Initial Study / Environmental Checklist

This Initial Study / Environmental Checklist has been prepared pursuant to the California

Environmental Quality Act ( CEQA) [ Public Resources Code § 21000, et seq.] and the 2016 State

CEQA Guidelines [ California Code of Regulations § 15000, et seq.]. This Initial Study /
Environmental Checklist determines that the project will result in no impacts or less than
significant impacts ( with mitigation) on the environmental resources and issues evaluated

herein, and hence would not have a significant impact on the environment.

TI°°rig document is bemt: made avadad,:wle for a...20 day public review corn rnent t:  rA rl .m rint1i

May 25 2017 and ending June 14, 2017. Comments regarding this Initial Study/ Environmental
Checklist must be made in writing to: David De Vries, Development Services Director, City of
Lemon Grove, 3232 Main Street, Lemon Grove, California 91945. Comments must be received

by 5: 00 P. M. on the last day of the public review period.

1.  Project Title:  Alcoholic Beverage Sales Ordinance

Amendment; ZA1- 500- 0002, ND17- 02

2.  Lead Agency Name and Address:   City of Lemon Grove
3232 Main Street

Lemon Grove, CA 91945

3.  Contact Person and Phone Number:       David De Vries

Development Services Director

City of Lemon Grove
3232 Main Street

Lemon Grove, CA 91945

619) 825- 3812

4.  Project Location:    City wide, Lemon Grove, CA 91945

5.  Project Applicant:  City of Lemon Grove
3232 Main Street

Lemon Grove, CA 91945

6.  General Plan Designation:      City wide

7.  Zoning Designation:       City wide

8.  Project Description:

This project includes implementing changes to the Municipal Code to allow for, as
permitted uses, alcoholic beverage manufacturers with on- site alcoholic beverage sales

and consumption, alcoholic beverage sales for off-site consumption, and other accessory
uses provided certain performance standards are adhered to within commercial and

industrial zoning districts.

9. Setting and Surrounding Land Uses:
The project area includes all existing and potential areas in the City.  The City is mostly
residential with a mix of other land uses. Very few undeveloped parcels remain in the City.

26-



Attachment C

To the north is the State Route 94 and the Cities of La Mesa and San Diego.  To the east is

the State Route 125 and the County of San Diego ( Spring Valley community).  To the south

and west is the City of San Diego.  The existing landscape consists of native and
ornamental vegetation.

10. Approvals Required:

Zoning Amendment ZA1- 500- 0002 including modifications to Chapter 18. 27 (Alcoholic
Beverage Sales) and Section 17. 16. 070 ( General Commercial Zoning District Regulations)
of the Lemon Grove Municipal Code.

11. Other public agencies whose approvals are required ( e. g., permits, financing
approval, or participation agreement):

Department of Fish and Game.

27-



Attachment C

ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS POTENTIALLY AFFECTED:

Based upon the initial evaluation presented in the following Initial Study / Environmental

Checklist, it is concluded that the Project would result in the following potentially significant
adverse environmental impacts to the following resource areas:

Aesthetics Land Use and Planning

Qm....  Agriculture & Forestry Resources Mineral Resources

Air Quality Noise

Biological Resources Population and Housing
Cultural Resources Public Services

Geology and Soils Recreation

Greenhouse Gas Emissions Transportation / Traffic

Hazards and Hazardous Materials Utilities and Service Systems

Hydrology and Water Quality Mandatory Findings of Significance

DETERMINATION:

On the basis of this initial evaluation: ( To be completed by the Lead Agency)

I find that the project COULD NOT have a significant effect on the environment,
and a NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared.

I find that although the project could have a significant effect on the environment,
there will not be a significant effect in this case because revisions in the project

have been made by or agreed to by the project proponent. A MITIGATED
NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared.

I find that the project MAY have a significant effect on the environment, and an
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required.

El I find that the project MAY have a " potentially significant impact" or " potentially
significant unless mitigated" impact on the environment, but at least one effect ( a)

has been adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal
standards, and ( b) has been addressed by mitigation measures based on the
earlier analysis as described on attached sheets. An ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

REPORT ( EIR) is required, but it must analyze only the effects that remain to be
addressed.

I find that although the project could have a significant effect on the environment,

because all potentially significant effects ( a) have been analyzed adequately in an
earlier EIR or ( MITIGATED) NEGATIVE DECLARATION pursuant to applicable
standards, and ( b) have been avoided or mitigated pursuant to that earlier EIR or

MITIGATED) NEGATIVE DECLARATION, including revisions or mitigation
measures that are imposed upon the project, nothing further is required.

28-



Attachment C

EVALUATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS:

1.  A brief explanation is required for all answers except " No Impact" answers that are

adequately supported by the information sources a lead agency cites in the
parentheses following each question. A " No Impact' answer is adequately supported
if the referenced information sources show that the impact simply does not apply to
projects like the one involved ( e. g., the project falls outside a fault rupture zone). A

No Impact" answer should be explained where it is based on project- specific factors

as well as general standards ( e. g., the project will not expose sensitive receptors to
pollutants, based on a project- specific screening analysis).

2.  All answers must take account of the whole action involved, including off- site as well
as on- site, cumulative as well as project- level, indirect as well as direct, and
construction as well as operational impacts.

3.   Once the lead agency has determined that a particular physical impact may occur
then, the checklist answers must indicate whether the impact is potentially
significant, less than significant with mitigation, or less than significant. " Potentially
Significant Impact' is appropriate if there is substantial evidence that an effect may

be significant. If there are one or more " Potentially Significant Impact' entries when
the determination is made, an EIR is required.

4.   " Negative Declaration: Less Than Significant With Mitigation Incorporated" applies

where the incorporation of mitigation measures has reduced an effect from

Potentially Significant Impact" to a " Less Than Significant Impact." The lead agency
must describe the mitigation measures and briefly explain how they reduce the effect
to a less than significant level ( mitigation measures from " Earlier Analyses", as

described in ( 5) below, may be cross- referenced).

5.   Earlier analyses may be used where, pursuant to the tiering, program EIR, or other
CEQA process, an effect has been adequately analyzed in an earlier EIR or
mitigated) negative declaration pursuant to Section 15063( c)( 3)( D) of the CEQA

Guidelines. In this case, a brief discussion should identify the following:

a.   Earlier Analysis Used. Identify and state where they are available for review.

b.   Impacts Adequately Addressed. Identify which effects from the above checklist
were within the scope of and adequately analyzed in an earlier document
pursuant to applicable legal standards, and state whether such effects were

addressed by mitigation measures based on the earlier analysis.

c.   Mitigation Measures. For effects that are " Less Than Significant With Mitigation

Measures Incorporated", describe the mitigation measures that were

incorporated or refined from the earlier document and the extent to which they
address site- specific conditions for the project.

6.   Lead agencies are encouraged to incorporate into the checklist references to

information sources for potential impacts ( e. g., general plans, zoning ordinances).

Reference to a previously prepared or outside document should, where appropriate,
include a reference to the page or pages where the statement is substantiated.

29-



Attachment C

7.   Supporting Information Sources: A source list should be attached, and other sources
used or individuals contacted should be cited in the discussion.

8.  This is only a suggested form, and lead agencies are free to use different formats;
however, lead agencies should normally address the questions from this checklist
that are relevant to a project' s environmental effects in whatever format is selected.

9.  The explanation of each issue should identify:

a.  The significance criteria or threshold, if any, used to evaluate each question; and

b.  The mitigation measure identified, if any, to reduce the impact to less than
significant.

Impact Terminology

The following terminology is used to describe the potential level of significance of
impacts:

A finding of no impact is appropriate if the analysis concludes that the project would
not affect the particular resource in any way.

An impact is considered a less than significant impact if the analysis concludes

that it would not cause substantial adverse change to the environment and requires

no mitigation.

An impact is considered less than significant with mitigation incorporated if the

analysis concludes that it would not cause substantial adverse change to the

environment with the inclusion of environmental commitments that have been agreed

to by the applicant.

An impact is considered a potentially significant impact if the analysis concludes
that it could have a substantial adverse effect on the environment and requires

mitigation.

30-



Attachment C

1,   AESTHETICS

Would the project:

Less Than

Potentially Significant Less Than
No

Issue Significant With significant
Impact

Itripact Mitigation Impact

Jn,corPora_ted.... ................................................

a.   Have a substantial adverse
I'D z

effect on a scenic vista?

b.   Substantially damage scenic
resources, including but not
limited to, trees, rock

0 El
outcroppings, and historic

buildings within a state scenic

hi. hway?
C.   Substantially degrade the

existing visual character or

quality of the site and its
surroundinqs?

d. Create a new source of

substantial light or glare that

would adversely affect day or
nighttime views in the area?  J

Explanation of Checklist:

a- d: No Impact. No construction is proposed as a part of this project.  This project

includes amendments to the Municipal Code unrelated to land development.

Source: 1, 2, 3, 4, 5

31-



Attachment C

U.  AGRICULTURAL AND FOREST RESOURCES

Would the project:

Less Than

Potentially Significant L ess Than
No

Issue Significant With Significant
Impact

Impact Mitigation 111, 1part

Incorporated

a.   Convert Prime Farmland,

Unique Farmland, or Farmland

of Statewide Importance

Farmland), as shown on the

maps prepared pursuant to the R E11111
Farmland Mapping and
Monitoring Program of the
California Resources Agency,
to non- agricultural use?

1*   Conflict with existing zoning for
agricultural use, or a

Williamson Act Contract?

c.   Conflict with existing zoning for,
or cause rezoning of, forest land
as defined in Public Resources

Code section 12220[ g]),
timberland ( as defined by Public El Z
Resources Code section 4526),

or timberland zoned Timberland

Production ( as defined by
Government Code section i

cl,   Result in the loss of forest land

or conversion of forest land to El I D
non- forest use?

e.   Involve other changes in the

existing environment, which,
due to their location or nature,

could result in conversion of

Farmland to no n- agricultural

use or conversion of forest

land to non- forest use?

Explanation of Ch8Ck| St-

a—e: No Impact. No construction is proposed aao part ofthis project.  The projectis not

expected to result in conflicts with applicable air quality plans or standards.  Therefona,
the project vvou| dnotcOnvert | nnportantFann| and. 00nOiotvvithoghcu| tuna| zOning. or
otherwise cause the conversion of farmland or forest land to non- agricultural/ non- forest

use. The project vvou| dhavenoa8riou| tura| reanunoe | rnpact.

Source: 1, 2, 3. 4' 11

32-



Attachment 

Ui AIR QUALITY

Would the p ject

Less Than

Potentially Significant Less Than
No

Issue Significant with Significant
Impact

Impact Mitigation Impact

Iricorporated

a,   Conflict with or obstruct

implementation of the LI
applicable air quality plan?

b.  Violate any air quality standard
or contribute substantially to El EJ H
an existing or projected air

quality violation?

c.   esult in a cumulatively
considerable net increase of

any criteria pollutant for which
the project region is non

attainment under an applicable

federal or state ambient air

quality standard ( including
releasing emissions which

exceed quantitative thresholds

for ozone precursors)?

d.   Expose sensitive receptors to

substantial pollutant 1: 1 E]

e.   Create objectionable odors

affecting a substantial number E]
of peolple?

E/ p| aO@tiOD of Checklist:
a- a: Lmmm Than Significant | nnpmcL No construction is proposed as a port of this

project.  No significant impact on air resources is likely to occurWhile the proposed

project may result in o slight increase in vehicular traffic and a slight increase in air
quality irnpoCtS to the region, the W1ootar Environmental | rnp@( t Report / ME| R\ for the
City of Lemon Grove' s General Plan anticipates vehicular air quality impacts associated
with the build out of Lemon Grove but not to o level Of significance.  The cumulative air

quality impacts of buildout of the Lemon Grove General Plan will nann3in Significant and
unmitigated.  Hovvever, this project is not likely to result in o cumulatively considerable
net increase of any Criteria pollutant,  In conformance with the General Plan ME| R, all

existing buildings must be tested for asbestos prior to demolition and all necessary
treatment implemented if identified.  Standard conditions Of project approval will require

the control of dust during site grading and construction.  During construntion, diesel
equipment may generate some nuisance odors; hovvever, due to best management
practice requirements to control dust and odons, odors associated with project

construction would not be significant. As a cnrnrneroia| and industrial use, future projects

will be evaluated as it relates to the generation of objectionable odors

33-



Attachment C

Section 15125( d) of the CEQA Guidelines contains specific reference to the need to

evaluate any inconsistencies between the proposed project and the applicable air quality
management plan, i. e., the San Diego Regional Air Quality Strategy ( RAQS). Included in

the RAQS are transportation control measures ( TCMs). The RAQS and TCM set forth

the steps needed to accomplish attainment of state and federal ambient air quality

standards. The primary concern for assessing impacts on the RAQS is whether the
project is consistent with the growth assumptions used to develop the plan.

San Diego Air Pollution Control District ( SDAPCD) relies on land use designations
contained in local general plan documents and the San Diego Association of

Governments ( SANDAL) regional transportation plans to prepare air quality plans.

SDAPCD refers to approved general plans to forecast, inventory, and allocate regional
emissions from land use and development- related sources. These emissions budgets

are used in statewide air quality attainment planning efforts. As such, a project is
inherently consistent if it proposes development in conformance with a given General
Plan land use designation. Projects that propose development that is greater than

anticipated in the growth projections warrant further analysis to determine consistency
with RAQS and the State Implementation Plan ( SIP).  This analysis will be done as a

part of future projects.

Source: 1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 8, 9, 10, 13, 14

34-



Attachment C

IV. BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES

Would the project:

Less Than

Potentially Significant Loss Than
No

Issue Significant With Significant
Impact

Impact Mitigation Impact

Incorporated

a.   Have substantial adverse

effects, either directly or
through habitat modifications,

on any species identified as a
candidate, sensitive, or special

status species in local or El 0 E
regional plans, policies, or

regulations, or by the California
Department of Fish and

Wildlife ( CDFW) or U. S. Fish

and Wildlife Service ( USFWS)?
I...................-

b.   Have a substantial adverse

effect on any riparian habitat or
other sensitive natural

community identified in local or El 1: 1 1
regional plans, policies, and

regulations or by the CDFW or
USFWS?

C.   Have a substantial adverse

effect on federally protected
wetlands as defined by Section
404 of the Clean Water Act

including, but not limited to, El I
marsh, vernal pool, coastal,

etc.) through direct removal,

filling, hydrological interruption,
or other means?

d.   Interfere substantially with the
movement of any native

resident or migratory fish or
wildlife species or with

established native resident or

migratory wildlife corridors, or

impede the use of native

wildlife"'    nursery sites?
e.   Conflict with any local policies

or ordinances protecting

biological resources, such as U EJ
tree preservation policy or
ordinance?

35-



Attachment C

Less Than

Potentially Significant Less Than
No

Issue Significant With Significant,    
impact

1111pact Mitigation Impact

Incorporated

f.   Conflict with the provisions of

an adopted Habitat

Conservation Plan, Natural

Community Conservation Plan,
or other approved local,

regional, or state habitat

Explanation nfChecklist:

m- f: No Impact. No construction ka proposed as a part of this project.  The MBR for the

City of Lemon Grove' s General Plan confirms there are limited known sensitive
biological resourcen, riparian habitat, or wetlands within the project area.  Future

development projects vvithintheeeonaosxvi|| nequineenvinonrnantm| revievvand

appropriate technical analysis todetermine environmental impacts.

Source: 1' 2' 3' 4

36-



Attachment C

V. CULTURAL RESOURCES

Would the project;

Less Than

Potentially significant Less Than
No

Issue Significant With Significant
Impact

Impact Mitigation Impact

Incorporated

a.   Cause a substantial adverse

change in the significance of
J

an historical resource as
El F- E

defined in M5064. 5?

b'.   Cause a substantial adverse

change in the significance of

an archaeological resource

pursuant to § 15064. 5?

c

1. 11

birectly or in-directly destroy a    .......
unique paleontological

El L1 F]     E
resource or site or unique

geologic feature?

d.   b-is-WA human —remains,   I

including those interred outside E- 1 El I
of dedicated cemeteries?

e Cause a substantial adverse

change in the significance of a

Tribal Cultural Resource as

defined in Public Resources

Code, Section 21074 as

either:

1)  a site, feature, place,

cultural landscape that is

geographically defined in
terms of the size and scope of

the landscape, sacred place,

or object with cultural value to

a California Native American

Tribe, that is listed or eligible

for listing on the California
Register of Historical

Resources, or on a local

register of historical resources

as defined in Public

Resources Code section

5020. 1( k), or

2) a resource determined by a
lead agency, in its discretion
and supported by substantial
evidence, to be significant

according to the historical
register criteria in Public

37-



Attachment C

Less Than

Potentially Significant Less Than
No

Issue Significant with Significant
Iff1pact

Impact Mitigation Impact

Incorporated

Resources Code section

5024. 1 ( c), and considering

the significance of the

resource to a California Native

American tribe.

Explanation nfChecWist-
a- a: No Impact. No construction ieproposed aeapart ofthis project.  Future

development resulting from these Municipal Code amendments will require investigation
aeitrelates tothese issues.  Tribal consultation was not requested for this project a\ noe

nodevelopment orconstruction activity ieproposed.

Source: 1' 2' 3, 4, 6. 13

38-



Attachment C

V1. GEOLOGY AND SOILS

Would the project:

Less Than

Potentially Significant Less ' rhan
No

Issue Significant with significant
Impact

Impact Mitigation Impact

ncorpoi al'ted", 
a.   Expose people or structures to

potential substantial adverse

effects, including the risk of
loss, injury, or death involving:
i.   Rupture of a known

earthquake fault, as

delineated on the most

recent Alquist- Priolo

Earthquake Fault Zoning
Map issued by the State El
Geologist for the area or

based on other substantial

evidence of a known fault?

Refer to Division of Mines

and Geology Special
Publication 42.

ii.  Strong seismic ground Ll D
shaking?

iii. Seismic- related ground

failure, including E.1
liquefaction?

iv. Landslides?

b.   Result in substantial soil

erosion or the loss of topsoil?    EI

c.   Be located on a geologic unit

or soil that is unstable, or that

would become unstable as a

result of the project, and
EI

potentially result in on- or off-
site landslide, lateral

spreading, subsidence,
liquefactionor

I ................

d.   Be located on expansive soil,

as defined in Table 18- 1- B of

the Uniform Building Code
1994), creating substantial

risks to life or property?

39-



Attachment C

Less Than

Potentially Significant Less Than
No

Issue Significant with Significant
Impact

Impact Mitigation Impact

e.   Have soils incapable of

adequately supporting the use
of septic tanks or alternative

wastewater disposal systems

where sewers are not available

for the disposal of wastewater?

E){ p| aOofiOD of Checklist-
a: Less than Significant Impact. . No construction is proposed as o pad of this project.

Future development resulting from these Municipal Code amendments will require
investigation as it relates to these issues. The City is located within the seismically active
southern California region. The Rose Canyon Fault Zona is the nearest active fault

system to the project Site and lies approximately eight nni| en to the west.  The
geotechnical evaluation from the General Plan MBR further indicates that there are no

known active faults crossing the City. Given the proximity of the Rose Canyon fault
system, 8 strong earthquake nnthis fault could produce severe ground shaking, but
vvOu| d be unlikely to produce ground rupture. Despite the potential of the Rose Canyon
fault system to produce severe ground shaking at the project site, impacts to the project
would be reduced through adherence to requirements specified in the A| quiat- Prio| oAct,

the Uniform Building Code, Title 24 of the California Building Code. and all development
regulations of the City. Compliance with these building standards would minimize
impacts associated with seismic hazards.

b- e: No Impact. No construction iaproposed aaa part nfthis project.  Futuna

development resulting from these Municipal Code amendments will require investigation
as it relates tothese issues. The project would be oen/ od by the City' s wastewater
system and vvOu| d not require the use of septic systems. No impact related to septic

system soil issues would occur. Typical erosion control measures will be required during

site grading.  Standard conditions of approval for future development projects will require

best management practices.

Source: 1, 2, 3, 4, 5. 7



Attachment C

VU. GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS

Would the project:

Less Than

Potentially Significant Less Than
No

Issue Significant With Significant
1111pact

Impact Mitigation impact

incorporated

a.   Generate greenhouse gas

emissions, either directly or
indirectly, that may have a 2"]     E]
significant impact on the

b.   Conflict with an applicable

plan, policy or regulation

adopted for the purpose of

reducing the emissions of

ExD|aDafOD of Checklist:

a—b: Less Than Significant Impact.

No construction is proposed as o port of this project.  Future development resulting
from these Municipal Code amendments will require investigation as it relates to

these issues. Analysis will require investigation to determine if future development is

below the threshold of significance established by the Californian Air Pollution Control
Officers Association ( CAPCC) A) for greenhouse gas emissions. Pursuant to California

Assembly Bill 33. the State must reduce greenhouse gas emissions by at least 10% in

order to roll bock the level of emissions for the year 2020 to those levels that existed

in 1990. CAPCCA has determined that any project which generates less than 900
metric tons of CO2- equivalent emissions per year is be| nvv the level necessary to
achieve the 1096 reduction in anticipated state- wide emissions for the year 2020

under the " business as usual" scenario.

During future grading and project construction, 8 temporary increase in operational
8[ niSSiOnS may occur. Operational emissions may include mobile source emissions
and building emissions.  The San Diego Air Pollution Control District Rule 55 requires
COnnp| iono8 with standard fugitive dust control best management practices which will
be required as o part of normal practices. The irnpoota are expected to be | eau than

significant.

Source: 1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 8, 9, 10. 13. 14



Attachment C

vlllll,       HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

Would the project:

Less Than

Potentially Significant Less Than
No

Issue Significant With Significant
Impact

11,11pact Mitigation Impact

Incorporated

a.   Create a significant hazard to

the public or the environment

through routine transport, use,  El El R F1,
11" I

or disposal of hazardous

materials?

b Create a significant hazard to

the public or the environment

through reasonably
foreseeable upset and

accident conditions involving
the release of hazardous

materials into the

environment?

c.   Emit hazardous emissions or

handle hazardous or acutely
hazardous materials,      

11 Ed
substances, or waste within

one- quarter mile of an existing

orproposedschool?  

d.   Be located on a site which is

included on a list of hazardous

materials sites compiled

pursuant to Government Code

Section 65962. 5 and, as a

result, would it create a

significant hazard to the public

or the environment?

e.   For a project located within an

airport land use plan or, where

such a plan has not been

adopted, within two miles of a

public airport or public use

airport, would the project result

in a safety hazard for people
residing or working in the
project area?

f.   For a project within the vicinity
of a private airstrip, would the
project result in a safety
hazard for people residing or
workinq in the ioroiect area?

42-



Attachment C

Less Than

Potentially Significal' A Less Than
No

Issue Significant with significant
Impact

Impact Mitigation Impact

Incorporated

g.   Impair implementation of or

physically interfere with an
adopted emergency response 1:1 El E]
plan or emergency evacuation

h.     xpose people or structures to

a significant risk of loss, injury
or death involving wildland
fires, including where wildlands
are adjacent to urbanized

areas or where residences are

intermixed with wildlands?

ExCJ| 2DE\ fiOO of Checklist:
a—h: No Impact. No construction is proposed as part of this project.  Future

development resulting from these Municipal Code amendments will require investigation
as it relates to these issues and will require compliance with performance standards

related to noiae. Q| ana, tnsffin, vibradone, hazardous noateria| s, airborne emissions, and
liquid and solid wastes.

Source: 1. 2, 3, 4



Attachment C

Ix. HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY

Would the project:

Less Than

Potentially Significant Less Than
No

Issue Significant With Significant
Impact

Impact Mitigation Impact

Incorporated
1................................................................................ ........—

a. Violate any water quality
standards or waste discharge d 1] EI EJ
requirements?

b.   Substantially deplete
groundwater supplies or

interfere substantially with
groundwater recharge such

El
that there would be a net

deficit in aquifer volume or a

lowering of the local
qroundwater table?

c.   Substantially alter the existing
drainage pattern of the site or

area, including through the
alteration of the course of a

11 J Ej
stream or river, in a manner,

which would result in

substantial erosion or siltation

on- or off- site?

d.   Substantially alter the existing
drainage pattern of the site or

area, including through the
alteration of the course of a

stream or river, or substantially El IN
increase the rate or amount of

surface runoff in a manner

which would result in flooding
on- or off- site?

e.   Create or contribute runoff

water which would exceed the

capacity of existing or planned

stormwater drainage systems El EJ
or provide substantial

additional sources of polluted

runoff?

f.   Otherwise substantially El 7] El
deqrade water quality?

I I I I I........... .....    .............  . .....      

44-



Attachment C

Less Than

Potentially Significant Less Than
No

Issue Significant With Significant
Impact

Impact Mitigation Impact

Incorporated

g Place housing within a 100-
year flood hazard area as

mapped on a federal Flood
EI

Hazard Boundary or Flood
Insurance Rate Map or other
flood hazard delineation map?

Place within a 1 00- year flood

hazard area structures which
ID E]     E)

would impede or redirect flood

i Expose people or structures to

a significant risk of loss, injury
or death involving flooding,       El I' ll" ED
including flooding as a result of
the failure of a levee or dam?

j.    Contribute to inundation by
seiche, tsunami, or mudflow.

Explanation of Ch8Ck| ist.-

a ': No Impact. No construction is proposed aaa part ofthis project.  Future

development resulting from these Municipal Code amendments will require
investigation ositrelates tothese issues.

The City is located approximately 9 rni| ea from the nearest shoreline of the Pacific
Ocean at an elevation of approximately 380 feet above sea level. As such there is no
threat to the site from seioh8, tsunami. ormudf| nw.

Source: 1' 2, 3' 4



Attachment C

X. LAND USE AND PLANNING

Would theproject:

Less Than

Potentially significant Loss Than,       
No

Issue Significant With significant
Impact

Impact Mitigation 1111pact

Incorporated

a.   Physically divide an El 1: 1 El
established communitv?   

11

b.   Conflict with any applicable
land use plan, policy, or
regulation of an agency with

jurisdiction over the project

adopted for the purpose of

avoiding or mitigating an

environmental effect?

c Conflict with any applicable
habitat conservation plan or

natural community

conservation plan?

E' D| BOafiOn of Checklist:
a- c: No | nnpmcL No construction is proposed as m part ofthis project.  Futuna

development resulting from these Municipal Code amendments will require investigation
as it relates to these issues. The project will not divide the community. The proposed
project is consistent with the commercial and industrial General Plan land use

designations.  There are nohabitat conservation ormitigation plans ineffect within the

City.

Source: 1, 2, 3. 4



Attachment C

Xi MINERAL RESOURCES

VVOu| d the project-

Less Than

Potentially Significant Less' Than
No

Issue Significant with Significant
Impact

Impact Mitigation Impact

Incorporated

a.   Result in the loss of availability
of a known mineral resource

that would be of value to the D El
region and the residents of the

b.   Result in the loss of availability
of a locally important mineral
resource recovery site El El Z
delineated on a local general

plan, specific plan or other land

use plan?

ExD| @OafiOD of Checklist:

a- b: No Impact. There are no known mineral resources of significance or categorized as

000Uy important within the City. As o neault, there would be no impact to noinana|
resources associated with implementation ofthe project.

Source: 1, 2' 3' 4



Attachment C

XU. NOISE

Would the project

Less Thati

Potentially Significant Lerss, Than,       
No

Issue Significant with significant,    
Impact

Impact Mitigation linpact

a.   Expose persons to or generate

noise levels in excess of

standards established in the
EJ El E llocal general plan or noise

ordinance, or applicable

standards of other aqencies?

b.   Expose persons to or generate

excessive ground borne
EJ 1,121111 E-]

vibration or ground borne

noise levels?

c.   Result in a substantial

permanent increase in ambient

noise levels in the project E]
vicinity above levels existing
without the project?

d.   Result in a substantial

temporary or periodic increase
in ambient noise levels in the

project vicinity above levels
existing without the project?

e,   For a project located within an

airport land use plan or, where

such a plan has not been

adopted, within two miles of a

public airport or public use 1: 1 El
airport, would the project

expose people residing or

working in the project area to
excessive noise levels?

f.   For a project within the vicinity
of a private airstrip, would the
project expose people residing

or working in the project area
to excessive noise levels?

Explanation of Checklist-

a: Lmem Than Significant | rnpmmt with Mitigation. No construction is proposed as a

part of this project.  Future development nasu| UnQ from these Municipal Code
amendments will require investigation as it relates to these issues. The project may
result in outdoor patios and indoor live nnuoio operations.  Mitigation measures will

require compliance with the City' s Noise Abatement and Control Ordinance



Attachment C

9. 24).  Patio areas are required to have al; r) ropriate barriers and interior spaces will
reauire double entry doorways and appropriate STC rated windows. aclosed window
and door condition, and a HVAC syste  hen live music is proposed.  Alternative

noise.....

m w Alternatively, a

analysis may be prepared.  Standard conditions require compliance with interior

noise restrictions of 45 decibels or less of exposure. ina closed window and door
condition.  Exterior patio areas willm....... be encouraged to be locateon buildina faces,,,,,

opposite freeways or maior roads or p!,prL t appropriate noise attenuation features as

i nappropriate to limit exterior noise exposure.  The MEIR for the General Plan states that
projects wit[ i existing noise levels below 60 dB CNEL are nortnall
satisfactory for the area and no....conditions are required. The General Plan MEIR further
states that noise studies are required for protects exceeding 60 dB CNEL.  Conformance

with the City' s Noise Abatement and Control ordinance is also required for operation of
any single or combination of powered construction equipment at any construction site.

b- d: Less than Significant Impact. No construction is proposed as a part of this

project.  Future development resulting from these Municipal Code amendments will
require investigation as it relates to these issues. The proposed project will not expose

persons to, or generate, excessive ground borne vibration or ground borne noise levels.

Construction activities may create minor ground borne vibrations during the construction
process, but any such vibrations would be temporary in nature and less than significant.

e- f: No Impact. No construction is proposed as a part of this project.  Future

development resulting from these Municipal Code amendments will require investigation
as it relates to these issues. The project area is more than six miles from the nearest

airport, and more than nine miles from the nearest private air strip.

Source: 1, 2, 3, 4

49-



Attachment C

XUi POPULATION AND HOUSING

Would the project:

Less Than

Potentially Significant Less ' Than
No

Issue significant Witt)  Significant
Irnpact

Impact mitigation Impact

a.   Induce substantial population

growth in an area, either

directly ( for example, by
proposing new homes and El El E]    T111
businesses) or indirectly ( for
example, through extension of

roads or other infrastructure)?

b.   Displace substantial numbers

of existing housing,
necessitating the construction
of replacement housing

c.   Displace substantial numbers

of people, necessitating the I'D E]
construction of replacement

Evp| @D8fiOn of Checklist-
a- c: No Impact. No construction or demolition is proposed as a part of this project.

Future development resulting from these Municipal Code amendments will require
investigation as it relates to these issues. The proposed development is located in an

urbanized area. The project propooeanohousingondnohouain0vviUreau| t from the

project and would not indirectly induce growth.

Source: 1, 2, 3, 4

50-



Attachment C

XIV.      PUBLIC SERVICES

Would the project:

Potentially Significant Less Than
No

Issue Significant with Significant
Impact

Impact Mitigation Impact

Incorporated

a Result in substantial adverse

physical impacts associated

with the provision of new or

physically altered

governmental facilities, need

for new or physically altered
governmental facilities, the

construction of which could

cause significant

environmental impacts, in

order to maintain acceptable

service ratios, response times

or other performance

objectives for any of the public

i.   Fire protection?  El
ii.  Police protection?       E] El M El

v.  Other public facilities?

Explanation nfChE} cWst-

a( i - v): Less Than Significant Impact. No construction is proposed as o part of this

project.  Future development resulting from these Municipal Code amendments will
require investigation as it relates tothese issues. Since other alcoholic beverage uses

are currently permitted in commercial and industrial a[ 88S, impacts are anticipated to be
less than significant oaitrelates toimpacts onprotection and services.

The projectis | OCatedin8Ou[ b3niz8dcononounityvveUaervedvvithS8vverandwater

inea, atneets, storm drains and other public utilities. In oddidon, the project site is served

by Heartland Fire & R8SCu8. 8 joint powers authority delivering fire protection and
emergency medical services tothe cities of El Cajon, Lemon Grove. and La Mesa.
Police protection is provided by the San Diego County Sheriff' s office in Lemon Grove.

Source: 1, 2, 3. 4

51



Attachment C

Xv.       RECREATION

Would the project:

Less Than

Potentially Significant Less Than
No

Issue Significarit Witt)  Significant
Impact

Impact Mifigation Impact

Incorporated

a.   Increase the use of existing
neighborhood and regional

parks or other recreational

facilities such that substantial E71
physical deterioration of the

facility would occur or be

b.   Include recreational facilities or

require the construction or

expansion of recreational
11 z

facilities, which might have an

adverse physical effect on the

Explanation of Checklist:

a—b: No Impact. No construction is proposed as a part of this project.  Future

development resulting from these Municipal Code amendments will require investigation
asitrelates tothese issues. The proposed project vviUnntceuoeaaignificontincreoaein

the demand onrecreational services inthe community.

Source: 1, 2, 3. 4

52-



Attachment C

XVI.      TRANSPORTATION / TRAFFIC

Would the project:

Less than

potentially Significant Less Than
No

Issue Significant With Significant
Impact

Impact Mitigation Impact

Incorporated

a.   Conflict with an applicable plan,

ordinance, or policy establishing

measures of effectiveness for

the performance of the

circulation system, taking into
account all modes of

transportation including mass
transit and non- motorized travel

m_

and relevant components of the

circulation system, including but
not limited to intersections,

streets, highways and freeways,

pedestrian and bicycle paths,

and mass transit?

b.   Conflict with an applicable

congestion management

program, including, but not
i limited to level of service

standards and travel demand

measures, or other standards
EA El

established by the county
congestion management agency

for designated roads or

highways?

c.   R.       .   .............esult in a change in air traffic

patterns, including either an
increase in traffic levels ora

change in location that results in

substantial safety risks?

d.   Substantially increase hazards
due to a design feature (e. g.,
sharp curves or dangerous C J , EJ
intersections) or incompatible

uses ( e. q., farm equipment)?
ate.

e

ac ess? 

inadeR11ult in quate emergency l El F]    

f.   Conflict with adopted policies,

plans, or programs regarding

public transit, bicycle, or

pedestrian facilities, or

otherwise decrease the

performance or safety of such

facilities?

53-



Attachment C

Explanation of Checklist;

a—f: No Impact.

No construction is proposed as a part of this project.  Future development resulting from
these Municipal Code amendments will require investigation as it relates to these issues.

Based on the San Diego Traffic Engineers' Council ( SANTEC) and the Institute of

Transportation Engineers ( ITE) document SANTEC/ ITE Guidelines for Traffic Impact

Studies in the San Diego Region, a Traffic Impact Study is not required when the
project' s trip generation is calculated to be less than 1, 000 ADT and less than 100 peak
hour trips.

Requirements for parking and emergency access will be required to be adhered to.

Source: 1, 2, 3, 4, 10, 13, 14

54-



Attachment C

XVII.      UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS

Would the project

Less Than

Potentially Significant Less Thart
No

Issue Significant with Significant
Impact

Impact Mitigation Impact

Incorporated

a.   Exceed wastewater treatment

requirements of the applicable
E,I E-]

Regional Water Quality Control
Board?

b.   Require or result in the

construction of new water or

wastewater treatment facilities

or expansion of existing F
facilities, the construction of

which could cause significant

environmental effects?

c.   Require or result in the

construction of new storm

water drainage facilities or

expansion of existing facilities,  El N
the construction of which could

cause significant environmental

effects?

d.   Have sufficient water supplies

available to serve the project

from existing entitlements and
resources, or are new or

expanded entitlements

needed?

e.   Result in a determination by the
wastewater treatment provided

which serves or may serve the
project that it has adequate

capacity to serve the project' s
projected demand in addition to

the provider' s existing
commitments?

f.   Be served by a landfill with
sufficient permitted capacity to E..] F.1 I,"       I"i"]
accommodate the project' s

solid waste disposal needs?

g.  Comply with federal, state, and
local statutes and regulation

related to solid waste?

55--



Attachment C

Explanation of Checklist:

a—g: No Impact.

No construction is proposed as a part of this project.  Future development resulting from
these Municipal Code amendments will require investigation as it relates to these issues.

Properties within the City are served by the City of Lemon Grove Sanitation District.
Standard conditions of approval for future projects will require that the project obtain

sewer permits, pay sewer service and connection fees, and connect to the Sanitation
District.  Standard conditions of approval will require that a future project construct

improvements consistent with City Engineering requirements and provide storm water
facilities in conformance with the Municipal Code and Jurisdictional Runoff Management

Program.

The proposed project will not result in a significant increase in demand for domestic

water supplies. Standard conditions of approval for future projects will require that the

project obtain water service permits, pay the water service and connection fees, and
connect to the Helix Water District.

Compliance with all federal, state, and local statutes and regulations regarding solid
waste will also be required.

Source: 1, 2, 3, 4

56-



Attachment C

XVIII.     MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Does the project

Less Titan

Potentially Significant Less Than
No

Issue Significant with Significant
Impact

Impact Mitig tin Impact

Incorporated

a.   Does the project have the

potential to degrade the quality
of the environment,

substantially reduce the habitat
of a fish or wildlife species,

cause a fish or wildlife

population to drop below self-
sustaining levels, threaten to
eliminate a plant or animal

community, reduce the number
or restrict the range of a rare or

endangered plant or animal or

eliminate important examples

of the major periods of

California history or prehistory?
r

b.   Does the project have impacts

that are individually limited, but
cumulatively considerable?

Cumulatively considerable"
means that the incremental

effects of a project are

considerable when viewed in

connection with the effects of

past projects, the effects of

other current projects, and the

effects of probable future

protects)?

c.   Does the project have

environmental effects, which

will cause substantial adverse El r/A
effects on human beings,

either directly or indirectly?

Explanation of Checklist-

a: No Impact. No construction is proposed as a part of this project.  Future development

resulting from these Municipal Code amendments will require investigation as it relates
to these issues. The proposed project will not degrade the quality of the environment.

b- c: Less Than Significant Impact. No construction is proposed as a part of this

project.  Future development resulting from these Municipal Code amendments will
require investigation as it relates to these issues. Since other alcoholic beverage uses

5 7...



Attachment C

are currently permitted in commercial and industrial areas, impacts are anticipated to be
less than significant as it relates to cumulative impacts and impacts on human beings.

XIX.      DETERMINATION AND PREPARERS

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND WILDLIFE FEE DETERMINATION

Fish and Game Code Section 711. 4, Statutes of 2006 — SB 1535)

X ]     It is hereby found that this project involves no potential for any adverse effect,
either individually or cumulatively, on wildlife resources and that a " Certificate of
Fee Exemption" shall be prepared for this project.

It is hereby found that this project could potentially impact wildlife, individually or
cumulatively, and therefore, fees in accordance with Section 711. 4( d) of the Fish
and Game Code shall be paid to the County Clerk.

58-



Attachment C

XX.       REFERENCES

Section 15150 of the State CEQA Guidelines permits an environmental document to

incorporate by reference other documents that provide relevant data. The documents
listed below are hereby incorporated by reference. The pertinent material is summarized
throughout this Initial Study / Environmental Checklist where that information is relevant

to the analysis of impacts of the Project. The following references were used in the
preparation of this Initial Study / Environmental Checklist and are available for review at

the City Hall located at 3232 Main Street, in Lemon Grove.

Reference #   Document Title

1.  City of Lemon Grove General Plan
2.  Master Environmental Impact Report for the Lemon Grove General Plan

3.  City of Lemon Grove Municipal Code
4.  ZA1- 500- 0002 Application Packet

5.  Caltrans Scenic Highway website:
http:// www. dot. ca. gov/ hq/ LandArch/ l 6_ livability/ scenic_ highways/

6.  San Diego Air Pollution Control District' s Regional Air Quality Standards
RAQS) available at: http:// www. sdapcd. org/ content/ sdc/ apcd/ en/ air-

quality- planning. html
7,  Department of Conservation' s Alquist- Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning

Map available at: http:// www.conservation. ca. gov/cgs/ rghm/ ap
8.  CAPCOA White Paper, published January, 2008.
9,  California Environmental Protection Agency Cortese List Data Resources

available at:  http:// www.calepa. ca. gov/sitecleanup/ corteselist/
10, SANDAG Brief Guide of Vehicular Traffic Generation Rates available at:

http:// www. sandag. org/ uploads/ publicationid/ publicationid- 1 1405044. pdf
11. Department of Conservation, Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program

website:  http:// www. conservation. ca. gov/ dlrp/ fmmp
12. FEMA Flood Insurance Rate Map Panel No. 06073C1910G May 16, 2012
13. SANTEC/ ITE Guidelines for Traffic Impact Studies in the San Diego

Region

14. Caltrans Guide For The Preparation of Traffic Impact Studies

Individuals and Organizations Consulted

Michael Viglione, Assistant Planner, City of Lemon Grove

59-



c APIT t

GO
SAN SAN DIEGO BREWERS GUILD

RAFT

BREWERS P.O. Box 180696, Coronado, CA 92178/( 858) 581- 7368 r sandiogobroivovapuild. orp

GUILID

Representatives of the Lemon Grove City Council:

The San Diego Brewers Guild, which promotes San Diego County' s more than 140 craft breweries, would like to
extend its support to any initiatives proposed/ introduced by the City of Lemon Grove which would facilitate the
opening of operational brewhouses and tasting rooms in Lemon Grove.

The City of San Diego has observed firsthand the impressive economic impact of San Diego' s craft breweries— it

was reported by the National University System Institute in 20x5 that 114 San Diego Based breweries and
brewpubs generated$ 852 million in sales and employed 4, 512 workers. Since zo12, the industry has experienced
unprecedented growth and this year is projected to see largest number of brewery openings to date— 20

breweries have opened to date in 2017,

Today, craft brewing has become synonymous with San Diego County and craft beer tourism is a significant
impetus for visitors to San Diego. In response, the San Diego Tourism Authority has honed in on the industry as a
key tourism driver and has developed a regional marketing campaign extolling San Diego craft beer,

Policy choices have a direct impact on craft brewers. Opening a new brewery or brewpub requires a great deal of
time and money as well as dealing with government regulations from Federal, State and local agencies. One city,
Oceanside, is attempting to encourage small breweries to open in areas of the Coast Highway by revising its
zoning laws to allow small breweries and having a process whereby they can be approved without public
hearings. This may eliminate the cost and time in obtaining a major or minor use permit and Planning
Commission and/ or City Council hearings which can prolong the process of opening for a year. Another city,
Vista, is making the city more brewery friendly by having its Economic Development Director assist existing and
new breweries with the governmental regulations and laws regarding new and existing breweries. The city of
Vista recently released a FAQ for breweries regarding the Host Facility Permit now required by the County due to
the ordinance enacted January 2o17. Having a single point of contact for breweries to coordinate the
requirements of a variety of departments within the city can make the process of opening a brewery much easier,

Many small breweries greatly rely on the revenue from tasting rooms so the size, days and hours of operation,
construction costs( bathrooms, sprinklers, etc), number of parking spaces, regulations regarding serving food and
limitations on entertainment can impact the business plan for a brewery.

In addition to the positive economic impact of craft breweries, tasting rooms offer a unique community gathering
i

In short, the San Diego Brewers Guild would be thrilled to see craft breweries in the City of Lemon Grove,:

Jill Davidson

San Diego Brewers Guild President



13 Point Brewing Company, LLC

June 19, 2017

City Council Members
City of Lemon Grove
3232 Main Street

Lemon Grove, CA 91945

RE: Ordinance No. 446— Zoning Amendment

City Council Members,

My name is Bob Frank and I am opening a small brewery somewhere in San Diego County. It has been
brought to my attention that Lemon Grove has a desire for this business type within their borders. As
our business plan involves starting our business in the East County region of San Diego, this desire has
intrigued my investors and I to give Lemon Grove serious considerations. It has also been brought to my
attention that a city ordinance exists which would prevent us from having retail sales of our
manufactured beer at our facility.

I hereby support the adoption of Ordinance 446— Zoning Amendment ZA1- 500- 0002 Amending the
Alcoholic Beverage Sales Regulations and the General Commercial Zoning District Regulations to

Allow for Light Manufacturing, Brewpubs, Wine Bars and Related Accessory Uses.

However, I do so with the following caveat. The ordinance would prohibit the sale of single- serving

alcoholic beverages ( e. g., a single 32 ounce beer can). The ordinance summary states that this may be a
minor concern for some alcohol beverage manufacturers, and that this prohibition is consistent with

recommendations from the Sheriff' s Department. I would claim that this is a major concern for my

business, and that I cannot speak for other would- be alcohol beverage manufacturers.

I understand the Sheriffs Department' s concern in this matter, and would only argue that persons who

would purchase single- serving alcoholic beverages and drink them in illegal areas of the city are likely
not the same persons who would pay premium retail craft beer or craft wine prices to do so, and that it
would be far more likely that they would purchase cheaper beverages from a liquor store or grocer. I
would also be willing to sit and discuss this matter with the Sheriffs Department to see if we can come
to a solution that would satisfy both sides of this issue. Obviously I would not want our business to bring
additional crime to your city and would hope we could come to a reasonable understanding.

Thank you for your consideration,.

Sincerely,

Bob Frank      

13 Point Brewing Company, LLC


